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PART I

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATICN
Notes To Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)

Components of Net Periodic Pension Costs: Non-Qualified Pension Costs—for the three months ended
March 31,

2007 2006'%
{in millions}
Service cost §2 $1
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 2 R
Net periodic pension costs ¥4 s2

{a) These amounts exclude pre-tax non<qualified pension cost of approximately 52 million for the three menths ended March 31, 2006 related to Spectra Energy,
which is inclyded inIncome from Discontinued Operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of Cperations.
As nated above, Buke Energy adopted the change in measurement dite transition requirements of SFAS No. 158 effective January
1, 2007 by remeasuring plan assets and henefit obfigations as of that date. There were no changes in assumptions used in the remeasur-
ing of the non-qualilied benefit obligation. There are no non-qualified plan assets. The following table shows the effect of the remeasure-
ment on the benefit obligation of the Duke Energy non-qualified U.S. retirement plans:

December 31, 2006  January 2, 200712 Change

{in millions)
Projected Benefit Obligation 5199 5167 5(32)
Funded Status - $(199) 50167} $32

fa) Reflects the projected benefil obligalion subsequent to the measurement date change and spin-off of Spectra Energy.

Duke Energy’s policy is to fund amounts for its U.S. retirement pfans on an actuznial basis to provide assets sufficient to meet bene-
fit payments to be paid to plan participants. Duke Energy did not make contributions to its U.S. retirement plans during the three months
ended March 31, 2007, Duke Energy anticipates that it will make total contributions of approximately $315 million to the U.S. retirement
plan in 2007,

Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

The following table shows the components of the net perindic postretirement benefit costs for the Duke Energy U.S. other post-
retirement benefit plan. Net periodic benefit costs of Cinergy are included for the period from the date of acquisition (April 1, 2006} and

thereafter.

Components of Net Periodic Post-Retirement Benefit Costs-—for the three months ended March 31,

20071 2006@
(in millions)
Service cost benefit $3 $ 2
interest cost on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 14 9
Expected return on plan assets {3} {3)
Amortization of net transition liability 3 3
Amaortization of prior service cost 1 —
Amortization of loss 1 2
Net periodic postretirement benefit costs 519 513

(a] These amounts axclude approximately 52 miflion of regulatory asset amodization resulting from purchase accounting.
(b} These amounis exclude pradax postretirement benefit cost of approximately 35 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 related to Speclra Energy.
which is included in Income from Discentinued Operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. -
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PART |

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
Notes To Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—({Continued)

As noted above, Dulte Energy adopted the change in measurement date transition requirements of SFAS No. 158 effective January
1, 2007 by remeasuring plan assets and benefit obligations as of that date. There were nio changes in assumplions used in the remeasur-
ing of other postretirement benefit ptan assets or the accumulated other postretirement benelit abligation. The following table shows the
ellect of the rerneasurement on the plan assets and benefit gbligation of the Duke Energy 1.5, other postretirement plans:

December 31, 2006 January 2, 20071%  Change

{in mlilions)
Accumulated other postretiremnent benefit obligation $1,264 5483 si2813
Plan Assets at measurement date 237 153 (84}
Funded Status 51,027 51830} 5197

{a) Rellects the accumulated other post retirement beaefit obligation and plan assets subsequenl to the measurement date chiange and spin-off of Spectra Energy.

Duke Energy also sponsors employee savings plans that cover substantiafly all U.S. employees. Duke Energy expensed pre-tax
employer matching contributions of approximately $21 million in both the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006. These
amounts exchide pre-tax expenses of 53 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 related to Spectra Energy, which is included
in Income from Discontinued Operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

9. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
The following table shows the componants of goodwill at March 31, 2007,

Balance Balance
December 31, March 31,
2006 Other 2007
{in millicns)
LI.S. Franchised Etectric and Gas 53,500 § — 53500
Natural Gas Transmissioni 3,523 (3,523 —
Commercial Power 885 2 887
International Energy 267 5 272
Total consolidated 58,175 503,516} 54,659

ts)  Asdiscussed inNote 1, on January 2, 2007, Dule Enerpy compleled Wie spin-off of its natural gas businesses, inciuding the former Natural Gas Transmission
busingss segment,

The carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 are as fot
lows:

March 31, December 31,

2007 2006
{in mitlions}

Emission allowances 5547 8587
Gas, coal and power contracts 295 322
Other 60 57
Total gross carrying amount 902 966
Accumulated amortization—gas, coal and power contracts (56) {56}
Accumulated amortization—other (18} (5
Total accumulated amortization 74) 61}
Total intangible assets, net $828 $905

Carrying values of emission allowances sold or consumed during the three menths ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 were $95 million
and 58 million, respectively.

Amortization expense for intangible assets for the three manths ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 was approxinately 514 million
and 52 million, respectively.
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PART I

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
Notes To Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—({Continued)

As of April 3, 2006, Dulke Energy recorded an intangible liabllity in connection with the merger with Cinergy amounting to approx-
imately $113 million associated with the Market Based Standard Service Offer (MBSS0) in Ohio that will be recognized in earnings over
the remaining regulatory period, which ends on December 31, 2008. During the three monihs ended March 31, 2007, Duke Energy
amortized tess than $1 million to income related to this intangible kahifity. The carrying amount of this intangible lfability was approx-
imately $95 million at March 31, 2007, Duke Energy also recorded approximately 556 million of intangible liabilities associated with ather
power sale contracts in connection with the merger with Cinergy. The carrying amount of this infangible fiability was approximately S35
million at March 31, 2007. During the three montbs ended March 31, 2007, Duke Energy amortized approximately $4 million to income
related to these power sale contracts.

10. Severance .

During the three months ended #arch 31, 2007, Duke Energy recorded approximately 52 million of severance charges under its
ongoing severance ofan. Fulure severance costs under this plan, if any, are currently not estimable.

Severance Reserve

Balance at Provision/ Cash Balance at
January 1, 2007 Adjustments Reductions March 31, 2007

{in miillions)

Natural Gas Transmission'® 52 502} 5 — S—
Otfer 60 @ oo 20
Totalt! 562 (4} 5(38) 520

{a) Liability was transferred as part of the spin-off of the nalurat gas businesses an January 2, 2007.
{b)  Substantially alt remaining severance paymenls are expected to be applied to the reserves within one year from the date that the provision was recorded.

11. Discontinued Operaticns and Assets Held for Sale

The following table summarizes the results classified as Income from Discontinued Operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Discontinued Operations (in millions)

Operating lacome {Loss} Net Gain (Loss) on Dispositions
Pre-tax Operating Pre-tax Gain [Loss)  Income from
Qperating  Income Incorne [Loss) income Tax on Discontinued
Operating  Income Tax [Loss}, Income an Expense Dispositions,  Operations,

Revenues {Lass) Expense Netof Tax Dispositions {Benefit} Net of Tax Net of Tax

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2007

Commercial Power 5 - 5 — 5~ S — $ S — S S

International Energy — 8 3 5 — - — 5

Other — (1 — {1 7 2 4
Total consolidated 5 — S 7 $ 3 S 4 S 6 S 2 $ 5 8

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2006 .

Spectra Energy $1,475 5428 $157 $271 5 — § — S — 5271

International Energy 5 1 — 1 {19 7) (12} {1

Other 465 6} — 6 (156) (57} (99} (105}
Totatl consolidated 51,945 $423 5157 $266 S(175) Sl64a) Si111) 5155
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
Motes To Unaudited Consolidated Firancial Statements—({Continuad)

The fallowing table presents the carrying values of the major classes of assets and associated liabilities held for sale in the Con-
solidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. Assets held for sale at both March 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006 primarily relate to Buke Energy Indiana, Inc.'s (Duke Energy Indiana) Wabash River Power Stalion, as welt as ¢ertain
Duke Energy Chia, Inc. (Duke Epergy Ohio) trading contracls that were sold in 2006 that have yet to be novated.

Summarizoed Balance Sheet Infermation for Assets and Associated Liabitities Held for Sale {in millions)

March 31, December 31,

2007 2006

Current assets 5 22 $28
Investments and other assets 30 19
Property, plant and equipment, net ; 120 115
Total assets held for sale 5172 $162
Current liabjiities S 21 $ 26
Deferred credits and other liabilities 33 18
Total liabilities associated with assets held for sale $ 54 $ 44

H

Three months ended March 31, 2007

Spectra Energy. As discussed in Note 1, on Janvary 2, 2007, Duke Energy completed the spin-off of Spectra Energy, which princi-
pally consists of Duke Energy's former Natural Gas Transmission business segment and Duke Energy's former 50% cwnarship interest in
DCP Midstream, to Duke Energy shareholders. The results of operations of these businesses are presented as discontinued operations
for the three months ended March 31, 2006 in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Assets and liabilities of entities
included in the spinoff of Spectra Energy were transferred from Dulie Energy on & historical cost basis on the date of the spin-off trans-
action. Mo gain or loss was recognized on the distribution of these operations to Duke Energy sharaholders. Approximately $20.5 billion
of assets, $14.9 biliicn of lisbilities (which includes approximately $8.6 bitlion of debt} and $5.6 billion of common stockholders' equity
{which includes approximately $1.0 billicn of accumulated other comprehensive income) were distributed from Duke Energy as of the date
of the spin-off, Duke Energy expects certain adjusiments to be made in the second quarter of 2007 to the recorded amount of trans-
ferred assets and liabilities, primarily related Lo the completion of certain actuarial determinations of employee bengfit plans' assets and
liabilities refated to the spun off operations. - )

Consolidated balance sheet amounts as of Cecember 31, 2006 have not been retroactively adjusted to reflect amounts assaciated
with the spun off aperations.

income From Discontinued Operations, net of tax, for the three months ended March 31, 2006 includes interest expense of approx-
imately 5140 miltion associated with the debt distributed in the spinoff of Speciva Energy. Additionally, first quarter 2005 income from
Discontihued Operations, net of tax, for Duke Energy's former Spectra Energy operations includes losses of approximately $24 million,
praviously classified in Other, resulting from mark-te-market movements in discontinued hedges at DCP Midstream,

Included in lncome From Discontinued Operations, net of tax, for the three months epded March 31, 2007 are pre-tax amounts of
approximately $9 million related to costs to achieve the Spectra Energy spinoff, primarily fees to outside service providers. These costs
were insignificant in the first quarter of 2006.

Effective with the spin-ofl, Duke Enargy and Specira Enargy entered into a Transition Services Agreement (TSA) whereby Duke
Energy will provide certain support services to Spectra Energy for a period that is not anticipated to extend beyond one year from the
date of the spin-off, Amounts received by Duke Energy during the three months ended March 31, 2007 under this TSA were not sig-
nificant. Additionally, Duke Energy anticipates that there will be very limited commercial business activities between Duke Energy and
Spectra Energy subsequent lo the spinoff and Duke Energy does not anticipate significant continuing involvement in the transferred busk
nesses.

Additionally, effective with the spin-olf, Duke Energy and Spectra Energy entered into various reinsurance and other related agree-
ments that allocated certain assets to Spectra Energy and DCP Midstream creatzd under insurance coverage provided prior to the spin-off
by Duke Energy's captive insurance subsidiary and third party reinsurance companies. Under these agreements, Spectra Energy's captive
insurance subsidiary reinsured 100% of Ouke Energy's retained risk under the insurance coverage provided prior to the spin-off. Consistent
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
Notes To Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—|{Continued)

with the terms of the reinsurance agreement entered into while all parties were under the common control of Duke Energy, Duke Energy
paid approximately $95 millien in cash lo Specira Energy’s captive insurance company, which was placed in a grantor trust to secure Spec-
tra Eneray's obligation to Duke Energy under the Spectra Energy reinsurance agreements. This transfer is reflected in Cash Distributed to
Spectra Energy within financing activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy has a total
lizbility to Specira Energy and DCF Midstream refated to these agreements of approxirnately 5210 miflion, which is reffected in Other
Beferred Credits and Other Liabikties in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, This fiability is offset by a corresponding receivable, of which
approximately 535 million is due from Spectra Energy’s captive insurance subsidiary under the Spectra Energy reinsurance agreement and
approximately 3115 million is due from third party reinsurance companies. These amounts are reflected in Other Invesiments and Other
Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. In the event any of the reinsurance companies deny coverage for any of the claims covered
under these agreements, Duke Energy is nol obligated to pay Spactra Energy or DOP Midstream. Further, Duke Energy is previding no
insurance coverage to Spectra Energy or DCP Midstream for events which dccur subsequent to the spin-off date.

Aso refer to Notes 5, 7, 8, 15 and 16 for additional information related to the spirvoff transaction.

International Energy. in December 2006, Duke Energy engaged in discussions with a potentiat buyer of International Energy's
assets in Bolivia. Such discussions to sell the assets were subject to a binding agreement between the parties, which was finalized in
February 2007, and resulted in the safe of International Energy’s 50-parcent ownership interest in two hydroelectric power plants near
Cochabamba, Belivia to Econergy International for approximately $20 million. Based upon the agreed ugon selling price of the assets, in
December 2006, Duke Energy recorded pre-tax impairment charges to reduce the carrying value of the assets 1o the estimated selling
price pursuant to the aforementioned agreement, As a result of the sale, International Energy noTonger has any assets in Bolivia and the
results of aperations for Bolivia have been reclassified to discontinued operaticns for all periods presented.

Three months ended March 31, 2006

Spectra Energy. During the three months ended March 31, 2006, Duke Energy's fermer Natural Gas Transmission business unit
received shares of stock as consideration for settlement of a customer's transportation contract. The market value of the equity secu-
rities, determined by quoted markat prices on the date of receipt, of approximately 523 million for the three months ended March 31,
2006. Subsequent to receipt, these securities were accounted for under SFAS No. 115, "Acceunting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities,” as trading securities. During the three months ended March 31, 2006, these securities were sold and an additional
gain of approximately S1 million was recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2006.

international Energy. International Energy had a receivable from Norsk Hydro ASA that refated to purchase price adjustments on
the 2003 sale of International Energy's European business. During the three months ended March 31, 2006, based on management’s
best estimate of recaverability, Internationa! Epergy recorded an allowance of approximately 519 milion [S12 million aftertax) against this
receivable. This receivable was collected in July 2006.

Other. During the third quarter of 2005, Duke Energy's Board of Directors authorized and directed management to execute the sale
or disposition of substantially all of DENA's remaining assets and contracts outside the Midwestern United States and certain contractual
positions related to the Midwestern assets. As of the September 2005 exit announcement date, management anticipated that additional
charges would be incurred related to the exit plan, including termination costs for gas transportation, sterage, structured power and
other contracts of approximately 5600 million to 5800 million. Approximately $62% million had been incurred from the announcement
date through March 31, 2006, of which approximatety $160 million was incurred during the three months ended March 31 2006.

During 2006 and 2005, DENA entered into agreements to sell or terminate certain of its contract portfolio, including certain trans-
portalion contracts. The total cash paid by Duke Energy under such contract sales or terminations during 2006 was approximately
5155 million, excluding approximately S600 million of cash paid to Barclays Bank, PLC (Barclays), as discussed hereafter. These trans-
aclions resulted in pre-tax losses on sale of approximately $160 million during the three manth period ended March 31, 2006 and are
included in the $625 million incurred from the announcement date through March 31, 2006, as discussed above. Inciuded in this amount
are the effects of DENA's Novernber 2005 agreement to sell substantially all of its commodity contracts related to the Southeastern
generation operations, which were substantiafly disposed of in 2004, certain commodity contracts related o DENA's Midwestern power
generation facilities, and contracts related to DENA's energy markeling and management activities. Excluded from the contracts sold to
Barclays are commodity contracts associated with the near-term value of DENA's West and Northeastern generation assets and with
remaining gas transportation and structured power contracts. Among other things, the agreement provided that effective upon execution
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DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
Notes To Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

all economic benefits and burdens under the contracts were fransferred to Barclays. Cash consideration paid to Barclays amounted to
approximately $600 million in January 2006. Additionally, in January 2006 Barclays provided DENA with cash equat to the net cash collat:
eral posted by DENA under the contracts of approximately $540 million.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the tast remaining contract related to Duke Energy Merchants, LLC (DEM} expired, which completed
Duke Energy’s exit from DEM's operations. Accordingly, results of operations for DEM for the three months ended March 31, 2006 have
been reclassified to a component of Incame From Discontinued Operations, net of tax, on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

12. Business Segments

Duke Energy operates the following business units: U.S. Franchised Electric and Gas, Commercial Power, International Energy and
Crescent. Duke Energy’s chief operating decision maker regularly reviews financial information about each of these business units in
deciding how to allocate resources and evaluate performance. All of the business units are considered reportable segments under
SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” There is no aggregation within Duke Energy's
defined business segments,

The remainder of Duke Energy's operations is presented as "Other”. While it is not considered a business segment, Other primarity
includes certain unalfocated corporate costs, Dukeiet Communications, LLC, Bison Insurance Company Limited (Bisen}, Duke Energy's
wholly-owned, caplive insurance subsidiary, Duke Energy Trading and Marketing, LLC (DETM), 40% owned by ExxonMobil Corporation and
60% owned by Duke Energy, and Duke Energy’s 50% interest in Duke/Fluor Daniel (D/FD).

As discussed in Note 1, on January 2, 2007, Duke Energy completed the spinoff of its natural gas busingsses to shareholders. The
natural gas businesses spun off primarily consisted of Duke Energy's Natural Gas Transmission business segment and Duke Energy's
50% ownership interest in DCP Midstream, which was part of the Field Services business segment. The results of operations of the
aforementioned busingss segments inciuded in the spin-off are reflected as a component of Income From Discontinved Operations, net of
tax in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the periods prior to the spin-off.

Duke Energy's reportable segments offer different products and services and are managed separately as business units. Accounting
paolicies for Duke Energy's segments are the same as those described in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Duke
Enargy's Annua! Report on Form LOK for the yaar ended December 31, 2006. Management evaluates segment pedormance basad on
earnings before interest and taxes from continuing operations, after deducting minority interest expense related to those profits (ESIT).

On a segment basis, EBIT excfudes discontinued operations, reprasents all profits fram continuing operations (both operating and
non-operating) before deducting interest and taxes, and is net of the minority interest expense related to those profits, Cash, cash equiv-
alents and short-term investments are managed centrally by Duke Energy, so the associated realized and unrealized gains and losses
from foreign currency transactions and interest and dividend income on those balances are excluded from the segments' EBIT,

Transactions between reportable segments are accounted for on the same basis as unaffiliated revenues and expenses in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

22



PART |

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
Notes To Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Business Segment Dataia

Segment EBIT /
Consolidated fncome
from Continuing
Unaffiliated intersegment Total Cperations before Depregiation and
Revenues Revenugs Revenues income Taxes Amortization
{in millions}
Three Months Ended March 31, 2007
U.S. Franchised Electric and Gas 52,394 S5 $2,399 $574 5361
Commercial Power 420 3 432 9} 419
Internationat Energy 245 - 245 94 18
Crescentiet — P — 2 —
Total reportable segments 3,068 8 3,076 661 428
Olher 19 17 36 184) 13
Fliminations — 23 (25} — —
interest expense — — — (164} —
Interest income and otherw) — — — 41 -
Total consalidated $3,087 S — 53,087 S 454 $441
Three Months Ended March 31, 2006
U.S. Franchised Electric and Gas 51.288 S 4 $1,292 $ 359 5252
Commercial Power 12 4 16 {26] 14
International Energy 227 — 227 86 17
Crescentic 71 — il 42 -—
Total reportable segments 1,598 8 1,606 461 263
Other 22 15 37 (54 i0
Eliminations — 23) (23 - —
Interest expense — —_ — (103} —
Interest income and otheri! — — — 7 —
Total consolidated 51,620 S — 51,620 $311 5273

{a)  Segmenl results exclude resulls of entities classified as discontinued operations.
by Other includes foreign currency Lransaclion gains and losses.

{c) In September 2006, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Duke £nergy contributed 2t the membership interests in Crescent {0 @ newly formed joint venture,
causing Duke Energy to deconsalidate Crescent. As a resull. Crescent segment data includes Crescent as a consolidated entity lor periads prior to September 7,

2006 and as an equity method investment for periods subsequent lo September 7, 2006.

Jegment assets in the following table exclude alf intercompany assets.

Segment Assets
March 31, Decembar 31,
2007 2006
{in millions)
U.S. Franchised Electric and Gas $34,233 534,346
Naturat Gas Transmisstonta! — 19,002
Fisld Serviceste! — 1,233
Commercial Fower 6,711 6,826
Internationat Energy 3,324 3,332
Crescant 176 180
Total reportable segments 44,444 64,919
Other 3,734 3,810
Reclassificationsi 51 {29}
Total consolidated assets $48,229 $68,700

{a)  On Jamuary 2, 2007, Duke Energy compleled Lhe spinofi of the nafural gas businesses, including Duke Energy's 50% ownership interest in DCP Midstream (see

Note 1).
{b} Represents rectassilication of federal tax balances in consolidabon.
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13. Risk Management Instruments

The following table shows the carrying value of Duke Energy's derivative portfolic as of March 31, 2007, and December 31, 2006.

Derivative Portfolio Carrying Value {in mitlions)

March 31, December 31,

2607 2006
Hedging 5(5) 513
Trading — 2
Undesignated 2 (32
Total : S §h17)

The amounts in the table above represent the combination of assets and (liabilities) tor unrealized gains and losses on
mark-te-markst and hedging transactions on Duke Energy's Consolidated Balance Sheets, excluding approximately 551 million of
derivative assets and 551 million of derivative liabilities which are included in assets and liabilities held for sale at March 31, 2007.

The $34 million increase in the undesignated derivative portfolio fair value is due primarily to settlement of mark4o-market losses
from the former DENA business, the transfer of mark-to-market balances to Spectra Energy and unrealized mark-tomarket gains on coal
derivatives within Commercial Power. This was partizlly offset by unrealized mark-to-markel losses within Commercial Power, primarily as
a result of higher power prices.

The $18 million decrease in the hedging portfolio fair value is due primarily to the transfer of certain designated hedges to Spectra
Energy,

Commodity Cash Flow Hedges. As of March 31, 2007, 527 million of the pre-tax unrealized net losses on derivative instruments
refated to commodity cash flow hedges were accumulated on the Consoiidated Balance Sheet in Accumulated Gther Comprehensive
Income {Loss) [AOCH, and are expected to be recognized in earnings during the next 12 months as the hedged transactions occw. The
corresponding values in AQCI will not materially change prior to its reclassification into earnings since most of the commodity cash flow
hedges have been terminated.

The ineffective portion of commadity cash flow hedges resulted in the recognition of no gain or loss and a predax Joss ol approximately

$10 million in the three menths ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respectively. The amount recogrized for transaclions thal no
longer qualified as cash flow hedges was not material for either the three months ended March 31, 2007 or March 31, 2006.

Commodity Fair Value Hedges. The ineffective portion of commodity fair value hedges resulted in the recognition of no gain or
loss and a pretax gain of $7 million in the three months ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006, respeclively.

Credit Risk. Included in Other Current Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 are
coliateral assefs of approximately $75 million and $92 million, respectively, which reprasents cash colfateral posted by Duke Energy with third
parties. Included in Other Current Liahilities it the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2007 and Decermber 31, 2006 are collateral
liabilities of approximately 5153 million and $239 miilion, respectively, which represents cash collateral posted by third parties to Buke Energy.
The reduction in both collateral assets and collateral liabilities is primarily the result of balances transferred to Spectra Energy.

14, Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Merger Approvals, As discussed in Note 1 and Note 2, on April 3, 2006, the merger betwzen Duke Energy and Cinergy was
consummated fo create a newly formed company, Duke Energy Holding Corp. (subsequently renamed Duke Energy Corporatian). As a con-
dition to the marger approval, the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCQ), the Kentucky Public Service Commission (KPSC), the Public
Service Commission of South Carolina (PSCSCY and the North Carolina Utilities Commission (NCUC) required that certain merger relaied sav-
ings be shared with corisurmers in Ohio, Kentucky, South Carolina, and North Carolina, respectively, The commissions also required Duke
Energy Holding Corp., Cinergy, Duke Encrgy Ohio, Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. {Duke Energy Kentucky) and/or Duke Enersy Carolinas to meet
additional conditions. While the merger itself was not subject to approval by the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission {IURC), the IURC
approved certain affiliate agreements in connection with the merger subject to similar conditions. Key elements of these conditions include:

* The PUCO required that Duke Energy Ohio provide () a rate reduction of approximately S19 million for one year to facilitate eco-
nomic development in a time of increasing rates and market prices (i) a reduction of approximately $21 million to its gas and elec-
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tric consumers in Ohio for one year, with both ¢redits beginning January 1, 2006. As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy Ohio had
completed its merger related rate reductions and filed a report with the PUCO to terminate the merger credit riders. Approxamately
$2 million of the rate reduction was passed through to customers during the three months ended March 31, 2007.

« The KPSC required that Duke Epergy Kentucky provide S8 million in rate reduchions fo its customers over five years, ending when )
new rates are established in the next rate case after January 1, 2008. As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy Kentucky had returned 5
approximately $2 million to customers on this rate reduction. Of this amount, approximately S1 million of the rate recuction was
passed through to custorners during the three montns ended March 3%, 2007.

= The PSCSC required that Duke Energy Carolinas provide a $40 million rate reduction for one year and a three-year extension to the
Bulk Power Marketing profit sharing arrangement. As of March 31, 2007, approximately $33 million of the rate reduction had been
passed through to customers since the ruling by the PSCSC. Of this,amount, approximately $9 million of the rate reduction was
passed through to customers during the three months ended March 31, 2007

= The NCUC required that Duke Erergy Carolinas provide (i) a rate reduction of approximately $118 mitlion for its North Carolina
customers through a credit rider to existing base rates for a one-year period following the close of the merger, and (i} $12 million
to support various low incorne, environmental, econornic development and educationally beneficial programs, the cost of which was
incurred in the second quarter of 2006. As of March 31, 2007, approximately 583 million of the rate reduction had been passed
through to customers since the ruling by the NCUC. Of this amount, approximately $29 million of the rate reduction was passed
through to customers during the three months ended March 3k, 2007.

» Inits order approving Duke Energy’s merger with Cinergy, the NCUC stated that the merger will result in a significant change in
Duke Energy's organizational structure which constitutes a compelling factor that warrants a peneral rate review. Therefore, as a
condition of its merger approval and no fater than June 1, 2007, Duke Energy Carolinas is required to file a general rate case or
demonstrate that Duke Energy Carglinas’ existing rates and charges should not be changed. This review will be consolidated with
the proceeding that the NCUC is required to undertake in connection with the North Carolina clean air legisfation to review Duke
Energy Carolinas’ environmental compliance costs. The NCUC specifically noted that it has made no determination that the rates
currently being charged by Duke Energy Carolinas are, in fact, unjust or unreasonable.

« The IURC required that Duke Energy Indiana provide a rate reduction of $40 million to its customers over a one year period and
S5 million over a five year period for lowincome energy assistance and clean coal technology. In April 2006, Citizens Action Coalition of
intfiana, Inc., an intervenor in the merger proceeding, filed a Verified Petition for Rehearing and Reconsideration claiming that Duke
Energy Indiana should be ordered to provide an addiional $5 million in rate reduction to customers to be consistent with the terms of the
NCUC's grder appraving the merger. In May 2006, the URC denied the petifon for rehearing and reconsideration. As of March 31,
2007, Duke Energy lndiana had returned approximately $39 million to customers on this rate reduction. Of this amount, approximately
512 million of the rate reduction was passed through to customers during the three months ended March 31, 2007,

= The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC} approved the merger without conditions.

Used fNuclear Fuef. Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, Duke Energy contracted with the Department of
Energy {DOE) for the disposal of used nuclear fuel. The DOE failed to begin accepting used nuclear fuei on January 31, 1998, the date
specified by the Nuclear Waste Poficy Act and in Duke Energy's contract witih the DOE. In 1398, Duke Energy filed a claim with the U.S.
Court of Federal Claims apainst the DOE related to the DOE's failure to accept commercial used nuclear fuel by the required date. Dam-
ages claimed in the lawsuit are based upon Duke Energy’s costs incurred as a result of the DOE's partial material breach of its contract,
including the cost of securing additional used fuef storage capacity. The matter was stayed pending the result of ongoing setilement
negotiations between Duke Energy and the DOE. Duke Energy will continue 1o safely manage its used nuclear fuel untit the DOE accepts it.
Payments made to the DOE for expected fulure dispesal costs are based on nuctear ouiput and are included in the Consolidated State-
ments of Operations 2s Fugl Used in Electric Generation and Purchased Power, On March €, 2007, Duke Energy Carolinas and the U.S.
Department of Justice reached a settlement resolving Duke Energy’s used nuclear fuel litigation against the DOE. The agreement provides
for an initial payment to Duke Energy of approximately $56 million for certain storage costs incurred through July 31, 2009, with addi-
tional amounts reimbursed annuzlly for fulure storage costs. The settlement agreament resulted in a pretax earmings impact of approx-
imately 526 nullion, of which approximately 519 millign and $7 million were recorded as an offset to Fuel Used in Electric Generation and
Purchased Power, and Operation, Maintenance and Other, respectively, in the Consalidated Statements of Operations, with the remaining
impact reflected within the Inventary and Property, Plant and Equipment in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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U.S. Franchised Electric and Gas. Rate Related Information. The NCUC, PSCSC, IURC and KPSC approve rates for retail electric
and gas sales within their states. The PUCO approves rates and market prices for retail etectric and gas sales within Ohio. The FERC
approvas rates for elactric sales to wholesale customers served under cost-based rates.

NC Clean Air Act Compliance. In 2002, the state of North Carolina passed clean air legislation that freezes electric wility rates from
June 20, 200Z to Décember 31, 2007 (rate freeze period), subject to certain conditions, in order for Nerth Carolina electric utllities,
including Duke Energy Carolinas, to sigrificantly reduce emissions of sulfur dioxide (S0,) and nitrogen oxides INO,} from coal-fired power
plants in the state. The tegislation allows clectric utilities, including Duke Energy Carolinas, to accelerate the recovery of compliance costs
by amortizing them aver seven yaars (2003-2009). The legislation provides for significant flexibility in the ameunt of annual amortization
recorded, allowing utilities to vary the amount amortized, within limits, although the legislation dees require that a minimum of 70% of the
originally estimated total cost of $1.5 billion be amorlized within the rate freeze period (2002 to 2007). Duke Energy Carolinas’ amor-
tization axpense related to this clean air legislation totals approximately $919 miion from inception, with approximately $56 million and
562 million recorded during the three months eaded March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of March 31, 2007, cumulative
expenditures totaled approximately $955 million, with $127 million and $79 million incurred during the three months ended March 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively, and are included within capital expenditures in Net Cash Used In Investing Activities on the Consolidated
Stalements of Cash Flows, In filings with the NCUC, Duke Energy Carolinas has estimated the costs to comply with the legislation as
approximately $2.0 billion. Actual costs may be higher than the estimate based on changes in construction costs and Duke Energy Caro-
linas' continuing analysis of its overall environmental compliance plan. As required by the legislation, the NCUC will consider the reason
ableness of Duke Energy Carolinas’ environmental compliance plan and the method for recovery of the remaining costs in a proceeding il
initiated and consolidated with a review of Duke Energy Carolinas' base rates. Additionally, federal, state and environmentat regulations,
including, among other things, the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR), and the Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR} could result in additional costs
to reduce emissions from our coalfired power plants,

Duke Energy Ohio Electric Rate Filings. Duke Energy Ohio operates under a Rate Stabilization Plan (RSP), a Market Based Standard
Service Offer (MBSSO) appraved by the PUCO in November 2004. In March 2005, the Office of the Ohio Consumers' Council {OCC)
appealed the PUCO's approval of the MBSSO o the Supreme Court of Chio and the court issued its decision in November 2006. It upheld
the MBSSO in virtually every respect but remanded to the PUCO on two issues. The Court ordered the PUCO to support a certain portion
of its order with reasoning and record evidence and {o require Duke Energy Ohio to disclose certain confidential commercial agreements
with other parties previousty requested by the OCC. Duke Energy Ohia has complied with the disclosure order, Such confidential commar-
cial agreements are relatively common in the jurisdiction and the PUCQ has naf aliowed production of such agreements in past cases in
wiich the PUCO was presented with a settiement agreement on the basis that they are irrelevant. A hearing on remand has concluded
and Duke Energy Ohio expects a Commission Order before the end of the year.

On August 2, 2008, Duke Energy Ohio filed an application with the PUCO to amend its MBSSO through 2010. The proposal provides
for continued electric systemn reliability, a simplified market price structure and clear price signals for customers, while helping to maintain
a stable revenue stream for Duke Energy Ohio. The application is pending and Duke Energy Chio cannot predict the cutceme of this pro-
ceeding.

Duke Energy Ohic's M8550 includes a fuel clause recovery companent which is audited annually by the PUCO. In Agril 2007, Duke
Energy Chio entered a settlement resclving all open issues identified in the 2006 audit with some, but not all, of the parties. The PUCO
set the settlement for the hearing, which has been completed, A PUCO decision is expected before the end of the year. Duke Energy and
Duke Energy Ohio do not expect the agreement to have a material impact on their consolidated results of operations, cash flows or finan
cial position.

tn addition to the fudd clause recovery component, Duke Energy Ohio's MBSSO includes a reserve capacity componerit known as the
Systemn Reliahility Tracker (SRT), and an Annually Adjusted Component {AAC) to recover changes in environmental, tax and homeland
security costs. In Aprit 2007, Duke Energy Ohio entered a Stipulation resolving all issugs related to the 2006 SRT audit and application ta
amend the 2007 AAC market price. The Stipulaticn included some, but not all, of the parties. A hearing was held reparding the Skip-
ulation. Duke Energy Ohio expects a Commission decision before the end of the year. Duke Energy Ohio does not expect a significant
change, if any to the MBSS0 components but cannot predict the outcome of the cases.

Duke Energy Kenlticky Electric Rate Case. In May 2006, Duke Energy Kentucky filed an application for an increase in its base elec-
tric rates. The application, which sought an increase of approximately $67 million in revenue, or approximately 28 percent, 1o be effective
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in January 2007, was filed pursuant to the KPSC's 2003 Order approving the transfer of 1,100 MW of generating assets from Duke
Energy Ohio to Duke Energy Kentucky. In the fourth quarter of 2006, the KPSC approved the settlement agreement resolving afl the
issues raised in the proceeding. Among other things, the settlement agreement provided for a $49 mitlion increase in Duke Energy Ken
tucky's base electric rates and reinstitution of the fue! cost recovery mechanism, which had been frozen since 2001, The settfement
agreement also provided for Duke Energy Kentucky to obtain KPSC approval for a back-up power supply plan, in January 2007, Duke
Energy Kentucky filed a back-up power supply plan with the KPSC. The plan provided for Duke Energy Kentucky to purchase backup
power through bilateral contracts for scheduled outages. Duke Energy Kentucky will recover these casts through base rates. The plan
provided for Duke Erergy Kentucky lo purchase backup power through the Midwest Independent System Operator, Inc. (Midwest 150}
energy markets for unscheduled outages. Duke Energy Kentucky will recover these costs through its fuel adjustment clause. The KPSC
issued an order in March 2007 approving Duke Energy Kentucky's back-up power supply pfan.

Duke Energy Kentucky Gas Rate Cases. In 2002, the KPSC approueclbuke Energy Kentucky's gas base rate case which included,
among other things, recovery of costs associated with an accelerated gas main repfacement program. The approval authorized a track-
ing mechanism to recover certain costs including depreciation and a rate cf return on the program'’s capital expenditures. The Kentucky
Attorney General appealed to the Franklin Circuit Court the KPSC's approval of the tracking mechanism as well as the KPSC’s subsequent
approval of annual rate adjustments under this tracking mechanism. In 2005, both Duke Energy Kentucky and the KPSC requested that
the cowrt dismiss these cases. At the present time, Duke Enargy and Duke Energy Kentucky cannot predict the timing or outcome of this
litigation.

In February 2005, Duke Energy Kentucky filad a gas base rate case with the KPSC requesting approval to continue the tracking
mechanism and for a $14 million annuval increase in base rates. A portion of the increase is attributable to recovery of the current cost of
the accelerated main replacement program in base rates. in December 2005, the KPSC approved an annual rate increase of 58 milion
and re-approved the tracking mechanism through 2011, In February 2006, the Kentucky Attorney General appealed the KPSC's order to
the Franklin Circuit Court, ¢laiming that the order improperly allows Duke Energy Kentucky to increase its rates for gas main replacement
costs in between general rate cases, ang also claiming that the order imptoperly aliows Duke Energy Kentucky to earn a refurm on
investment for the costs recovered under the tracking mechanism which permits Duke Energy Kentucky to recover its gas main replace-
ment costs. At this time, Duke Energy and Duke Energy Kentucky cannot predict the outcome of this litigation.

Bulk Power Marketing {BPM) Profit Sharing. The NCUC approved Duke Energy Carolinas’ propasal in June 2004 ta share an amount
equal to fifty percent of the North Carolina retait aflocation of the profits from certain wholesale sales of bulk power from Duke Energy
Carolinas’ generating units at market based rates (BPM Profits). Duke Energy Carclinas also informed the NCUC that it would no longer
include BPM Profits in calculating its North Carolina retail jurisdictional rate of return for its quarterly reports to the NCUC. As approved by
the NCUC, the sharing arrangement provides for fifty percent of the North Carolinz allocation of BPM Profits to be distributed through
various assistance programs, up to a maximum of $5 milian per year. Any amounts exceeding the maximum are used to reduce rates for
industriat customers in North Carclina.

Energy Efficiency. In May 2007, Duke Energy Carolinas filed an energy efficiency plan with the NCUC that recognizes energy effi-
ciency as a reliable, valuable resource, that is, a “fifth fuel,” that should be part of the portfolio available to meet custorers' growing need
for electricity along with coal, nuclear, natural gas, or renewable energy. The plan will compensate Duke Energy Carolinas for verified
reductions in energy use and be available to all customer groups. The plan contains propesals for several different energy efficiency
programs, and links energy savings to reliring older coal plants. Customers would pay for energy efficiency programs with an energy effi-
ciency rider that will be included in their power bill and adjusted annually. As implementation of the plan is subject to approval of the
NCUC, at this time Duke Energy is not able to estimate the impact this plan might have on its consolidated results of operations, cash
ffows, or financial position.

Other. \.S. Franchised Electric and Gas is engaged in planning efforts to meet projected load growth in its service territory. Long-
term projections indicate a need for significant capacity additions, which may include new nuclear, integrated gasification combined cycle

{IGCC), coal facitities or gasfired generation units, Because of the long lead times required to develgp such assets, U.S. Franchised Elec-

tric and Gas is taking steps now to ensure those options are available. In March 2006, Duke Energy Carclinas announced thai it has
entered into an agreernent with Southern Company to evaluate patential canstruction of a new nuclear plant at a site jointly awned in
Cherokee County, South Carolina. In May 2007, Duke Energy announced its intent ta purchase Southern Company’s 500-megawatt inter-
est in the proposed William States bee Ul nuclear power project, making the plant’s total putput available to electric customers in the Caro-
flinas. With selection of the Cherokes County site, Duke Energy Carolinas is moving farward with previously announced plans to develop an
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application to the U,S, Nuclear Regulatory Commission {NRC} for a combined construction and operating license (COL} for two Westing-
house AP1000 (advanced passive) reactors, Each reactor is capable of producing approximately 1,117 MW. The COL application sub-
mittal to the NRC is anticipated in late 2007. Submitting the COL application does not commit Duke Energy Carclinas to build nuclear
units. On September 20, 2006, Duke Erergy Carolinas filed an application with the NCUC for assurance that pursuit of the proposed
nuclear plant (the William States Lee l Nuctear Station)is prudent and that Duke Energy Carofings will be allowed o recover prudently
incurred expenses related to its development and evaluation of the proposed William States Lee Il Nuclear Station. Specifically, Duke
Energy Carotinas requested an NCUC order (1) finding that work performed by Duke Energy Carolinas to ensure the availability of nuclear
generation by 2016 for its customers is prudent and consistent with the promotion of adequate, reliable, and economical utilily service to
the citizens of North Carolina and the polices expressed in North Caralina General Statute 62-2, and (2} providing expressly that Duke
Enargy Carclinas may recover in rates, in a timely fashion, the North Carolina allocable portion of its share of costs prudently incurred to
evaluate and develop a new nuclear generation facility through December 31, 2007, whether or not a new nuclear facility is constructed.
On March 20, 2007, the NCUC issued an Order which gave its “general assurance” and held that it is appropriate {for Duke Energy Caro-
iinas to conduct the development work to preserve the nuclear option for its customers, and that Duke Energy Carclinas may recover its
North Carolina allocable portion of such development costs {even if the Lee Nuciear Station is not constructed) if they are found to be
prudent and reascnable in a future general rate case proceeding. The Public Staff of the NCUC, which represents consumer interests,
filed a motion for clarification/reconsideration with the NCUC on April 19, 2007. The NCUC issued an order allowing comments on the
Public Staff motion by May 11, 2007, and reply comments by May 25, 2007

On Jure 2, 2006, Duke 'Energy Carolinas also fited an application with the NCUC for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity
(CPCN) to construct two BOD MW state of the art coal generation units at its existing Cliffside Steam Station in North Carolina. The NCUC
held public hearings in August 2006, and an evidentiary hearing in Raleigh, Nerth Carolina concluded on September 14, 2006. Post-hearing
briefs and proposed orders were filed on October 13, 2006. After the evidentiary hearing, Duke Energy Carolinas received competitive
proposals for two major scopes of equipment for the Cliffside Project which suggest that the capital costs for these major components are
increasing significantly due to various market pressures that will ikely impact utility generation canstruction projects across the United
States. In October 2006, Duke Energy made a filing with the NCUC related to the Duke Energy Carolinas’ request for a CPCN Tor the Cliff-
side project, In this fling, Duke Energy stated that due to the rising costs described above, the cost of building the Chffside units could be
approximately $3 hillion, excluding allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC). The costs described above are expected to con-
tinue to increase causing the overall cost of the Cliffside project to increase, until such time as the NCUC issues a CPCN and Duke Energy
15 able {0 enter into definitive agreements with necessary material and service providers, The NCUC issued orders reguiring additional pub-
lic and evidentiary hearings. From January 17, 2007 to January 19, 2007 the NCUC held an evidentiary hearing to consider evidence lim-
ited to Duke Energy Carolinas updated cost information for the project. On February 28, 2007, the NCUC issued a notice of decision
approving the construction of one unit at the Cliffside Stearn Station. On March 21, 2607, the NCUC issuad its Order, which explained the
basis for its decision to approve construction of one unit, with an approved cost estimate of $1.93 billion fincluding AFUDC), and certain
conaitions including providing for updates on construction cost estimates. A group of intervenors filed a motion for reconsideration with the
NCUC on Aprit 20, 2007, and the NCUC issued an Order requesting any responses to the motion by May 2, 2007.

Duke Energy will determine whether to proceed with the Cliffside project or consider other alternatives, including additional gas-ired
generation, upon receipt of final cost estimates and the terms of a final air permit. The Narth Carofina Department of Environment and
Matural Resources issued a draft air permit for the approved Cliffside unit on April 18, 2007, and has scheduled a public hearing on the
air permit for May 31, 2007,

The South Carolina General Assembly passed new energy legisiation in its 2007-2008 session, Key elements of the legistation include
expansion of the annual fuel clause machanism to include recovery of costs of reagents {ammonia, limestone, etc.) that are consumed in
the operation of Duke Energy Carolinas' 50, and NQ, control technologies and the cost of emission allowances used to meet environmental
requirements. The cost of reagents for Duke Energy Carolinas in 2007 is expected to be approximately 520 million. With the enactment of
this legislation, Duke Energy Carolinas will be allowed te recover the South Carolina portion of these costs through the fuel clause. The
legislation also includes provistons to provide cost recovery assurance for upfront development costs associated with nuclear baseload
generation, cost recovery assurance for construction costs associated with nuclear or coal baseload generation, and the abifity to recover
financing costs for new nuclear basedoad generalion in rates during construction. Similar legistation is being discussed in North Carofina
and may be introduced in the 2007 |2gislative session. At this time, Duke Energy Carolinas cannot determine which elements of the legis-
lation being discussed in North Carclina will be passed into law or the potential financial impact of those legislative initiatives.
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In August 2005, Duke Energy Indiana filed an application with the IURC for approval of study and preconstruction costs related to the
joint development of an !GCC project with Southern Indiana Gas and Electic Company d/b/a Vectren Energy Delivery of Indiana, Inc.
{Vectren). Duke Energy Indiana and Vectren reached a Settlement Agreement with the Indiana Office of Utility Consumer Counselor {QUCC)
providing for the recovery of such costs if the IGCC project is approved and constructed and for the partial recovery of such costs if the
IGCC nroject does not go forward. The IURC issued an order on July 26, 2006 approving the Settiement Agreement in its entirety.

On September 7, 2006, Duke Energy Indiana and Vectren filed a joint petition with the [URC seeking CPCN's for the construction of a
630 MW IGCC power plant at Duke Energy Indiana's Edwardsport Generating Statior in Knox County, Indiana, Tha petition describes the
applicants' need for additional baseload generating capacity and requests timely recovery of all construction and operating costs relatad
to the proposed generating station, including financing costs, together with certain incentive ratemaking treatment. Duke Energy Indiana
and Vectren filed their cases in chief with the IURC on October 24, 2006. As with Duke Energy Carolinas’ Cliffside project, Duke Energy
Indiana's estimated costs for the potential IGCC project have also increased. Duke Energy Indiana's publicly fited testimony with the IURC
indicates that industry (EPRI} total capital requirement estimates for a facility of this type and size are now in the range of 51.6 billion to
$2.1 billion (including escalation to 2011 and owners' specific site costs). On February 16, 2007, Duke Energy Indiana filed a request for
deferral and subsequent cost recovery of the costs expected to be incurred prior to the anticipated date of an order by the IURC regard-
ing Duke Energy Indiana's request for a CPCN for the construction of the Edwardsport Generating Station, These costs relate to the con-
tinued investigation, analysis and development of the IGCC project, and must be incurred, to assure the project can achieve a targeted
in-service date of 2011. In April 2007, Duke Energy Indiana and Vectren filed a Front End Engineering and Design (FEED) Study Repart
which ingluded an updated estimated cost for the {GCC project of approximately $2 billion (including AFUDC), Both the CPCN case and the
interim cost recovery case are scheduled for an evidentiary hearing in June 2007,

Duke Energy Indiana recovers its actual fuel costs quarierly through a rate adjustment mechanism. in twg recent fuel clause proceed-
ings, certain industrial customers and the Citizens Action Coalition of Indiana, inc. have intervenad and sub-dockets have been established
to address issues raised by the OUCC and the intervenors concerning tha allocation of fuel costs between native load customers and
non-native load sales, the reasonableness of various Midwest SO costs for which Duke Energy Indiana has sought recovery and Duke
Energy Indiana’s recovery of costs associated with certain power hedging activities, Duke Energy Indiana is defending its practices, its
costs, and the allocation of such costs. A hearing was conducted in one of these proceedings on September 20, 2006, A decision is
expected in the second quarter of 2007. An evidentiary hearing in the second proceeding is set to begin in June 2007. The IURC has
authorized Duke Energy Indiana ta collect through rates the costs which it sought recavery in the two subdocket proceedings, subject to
refund pending the outcome of these proceedings. Duke Energy cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings but does not expect
the outcome to be material Lo its consolidated results of operatiens, cash flows or financial positior.

In April 2005, the PUCQ issued an arder opening a statewide investigation into riser leaks in gas pipeline systems throughout Ohio,
The investigation followed four explosions since 2000 caused by gas riser leaks, including an April 2000 explosion in Duke Energy Ohio's
service area. in November 2006, the PUCO Staff released the expert report, which concluded that certain types of risers are prone to
leaks under various cenditions, including over-tightening during inftial installation. The PUCQ Staff recommended that natural gas compa-
nies continue to monitor the situation and study the cause of any further riser leaks to determine whether further remedial action is war-
ranted. Duke Energy Ohio has approximately 87,000 of these risers on its distribution systern, If the PUCO orders natural gas companies
to replace all of these risers, Duke Energy Ohie estimates a replacement cost of $35 milfion. At this time, Duke Energy Chio cannot pre-
dict the autcome or the impact of the statewide Ohio investigation.

FERC To Issue Electric Reliability Standards. Consistent with refiabifity provisions of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, on July 20, 2006,
FERC issued its Final Rule certifying the Morth American Electric Reliability Council (NERC} as the Electric Reliability Organization, NERC
has filed over 100 proposed reliabifity standards with FERC. On March 16, 2007, FERC issued a final rule establishing mandatory,
enforceable reliability standards for the nation's bulk pewer system. In the final rule, FERC approved B3 of the 107 mandatory reliability
standards submitted by the NERC, FERC will consider the remaining 24 proposed standards for approval once the necessary criteria and
procedures are submilted. In the interim, compliance with these’ 24 standards is expected to continue on a voluntary basis as good utility
practice. Duke Energy does not believe that the issuance of these standards will have a material impact on its consolidated results of
operations, cash flows, or financial position.
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15. Commitments and Contingencias

Environmental

Duke Energy is subject to international, federal, state and local regulations regarding air and water quality, hazardous and sclid wasta
disposal and other environmental matters. These regulations can be changed from time to time, imposing new abligations on Duke Energy.

Remediation activities. Like others in the energy industry, Duke Energy and its affiliates are responsible for environmental
remediation at various contaminated sites. These include some properties that are part of ongoing Duke Energy operations, sites for-
merly owned cr used by Duke Energy entities, and sites owned by third parties. Remediation typically involves management of con-
taminated soils and may involve groundwater remediation. Managed in conjunction with relevant federal, state and local agencies,
activities vary with site conditions and locations, remedial requirements, complexity and sharing of respansibility. If remediation activilies
involve statutory joint and several liability provisicns, strict fiabifity, or cost"recovery or comtribution actions, Duke Energy or its aflifiates
coutd potentially be held responsible for contamination caused by other parties. In some instances, Duke Energy may share liability asso-
ciated with contaminalion with other potentially responsible parties, and may also benefit from insurance policies or contractual
indemnities that cover some or all cleanup costs, AYl of these sites generally are managed in the normal course of business or affiliate
aperations. Management befieves that completion or resolution of these matters will have no material adverse effect on Duke Energy's
consolidated results of operations, cash faws or financial position.

Clean Water Act. The U.S. Environmental Pratection Agency's [EPA's) final Clean Water Act Section 316(b) rule became effective
July 8, 2004, The rule astablished aguatic protection requirements for existing facilities that withdraw 50 million gatlons or more of water
per day from rivers, streams, lakes, reservoirs, estuaries, oceans, or other U.S. waters for cocling purposes. Fourteen of the 23 coal and
nuclear-fueled generating facilities in which Duke Energy is either a whole or partial owner are affected sources under that rule. On Jan-
vary 25, 2007, the LL.S, Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit issued its opinion in Riverkeeper, inc. v. EPA, Nos. 04-6692-ag(L} el. al.
{2d Cir. 2007) remanding most aspects of EPA's rule back to the agency. The court cffectively disallowed those portions of the rule most
favorabie to industry, and the decision creates a great ceal of uncertainty regarding future requirements and their timing. Duke Energy is
still unable to estimate costs to comply with the EPA's rule, it is expected that costs willincrease as a result of the court’s decision. The
magnitude of any such increase cannot be estimated at this time.

Cigan Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) and Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). The EPA finalized its CAMR and CAIR in May 2005. The CAMR
limits total annual rmercury emissions from coalfired power plants across the United States through a two-phased cap-and-rade program.
Phase 1 begins in 2CG10 and Phase 2 begins in 2018, The CAIR limits total annual and surnmertiene nitrogen oxides (NO,} emissions and
annual sulfur dioxide (S0, emissions from eleclric generating facilities across the Eastern United States through a two-phased
cap-and-trade program. Phase 1 begins in 2009 for NOx and in 2010 for SO ,. Phase 2 begins in 2015 for both NO, and S0;.

The emission contrals Duke Energy is installing to comply with North Carolina clean air legislation will contribute significantly to ach-
ieving compliance with CAMR and CAIR requirements {sea Note 14}, In addition, Duke Energy currently estimates that it will spend approx-
imately $717 million between 2007 and 2011 to comply with Phase 1 of CAMR and CAIR at its Midwest electric operations. Duke Energy
currently estimates its CAIR Phase 2 compliznce costs at approximately $150 million for Duke Energy Carolinas’ electric operations over
the period 2010-2016. Duke Enargy asiimates its CAIR/CAMR Phase 2 compliance costs at approximately 5450 million for its Midwest
electric operations over the period 2007-2016. Duke Energy is currently unable to estimate the cost of complying with Phase 2 of CAMR
beyond 2016. The IURC issued an order in 2006 granting Duke Energy Indiana approximately $1.07 billion in rate recovery to cover its
estimated Phase 1 of CAIR/CAMR compliance costs in Indiana, Duke Energy Ohio receives partial recovery of depreciation and financing
costs related to environmental compliance projects for 2005-2008 through its rate stabilization plan (see Note 14},

Coal Combustion Product (CCP) Management. Duke Energy currently estimates that it will spend between 5184 million and
$224 million over the period 2007-201 2 to install synthetic caps and liners at existing and new CCP landills and to convert CCP handling
systems from wet to dry systems.

Extended Environmental Activities, Accruals. Incleded in Cther Current Liabilities and Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabflities on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets were total accruals related to extended environmentalrelated activities of approximately $50 million and
$73 million as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively, These accruals represent Duke Energy's provisions for costs
associated with remediation activities at some of its current and former sitas, as well as other relevant environmental contingent liabilities.
Management believes that completion or resolution of these matters will have no material adverse effect on Duke Energy's consolidated
results of operations, cash flows or financial position.
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Litigation

In connection with the spin-off of the natural gas busiresses on January 2, 2007, certain fitigation matters that had previously
invelved Duke Energy were transferred to Spectra Energy. Duke Energy does not have any future exposure or obligations refated to such
matters, and accordingly, such matters are not discussed below.

New Source Review (NSR). In 1999-2000, the U.S. Justice Department, acting on behalf of the EPA, filed a number of complaints
and notices of violation against multiple utilities across the country for alleged vidlations of the NSR provisions of the Clean Air Act (CAA).
Generally, the government alleged that projects performed at various coatfired units were major madifications, as defined in the CAA, and
that the ulilities violated the CAA when they undertook those projects without obtaining permits ard installing emission controls for S0,
NO, and particulate matter. The complaints seek (1} injunctive relief to require installation of pollution control technology on various alleg-
edly vielating generating units, and (2} unspecified civil penalties in amounts of up ta 527,500 per day for each violation. A number of
Duke Energy’s owned and operated plants have been subject to these a!leéatiorls and Yawsuits. Duke Energy asserts that there were no
CAA violations because the applicable regulations do not require permitting in cases where the projects undertaken are "routine” or
otherwise do not result in a niet increase in emissions.

In 2000, the gavernment brought a lawsuit against Duke Energy in the U.S. District Court in Greensboro, North Carofina. The EPA
claims that 29 projects performed at 25 of Duke Energy’s coakired units in the Carclinas violate these NSR provisions. In August 2003, the
trial court issued a summary judgment opimion adopling Duke Energy’s legal positions, and an April 15, 2004, the court entered Final
Judgment in lavor of Duke Energy. The government appeaied the case to the U.S. Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals. Cn fune 15, 2005, the
Fourth Circuit ruled in favor of Duke Energy and effectively adopted Duke Energy’s view that permitting of projects is nof required untess the
work perfarmed causes a net increase in the hourly rate of emissions. The Fourth Circuit did not reach the question of "routine”. Environ-
mental intervenors in the case sought a writ of certiorari to the U.S. Supreme Court, which was granted. On April 2, 2007, the Supreme
Court reversed the lower courts. The Supreme Court rejected the lower caurts’ rulings that required an increase in the hourly emission rate
before finding an annual emission increase. The Supreme Cowrl's decision results in the case returning to the District Court for a trial on the
merits. EPA must skl prove an emissions increase and must show that Duke Energy's projects were not routine when compared to other
projects in the ubllity industry. The case has yet to be transferred back to the District Court and ne trial date has been set.

In November 1999, the United States brought a lawsuit in the United States Federal District Court for the Southern District of indiana
against Cinergy, Duke Energy Qhio, and Duke Energy Indiana alleging various violations of the CAA for various projects at six of Duke
Energy owned and co-owned generating stations in the Midwest. Additionally, the suit claims that Duke Energy violated an Administrative
Consent Order entered into in 1998 between the EPA and Cinergy relating ta alleged viclations of Ohio’s State Implementation Plan (SIP)
provisions governing particulate matter at Unit 1 at Duke Energy Ohio’s W.C. Beckjord Station, In addition, three northeast states and two
environmental groups have intervened in the case. In August 2005, the district court issued a ruling regarding the emissions test that it
wili apply to Cinergy, Duke Energy Ohig, and Duke Energy Indiana at the trial of the case. Cantrary to Cinergy's, Duke Energy Ohio’s, and
Duke Energy Indiana’s argument {and the decision of the district court in the Duke Energy Carclinas' NSR case described above), the dis-
trict court riled that in determining whether a project was projected ta increase annual emissions, it wouid not hold hours of operation
constant. However, the district court subsequently certified the matter for interlocutory appeal to the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals., i
August 2006, the Seventh Circuit upheld the district court’s gpinton. In light of the Supreme Court’s recent ruing in Environmental
Defense, et al v. Duke Energy, et al, finding that the Fourth Circuit was incorrect in upholding an hourly emissicns increase test, the
Supreme Court denied Cinergy's petition for a wnt of certiorari. The case will return to the district court for rial.

In March 2000, the United States also filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio an amended complaint
in a separate lawsuit alleging violations of the CAA regarding various generating stations, including a generating station operated by
Caiumbus Southern Power Company (CSP} and jointly-owned by CSP, The Dayton Power and Light Campany {DP&L), and Duke Energy
Ohio. This suit is being defended by CSP {the CSP case). In April 2001, the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio in
that case ruled that the Government and the intervening plaintiff environmental groups cannot seek monetary damages for alleged viola-
tions that vecurred prior to Novernber 3, 1994; however, they are entitled to seek injunctive relief for such alleged viclations. Neither
party appealed that decision. This matter was heard in frial in July 2005 and a decision 1s pending.

tn acditior, Cinergy and Duke Energy Ohio have been informed by DP&L that in June 2000, the EPA issued a Notice of Violation
NOV} to DP&L. for afleged violations of CAA requiremertts at a station operated by DP&L and jointly-owned by DP&L, CSP, and Duke
Energy Ohio, The NOV indicated the EPA may {1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Chio SIP, or (2] bring a
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civil action seeking injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each viclation. In September 2004, Marilyn Wall and
the Sierra Club brought a lawsuit against Duke Energy Ohio, DP&L and CSP for alleged violations of the CAA at this same generating sta-
tion. This case is currently in discovery in front of the same judge who has the CSF case.

it is not possible to predict with certainty whether Duke Energy will incur any liability or to estimate the damages, it any, that Duke
Energy might incur in connection with these matlers.

Carbon Dioxide Litigation, In July 2004, ihe states of Connecticut, New York, California, lowa, New Jersey, Rhode Island, Vermont,
Wisconsin, and the City of New York brought a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against
Cinergy, American Electric Power Company, Inc., American Electric Power Service Corporation, The Southern Company, Tennessee Valley
Authority, and Xcel Energy Inc. A similar lawsuit was filad in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against
the same companies by Open Space Institute, fc., Open Space Conservancy, Inc., and The Audubon Sociely of New Hampshire. These
lawsuits allege that the defendants’ emissions of carbon dioxide [CO,) from the combustion of fossil fuels at eiectric generating facifities
contribute to global warming and amount to a public nuisance. The complzints also allege that the defendants could generate the same
amount of electricity white emilting significantly less €0,. The plaintiffs are seeking an injunction requiring each defendant to cap its CO,
smissions and then reduce themn by a specified percentage each year for at least a decade, In September 2005, the district court
granted the defendants’ motion to dismiss the lawsuit. The plaintiffs have appealed this ruling to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. Oral
argurment was held before the Second Gircuit Court of Appeais on June 7, 2006.

It is not possible to pradict with certainty whether Duke Energy will incur any liability or to estimate the damages, jf any, that Duke
Energy might incur in connection with this matter.

Hurricane Katrina Lawsuit. In April 2006, Duke Energy and Cinergy were named in the third amended complaint of a purported class
action lawsuit filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Mississippi. Plaintiffs claim that Duke Energy and Cin-
ergy, along with nurmercus other utilities, ol companies, coal companies and chemical companies, are Gable for damages relating to
losses suffered by victims of Hurricane Kalrina. Plzintiffs claim that defendants’ greenhouse gas emissions contributed to the frequency
and intensity of storms such as Hurricane Katrina. In October 2006, Duke Energy and Cinergy were served with this lawsuit, It is not
possible to predict with cerfainty whether Duke Energy or Cinergy will incur any kability or o estimate the damages, if any, that Duke
Energy or Cinergy might incur in connection with this matter.

San Diega Price Indexing Cases. Duke Energy and several of its affiliates, as well as other energy companies, are parties to 25
lawsuits which have been coordinated as the "Price Indexing Cases” in San Diego, California. Twelve of the lawsuits seek class-action cer-
tification. The plaintiffs allege that the defendants conspired to manipulate price of naturat gas in violation of state and/or federal antitrust
laws, unfair business practices and other laws. Plaintilfs in some of the cases further allege that such activities, including engaging in
“round trip” trades, providing false information to natural gas trade publications and unlawfully exchanging information, resulted in artifi-
cially high energy prices. In December 2005, Dule Energy executed an agreement to sefle the 12 class action cases. Such agreement
is subjact to appreval by the class rembers and the court. Duke Energy does not expect that the proposed settlement will have a
material adverse effect on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Other Price Reporting Cases. A total of 12 lawsuits have been filed against Duke Energy affiliates and other energy companies,
including a fawsuit filad in March 2007 in Missouri state court. Six of these cases were dismissed on filed rate and/or federal preemption
grounds, and the plaintifls in each of these dismissed cases have appealed their respective rutings. Oral argument on four of these
appeals was heard before the U.S. Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals on February 13, 2007. Each of these cases contains similar claims, that
the respective plaintiffs, and the classes they claim to represent, were harmed by the defendants' atleged manipulation of the natural gas
markets by various means, including providing false information to naturat gas trada publications and entering into unlawful arrangerments
and agreements in violation of the anlitrust laws of the respective states. Plaintiffs seek damages in unspecified amounts. Duke Energy is
unable to express an opinion regarding the probable outcome or eslimate damages, if any, related to these matters at this time.

Western Eleclricity Litigation. Plaintiffs, on behall of themselves and others, in three lawsuits allege that Duke Energy Affiliates,
among other energy companies, artificially inflated the price of electricity in certain western states. Two of the cases were dismissed and
plaintiffs have appealed to the U.S. Court of Appeal for the Ninth Circuit, Of those two cases, one was dismissed by agreement in March
2007. Oral arguments in the other was heard before the U.S. Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in April 2007 In December 2006, a fourth
case, the single remaining electricity case pending in California state court was dismissed. Plaintiffs in these cases seek damages in
unspecified amounts, but which could total billions of dollars. It is not possible to predict with certainty whether Duke Energy will incur any
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liability or to estimate the damages, if any, that Duke Energy might incur in connection with these lawsuits, but Duke Energy does not
presently believe ihe putcome of these matters will have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, cash flows or financial
position.

Trading Related Investigations. Beginning in February 2004, Duke Energy has received requests for information from the U.S. Attor-
ney's office in Houston focused on the natural gas price reporting activities of certain individuals involved in DETM trading operations.
Duke Energy has cooperated with the government in this investigation and is unable to express an opinion regarding the probable out-
come or estimate damages, if any, related to this matter at this time.

ExxorMobil Disputes. In April 2004, Mobil Natural Gas, Inc. (MNGH and 3946231 Canada, inc. (3946231, and collectively with MNGI,
ExxonMabil) filed a Demand for Arbitration against Duke Energy, DETMI Management Inc. (DETMI), DTMSI Management Ltd. (DTMSH and
other affiliates of Duke Energy. MINGI and DETMI are the sole members of DETM. DTMS! and 3946231 are the sole beneficial owners of
Duke Energy Marketing Limited Partnership (DEMLP, and with DETM, the Ventures). Among other allegations, ExxonMobil alleged that
DETMI and DTMSI engaged in wrongful actions relating to affiiate trading, payment of service fees, expense allocations and distribution of
earnings in breach of agreements and fiduciary duties relaling ta the Ventures. ExxonMobil sought to recover actual damages, plus ator-
neys' fees and exemplary damages; aggregate damages were specified at the arbitration hearing and totaled approximately 5125 million
{excluding interest), Duke Energy denies these allegations, and has filed counterclaims asserting that ExxonMobil breached its Venture
obligations and other conlractual obligations. In March 2007, Duke Energy and ExxonMobil executed a settlement agreement for global
settlement of hoth parties’ claims. The resolution of this matter did not have a material effect on Duke Energy’s consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or financial position. The gas supply agreements with other parties, under which DEMLP continues to remain obli-
gated, are currently estimated to result in losses of between S50 million and $10C million through 201 1. As Duke Energy has an owner-
ship interest of approximately 60% in DEMLP, only 50% of any losses would impact predax earnings for Duke Energy. However, these
losses are subject to change in the future in the event of changes in market conditions and underlying assumptions.

Cherokee County Property Litigation. Duke Energy Carolinas filed suit in July 2005 seeking specific performance of its asserted
contract to purchase approximately 2,000 acres of land in Cherokee County, 5.C. and asking for a declaratory judgment to establish that
a contract for sale existed, Defendants counterclaimed for slander of title and abuse of process. In December 2005, the court dismissed
Duke Energy Carolinas’ claims and Defendants’ amended their counterclaims. As amended, Defendants' counterclaims allege slander of
title, abuse of process, tortuous interierence with prospective contracts of others in the energy market ard tortuous interference with
contract. Defendants claim total damages of between S80 and $90 million, plus unspecified punitive damages. A Rearing on Duke Energy
Caralinas” Motion for Summary Judgment was heid in April 2007 and the judge ruled in May 2007 dismissing Defendants’ slander of title
claims. A trial is scheduled for Qctober 2007. Itis not possible to predict with certainty whether Duke Energy Carolinas will incur any
liability gr to estimate the damages, if any, that Duke Energy Carolinas might incur in connection with this matter.

Duke Energy Relirement Cash Balance Plan. A class action Jawsuit has been filed in federal court in South Carolina against Duke
Energy and the Duke Energy Retirement Cash Balance Plan, alleging violations of Employee Retirement [ncome Security Act (ERISA] and
the Age Discrimination in Employment Act. These allegations arise out of the eenversion of the Duke Energy Company Employees’ Retire-
ment Plan into the Duke Cnergy Retirement Cash Balance Plan. The case also raises some Plan administration issues, alleging errors in
the application of Plan provisions (e.g., the calculation of interest rate credits in 1997 and 1998 and the calculation of lump-sum
distributions). The plaintiffs seek to represent present and former participants in the Duke Energy Retirement Cash Balance Plan. This
group is estimated to include approximately 36,000 persons. The plaintiffs also seek to divide the putative class into sub-ctasses based
on age. Six causes of action are alleged, ranging from age discrimination, to various alleged ERISA violations, to allegations of breach of
fiduciary duty. The plaintiffs seek a broad array of remedies, including a retroactive reformation of the Duke Energy Retirernent Cash
Balance Pian and a recalculation of participants'/ beneficiaries’ benefits under the revised and reformed plan. Duke Energy filed its answer
in March 20086. A second class action lawsuit was filed in federal court in Scuth Carolina, alleging similar claims and seeking to represent
the same class of defendants. The second case has been voluntarily dismissed, without prejudice, effactively consolidating it with the first
case. A portion of this liability was assigned to Specira Energy in connection with the spiroff in January 2007. The matter is currently in’
discovery with a tentative trial date of March 2008. It is not passible to predict with certainty whether Duke Energy will incur any liability or
to estimale the damages, if any, that Duke Energy might incur in connection with this matter.

Asbestosrefated njuries and Damages Claims, Duke Energy has experienced numerous ¢laims relating to damages for personal
injuries alleged to have arisen from the exposure to or use of asbestos in connection with construction and maintenance activities
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conducted by Duie Energy Carofinas en its electric generation plants during the 1960s and 1970s. Duke Energy has third-party insurance
to cover losses related to these asbestosvelated injuries and damages above a certain aggregate deduciible. The insurance policy, com-
bined with the reserve taken to cover the policy deductible, was approximately $1.6 billion when purchased in 2000, Probable insurance
recoveries related to this policy are classified in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as Other within Investrnents and Gther Assets. Amounts
recognized as reserves in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, which are not anticipated to exceed the coverage, are classified in Other
Deferred Credits and Qther Liabilities and Other Current Liabilities and are based upon Duke Energy’s best estimate of the probable liability
for fulure asbestos claims. These reserves are based upaon current estimates and are subject to uncertainty. Factors such as the frequency
and magnituda of future claims could change the current estimates of the refated reserves and claims for recoveries refiected in the
accormpanying Consolidated Financial Statemnents. However, management of Duke Energy does not currently anticipate that any changes Lo
these estimales will have any material adverse effect on Duke Energy’s con§olidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Duke Energy Indiana and Duke Energy Ohio have been named as defendants or co-defendants in lawsuits related fo asbestos at their
electric generating stations. Currently, there are approximately 130 pending lawsuits (the majority of which are Duke Energy Indiana
casesh. Io these lawsuits, plaintiffs claim to have been exposed t¢ ashestos-containing products in the course of their work as outside
contractors, The plaintiffs further claim that as the property owner of the generating stations, Duke Energy Indiana and Duke Energy Qhic
should be held liable for their injuries and illnesses based on an alleged duty ta warn and protect them from any ashestos exnosure. The
impact on Duke Energy’s linancial position, cash flows, or results of operations of these cases to date has not been material.

Of these lawsuits, one case filed against Duke Energy Indiana has been tried to verdict. The jury returned a verdict against Duke
Energy Indiana on a negligence claim and a verdict for Duke Energy Indiana on punitive damages. Duke Energy Indiana appealed this deci-
sion up to the Indiana Suprema Court. In October 2005, the Indiana Supreme Court upheld the jury's verdict, Duke Fnergy Indiana paid the
judgment of approximately $630,000 in the fourth quarter of 2005. In addition, Duke Energy Indiana has settled over 150 other claims for
amounts, which neither individually nor in the aggregate, were material io Duke Energy Indiana’s financial position or results of operations.
Based on eslimates under varying assurnptions, concerning uncertainties, such as, among others: (i} the number of contractors potentially
exposed 1o asbestos during construction or maintenance of Duke Energy Indiana generating piants; (i) the possible incidence of various
ilnesses among exposed warkers, and (iil) the potential settlernent costs without federal or other legislation that addresses asbestos tort
actions, Duke Energy estimates that the range of reasonably nossible exposure in existing and future suits over the next 50 years coutd
range from an immaterial amount to approximately S60 milion, exclusive of costs 1o defend these cases. This estimated range of exposure
may change as additional setiements occur and claims are made in [ndiana and more case law is established,

Duke Energy Ohio has been named in fewer than 10 cases and as a result has virtually no settlement history for asbestos cases,
Thus, Duke Energy is not able to reasonably estimate the range of potential loss from current or future lawsuits. However, potential judg-
ments or settlements of existing or future claims could be material to Duke Energy.

Other Litigation and Legal Proceedings. Duke Energy and its subsidiaries are involved in other legal, tax and regulatory proceedings
arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which involve substantial arounts. Management befieves that the final disposition of
these proceedings will not have a materiat adverse effect on Duke Energy's consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial
position.

Duke Energy has exposure to certain legal matters that are described herein. As of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, Duke
Energy has recorded reserves of approximately $1.2 billion and $1.3 billion, respectively, for these proceedings and exposures, Duke
Energy has insurance coverage for certain of these losses incurred, As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy has recognized approximately
51.0 billion of probable insurance recoveries related to these fosses. These reserves represent management's best estimate of probable
loss as defined by SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies.”

Duke Energy expenses tegal costs related to the defense of loss contingencies as incurred.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

Cornmercial Power produces synthelic fuel from facilities that qualify for tax credits (through 2007) in accordance with Sec-
tion 29/45K of the Internal Revenue Code if certain requirements are safisfied. These credits reduce Duke Energy’s income tax liability
and therefore Duke Energy’s effective tax rate. Commerciel Power's sale of synthetic fuel had generated $339 million in tax credits
through December 31, 2009, During the first quarter of 2006, an agreement was in place with the plant operator which would indemnify
Duke Energy in the event that tax credits are insufficient to support operafing expenses. This agreement did not ¢ontinue for the
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remainder of 2006, Alier reducing for the possibility of phase-outs in 2006, the amount of additionat credits generated through
December 31, 2006 was approximately $20 million. Tax credits recorded in the first quarter of 2007 were approximately $26 millior.

Section 29/45K provides for a phase-out of the credit if the average price of crude oil duning a calendar year exceeds a specified
threshold. The phase-out is based on a prescribed calculation and definition of crude oil prices. if Commercial Power were to operate its
synthetic fuel facilities based on Decernber 31, 2006 prices throughout 2007, vet crude oil prices were to rise such that the tax credit is
completely phased-out, net income in 2007 would be negatively impacted. Duke Engrgy is unlikely 1o experience a material loss because
the expasure to synthetic fuel tax credit phase-out is monitored and Duke Energy may choose to reduce or cease synthelic fuel pro-
duction depending on the expectation of any potertial tax credit phase-out. Duke Energy may also reduce its exposure to crude prices
through the execution of derivative transactions. The objective of these activities is to reduce potential losses incurred if the reference
price in a year exceeds a level triggering a phase-out of synthefic fuel tax credits.

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has completed the audit of Cinergy ;‘or the 2002, 2003, and 2004 tax years including the synthetic
fuel facility owned during that period. That {acility represents 5219 million of tax credits generated during that audit pericd. The IRS has not
proposed any adjustment that would disaflow the credits claimed during that period. Subsequent periods are still subject to audit. Duke
Energy befieves that it operates in conformity with alf the necessary requirements to be allowed such credits under Section 29/45K,

Duke Energy is party to an agreement with a third party service provider refated to future purchases to be made through late 2007,
The agreement contains certain damage payment provisions if the purchases are not mada by the specified date. The maximum pre-tax
exposure under the agreement is currently estimated at approximately $100 million. In the fourth quarter of 2006, Duke Energy inibated
early settlement discussions regarding this agreement and recorded a reserve of approximately $65 million during December of 2006
based upon probable penalty payments to be incurred. Future adjustments to this reserve could be material depending on the level of
actual purchase commitments.

In October 2006, Duke Energy began an internal investigation into improper data reporting to the U.S, Environmental Proteckion
Agency (USEPA) regarding air emissions under the NO, Budget Program at Duke Energy's DEGS of Narrows, L.L.C. power plant facility in
Narrows, Virginia. The investigation has revealed evidence of falsification of data by an employee relating to the quality assurance testing
of its continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS) to monitor heat input and NO, ernissions. in December 2006, Duke Energy volur-
tarily disclosed the potential violations to the USEPA and Virginia Departrment of Environmentat Quality (VDEQ), and in January 2007, Duke
Energy made a full written disclosure of the investigation's findings to the USEPA and the VDE(}. Duke Erergy has taken appropiiate dis-
ciplinary action, including termination, with respect to the employees involved with the false reporting. It is not possible to predict with
certainty whether Duke Energy will incur any liability or to estimate the damages, if any, that Duke Energy might incur in connection with
this matter.

Other. As part of its normal business, Duke Energy is a party to various financial guarantees, performance guarantees and other
contractual commitments to extend guarantees of credit and other assistance to various subsidiaries, investees and other third parties.
To varying degrees, these guarantees involve elements of performance and credit risk, which are not included on the Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheets. The possibility of Duke Energy having to honor its contingencies is largely dependent upon future operations of varigus
subsidiaries, investees and other third parties, or the eccurrence of certain future events. For further information see Note 16.

In addition, Duke Energy enters into various fixed-price, noncancelable commitments to purchase or sell power {tolling arrangements
or power purchase contracts), take-or-pay arrangements, transportation or throughput agreements and other contracts that may or may
not be recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Some of these arrangements may be recognized at market value on the Con-
solidated Balance Sheets as trading contracts or qualifying hedge positions included in Unreafized Gains or tosses on Markto-Market and
Hedging Transactions. (See Note 16 for discussion of Calpine guarantee obligation),

16, Guarantees and Indemnifications

Duke Energy and its subsidiaries have various financial and performance guarantees and indemnifications which are issued in the
normal course of business. As discussed below, these contracts include performance guarantees, standby letters of credit, debt guaran-
tees, surety bonds and indemnifications. Duke Energy and its subsidiaries enter into these arrangements to facilitate a commercial trans-
action with a third party by enhancing the value of the transaction to the third party.

As discussed in Note 1, on January 2, 2007, Duke Energy completed the spinoff of its natural gas businesses to shareholders.
Guarantees that were issued by Duke Energy, Cinergy or International Energy or assigned to Duke Energy prior to the spin-off remained
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with Duke Enzrgy subseguent to the spinoff. Guarantees issued by Spectra Energy Capital or its affiliates prior to the spin-ofl remained
with Spectra Energy Capilal subsequent to tae spin-off, except for certain guarantees discussed betow that are in the process of being
assigned to Duke Energy. During this assignment period, Duke Energy has indemnified Spectra Energy Capital against any losses
incurred under these guarantee obligations.

Duke Energy has issued performance guarantees to customers and other third parties that guarantee the payment and performance
of other parties, including certain nonwholly-owned ertities. The maximum potential amount of future payments Duke Energy could have
been required to make under these performance guarantees as of March 31, 2007 was approximately $66 million. These performance
guarantees have na stated contractual expiration. in addition, Spectra Enargy Capital is in the process of assigning performance guaran-
tees with maximum potential amounts of future payments of approximataly 5122 million to Duke Energy, as discussed above. Duke
Energy has indempified Spectra Energy Capital for any losses incurred as a result of these guarantees during Lhe assignment period,

Addlitionally, Duke Energy has issued guarantees 1o customers or other third parties related to the payment or performance obliga-
tions of certain entities that were previously wholly-owned by Duke Energy but which have been sold to third parties, such as Duke-
Solutions, Inc. (DukeSolutions} and Duke Engineering & Services, Inc. (DE&S). These guarantees are primarily related to payment of lease
abligations, debt obligations, and parformance guarantees related to provision of goods and services. Duke Energy has received
hack-to-back indemnification from the buyer of DE&S indemnifying Duke Energy for any amaunts paid related to the DE&S guarantees,
Duke Energy also received indemrification from the buyer of DukeSolutions for the first $2.5 million paid by Duke Energy related to the
DukeSolutions guarantees. Further, Duke Energy granted indemnification to the buyer of DukeSolutions with respect to losses arising
under some energy services agreements retained by DukeSolutions after the sale, provided that the buyer agreed to bear 100% of the
performance risk and 50% of any other risk up to an aggregate maxium of $2.5 million (less any amounts paid by the buyer under the
indemnity discussed above). Additionally, for certain performance guarantees, Duke Energy has recourse to subcontractors involved in
providing services to a customer. These guarantees have various terms ranging from 2007 to 2019, with others having no specific term.
The maximum potential amount of future payments under these guarantees as of March 31, 2007 was approximately $72 million.

Cinergy has issued performance guarantees to customers and other third parties that guarantee the payment and performance of
certain nonwholly-owned consolidated entities. Additionally, Cinergy has issued guarantees of debt of certain non-consolidated entities
and less than who'ly-owned consolidated entities. The maximum potential amount of future payments Cinergy could have been required to
make under these performance guarantees as of March 31, 2007 was approximately 5312 million. Approximately $169 million of the
performance puarantees expire between 2007 and 2017, with the remaining performance guarantees expiring after 2017 or having no
contractual expiration,

Internationat Energy has issued guarantees of debt and performance guarantees asseciated with norrconsolidated entities and less
than wholly-owned consolidated entities. Il such entities were to default on payments or performance, International Energy would be
required under the guarantees to make payment on the obligation of the less than wholly-owned entity. As of March 31, 2007, International
Energy was the guarantor of approximately 59 miillion of parformance guarantees associated with less than wholly-owned entities. Sub-
stantially all of these guarantees expire in 2007 and 2008.

Duke Energy uses bankissued stand-by letters of credit to secure the performance of nonwholly-owned entities to a third party or
customer. Undar these arrangements, Duke Energy has payment obligations to the issuing bank which are triggered by a draw by the
third party or customer due to the failure of the nonwhao!ly-owned entity to perform according to the terms of its underlying contract. The
maximum potential amount of future payments Duke Energy could have been required to make under these letters of credit as of March
31, 2007 was approximately $49 milion. Substantially all of these letters of credit were issued on behalf of less than wholly-owned con-
splidated entities and expire in 2007.

Ouke Energy has guaranteed certain isssers of surety bonds, obligating itseif to make payment upon the failure of a non-wholly-
owned entity to honor its obligations to a third party. As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy had guaranteed approximately $222 millicn of
. outstanding surety bonds related te obligations of non-whelty-ownad eatities, of which approximately $193 miltion relates to projects at
Crescent. The majority of these bonds expire in various amounts in 2007 and 2008.

In 1999, the Industrial Develcpment Corp of the City of Edinburg, Texas {IDC) issued approximately $100 miflion in bonds to pur-
chase equipment for lease to Duke Hidalgo (Hidalgo), a subsidiary of Duka Energy. A subsidiary of Duke Enargy unconditionally and irrey-
ocably guaranteed the lease payments of Hidalgo to IDC through 2028. In 2000, Hidalgo was sold to Calgine Corporation and a
subsidiary of Duke Energy remained obligated under the lease guaranty, In January 2006, Hidalgo and its subsidiaries filed for bankruptcy

36



PART I

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
Notes To Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)

pretection in connection with the previous bankruptcy filing by its parent, Calpine Corporation in December 2005. Gross, undiscounted
exposure under the guarantee obigation as of March 31, 2007 is approximately $200 million, including principal and interest payments.
Duke Energy does nol believe a loss under the guarantee cbligation is probable as of March 31, 2007, but continuas to evaluate the sit-
uation. Therefore, no reserves have been recorded for any contingent loss as of March 31, 2007, No demands for payment of principal
and interest have been made under the guarantee. This guarantee remained with Spectra Enargy Capital subsequent to the spin-off and
will nat be assigned to Duke Fnergy; however, Duke Energy indemnified Speactra Energy Capital against any future losses that could arise
from paymients required under this guaraniee,

Cuke Energy has entered intc various indemnification agreements related to purchase and sale agreements and other types of con-
tractual agreements with venders and other third parties. These agreements typically cover environmental, tax, liigation and other mat-
ters, as well as breaches of representations, warranties and covenants. Typically, claims may be made by third parties for various
periods of time, depending on the nature of the claim. Duke Energy's potehtial exposure under these indemnification agreements can
range fram a specified amount, such as the purchase price, to an unlimited dollar amount, depending on the nature of the ctaim and the
particular transaction. Duke Energy is unable to estimate the total potential amount of future payments under these indemnification
agreememts due to several factors, such as the unfimited exposure under certain guarantees.

At March 31, 2007, the amounts recorded for the guzrantees and indemnifications mentioned above are immaterial, both individually
and in the aggregate,

17. Related Party Transactions

As discussad in Note 1, on January 2, 2007, Duke Energy completed the spinoff of its natural gas businesses to shareholders.
Included in the assets distributed to Speclra Energy were investments in unconsolidated affiliates with an approximate carrying value of
51,618 million as of the distribution date. Investments in unconsolidated affiliates primarily consisted of Duke Energy’s 50% ownership
interest in DCP Midstrearn and Natural Gas Transmission’s 50% ownership interest in Gulfstream Natural Gas System, LLC.

In September 2006, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Duke Energy contributed all the membership interest in Crescent to a
newly formed joint venture causing Duke Energy to deconsolidate Crescent. Duke Energy’s 50% of equity in earnings of Crescent for the
threc months ended March 31, 2007 was approximately $2 million and Ouke Energy’s investment in Crescent as of March 31, 2007 was
approximately $176 million, which is included in Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates in the accompanying Consalidated Balance
Sheets. Summary financial information for Crescent for the three months ended March 31, 2007 is as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2007

{in millions)
Qperating revenues S 49
Operating expenses S 34
Operating income S 15
Net income 5 4
March 31, 2007
{in millions}
Current assets 5 58
Noncurrent assets 51,917
Current liabilities S 154
Non-current lizbilities 51,495
Minority interest S 32

As discussed above, on January 2, 2007, Duke Energy cornpleted the spinoff of its natural gas businesses, including Duke Energy's
50% ownership interest in DCP Midstream, to shareholders. Duke Energy's 50% of equity in earnings of DCP Midstream for the three
months ended March 31, 2006 was approximately $146 million and is included in fncome from Discontinued Operations, net of tax, in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. During the three months ended March 31, 2006, Duke Energy had gas sales to, purchases from,
and other operating expenses from alfiliates of DCP Midstream of approximately $34 million, $8 million and 54 million, respectively.
These amounis are included in Income from Discontinued Operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Addition-
ally, Duke Energy received approximatety S30 million in distributions of earnings frorn DCP Midstream during the three months ended
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March 31, 2006, which are included in Other, assets within Cash Flows from Operating Acfivities in the accompanying Consolidated State-
ments-of Cash Flows. Summary financial information for DCP Midstream for the three months ended March 31, 2006 is as follows:

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2006
{in millians)
Operating revenues $3,309
Operating expenses 52,994
Operating incorne S 315
Net income $ 201

Also see Notes 8 and 16 for additional related party information,

18. New Accounting Standards

The following new accounting standards were adopted by Duke Energy subsequent to March 31, 2006 and the impact of such adop-
tion, if applicable, has been presented in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements:

FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FAS 123(R)4, "Classification of Options and Similar Instruments Issued as Employee Compensation
That Allow for Cash Settlement upon the Occurrence of a Contingent Event” (FSP No. FAS 123(R}-4). In February 2006, the FASB staff
issued FSP No. FAS 123{R)-4 to address Lhe classification of options and similar instruments issued as emoloyee compensation that alow
for cash settlement upon the occurrence of a contingent event. The guidance amends SFAS No. 123(R). FSF No. FAS 123(R)} provides
that cash settlement features that can be exarcised only upon the occurrence of a contingent event that is outside the employee’s control
does not require classifying the option or simitar instrument as a liability until it becomnes probable that lhe event will occur. FSP
Mo. FAS 123(R}4 applies only to options or similar instruments issued as part of employee compensation arrangements. The guidance in
FSP No. FAS 123(R}4 was effective for Duke Energy as of Aoril 1, 2006. Duke Energy adopted SFAS Mo, 123(R} as of January 1, 2006
{see Note 5}, The adoption of FSF No. FAS 123(R}-4 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy's consolidated statement of aper-
ations, cash flows or financial position.

FSP No. FIN 46(R}6, "Cetermmining the Variability to Be Considered In Applying FASE Interpretation No. 46(R} (FSP No. FIN 46{R}€)."
In Aprit 2006, the FASB staff issued FSP No. FIN 46{R}6 to address how to determine the variability to be considered in applying
-FIN 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The variability that is considered in applying FIN 46(R) affects the determination of
whether the entity is a variable interest entity (VIE}, which interests are variable interests in the entity, and which party, if any, is the pri-
mary beneficiary of the VIE, The variability affects the calculation of expected losses and expected residual returns. This guidance was
effective for all entities with which Duke Energy first becomes invelved or existing entities for which a reconsideration event ocours after
July 1, 2006. The adoption of FSP Na. FIN 46{R}6 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy’s consolidated results of operations,
cash flows or financial position.

Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 05-1, “Accounting for the Conversion of an Instrument that Becomes Converlible Upon
the Issuer’s Exercise of a Call Option” (EITF No. 05-1). In June 2006, the EITF reached @ consensus on EITF No. 05-1. The consensus
requires that the issuance of equity securities to settle a debt instrument {pursuant to the instrument’s original conversion terms} that
became convertible upon the issuer's exercise of a call option be accounted for as a conversion If the debt instrument contained a subr
stantive conversion fealure as of its issuance date. if the debt instrument did not contain a substantive conversion option as of its issu-
ance date, the issuance of equity securities to settle the debt instrument should be accounted for as a debt extinguishment. The
consensus was effective for Duke Energy for all conversions within its scope that resulizd from the exercise of call options beginning
July 1, 2006. The adopltion of EITF No. 05-1 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy’s consolidated results of operations, cash
flows or financial position.

SFAS No. 155, “Accaunting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140"
(SFAS No. 155). In February 2006, the FASE issued SFAS No. 155, which amends SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” and SFAS No. 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabifities.”
SFAS No. 155 allows financlal instruments that have embedded derivatives to be aceounted for at fair value at acquisition, at issuance, or
when a previously recognized financiat instrument is subject to a remeasurement (new basis) event, on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
in cases in which a derivative would otherwise have to be bifurcated. SFAS No. 155 was effective for Duke Energy for all financial instru-
ments acquired, Issued, or subject 1o remeasurement after Januwary 1, 2007, and for certain hybrid financial instruments that had been
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bilurcated prior to the effective date, for which the effect is to be reported as a cumulative-effect adjustment to beginning retained earn-
ings. The adoption of SFAS No. 155 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy’s consolidated resuits of operations, cash flows or
financial position.

SFAS No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets—an amendment of FASB Statement Mo, 140" (SFAS No. 156). In March
2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, which amends SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assefs and
Extinguishments of Liabilities.” SFAS No. 156 requires recognition of a servicing asset or liability when an entity enters into arrangements
1o service financiat instruments in certain situations. Such servicing assets or servicing liabilities are required to ba initially measured at
fair value, if practicable. SFAS No. 156 also allows an entity to subsequently measure ifs servicing assets or servicing liabilities using
gither an amertization method or a fair value method. SFAS No. 156 was effective for Duke Energy as of January 1, 2007, and must be
applied prospectively, except that where an entity elects to remeasure separately recognized existing arrangements and reclassify cer-
tain available-for-sale securities to trading securities, any effects must be réported as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings,
The adoption of SFAS No. 156 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy’s consolidated results of operations, cash flows or finan-
cial position.

SFAS No. 158, “Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Pastretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB State-
ments No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R}" (5FAS No. 158). In October 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, which changes the recognition
and disclosure provisions and measurement date requirements for an employer's accounting for defined benefit pension and other post-
retirement plans. The recogrition and disclosure provisions require an employer to (1) recognize the funded status of a benefit plan—
measured a5 the difference between plan assets at fair value and the benefit obligation—in its statement of financial position,

(2) recognize as a component of other comprehensive income (OCH, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that
arise during the pericd but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost, and {3} disclose in the notes to financial
statements certain additional information. SFAS No. 1568 does not change the amounts recognized in the income statement as net peri-
odic benefit cost. Duke Enargy recognized the funded status of its defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans and provided
the required additional disclosures as of Oecember 31, 2006. The adaption of SFAS No. 158 recognition and disclasure provisions
resulted in an increase in lotal assets of approximately $211 million (consisting of an increase in regulatory assets of $595 million, an
increase in deferred tax assets of 5144 million, offset by a decrease in prafunded pension costs of $522 million and a decrease in
intangible assets of 56 million), an increase in total liabilities of approximately $461 million and a decrease in accumulated other compre-
hensive income, net of tax, of approximately 5250 million as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 did not have any
material impact on Duke Energy's consolidaled results of operations or cash flows.

Under the measurement date requirements of SFAS No. 158, an employer is required to measure defined benefit plan assets and
obligations as of the date of the employer's fiscal yearend stalement of financial position {with limited exceptions). Historically, Buke
Energy has measured its plan assets and obligations up to three months prior to the fiscal year-end, as allowed under the authoritative
accounting literature. Duke Energy adopted the change in measurement date effective January 1, 2007 by remeasuring plan assets and
benefit obligations as of that date, pursvant kg the transition requirements of SFAS No, 158, See Note 8.

Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 108, *Cansidering the Effects of Prior Year Misslatements When Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements” {(SAB No. 108). In September 2006 the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued SAB
No, 108, which provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be
considered in quantifying 2 current year misstatement, Traditionally, there have been two widely-recognized approaches for quantifying
the eflects of financiat statement misstatements. The income statement approach focuses primarily on the impact of a misstatement on
the income statement—including the reversing effect of prior year misstatements—hut its use can lead to the accumulation of misstate-
ments in the balance sheet. The balance sheet approach, on the other hand, focuses primarily on the effect of correcling the period-end
balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on the income ‘statement. Tha SEC staff believes that regis-
trants should guantify errors using both a balance sheet and an income statement approach (a "gual approach”) and evaluate whether
either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is
material.

SAB No. 108 was effective for Duke Energy's year ending December 31, 2006, SAB No. 108 permits existing public companies to
initially apply its provisions either by (i) restating prior financial statements as if the "dual approach” had always been used or (i}, under
certain circumstances, recording the cumulative effect of initially applying the “dual approach” as adjustments to the carrying values of
assels and liabilities as of January 1, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening talance of retained earnings. Duke
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Energy has historically used a dual approach for quantifying identified financial staternent misstatements. Therefore, the adoplion of
SAB No. 108 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy's consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

FASB Interpretation (FIN} 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (FIN 48).
In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which provides guidance on accounting for income tax positions about which Dule Energy has
concluded there is a level of uncertainty with respect to the recognition in Duke Energy’s financial statements. FIN 48 prescribes a mini-
mum recognition thrashold a tax position is required to meet. Tax positions are defined very broadly and include not only tax deductions
and credits but also decisions not to file in a particular jurisdiction, as well as the taxability of transactions, Duke Energy imalemented FIN
48 effective January 1, 2007. The implementation resulted in a cumulative effect decrease to beginning Retained Earnings on the Con-
sclidated Statement of Common Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensiva Income in the first guarter 2007 of approximately $25 million,
Corresponding entries impacted a variety of balance shezet line items, including Deferred income faxes, Taxes accrued and Other
Liabilities. Upon implementation of FIN 48, Duke Energy reflacts interest eipense related to taxes as Interest Expense, in the Con-
solidated Statement of Operations. In addition, subsequent accounting for FIN 48 (after January 1, 2007) involves an evaluation to
determine if any changes have occurred that would impack the existing uncertain tax positions as well as determining whether any new tax
positions are uncertain. Any impacts resulling from the evaluation of existing uncertain tax positions or from the recognition of new
uncerlain tax positions would impact income tax expense and interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of Qperations, with off-
sefting impacis to the balance sheet fine #tems described above, Becavse of the spinoff of Spectra Energy in the first quanter of 2007,
certain lizhilities of approximately $80 million related to uncertain tax positions filed on Spectra Energy tax returns were removed from
Duke Energy's balance sheel. Uncertain tax positions on consolidated or combined tax returns filed by Duke Energy which are indemnified
by Spectra Energy will be recorded as receivables from Spectra Energy. See Note 19.

FSP No. FIN 48-1, Definition of "Settiement” in FASB interpretation No. 48 (FSP No. FIN 48-1): in May, 2007, the FASB staff issued
FSP No. FIN 481 which cfarilies the conditions under FIN 48 that shou!d be met for a tax position to be considered effectively settled with
the taxing authority. Duka Energy’s implementation of FIN 48 as of Janvary 1, 2007 was consistent with the guidance in this FSP.

FSP No. FAS 123(R}5, “Amendment of FASB Staff Position FAS 123(R}1" (FSP No. FAS 123{R}5). In October 2006, the FASB staff
issued FSP No. FAS 123{R}5 to address whether a madification of an instrument in connection with an equity restructuring should be
considered a modification for purposes of applying FSP No, FAS 123(R}1, “Classification and Measurement of Freestanding Financial
Instruments Originally (ssued in Exchange for Empioyee Services under FASB Staternent No. 123(R} {FSP No. FAS 123(R}F1).” In August
20085, the FASB stalf issued FSP FAS 123(R) ! to defer indefinitely the effective date of paragraphs A230-A232 of SFAS No. 123(R), and
thereby require entities to apply the recognition and measurement provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) throughout the life of an instrument,
unfess the instrument is maodified when the holder is no longer an employee. The recognition and measurement of an instrument that is
medified when the holder is no longer an employee should be determined by other applicable generally accepted accounting principles.
FSP No. FAS 123{R}5 addresses modifications of stock-Dased awards made in cannection with an equity restructuring and clarifies that
for instruments that were originally issued as employee compensation and then modified, and that modification is made to the terms of
the instrument solely to reflect an equity restructuring that occurs when the holders are no fonger employees, no change in the recog-
nition or the measuremeant (due to a change in classification) of those instruments will result if certain conditions are met, This FSP was
effective for Duke Energy as of January 1, 2007, As discussed in Note 5, effective with the spin-off of Spectra Energy on January 2,
2007, all prevtously granted Duke Energy longterm incentive plan equity awards were modified to equitably adjust the awards. As the
madifications to the equity awards were made solely to reffect tha spin-off, no change in the recognition or the measurement (due to a
change in classification) of those instruments resulted.

FSP No. AUG AIR-1, "Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Aclivities,” (FSP No. AUG AIR-1). In September 2006, the FASB Staff
issued FSP No. AUG AIR-1. This FSP prohibits the use of the accruein-advance method of accounting for planned major maintenance activ-
itizs in annual and interim financial reporting periods, if no liabitity is required to be recorded for an asset retirement obligation based on a
fegal obligaticn for which the eveat obligating the entity has occurred. The FSP also requires disclosures regarding the method of aceount-
ing for planned major maintenance aclivities and the effects of implementing the FSP. The guidance in this FSP was effective for Duke
Frnergy as of January 1, 2007. The adoption of FSP No. AUG AIR-1 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy's consolidated
results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

EITF issue No. 06-3, "How Taxes Collected fram Customers and Remilled to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the
Income Statemeni (That Is, Gross versus Net Presentation)” (EITF No. 06-3). In June 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF
No. 06-3 to address any tax assessed by a governmental authority that is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a
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seller and a customer and may include, but are not fimited to, sales, use, value added, and some excise taxes. For taxes within the
issue's scope, the consensus requires that entities present such taxes on either a gross (i.€., included in revenues and costs) or net {i.e.,
exclude from revenues) basis according to their accounting policies, which should be disclosed. If such taxes are reported gross and are
significant, entities should disclose the amounts of those taxes. Disclosures may be made on an aggregate basis. The consensus was
cffective for Duke Energy beginning January 1, 2007, The adoption of EITF No. 06-3 did not have will have any material impact on Duke
Energy’'s consolidated results of operations, cash ftows ar finanicial pasition.

EITF Issue No. 06-5, "Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance—Delermining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance
with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 854" (EITF No. 06-54. In june 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on the accounting for corporate-
owned and bank-owned life insurance policies, EITF No. 06-5 requires that a policyholder consider the cash surrender value and any addi-
tional amounts to be received under the contractual terms of the policy in determining the amount that could be reafized under the
insurance contract. Amounts that are recoverable by the pclicyholder at the discretion of the insurance company must be excluded from
the amount that could be realized. Fixed amounts that are recoverable by the policyhalder in future periods in excess of one year from the
surrender of the policy must be recognized at their present value. EITF No. 06-5 was effective for Duke Energy as of January 1, 2007 and
must be applied as a change in accounting principle through a cumulative-effect adjustrent to retained earnings or other components of
equity as of January 1, 2007. The adoption of EITF No. 065 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy’s consolidated results of
operations, cash flaws or financial pasition.

EITF issue No. 06-6, “Debler’s Accounting for a Modification (or Exchangei of Convertibie Debt Instruments” (EITF No. (06-6). In
Movember 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF No. 06-6. EITF No. 06-6 addresses how a modification of a debt instrument (or
an exchange of debt instruments) that atfacts the terms of an embedded conversion option should be considerad in the issuer's anatysis
of whether debt extinguishment accounting should be applied, and further addresses the accounting for a modification of a debt instru-
ment (or an exchange of debt instruments) that affects the terms of an embedded conversion opfion when extinguishment accounting is
not applied. EITF No. 06-6 applies to modifications {or exchanges) occurring in interim or annual reporting pericds beginning after
November 29, 2006, repardiess of when the instrument was originally issued. Early application was permitted for modifications {or
exchanges) occurring in periods for which financial statements have not been issued. There were no modifications to, or exchanges of,
any of Duke Energy's debt instruments within the scope of EITF No. 06-6 in the three months ended March 31, 2007 or 2006. The impact
to Duke Energy of applying EITF No. 06-6 in subsequent periods will be dependent upon the naiure of any modifications to, or exchanges
of, any debt instruments within the scope of EITF No. 06-6.

The following new accounting standards have been issued, but have not yet been adopted by Duke Energy as of March 31, 2007-

SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS No. 157). In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, which defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157
does not require any new fair value measurements. However, in some cases, the application of SFAS No. 157 may change Duke Fnergy’s
current practice for measuring and disclosing fair values under other accounting proncuncements that require or permit fair value meas-
urements. For Duke Energy, SFAS No. 157 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and must be applied orosgectively except in certain cases,
Duke Energy is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157, and cannot currently estimate the impact of SFAS No. 157 on
its consalidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

SFAS No, 153, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabdities” {SFAS No. 159). In February 2007, the FASE
issued SFAS Na. 159, which permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items ak fair value. For
Duke Energy, SFAS No. 159 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and will have no impact on amounts presented for periods prigr to the
effective date. Duke Energy cannot currently estimate the impact of SFAS No. 159 on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows
or financial position and has nct yet determined whether or not it will choose to measure items subject to SFAS No. 159 at fair value.

19, Income Taxes and Other Taxes

Duke Energy or its subsidiaries file income 1ax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and varfous state and foreign jurisdictions. On
January 1, 2007, Duke Energy adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertamty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of
FASE Statement No. 109" (FIN 48). As a result of the adoption of FIN 48, Duke Energy recognized an approximate $25 million after-tax
cumulative effect decrease to retained earnings, which reflects all adoption provisions of FIN 48, including those provisions related to
unrecognized income tax benefits, interest expense, and penalties. Essentially all of the cumulative effect decrease to retzined earnings
related to Spectra Energy, which was spun-off subsequent to the adoption of FIN 48 {see Note 1).
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Effective with the adeption of FIN 48, Duke Energy's liability related to unrecognized tax benefits totaled approximately $500 million,
which are related to unrecognized federal, state, and foreign tax benefits, gross of any federal tay benefit for unrecognized state income
tax benefits. In connection with the spin-off of Spectra Energy on January 2, 2007, approximately $80 million of these liabilities were
transferred to Spectra Energy, resulling in a remaining balance subsequent 10 the spinoff of approximately $420 miltion, If ah unrecog-
nized tax benefits were recognized, approximately $130 milfion would lower the effective tax rate. Of the remaining balance of approx-
imately $290 million, approximately S50 milkon related to Spectra Energy’s indemnification for uncertain tax positions on Duke's
consolidated or combined tax returns, for which a corresponding receivable from Spectra Energy has been recorded, and approximately
5240 millicn reflects temporary differences, the federal deduction for state unrecognized tax benefits, and goodwill.

During the period from the spin-off through March 31, 2007, Duke Energy's unrecognized tax benefits increased approximately
$125 millicn, primarily related to the ¥ming of certain deductions taken on tax refurns in prior years, parlially offset by a $32Z million
decrease related to a settlement offer. At March 31, 2007, Duke Energy's liability related to unrecognized tax benefits, gross of any
federal tax benefit for unrecognized state income tax benefits, was approximately $545 million. It is reasonably possible that Duke Energy
will reflect a reduction in unrecognized tax benefits of $100 million in the next twelve months due to the expected settlement of certain
years, as well as the seftlement of an issue related to the timing of when deductions can be taken. A further reduction could occur in the
next twelve months, also due to an expected settlement, although the amount of the reduction is not currently estimable, Duke Energy
does not expect any impact on the effective tax rate related to these settlements in the next twelve months,

Also sffective with the adoption of FIN 48, Duke Energy's liability relaked to pre-tax interest expense and penalties associated with income
tax positions totaled approximately $43 million, Approximately $13 miltion of these liabiliies were transferred to Spectra Energy in connection
with the spinofi, resuiting in a remaining balance subsequent tc the spinoff of approximately $30 milfion. Of the remaining $30 million iability,
Duke Energy recorded a correspanding receivable from Specira Energy of approximately $10 rnilion, as this amount pertains to tax positions
on consolidated or combined tax returns filed by Duke Energy which have been indemnified by Spectra Energy. The liability amount as of Jan-
uary 2, 2007 was approximately 520 million, net of the receivable from Spectra Energy, At March 31, 2007, approximately $12 million of pre-
tax interest and penalties is accrued, which is net of a corresponding $11 million receivable from Specira Energy. The decrease in the liabiity
of approximately 58 million from January 2, 2007 to March 31, 2007, net of the receivable from Spectra Energy, reflects an increase to pre-
tax income of 52 miflion, with the remaining decrease in the liability recorded primarily as a reduction to goodwill.

Duke Energy has open with the federal jurisdiction tax years 1999 and after, with the exceplion of tax years for Cinergy or its sub-
sidiaries which are open for years 1997 and after. The majority of material state tax jurisdictions are closed through 2001, with the
exception of certain refund Claims related to the years 1978-2001 and any federal adjustments related to open faderal years. The
majority of foreign jurisdictions remain open for tax years 2000 and after.

With the implementation of FIN 48, Duke Energy records, as it reletes to laxes, interest expense as Interest Expense, interest
income as Interest income, and penalties in Other Income and Expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2007 was approximately 23.1% as compared to the effective tax rate
of 34.8% for the same period in 2006. The decrease in the effective tax rate is primarily due the recognition of synfuel credits in 2007 of
approximately $26 million and reduction in the unitary state tax rate in 2007 as a result of the spin-off of Spectra Energy, which reduced
income tax expense by appraximately 522 million. These favorable items were partially offsek by the non-deductibllity of a charge of
approximately $21 mittion related to the distribution of Spectra Energy shares to holders of the convertible notes {see Note 7).

As of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, approximately $307 miflion and $357 million, respectively, of current daferred tax
assets were included in Qther within Current Assets on the Consolicated Balance Sheets. At March 31, 2007, this balance exceeded 5%
of total current assets.

Excise Taxes. Certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments are collected by Duke Energy from its customers. these
taxes, which are required to be paid regardless of Duke Energy's ability to collect from the custorner, are accounted for on a gross basis.
When Duke Energy acts as an agenl, and the tax is not required to be rernitted if it Is not collected from the customer, the faxes are
accounted for on a net basis, Duke Energy's excise taxes accounted for on a grass basis and recorded as operating revenues in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as foilows:

Three Months Ended  Three Months Ended
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

{in millions}
Excise Taxes 575 $29
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20, Subsequent Events

For information on subseguent events related te debt and credit facilities, regulatory matters, and commitments and contingencies,
see Notes 7, 14 and 15, respectively.

43



PART |

itam 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

INTRODUCTION
Management's Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with the Consalidated Financial Statements,

On January 2, 2007, Duke Energy Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries, Duke Energy) completed the spir-off of its natural
gas businesses (Spectra Enerpy Corp. (Spectra Energy), including its wholly-owned subsidiary Spectra Enargy Capital, LLC (Spectra
Energy Capital)), including Duke Energy's 50% interest in OCP Midstream, LLC [DCP Midstream, formerly Duke Energy Field Services,
LLC), to shareholders. The results of operations of these businesses are presented as discontinued operations for the three months
ended March 31, 2006 in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Assets and liabifities of entities included in the spin-off of Spectra
Encrgy were transferred from Dule Energy on a historical cost basis on the date of the spinoff Iransaction, No gain or loss was recog-
nized on the distribution of these operations to Duke Energy shareholders. Approximately $20.5 billion of assets, $14.9 billion of liabilities
(which includes approximately $8.6 billion of debt} and $5.6 biflion of commion stockholders equity fwhich includes approximately 51.¢
billion of accumutated other comprehensive income) were distributed from’Duke Energy as of the date of the spin-off. For additional
information regarding the impacts of the spin-off on the pariods presented in this Form 10-Q, see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, “Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale”.

Executive Overview

Nat income was relatively flat from the first quarter of 2006 to first quarter of 2007, reflecting the addition of Cinergy Corg's
(Cinergy's) operations dus to the April 2006 acquisition and the spin-off of the operations of the natural gas busingsses due to the January
2007 spin-off, Earnings per share (basic and dituted} decreased from the first quarter of 2006 to the first quarter of 2007 primarily due
to 2007 earnings per share being impacted by the dilutive effect of the issuance of approximately 313 million shares in April 2006
related to the Cinergy acquisition.

Income from continuing operations increased from $203 million for the first quarter of 2006 to $349 million for the first quarter of
2007, primarily due to the addition of Cinergy operations. Total business segment EBIT increased from $461 millign ko $661 million, The
increase for U.S. Franchised Clectric and Gas of 5215 million was attributed almost entirely to the addition of Cinergy's regulated Midwest
operations, with net results in the Carolinas essentially flat quarter over quarter. Segment results for Crescent were down from
542 million in first quarter 2006 to 52 million in first quarter 2007, reflecting the reduction in ownership from 100% in the first quarter of
2006 to 50% in the first quarter of 2007, as well as lower developed lot and land sales in 2007 as compared 1o the same period in
2006. Commercial Power and International Energy both experienced moderately improved quarter over quarter nef results.

The increase in segment EBIT was partially offset by convertible debt costs of approximately $21 million related to the spin-off of
Spectra Energy, and higher interest expense of $61 million due primarily to the debt assumed from Cinergy. The effective tax rate for the
first quarter 2007 was favorably impacted by synthetic fuel credits of approximately $26 million and a favorable adjustment of approx-
imately $22 millian related to a recuction in the unitary state tax rate following the spin-off of Spectra Energy.

The decrease in income from discontinued operations from S155 million in first quarter 2006 to S8 miillion in 2007 reflects primarily
the classification of the results of aperations for the natural gas businesses spun off on January 2, 2007 as discentinued operations for
neriods prior to the spin-off.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Results of Operatiens and Variances (in millions)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
Increase
2007 2006  {Decrease)

Operating revenues $3,087 51,620 51467
Operating expenses 2,510 1,282 1,228
(zains on sales of investments in commercial and multi-family real estate — 26 {26}
Losses on sales of other assets and other, net (15} — (1t}
Operating income 566 364 202
Other income and expenses, net 54 53 1
Interest expense 164 103 61
Minority interest expense ; 2 3 (1)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 454 311 143
Income tax expense from conkinuing operations 105 108 {3)
Income from continuing operations 349 203 146
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax & 155 (147}
Netincome $ 357 S 318 S5 (1)

The following is a summary discussion of the consolidated results of operations and variznces, which is foilowed by a discussion of
results by segment.

Consolidated Operating Revenues

Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 as Compared to March 31, 2006. Consolidated operating revenues for the three months
ended March 31, 2007 increased 51,467 milion, compared to the same period in 2006. This change was driven primarily by an apprax-
imate $1,460 milion increase due to the merger with Cinergy.

Consolidated Operating Expenses

Three Months Ended Marent 31, 2007 as Compared to March 31, 2006. Consolidated operating expenses for the three months
ended March 31, 2007 increased $1,228 million, compared to the same period in 2006. This change was driven primarily by an approx-
imate $1,235 million increase due ta the merger with Ginergy.

Consolidated Gains on Sales of Investments in Commercial and Muiti-Family Real Estate

Cansolidated gains on sales of investments in commercial and muttifarnily real estate for the three months ended March 31, 2007
decreased $26 million, compared to the same period in 2006. This decrease was due te the daconsalidation of Crescent in September
2006 and the subsequent accounting for Duke Energy's investment in Crescent as an equity method investment,

Consolidated Losses on Sales of Other Assets and Other, Net

Consolidated losses on sales of other assets and other, net was a loss of $11 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007
and S0 for the same period in 2006. The net ipss for the three months ended March 31, 2007 was due primarily to Commercial Power’s
sale of emission allowances.

Consolidated Operating Income

Consolidated operating income for the three months ended March 31, 2007 increased $202 million, compared to the same period
in 2006. Increased aperating income was driven primarily by an approximate 5214 million favorable’impact due to the merger with Cin-
ergy. Other drivers to aperating income are discussed above.

Consolidated Other Income and Expenses, Net

Consolidated other income and expenses, net for the three months erded March 31, 2007 was flat compared o the same periodin
2006.

45



PART {

Consolidated Interest Expense

Consolidated interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2007 increased $61 million, compared to the same period in
2006. This increase was due primarily to the merger with Cinergy.

Consolidated Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations

Consolidated income tax expanse from continuing operations for the three months ended March 31, 2007 decreased 53 million
compared to the same period in 2006, The decrease is the result of a Jower effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31,
2007 compared to the same period in 2006, offset by higher pre-tax income in the first quarter 2007 compared to the first quarter
2006, The elfective tax rate decreased for the three months ended March 31, 2007 (23%) compared to the same period in 2006 {35%),
due primarily to the recognition of synfue! credits and reduction in the unitary state tax rate in 2007 as a result of the spin-off of Spectra
Energy.

Conselidated Income from Biscontinued Operations, Net of tax

Consolidated income from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the three months ended March 31, 2007 decreased $147 million,
compared to the same period in 2006. The decrease primarily relates to the inclusion of 2006 resulis of aftertax earnings of approy-
imately $271 million related to Duke Enerpy's natural gas businesses, including Duke Energy’s 50% ownership interest in DCP Midstream
and interest expense previousty included in Other that directly related to the natural gas businesses, which were spun off to shareholders
in Janmary 2007, This was partially offset by approximately-S116 million of prior year aftertax losses at former Duke Energy North Amer-
ica (DENA) primarily associated with certain contract terminations, and losses associated with the operations of Duke Energy Merchants,
e -

Segment Results

Management evaluates segment performance based on earnings before interest and taxes from conlinuing operations, after deduct-
ing minority interest expense related to those profits (EBIT). On a segment basis, EBIT excludes discontinued operations, represents alt
profits from continuing operations {both operating and non-operating} befere deducting interest and taxes, and is net of the minority inter-
est oxpense related to those profits. Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments are managed centrally by Duke Energy, so the
gains and [osses on foreign currency remeasurement, and interest and dividend income on those balances, are excluded from the seg-
ments’ EBIT. Management considers segment EBIT to be a good indicator of each segment's operating performance from its continuing
operations, as it represents the results of Duke Energy's ownership interest in operaticns without regard to financing methods or capital
struclures, :

Duke Energy’s segment EBIT may not be comparable to a similarly titied measure of another company because other entities may
not calcutate EBIT in the same manner. Segment EBIT is summarized in the following table, and detailed discussions follow.

EBIT by Business Segment (in millions)

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2007 20086
U.5. Franchised Electric and Gas S 574 $359
Commercial Power (9 (26)
Internationat Energy 94 86
Crescent 2 42
Total reportable segment EBIT 661 461
Other {84} {54)
Total reportabla segment and other EBIT 577 407
Interast expense (164 {103)
Interest income and othert 41 7
Consolidated income from continuing operations before income taxes S 454 311

(al  Other includes forelgn currency transaction gans and lpsses.

The amounts discussed below include intercompany transaclions that are eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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U.S. Franchised Electric and Gas

Three Months Ended

March 31,

Increase
[in millions, except where noted) 2007 2006 {Decrease)
Qperating revenues $2399 $ 1,292 S 1,107
Operating expenses 1,835 938 897
Operating income h64 354 210
Other income and expenses, net 10 5 5
EBIT $ 574 § 33 § 215
Duke Energy Carolinas GWh salest? 21,542 20,580 962
Duke Energy Midwest GWh salestal b 16,412 — 16,412

{a) Gigawatt-hours (GWh) .
b} Refates to operations of legacy Cinergy from the date of acquisition and thereafter

The following table shows the percent changes in GWh sales and average number of customers for Duke Energy Carolinas for the
three months ended March 31, 2007 compared to the same period in the prior year. The table below exciudes amounts related to former
Cinergy since results of operations of Cinergy are only included from the date of acquisition and thereafter.

Three Months Ended

Increass [decrease) over prior year _ Mareh 31, 2007
Residential salest " 7.8%
General service salesh! 7.1%
Industrial salest# (3.2%
Wholesale sales 7.1%
Total Duke Energy Carolinas sales® 4.7%
Avarage number of customers 2.1%

{a} Major components of Duke Energy Carclinas’ retail safes. .
{b) Consists of alt compaonents of Ouke Energy Carolinas' sales, inckiding retail sales, and wholesale sales to incorpersted municipalities aad to public and private wiil
ities and powar marketers.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 as Compared to March 31, 2006
Operating Revenues. The increase was driven primarily by:
* A 51,066 million increase in regulated operating revenues due to the acguisition of Cinergy

= A $50 million increase in fuel revenues, driven by increased fuel rates and increased GWh sales for retail customers. Fuel rates
increased due primarily to higher fuel costs, with the cost of coal being the most significant factor

= A $27 milfion increase related to demand from retail customers, due primarily to continued growth in the number of residential and
general service customers in Duke Energy Carolinas’ service territory, The number of customers in 2007 has increased by approx-
imately 47,000 compared to 2006, and

* A S22 million increase in GWh sales {o relail customers doe to favorable weather conditions. Heating degree days for the first quar-
ter of 2007 were approximately 3% higher than the same period in 2006, due primarily to strong winter weather in February 2007,
Partially offsetting these increases were:

= A 38 million decrease related to sharing of anticipated merger savings through a rate decrement rider with regulated customers
in North Carolina and South Caralina, and

« A $16 million decrease in wholesate power sales, net of the impact of sharing of profits from whaolesale power sales with industrial
customers in North Caralina, due primarily to lower prices in 2007.

Operating Expenses. The increase was driven primarily by:

« An 5852 million increase in regulated operating expenses due to the acquisition of Cinergy

* A 535 million increase in fuet expenses due primarily to higher coal costs. Generation fueled by coal accounted for approximately
51% of total generation during the first quarter of 2007 compared to approximately 47% during the same period in 2006. The
quantity of ¢oal burned during first quarter 2007 is approximately 12% higher than the same period in 2008, resuiting in increased
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expenses of approximately 557 milion. This increase is partially offset by a $19 millien reimbursernent for previously incurred fuel
expenses resulling from a settiement between Duke Energy Carolinas and the U.S, Department of Justice resolving Duke Energy's
used nuclear fuel litigation against the Department of Energy IDCE). The settiemient between the parties was finalized on March b,
2007, and

+ A 514 million increase in purchased pawer expense, due primarily to higher retail demand and scheduled refueling outages.
Partially olfselting these increases was:

= A 56 million decrease in regulatory amartization expenses, due to reduced amortization of compliance costs related to North Caro-
lina ctean air legislation during the first quarter of 2007 compared to the same period in the prior year. Regulatory amortization
expenses were approximately $56 miltion for the three months ended March 31, 2007 as compared to approximately $62 million
during the same period in 2006,

Cther lncome and Expenses, nel. The increase resulted primarity from the acquisition of the regulated operations of Cinergy,

EBIT. The increase resulted primarily from the acquisition of the regulated aperations of Cinergy, increased demand from retail cus-
tomers, favarable weather conditions and the DOE sattlement. These increases were partially offset by rate reductions due to the merger,
increased purchased power expense and decreased wholesale power sates. See above for individual discussion of these EBIT drivers,

Commercial Power

Three Months Ended

March 31,

- Increase
{in milfions, except where noted) 2007 2006  (Decroase)
QOperating revenues $ 432 5 16 5 416
Operating expenses 436 41 395
Lesses on sales of other assets and other, net (an — {1
Operating income (15} {25) 10
Other income and expenses, net 6 {1 7
EBIT S @ s @ee § 17
Actual plant production, GWh 5,871 16 5,855
Proportional megawatt capacity in operation 8,100 3,600 4,500

Commercial Power includes the operations of former DENA'S Midwestern gasired gereration assetls. Additionally, Commercial

Power includes former Cinergy's nonregulated generation in the Midwest, the resuits of which have been included from the date of acouis-
ition and therealter.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 as campared to March 31, 2006
Operaling Revenues. The increase was primarily driven by:

= A 53B7 milfion increase dug to the acquisition of Cinergy’s non-regulated generation assets, including the impacts of purchasa
accounting

= A 552 million increase in revenues from sales from synfuel operations acquired in the Cinergy merger, and

+ A 522 milfion increase in revenues from former DENA's Midwestern gas-fired generation assets cue primarily to higher generation
volurnes in 2007 compared to 2006,

Partially offsetting these increases was a 545 million mark-to-market loss on non-qualifying power hedge contracts.

Operating Expenses. The increase was primarily driven by

* A 5327 million increase due to the acquisition of Cinergy’s nonvegulated generation assets, including the impacts of purchase
accounting

= A 575 million Increase due 1o fuel costs and eperating ang¢ maintenance expense associated with the synfuel operations acquired in
the Cinerpy merger, and

» A 512 million increase in expenses from former DENA's Midwestern gas-ired generation assets due primarily to higher fuel costs
from increased generation valumes in 2007 compared to 20086,
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Partially offsetting these increases was a $19 million mark-lo-market gain on nonqualifying fuel hedge contracts.

Losses on Sales of Other Assets and Othier, net. During 2007, Commercial Power recognized net losses related to sales of emission
allowances.

Other Income and Expenses, net. The increase is driven primarily by equity earnings of unconsolidated affiliates related to invest-
ments acquired in connection with the Cinergy merger in 2006,

EBIT, Approximately $5 million of the improved EBIT ralates to the legacy Cinergy operafions, with the remainder related to the
former DENA Midwestern operations. EBIT was negatively impacted in the first quarter 2007 by approximately $S26 miliion of net
mark-tc-market [psses on economic hedges and approximately $23 million of losses related to synfuel operations, which excludes the
impact of 2 $26 milion income tax credit recarded as a reduction to income tax expense from continuing operations.

International Energy

. Three Months Ended
fMarch 31,

Increase
[in millions, except where noted} 2007 2006 (Decrease)
Operating revenues § 245 § 227 5 18
Dperating expenses 165 154 11
Operating income 80 73 7
Other incomne and expenses, net 19 19 —
Minority interest expense : . 5 6 (1)
EBIY S 94 5 86 S 8
Sales, GWhi» 4654 4,796 {142}
Proportional megawatt capacity in aperation'® 3945 3914 31

{a) International Energy’s continuing operations

Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 as Compared to March 31, 2006

Operating Revenues, The increase was driven primarily by:

« A 511 million increase in Brazil due to higher volumes, higher average energy prices and favorable exchange rates

« A 55 million increase in Fouador due to favorable volumes and higher average energy prices as a result of competitor plant out-
ages

* A $5 million increase in Peru due to higher dispatch, higher prices and increased ownership, and

* A 55 millian increase in Guatemala mainly due to favorable sales volume and higher average energy prices.

Partially offsetting these increases was:

» A $9 miltion decrease in Et Salvador due primarily to decreased sales volume resulling from increased competition.

Operating Expenses, The increase was driven primarily by:
* A 511 million increase in Guatemala due to increased fuel costs and higher maintenance costs
* A\ 55 million increase in Peru due to increased ownership and higher maintenance costs

= A, 55 million increase in Brazil due primarily to higher purchased power costs due to lower dispatch, higher regulatory costs, and
unfavorable exchange rates, and

« A $4 million increase in Ecuador due primarily to higher Tuel costs resulting from increased dispatch.

Partially offsetting these increases were:
* A 510 milion decrease in El Salvader due to a lower fuel prices and generation, and

+ A 53 million decrease due to the absence of Citrus Trading Cerporation [Citrus} fitigation costs in the current period as the Citrus
liigation obligations transferred to Spectra Energy on January 2, 2007.

EBIT. The increase was due primarily to the favorable average energy prices in Brazil, absence of Citrus fitigation costs, and favor-
able exchange rates, partially offset by higher fuel costs in Guaternala.
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Crescent
Three Months Ended
March 31,
Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)

|in milkions)
Operaling revenues 5— 571 $471) ;
Operating expenses — 61 {61) :
Gains on sales of investments in commercial and multifamily reat estate — 26 {26)
Operaling income — 36 (36)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 2 — 2
Other income and expenses, net — 8 @
WMinority interest expense - 2 (2)
EBIT i $2 542 S(40)

In September 2006, Buke Energy compleled a joint venture transaction at Crescent Resources, LLC [Crescent) and deconsclidated its
investment in Crescent due to reduction in ownership and its inability to exarcise control. Accordingly, the variances in the above table reflect
the activity for the results for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and represent Duke Energy’'s 50% of equity eamings in Crescent,
whereas the results for Crescent for the three months ended March 31, 2006 reflect Crescent as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Duke Energy.

EBIT. The decrease was due primarily to lower residential developed lot sales, lower land sales and trades, and approximaltsly
S10 million of interest expense included in Crescent’s equity earnings for the three months ended March 31, 2007. .

Other

Thres Nonths Ended
March 31,

Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)

lin miflions)

Operating revenues 53 $37 § 1)
Operating expenses 100 107 _
Operating income €y 0 6
Other income and expenses, net’ {21 12 {33
Minority interest expense (1} {4) 3
EBIT 5(84) 5{54) @}

Three Menths Ended March 31, 2007 as Compared to March 31, 2006

Operating Expenses. The decrease was driven primarily by 517 million of lower expenses for mutual insurance exit obligations and
favorable captive insurance loss experience in the current year, partially offset by an approximate 57 million increase in corporate gover-
nance costs due primarily to the merger with Cinergy and a 6 million increase in costs to achieve related to the Cinergy merger, due
primarily to system integration costs.

Other Income and Expenses, net. The decrease was dug primarily to convertible debft charges of approximately 521 million related
to the spin-off of Spectra Energy,

EBIT. The decrease was dug primarily to convertible debt charges, increased corporate governance costs and costs to achieve
refated to the Cinergy merger, partially offset by lower expenses for mutual insurance exit obligations and favorable captive insurance
loss experience in the current year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Operating Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities was 5916 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007, compared to $731 million
for the same period in 2006, an increase in cash provided of $185 million, This change was driven primarily by:

* The settlement of the payable to Barclays Bank, PLC (Barclays} {approximatety S600 million} in 2006, offset by
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« Coflateraf received by Quke Energy (approximately $540 million} during 2006 from Barclays _
+ Cash flows period over period were also impacted by the 2006 merger with Cinergy, the deconsolidation of Crescent in 2006 and
the 2007 spin-off of the natural gas business.
{For additional inlormation on the above, see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Discontinued Operations and
Assets Held for Sale”}

Investing Cash Flows
Net cash used in investing activities was 5594 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 compared to $138 million for the
same period in 20086, anincrease in cash used of $456 million. This change was driven primarily by:

 An approximate $24Q million increase in capital expenditures, primarily due to the Cinergy merger in 2006

« An approximate $350 million decrease in sales and maturities, net of purchases, of available for sate securities, primarily short-

term ivestaents; partially offset by \

» An approximate $150 million decrease as a result of 2006 investment expenditures, primarily at Crescent, and the 2006 acquis-
ition of the remaining intarest in the Bridgeport facility.

Financing Cash Flows and Liguidity
Net cash used in financing activities was $700 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 compared to $319 million for the
same period in 2006, an increase in cash used of $381 million, This change was driven privarity by:

* An approximate $330 million increase in payments for the redemption of long-term debt

« An approximate $400 million distribution of cash as a result of the spir-off of Spectra Energy, partially offset by

+ An approximate $250 million increase in net proceeds from the issuance of notes payable and commercial paper, and

« An approximate 570 million increase in cash due to the repurchase of common shares in 2006

In October 2006, Duke Energy's Board of Directars authorized the reactivation of the previously announced sharre repurchase plan

for Duke Energy of up to $500 million of share repurchases after the spin-off of the natural gas businesses had been completed. There
were no share repurchases from the date of the spin-off of the natural gas businesses through March 31, 2007.

Significant Financing Activities, During the three months ended March 31, 2007, Duke Energy's consolidated credit capacity
decreased by 51,468 million due 1o the spinoff of the natural gas busingsses on January 2, 2007.

Available Credit Facllities and Restrictive Debt Covenants. Duke Energy’s debt and credit agreements contain various financial and
olhier covenants. Failure to meet those covenants beyond applicable grace periods could result in accelerated due dates and/or termination
of the agreements. As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy was in compliance with those covenants. In addition, some credit agreements may
allow for acceleration of payments or termination of the agreements due to nonpayment, or to the aceeleration of other significant
indebtecness of the borrower or some of its subsidiaries. None of the debt or credit agreements contain material adverse change clauses.

Credit Ratings. Through May 1, 2007, the credit ratings of Buke Energy and its subsidiaries were unchanged fram those disclosed in
*Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liguidity and Capital Resources" in Duke
Energy’s Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Duke Energy’s credit ratings are dependent on, among other factors, the ability to generate sufficient cash to fund capital and invest-
ment expendilures and dividends, and a disciplined execution of the share repurchase program, while maintaining the strength of its cur-
rent batance sheet. If, as a result of market conditions or other factors, Duke Energy is unable to maintain its current balance sheet
strength, or if its earnings and cash flow outiook materially deteriorates, Duke Energy's credit ratings could be negatively impacted.

A reduction in the credit rating of Duke Energy to below investment grade as of March 31, 2007 would have resulted in Duke Energy
posting additional collateral of up to approxlmarely 5375 million, including impacts of Cinergy. The majerity of this collateral is related to
outstanding surety bonds.

Duke Energy would fund any additicnal collateral requirements through a combination of cash on hand and the use of credit facilities. If
credit ratings for Duke Energy or its affiliates fall below investment grade there is fikely to be a negative impact on its worling capital and terms
of trade that is not possitle to fully quantify, in addition to the posting of additional collateral and segregation of cash described above.

Other Financing Matters. As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy and its subsidiaries had effective Securties and Exchange Commis-
sion (SEC) shelf registratons for up to $925 million in gross proceeds from debt and other securities.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the first quarter of 2007, there were no material changes to Duke Energy's off-halance sheet arrangements other than the
off-balance sheet arrangements related to the natural gas businesses, which were spun off on January 2, 2007. For information on Duke
Energy’s off-balance sheet arrangements, see "Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements” in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in Duke Energy’s Annual Report on Form 10X for the year-ended December 31, 2006.

Contractual Obligations

Duke Energy enters inio contracts that require cash payment at specified periods, based on specified minimum quantities and
prices. During the first quarter of 2007, there were no material changes in Duke Energy's contraciual obhgations. For an in-depth dis-
cussion of Duke Energy's contractual obligatians, see "Contractual Obligations” and “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Mar-
ket Risk” in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Restults of Operations” in Duke Energy's Annual Report an
Form 10K for the year-ended December 31, 2006.

New Accounting Standards
The following new accounting standards have been issued, but have not yet been adopted by Duke Energy as of March 31, 20C7:

Statemnent of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, “Fair Vaiue Measurements” (SFAS No. 157). In September 2006, the
Financtal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 157, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in generally accepted accounting principals, and expands disciosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not
require any new fair value maasurements. However, in some cases, the application of SFAS No. 157 may change Duke Energy's current
practice for measuring and disclosing fair values under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements.
For Duke Energy, SFAS No. 157 is effective as of January |, 2008 and must be applied prospectively except in certain cases. Duke
Energy is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157, and cannot cuirently estimate the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its
consolidated results of operaticns, ¢ash flows or financial position.

SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabifities” {SFAS No. 159). In February 2007, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 159, which permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value, For
Duke Energy, SFAS No. 159 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and will have no impact on amounts presented for periods prior to the
effective date. Duke Energy cannot currently estimate the impact of SFAS Na. 159 on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows
or financial position and has not yet determined whether or not it will choose to measure items subject o SFAS No. 159 at fair value,

Subsequent Events

For information gn subsequent events related to debt and credit facilities, regutatory matters, and commitments and contingencies
see Note 7, "Debt and Credit Facilities,” Nota 14, “Regulatory Matters,” and Note 15, “Commitments and Contingencies” ta the Con-
solidated Financial Statements, respectively.

item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

For an indepth discussion of Duke Energy’s market risks, sea "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures aboul Market Risk” in Duke Energy's Annual Report on Form 10X for the year ended Decemter 31, 2006.

Interest Rate Risk

Based on a sensitivity analysis as of March 31, 2007, it was estimated that if market interest rates average 1% higher (lower} aver
the next twelve months, interest expense, net of offsetting impacts in interest income, would increase (decrease) by approximately
59 million. Comparatively, based on a sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2006, had interest rates averaged 1% higher {lower} in
2007, it was estimated that interest expense, net of offsetting impacts in interest income, would have increased [decreased) by approx-
imately $3 milion. These amounts were estimated by considering the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on variable-rate securities
autstanding, atjusted for interest rate hedges, shortterm investments, cash and cash equivalents outstanding as of March 31, 2007 and
December 31, 20056, The increase in interest rate sensitivity was primarily due a decrease in cash and shortterm investment balances
and a net increase In commercial paper borrowing. If interest rates changed sigrificanlly, management would likely take actions to man-
age its exposure to the change. However, due to the uncertainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their possible effects, the
sensitivity analysis agsumes no changes in Duke Energy’s financial structure.
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ltem 4. Controis and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Disclosure controls and grocedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be

disclosed by Duke Energy in the reports it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act} is recorded, proc-
essed, summarized, and reported, within the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s {SEC) rules and forms.

Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limatation, controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance
that information required to be disclosed by Duke Energy in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to aflow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
Duke Energy has evaluated the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and
¥5d-15(2) under the Exchange Act) as of March 31, 2007, and, hased upon this evaluation, the Chief Execulive Officer and Chief Financia)
Officer have concluded that these controls and procedures are effective in providing reasonable assurance that information requiring dis-
closure is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the timeframe specified by the SEC's rutes and forms.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Under the supervision and with the participatian of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
Duke Energy has evaluated changes i internal contro! over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f and 15d-15()
under the Exchange Act) that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2007 and found no change that has materizlly affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially alfect, internal control over financial reporting, other than the changes occurring subsequent to the
spiroft of Spectra Energy from Duke Energy, as discussed below.

Subsequent to the spin-off of Spectra Energy, Duke Energy is currently in the process of evaluating any changes that could materi
ally affect Duke Energy’s internal controt over financial reporting. See applicable notes to the Consofidated Financial Statements for addi-
tional information related to the spinoff of Spectra Energy by Duke Energy.
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ltem 1. Legal Proceedings.

For informalion ragarding legal praceedings that became reportable events or in which there were material developments in the first
auarter of 2007, see Mote 14 to the Consofidated Financial Statements, “Regulatory Matters” and Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Staterments, "Commitments and Contingencies.”

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, careful consideration should be given to the factors discussed in Part |,
“tem 1A. Risk Factors” in Duke Energy's Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2006, which could materially
affect Duke Energy's financial condition or future results. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to Duke Energy or that
Duke Energy currently deems to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect Duke Energy's financial condition and/or resulls of
operations,

ltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use‘of Proceeds.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities for First Quarter of 2007
There were no issusr purchases of equity securities during the first quarter of 2007,

in October 20086, Duke Energy's Board of Directors authorized the reactivation of the share repurchase plan for Duke Energy of up
to 5500 million of share repurchases after the spin-off of the netural gas businesses had been completed. As of March 31, 2007, the
dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased under the plen is approximately $1.1 billion.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of Duke Energy’s security holders during the first quarter of 2007.
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Item 6. Exhibits

{a) Exhibits
Exhibits

filed or furnished herewith are designated by an asterisk (*). Al exhibits not so designated are incorporated by refsrence to

a prior filing, as indicated. ltems constituting management contracts or cormpensatary plans or arrangements are designated by a double

asterisk (**).

Exhibit
Number

10.1**

rg.2""
*10.3
*10.4
*10.9
*10.6"*
107"

*31.1
[N *31.2
*32.1
*32.2

Form of Phantom Stock Award Agreement (filed in Form 8-K of Duke Energy Corporation, March 8, 2007, File Ne. 1-32853,
as item 10,01},

Form of Performance Share Award Agreement (filed in Form 8K of Duke Energy Corparation, March 8, 2007, File No, 1-
32853, as item 10.02).

Amendment No. 1 to the Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2006, by and between Duke
Energy Corporation and Spectra Energy Corp.

Amendment No. 1 to the Transition Services Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2006, by and belween Dulte Energy
Corporation and Spectra Energy Corp.

Amendment No. Z to the Transition Services Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2006, by and between Duke Fnergy
Corporation and Spectra Energy Corp.

Amendiment to the Duke Energy Corporation 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, dated as of February 27, 2007, by and
between Duke Energy Corporation and Spectra Energy Corp.

Amendment to the Duke Energy Corparation 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, dated as of February 27, 2007, by and
between Duke Energy Corporation and Spectra Energy Corp.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002.
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

The total amount of securilies of the registrant or its subsidiaries authorized under any tnstrument with respect to long-term debt not
filed as an exhibit does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The registrant
agrees, upon request of the Securities and Exchange Cammission, to furnish copies of any or alk of such instruments to it,
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PART i

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly ¢aused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

Date: May 10, 2007 /s/  Davio L. HausEr

David L. Hauser
Group Executive and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 10, 2007 /s/ STeven K. Youmg

Steven K. Young
Senior Vice President and Controller
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Exhibit 10.3.
Execution Copy

FIRST AMENDMENT
10
SEPARATION AND DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TC SEPARATION AND DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT {this “"Amendment’) is entered into as of January 1, 2007 {the
“Effective Date™), by and between Duke Energy Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Duke Energy’), and Spectra Energy Corp (f/k/a Gas Spin-
Co, Inc.), a Delaware corporation {“ Spectra Energy"), each a “Party” and together, the "Parties”.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into that certain Separation and Distribution Agreement dated as of December 13, 2006 lthe
“Separation and Distribution Agreement’); and

WHEREAS, each Party has determined that it is in the best interests of its stockholders to amend the Separation and Distribution Agree-
ment as described in this Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, and other good
and valuable constderalion, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowliedged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, agree,
effective as of the Effective Datg, as follows:

1. Deiinitions,

Al capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise definad herein shall have the respective meanings set forth {or otherwise provided for)
inn the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

2. Amendment to Modify Schedule 1.1(48) {Duke Energy Group Entities).
The Schedules to the Separation and Distribution Agreement are hereby amended by:

{i) adding the following Business Entity to Ihe list of Business Entitias listed on Schedule 1.1(48) [Duke Energy Group Enfities): "Energy
Pipelinas International Company”; and

i} deleting the following Business Entity from the list of Business Entities listed on Schedule 1.1148) (Duke Energy Group Entities):
“Duke Energy Exchangeco Finance Co.".

3. Amendment to Modify Schedule 1.1(104)a) {Companies Cansidered PanEnergy Companies).

The Sf:hedules to the Separation and Distribukion Agreement are hereby amended by adding the following item 13 to the list of PanEnergy
Companies listed on Schedule 1.1{104{a} iCompanies Considered PanEnergy Companies):

“13. Energy Pipelines International Company

— Will cease to be an indirect subsidiary of Duke Capital LLC and become a member of the Duke Energy Group.”

4. Amendment to Modify Schedule 1.1{129) (Spectra Energy Group Entilies).
The Schedules to the Separation and Distribution Agreement are hereby amended by:

{i} deleting the following Business Entity from the list of Business Entities listed on Schedule 1.1{129) (Spectra Energy Group Entitiesk
“Energy Pipclines internaticnat Company”; and

(fiJ'adding the {ollowing Business Entity to the fist of Business Entities fisted on Schedulel. 1(129) {Spectra Energy Group Entities):
“Duke Energy Exchangeco Finance Co.".




5. Amendment to Modify Schedule 2.5{a} (Certain Spectra Energy Bank and Brokerage Accounts).
The Schedules to the Separation and Distribution Agreement are hereby amended by:

(i) adding the following bank account to the list of bank and brokerage accounts listed on Schedule 2.5(a) (Certain Spectra
Energy Bank and Brokerage Accounts): "SCOTIA—100090404217—WESTCOAST ENERGY INTERNATIOMAL INC."; and

{iit delating the fellowing eight bank accounts frem the list of bank and brokerage accounts listed on Schedule 2.5(a) (Certain
Spectra Energy Bank and Brokerage Accounts): (1} “JPMorgan Chase Bank—601807514—PAN SERVICE COMPANY”, {2} “JPMorgan
Chase Bank—9102771194—FPAN SERVICE COMPANY", {3) "SCOTIA—100090102113—/WICK PLUMBING fconstruction acet)”,

(4) "SCOTIA—1000901 161 14-—PATGH POINT {construction acet)”, (51 “SCOTIA—1000902714 1 1—WL CONSTRUCTION
[construction acct)”, (6) “SCOTIA—100090274615—FLINT FIELD (construction acct)’, (7} "SCOTIA—129890013110—TWIN
RIVERS 1981 LTD, (construction acct)”, and {8} "SCOTIA—129890017310—PAUL PAQUETTE & SONS {construction acct)”,

6. Amendment to Modify Schedule 2.5(b) (Duke Energy Bank and Brokerage Accounts Currentiy Owned by Duke
Capital Subsidiaries).

The Schedies to the Separation and Distribution Agreement are hereby amended by:

(i) adding the following two bank accounts to the list of bank and brokerage accounts listed on Schedule 2.5{b) (Duke Energy
Bank and Brokerage Accounts Currently Owned by Duke Capital Subsidiariest: (1) “JPMorgan Chase Bank—601807514—PAN
SERVICE COMPANY", and (2} “JPMorgan Chase Bank—9102771194—PAN SERVICE COMPANY™; and

(i} adding the following pravisions after the list of bank and brokerage accounts listed on Schedule 2.5(b) (Duke Energy Bank
and Brokerage Accounts Currently Owned by Duke Capital Subsidiaries):

“Spectra Energy shall reimburse Duke Energy for alt payments () made out of either of the lwo JPMorgan Chase Bank bank
accounts {Acct. Nos. 601807514 and 9102771194) referenced in Lhe list above, and (i) that relate to the Gas Business. Such
reimbursement shall occur within one Business Day of Spectra Energy's recent of a bill and, if applicable, reasonabie supporting
documentation, and be by wire transfer to a bank account designated by Duke Energy.”

7. Miscellaneous,

All Sections under Article ¥l of the Separation and Distribution Agreement are hereby incorporated in this Amendment by this refer-
ence, provided that any references in such Sections to the "Agreement” or similar references shall be substituted for references to this
Amendment. Except as modified herein, the terms of the Separation angd Distribution Agreement remain in full force and effect, and alt
references therein to the “Agreement” shall be deemed to mean the Separation and Distribufion Agreement as armended by this Amend-
ment. Execution of this Amendment by facsimile or other electronic copy of a signalure shall be deemed to be, and shall have the same
effect as, execution by original signature,

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties caused this First Amendment to Separation and Distribution Agreement to be duly execﬂted, alt

effective as of the Effective Date.

Duke Energy:
DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

By: /s/  Davio L, Hauger

Name: David L. Hauser

Title:  Group Executive and
Chief Financial Officer

Specira Energy:
SPECTRA ENERGY CORP

By: /s/ Witiam S, GARNER, JR.

Name: William 5. Garner, Jr.

Tile:  Group Executive, General Counsel and
Secretary




Exhibit 10.4
Execution Copy

FIRST AMENDMENT
TO
TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT {this “Amendmeni’} is entered into as of Janvary 1, 2007 (the "Effective
Data"}, by and between Duke Energy Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Duke Energy"), and Spectra Energy Comp [f/k/a Gas SpinCo, Inc.), a
Delaware ¢orporation ("Spectra Energy’), each a “Parly” and together, the "Parties”.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into that certain Transition Services Agreement dated as of Decemnber 13, 2006 {the " Transition Serv-
ices Agreerpent’), and

WHEREAS, each Party has determined that it is in the best interests of its stackholders to amend the Transition Services Agreement as
described in this Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and suffliciency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legaily bound, agree,
eflective as of the Effective Date, as lollows:

-

1. Definitions. All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings set forth {or olherwise
provided for) in the Transition Services Agreement.

2. Amendment to Defined Terms “Duke Energy Services” and “Spectra Energy Services”. Section 1 of the Transition Services Agreement is
hereby amended by deleting the definad terms “Duke Energy Services” and “Spectra Energy Services” in their entireties and substituting in
fieu thereof the following;

"Dutke Energy Services” shall mean the limited enumerated services described on Schedule A-I, Schedule A-2, Schedule A-3 of the
Schadules to Transition Services Agreement document attached hereto and each next consecutive Schedule A through and including
Schedule A-47 included therein.

"Spectra Energy Services” shall mean the limited enumerated services described on Schedute B-1, Schedule B-2, Schedule B-3 of
the Schedules to Transition Services Agreement document attached hereto and each next conseculive Schedufe 8 through and
including Schedute B-15 included therein.

3. Amendment to Section 3.1(a) [Fees). Section 3.1{a} of the Transition Services Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following clause
after the words "then the Fee applicable to such Service shall be increased by 10% for the remainder of the applicable Services Term” at
the end of such Section:

“; provided, further, however, such 10% increase shall not apply to the Fee appficable to any of the Services described on Schedules
A3, A4, AB, AT AL ALS, AL4, AL6, A19, A-20, or A-36 oOF this Agreement.”

4. Amendment to Modify Schedule A-22 (Spectra Energy Consolidations Assistance). The Schedules to the Transition Services Agreement are
hereby amendad by deleting the phrase "January 1, 2007 - March 31, 20077 under Part | of Schedule A-22 {Spectra Energy
Consalidations Assistance) in its entirety, and substituting in lieu thereof the phrase “January 1, 2007—April 30, 2007".

5. Amendment to Modify Schedule A-26 (Spectra Energy and DCP Midstream Payroll Accounting). The Schediles to the Transition Services
Agreement are hereby amended by:

(i) deleting the first sentence of under Part | of Schedule A-26 {Spectra Energy and DCP Midstream Payroll Accounting) in its
entirety, and subsliluting in keu thereof the following: “Until Spectra Energy is functional on PeopleSoft 8.9, Duke Energy will provide to
Spectra Energy both labor distribution and payrall tax accrual seirvices, provided that such services shall be limited to data relating to
dates or periods on or before March 31, 2007."; and



b S—

(i) defeting the phrase “January 1, 2007—March 31, 2007" under Part l of Schedule A-26 (Spectra Energy and DCP Midstream
Payroll Accaunting) in its entirety, and substituting in fieu thereof the phrase “January 1, 2007—April 30, 2007".

6. Amendment to Modify Schedule A-29 {Spectra Erergy Corparate EHS Scientific Services Analytical Services). The Schedules to the
Transition Services Agreement are hereby amended by:

(i} deleting the Jast sentence of Section 3) set forth in Part | of Schedule A-29 {Spectra Energy Corporate EHS Scientific Services
Analytical Services) in its entirety, and substituting in lieu thereof the following: “Contract employee oversight will be provided by
Douglas Dodds, who transferred from Duke Energy to Spectra Energy effective 1/1/07.%;

{ii} defeting Section 4) set forth in Part t of Schedule A-29 {Spectra Energy Corporate EHS Scientific Services Analytical Services} in
its entirety, and substituting in fieu thereof the folfowing: “Pipeline Gas assay analysis and data entry into the Gas Analysis System will
be provided by a Contract emplovee under the direction of Douglas Dodds.”; and

(iii} defeting the folfowing senfence under Part il of Schedule A-29 (Spectra Energy Corporate EHS Scientific Services Analytical
Services) in its entirety: *Mr. Dodds will be billed at a manthly rate of $7550."

7. Amendment to Madify Schedule A-36 (DCP Midstream and Spectra £nergy IT Financial Systems). The Schedufes to the Transition Services
Agreement are hereby amended by (i) deleting the 10 box (titted "Treasury—TMAN (18)"} in the fable set forth in Part | of Schedule A-36
{DCP Midstream and Spectra Energy IT Financial Systems) in its entirety, and (i) subsiituting in fieu thereof the foliowing:

Spectra nep
Energy  Midstream
Duiration End Cost / Cost /
Service [Mo.} Bate ** Month Month

Corporate Applications—Mainframe Services {82) Continue to provide and support all 12 12/31/07 S0 5124,737
mainframe services for all DCP Midstream applications residing on the mainframe in
-~ Charlolte, NC. :

8.  Amendment to Modify Schedule A-37{DCP Midstream IT Infrastructure). The Schedules to the Transition Services Agreement are hereby
amended by (i) deleting the 8 box (titled “Server Gperations—SAN (DCP Midstream 115)") in the table set forth in Part | of Schedule A-37
{DCP Midstream IT Infrastructure) in its entirety, and (i) substituting in lieu thereof the following:

Duration End Cost /
Service {Mo.} Date Month
Server Operations—SAN {DCP Midstream 115): Continuation of services for SAN support as currently iz 1273107 $59,862
provided, including the shared EMS NASes {Charlotte and Denver) for alt DCP Midstream locations. untl
Requires 24x7 monitoring, proactive problem resolution, capacity planning, hardware and software 1/31/07.
maintenance. Continuation of services for all Storage related services. Then
Continuation of tape library maintenance services including back-up and restare operations, tape $17,993
retention, disaster recovery, etc. for all DCP Midstream locations. Notwithstanding the foregoing. until
starting 2/1/07, DCP Midstream will lease the server directly from EMC, and EMC wilt bifl DCP 12/31/07.

Midstream directly for goods and services provided under such fease.

9. Amendment to Modify Schedule A-41 (Spectra Energy Email Services). The Schedules o the Transition Services Agreement are hereby
amended by deleting the 2 box {titled “Litigation Archiving (191"} in the table set forth in Part | of Schedule A-41 (Spectra Energy Email
Services) in its entirety.

10. Amendment to Modify Schedule A-46 (Spectra Energy IT Telecommunications/Network). The Schedules to the Transition Services
Agreament are hereby amendad by deleting the 9 box (titled “Voice-Conferencing (198)"} in the table set forth in Part | of Schedule A-46
{Spectra Energy IT Telecommunications/Network] in its entirely (the Duke Energy Services identified in that @ box are duplicate of those
identified in the 8 box of that table).

11, Amendment to Add Schedule A-47 {Spectra Cnergy Chairman's Administrative Support). The Schedules to the Transition Services
Agreement are hereby amended by adding a new Schedule A-47 thereto in the form attached as Exhibit A to this Amendment,



2.

13.

14,

15.

Amendment to Mcdify Schedule A-48 (DCP Midstream 1T Services). The Schedules to the Transition Services Agreement are hiereby
amended by deleling the 6% box (titled “WEB Content Filtering (190}") in the table set forth in Part | of Schedule A-48 (DCP Midstream (T
Services}in ils entirety {the Duke Energy Services identified in that 6 box are duplicate of those identified in the 15" box of that table).

Amendment fo Modify Schedule B-13 {(Duke Energy—Telecom, Workstation, Server Services). The Schedufes ta the Transition Services
Agreement are hereby amended by deleting the 204 box (titled "Deskside support . (R-56}"} in the {able sat forth in Part | of Schedule B-13
(Duke Energy—Telecom, Workstation, Server Services) in its entirety.

Amendment to Add Schedule B-15 {IT Consuitation Services). The Schedules lo the Transition Services Agreement are hereby amended by
adding a new Schadule B-15 thereto in the form attached as Exhibit B to this Amendment.

Miscellaneous. Alf Sections under Section 15 of the Transition Services Agreement are hereby incorporated in ihis Amendment by this
reference, provided that any references in such Sections to the “Agreement” or simifar references shall be substituted for references to this
Amendment, Except as modified herein, the terms of the Transifion Services Agreement remain in full force and eflect, and all references
therein 1o the “Agreement” shalf be deemed to mean the Transition Servicas Agreement as amended by this Amendment. Execution of this
Amendment by facsimile ar other elecironic copy of a signature shali be deemed to be, and shall have the same effect as, execution by
origina! signature,

[Signature Page F=0||DWSl



Y

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties caused this First Amendment to Transition Services Agreement to be duly executed, all effective as of -

the Effective Date.

Duke Energy:
DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

By: /s/  Davip L. HAUSER

Name: David L. Hauser

Title: Group Executive and
Chief Financial Qfficer

Spectra Energy:
SPECTRA ENERGY Corp

By: /s/ WiLuam S. GARNER, JR.

Name: William S. Garner, Jr.

Title:  Group Executive, General Counsel and
Secretary

Pt



EXHIBIT A
SCHEDULE A-47
Service Name;  SPECTRA ENERGY CHAIRMAN'S ADMINISTRATIVE SUFPORT

. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Administrative Assistance—Duke Energy, via Phyllis Simpson, will provide administrative services to Spactra Energy’s Chairman.
Assistance will be provided to Paul Anderson, the Chairman of Spectra Energy, on an ad-hoc reasonable basis, provided that such
assistance shall not exceed 10% of Phyllis Simpson full-time monthly workioad at Duke Energy.

. SERVICES TERM
January 1, 2007—March 31, 2007

ifil. FEES
Administrative Fee:

§2,490/month, plus applicable expenses

iv. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

None. -
V. CONTACTS
Service Provider: Service Recipient:
Attn:  fulie Janson Attn:  Trish Rice
Phone: 13-287-3025 Phone: 713-6276112
Mobile: 513-3155417 Mobite: 713-870-3628
Facsimile: 513-287-3810 Facsimile: 713-627-4668

E-mail: Julie.janson@duke-energy.com E-mail: trice@dulke-energy.com

A


mailto:JuIie.janson@duke-energy.com

EXHIBIT B

SCHEDULE B-15

Service Name: 1T CONSULTATION SERVICES

. SCOPE OF SERVICES

A. IT APPS: Spectra Energy will make Glenn Dafly available to Duke Energy, during the term and at the fee provided befow, so that Mr. Dally
can conlinue to manage a keam of application developers who are doing work for Duke Energy and/or its subsidiaries. Mr. Dally transferred
fram Duke Energy to Spectra Energy effective 1/1/07.

B. IT OPS: Spectra Energy will make Andy Hui available to Duke Energy, during the term and at the fee provided befow, so that Mr. Hui can
continue to work on the Ouke Energy Helpdesk assisting employees of Duie Energy andsor its subsidiaries with issues relaled to migration
from Lotus Notes to MS Quttock and other IT support issues. Mr. Hui iransferred from Duke Energy to Spectra Energy effective 1/1,/07.

. SERVICES TERM

A T APPS: January 1, 2007—January 25, 2007.

B. T OPS: January 1, 2007—January 15, 2007,

. FEES

A, T APPS: S80.00/ hour, plus out-of-pocket expenses.

8. T OPS: $61.00/ hour, plus cut-of pocket expenses.

V. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Spectra Energy will provide Duke Energy with a statement of services provided, along with associated fees, at time of monthly hilling.

V. CONTACTS

Service Provider: Service Recipient:

Attn: Steve Craft Attn:  Stan Land

Phone: 713-627-4310 Phone: 7136274515

Mabile: 713-447-4310 Mobile: 713-204-7397
Facsimile: 713-627-4066 Facsimile: 7136274655

E-mail: sweraft@spectraenergy.com E-mail: scland@duke-energy.com



mailto:swcraft@spectraenergy.com
mailto:scland@duke-energy.com

Exhibit 10.5
Execution Copy

SECOND AMENDMENT
TO
TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Amendment’} is entered into as of March 30, 2007 fthe
“Effective Date"), by and between Duke Energy Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Dukie Energy}, and Spectra Energy Corp {f/k/a Gas Spin-
Ca, Ine.}, a Delaware corporation (“Spectra Energy”), each a "Party” and tagelher, the "Parties”.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into that certain Transition Services Agreement dated as of December 13, 2006, as amended by that
certain First Amendment to Transition Services Agreement dated as of Janua{y 1, 2007 (as so amanded, the “Transition Services Agreement™;
and '

WHEREAS, each Party has determined that it is in the best interests of its stockholders to amend the Transition Services Agresment as
described in this Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter set forth, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be iegally bound, agree,
effective as of ihe Effective Date, as follpws:

1. Definitions. All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings set forth [or otherwise
provided for) in the Transition Services Agreement.

2. Amendment fo Extend the Services Term for Certain Duke Energy Services Described in Schedule A1 (Spactra Energy Email Services).
The Schedules ta the Transition Services Agreement are hareby amended by deleting the number "3 and the phrase “3/31/07" in the 2n
box (titled "SameTime (IBM)—instant Messaging and Online Meetings (313) in the table set forth in Part | of Schedule A-41 {Spectra Energy
Email Services), and substituting in lieu thereof the number "4" and the phrase "4/30/07", respectively.

3. Amendment to Extend the Services Term for Certain Duke Energy Services Described in Schedule A-47 (Spectra Energy Chafrman's
Administrative Support). The Schedules ta the Transition Services Agreement are hereby amended by defeting the phrase “January 1, 2007
- March 31, 2007" under Part Il of Schedule A-47 (Spectra Energy Chairman’s Administrative Support), and substituting in lieu thereof the
phrase "Yanuary 1, 2007—June 30, 2007*,

4, Miscellaneows. Alt Sections under Section 15 of the Transition Services Agreement are hereby incorporated in this Amendment by this
reference, provided that any references in such Sections to the “Agreement” or similar references shall he substituted for references to this
Amendment, Except as modified herein, the terms of the Transition Services Agreement remain in full force and effect, and all references
therein to the “Agreement” shzll be deemed to mean the Transition Services Agreement as amended by this Amendment. Execution of this
Amendment by facsimile or other electronic copy of a signature shall be deemed to be, and shall have the same effect as, execution by
original signature.

[Signature Page Follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties caused this Second Amendment to Transition Services Agreement to be duly executed, all effec-

tive as of the Effective Date.

Duke Energy:
DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

By: /s/ Davib L. HAUSER

iame:David L. Hauser

Fitle: Group Executive and
Chief Financial Officer

Spectra Energy:
SPECTRA ENERGY CORP

By: /s/ WiLLaM S. GARNER, JR.

Name:William 8. Garner, Jr.

Titte: Group Executive, General Counsef and
Secretary




Exhihit 10.6

AMENDMENT TO
DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
1998 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
The Duke Energy Corporation 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan {the “Plan"} is amended, effective as of Febrvary 27, 2007, as folows:
1. The second sentence of Section 3.1 of the Plan is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:
“The shares of Common Stock to be delivered under the Plan will be made available from autharized but unissued shares of Common
Stock, treasury stock or shares of Common Stack acquired in the open market.”
This amendment has been signed by an authorized officer of Duke Energy Corporation as of the date specified above,

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

/s/ Christopher C. Rolfe

Christopher C. Ralfe
Group Executive and
Chief Administrative Officer




Exhibit 10.7

AMENDMENT TO
DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION
2006 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
The Duke Energy Corporation 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan {the “Plan} is amended, effective as of February 27, 2007, as follows:
1. The fourth sentence of Section 3.1 of the Plan is hereby amended In its entirety to read as fallows:
“The shares of Comman Stock to be delivered under the Plan will be made avaitable from authorized but unissued shares of Common
Stock, treasury stock or shares of Commaon Stock acquired in the open market.”
This amendment has been signed by an authorized officer of Duke Energy Corporation as of the date specified above.

DUKE ENERGY CORFORATION

/s/ Christopher C. Rolfe

Christopher C. Rolfe
Group Executive and
Chief Administrative Officer

“



EXHIBIT 31.1.

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TOD SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, James E. Rogers, certify that:

1)
2)

3)

4)

3}

i have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this raport does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based an my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financiat condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this repart;

The registrant's other certilying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and pracedures (as
defined in Exchanga Act Rules 13a-15{e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal ¢control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Acts Rules 13a
— 15(f) and 15d - 15(f)) for the registrant and have: i

a} Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure conkrols and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating o the registrant, including its consolidated subsidianes, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b} Designed such internal controt over financial reporting, or caused such internal control aver financial reperting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectivencss of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this repori any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report} that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially aifect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certitying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evalsation of internal controt over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committes of tha registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

al  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financtal reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employess who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 10, 2007

/s/ JAMES E. ROGERS

James E, Rogers
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David L. Hauser, certify that:

1)
2

3

4

5}

1 have reviewed this quarterly report an Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does riot contain any untrue statement of a materiai fact or omit fo state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in fight of the circumstances under which such statements ware made, not misleading with respect {o the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financiat information included in this report, fairly present in alt material
respects the financiat condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(2)} and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Acts Rules 13a
- 15{f) and 15d - 1541) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduras, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiarias, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed suchinternal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reperting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure contro's and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d} Disclesed in this report any change in the registrant’s internat control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has raterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer{s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, fo the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivelent
functions):

ar Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reparting which are
reasonably fikely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

B)  Any iraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financiaf reporting.

Date: May 10, 2007

/s/ DAVID L. HAUSER

David L. Hauser
Group Executive and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Duke Energy Corporation {“Duke Energy™ on Form 10:) for the pericd ending March 31, 2007
a5 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof {the "Report”), |, James E. Rogers, Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of Duke Energy, certify, pursuant to 18 1.5.C. section 1380, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that;

{1} The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13{a) or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(21 The irformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and resuts of operations of Duke
Energy,

/5/ Jwes E. Rogers

James E. Rogers
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Olficer
May 10, 2007
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Duke Energy Corporation (*Duke Energy™ on Form 1(H] for the pened ending March 31, 2007
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissian on the date hereof (the "Report”), I, David L. Hauser, Group Executive and Chief Financial
Officer of Duke Energy, certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

{1} The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13{a} or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2t The information contained in the Repart fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Duke
Energy,

/s/ Davp L. Hauser

David L. Hauser
Graup Executive and Chief Financizal Officer
May 10, 2007
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8—K

CURRENT REFPORT
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 c

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): May 29, 2007

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 00132853 20-2777218
(State or Other Jurisdiction (Commission (IRS Employer
of Incorporation) File Number) Identification No.)

526 South Church Street, Charlotte, North Carolina 28202
(Address of Principal Executive Offices, including Zip code)

(704) 594-6200
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simulianeously satisfy the filing obligation of the
. - vegistrant under any of the following provisions:
1 Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)
{3 Soliciting material pursnant to Rule 14a—12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a—12)
3 Pre—commencement communications pursuant to Rube 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act {17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))
[1 Pre—commencement communications pursuant to Rule §3e—4 ander the BEx R 240 c—4

Source: Duke Energy Holding , 8-K, Juna 01, 2007



Item 8,01. Other Events,

On Tuesday, May 29, 2007, Duke Energy Corporation (“Duke Energy™) ennounced that it had acquired the wind power
development business of Tierra Bnergy, a leading wind power development company located in Austin, Texas, from Energy Investors
‘- Punds. The acquisition included more than 1,000 megawatts of wind assets under development in the Western and Southwestern
United States. Three of the development projects — a total of approximately 240 megawatts — are located in Texas and Wyoming, and
are anticipated to be in commercial operation by the end of 2008. Duke Energy expects to spend approximately $400 million in
capital expenditures through 2008 to complete these three development projects. A copy of the press release is attached as exhibit

99.1 and s incorporated herein by reference.
ttem 9.01, Financial Statements and Exhibits,

(d)  Exhibits.

99.1 Press Release issued by Duke Energy
Corporation on May 29, 2007

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signad

on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized,

Date: June 1, 2007

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

By: /s/Steven K. Young
Name:  Steven K. Young
Title: Senior Vice President and Controller

Source: Duke Energy Holding , 8-K, June 01, 2007
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Exhibit 99.1
k Duke
Energy.
NEWS RELEASE

Duke Energy Corporation
P.Q. Box 1099
Charlette, NC 282011009

May 29, 26037 MEDIA CONTACT Mark Craft
Phone: 513/419-3943 or
704/382—-7364
24—Hour; 70413828333

ANALYST CONTACT Sean Trauschke
Phone: 9R0/3T3—T7905

Duke Energy Acquires Tierra Energy’s Wind Development Business

CHARLOTTE, N.C. — Duke Energy today announced that it has acquired the wind power development business of Tierra Energy, a
leading wind power development company located in Austin, Texas, from Energy Investors Funds for an undisclosed amount. The
purchase includes more than 1,000 megawatis of wind assets under development in the Western and Southwestern United States,

Three of the development projects — a total of approximately 240 megawatts — are located in Texas and Wyoming, and are anticipated
to be in commercial operation by the end of next year, with additional facilities potentially in operation as early as 2009. The power
produced will be sold through long—term contracts.

“As our nation's appetite for electricity continues to grow, rencwable energy will play a larger role in meeting that demand,” said
Duke Energy Chairman, President and CEQ, James E. Rogers. *“This acquisition supports our strategy to increase our investment in
renewable energy and national efforts to reduce carbon emissions.”

——more —

Source: Duke Energy Holding , 8-K, June 01, 2007
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The assels become part of Duke Energy Generation Services (DEGS), a Duke Encrgy subsidiary that focuses on investments in onsite
energy, cornmercial and renewable energy assets across North America.

-~ 8ix members of Tierra Energy’s sentor mmanagement team are joining DEGS, inchuding David Marks, formerly Tierra Energy

president. Marks becomes DEGS’ senior vice president, business development - wind energy.

“We're very exciled to be involved with this environmentatly friendly technology and that David and his team are joining us,” said
DEGS President, Wouter van Kempen. “We see wind power as a potential growth opportunity for DEGS, and we plan to spend
approximately $400 mitlion in capital expenditures throngh 2008 to complete the first three development projects, We wonld expect to
begin seeing eamings from these assets in 2009.”

Duke Energy currently has purchase agreements for wind generation in Indiana and recently installed solar panels at 10 Indiana
schools. The company also recently issued a request for proposal for renewable energy 1o help meet growing demand in the Carolinas.

DEGS develops, owns and operates eleciric generation for large energy consumers, municipalities, utilities and industrial facilities.
DEGS specializes in developing innovative and environmentally sound generation solutions using a variety of fuels, including natural
gas, coal, waste coal and wood, as well as wind and other renewable energy.

Duke Energy Corp., one of the largest electric power companies in the United States, supplies and delivers energy to approximately
3.9 million U.S. customers.

Source; Duke Energy Holding , 8~K, June 01, 2007
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The company has nearly 37,000 megawatts of electric generating capacity in the Midwest and the Carolinas, and natural gas
distribution services in Ohio and Kentucky. In addition, Duke Energy has more than 4,000 megawatts of electric generation in Latin
America, and is a joint—venture pariner in a U.S. real estate company.

nd Headquartered in Charlotte, N.C., Duke Energy is a Fortune 500 company traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
DUK. More information about the company is available on the Internet at: www duke—energy.com.

Forward-loeking statement

This release includes forward—looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securitics Act of 1933 and Section 21E of
the Securtties Exchange Act of 1934. Forward—locking statements are based on management’s beliefs and assumptions. These
forward—looking statements arc identified by terms and phrases such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “intend,” ‘estimate,” “expeet,”
“continue,” “should,” “could,” “may,” “plan,” “project,” “predict,” “will,” “potential,” “forecast,” and similar expressions.
Forward—looking statements involve risks and uncertainttes that may cause actual results to be materially different from the results
predicted. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in any forward— locking statement include,
but are not limited to: State, federal and foreign legislative and regulatory initiatives, including costs of compliance with existing and
future environmental requirements; costs and effects of legal and administrative proceedings, settlements, investigations and claims;
industrial, commercial and residential growth in Duke Energy Corporation's (Duke Energy) service territories; additional competition
in electric markets and continued industry conselidation; political and regulatory uncertainty in other couniries in which Duke Energy
conducts business; the influence of weather and other natural phenomena on Duke Energy

3
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operations, including the economic, operational and other effects of hurricanes and ice storms; the timing and extent of changes in
commodity prices, interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates; unscheduled generation outages, unusual maintenance or repairs
and electric {ransmission system constraints; the results of financing efforts, including Duke Energy’s ability to obtain financing on

. favorable terms, which can be affected by various factors, inciuding Duke Energy’s credit ratings and general economic conditions;

declines in the market prices of ¢quity securities and resultant cash funding requirements for Duke Energy’s defined benefit pension
plans; the level of credit worthiness of counterparties to Duke Energy’s transactions; employee workforce factors, including the
potential inability to attract and retain key personnel; growth in opportunities for Duke Energy’s business units, including the timing
and success of cfforts to develop damestic and international power and other projects; the performance of electric generation and of
projects undertaken by Duke Energy’s non—regulated businesses; the effect of accounting pronouncements issued periodically by
accounting standard—sefting bodies; the ability to successfully complete merger, acquisition or divestiture plans, including the prices
at which Duke Energy is able to sell assels; and regulatory or other limitations imposed as a result of a merger. In light of these risks,
uncertaintics and assumptions, the events described in the forward—looking statements might not occur or might occur to a different
extent or at a differcnt time than Duke Energy has described. Duke Energy undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward—looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 16-K

— FOR ANNUAL AND TRANSITION REPORTS
PURSLUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT CF 1934

{Mark Ong)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) Of THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 or

[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 1-1232

DUKE ENERGY DHIO, INC.
(Formerly the Cincinnati Gas & Eleciric Company)

Ohio 31-0240030
(State or other jurisdiction of {|.R.S. Employer ldenlification Np.)
incorporation or organization)
139 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
{Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

513-421-9500
{Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes O No
indicale by check mark if (he registrant is nol required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(a} of the Exchange Act. Yes [J No

Indicale by check mark whether the regisirant (1) has filed ali reperts reguired to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securilies Exchange Act of 1934
di-ing the preceding 12 months (or for such sharler period that the regisirant was required to file such reports) and (2} has been subject o such filing
ementis for the past 90 days. Yes () No O .

.,

-
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltern 405 of Regulation 5K is nol contained herein, and will not be contained, 1o the
best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part (i of this Form 10-K or any amendment to
this Form 10-K. [®

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large acceleraled filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-acceleraied filer {(as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Securilies Exchange Act of 1934).
Large accelerated fiter O Accelerated filer [0 MNon-accelerated filer [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company {as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Yes 0 No

The registrant meets the conditions set forth in General Instructions (1)(1){a} and (b) of Form 10-K and is therefore fiting this Form 10-K with the reduced
disclosure formal. Part Il Hems 4 and 6 and Part Ill Items 10, 11, 12 and 13 have been omitted in accorgance with Instruction K2){a) and (¢}

All of the registrants common slock s indirecity owned by Ouke Energy Corporation (File Mo. 1-32853}, which files reports and proxy mistenal pursuani
to the Securities Exchange Acl of 1934, as amended.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION . -

This document includes forward-looking statements within the mezaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section Z1E of the
Securilies Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements are based on management's beliefs and assumptions. These forward-looking slatemenis

are identified by lerms and phrases such as "anticipate,” “believe,” “intend,

"o

estimate,” “expecl,” “continue,” “should.” “could,” *may,” “plan,” "project,”

"predict,” "will," “potential," “forecast,” and similar expressions. Forward-looking stalements involve risks and uncertainlies that may cause actual resuils
1© be materially different from the resulls predicled. Factors that could cause aclual resulls to differ materially from those indicated in any forward-looking
stalement include, but are not limited to:

-

Slate and federal legisiative and regulatery initiatives, including costs of compliance wilh existing and future environmental
requirements,;

Costs and elfecls of legal and adminisiralive proceedings, selllements, investigations and claims;

Indusiriat, commercial and residentral growth in Duke Energy Ohig, Inc.’s (Duke Energy Ohio) service territories;
Additional competition in eleclric markets and continued industry consolidalion;

The influence of weather and olher natural phenomena on Duke Enerqy Qhio operations, including the ecenomic, operatianal and other

effecis of tornadoss, floods, storms and ice slorms;
The liming and extent of changes in commaodity prices and inlerest rates;

Unscheduled generation oulages, unusual maintenance or repairs and electric transmission system conslraints;

The results of financing efforts, including Duke Energy Chio's ability to obtain financing on favorable terms, which can be affected by
various factors, including Duke Energy Ohio's credit ralings and general economic conditions,

Declines in the markel prices of equily securities and resultant cash funding requirements of Duke Energy Ohio for Cinergy’s defined
benefit pension plans;

The levet of credit worthiness of counterparties to Duke Energy Ohio's lransaclions;

Employee workiorce faclors, including the polential inability o atlract and retain key personnel;

Growlh in opportunities for Duke Energy Ohio’s business units, including the liming and success of efforts lo develop domestic power and
other projects;
The performance of elecliic generation facililies;

The exient of success in connecting and expanding efectric markets; and
The effect of accounting pronouncements issued pertodically by accounting standard-selting bodies

in fight of these risks, uncertainlies and assumptions, the events described in the forward-looking statements might nat occur or might occur lo a
different extent or at a different lime than Duke Energy Ohio has described. Duke Energy Ohio undertakes no ohligation ic publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a resuit of new information, future events or otherwise.
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tem 1. Business

s _JERAL

- Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (Duke Energy Ohio, formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company}, an Ohio corporation organized in 1837, is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Cinergy Corp. (Cinergy). Duke Energy Ohio is a combination electric and gas public utility company that provides service in the
southwestern portion of Chio and through Duke Energy Kentucky, inc. (DBuke Energy Kentucky, formerly Union Light, Heat and Power Company) in
nearby areas of Kentucky. Duke Energy Ohilo's principal lines of business include generation, transmission and distnbution of eleclricity, the sale of
andfor lranspatlation of nafural gas, and energy markeling. Duke Energy Ohio's principat subsidiary is Duke Energy Kentucky, a Kentucky corporation
organized in 1901. Duke Energy Kentucky's principat lines of business include generation, ransmission and distribution of electricity and the sate of
andfor transportation of nalural gas in northern Kentucky. References herein to Duke Energy Ohio includes Duke Energy Ohio and subsidiaries.

In May 2005, Duke Energy Corporation (Buke Energy} and Cinergy announced they had entered into a definilive merger agreement. Closing of the
transaction oceurred in the second quarter of 2006. The merger combined the Duke Energy and Cinergy regulated franchises as well as deregulated
generation in lhe Midwestern United Stales.

In conjunclion with the merger with Duke Energy. effective with the second quarter ended June 30, 2006, Duke Energy Ohio adopted new business
segments thal management believes aligns the various eperations of the merged companies with how the chief operating decision maker views the
business. Duke Energy Ohio operates the following business segmenls: Franchised Electric and Gas and Commercial Power. Duke Energy Chio's chief
operating decision maker regularly reviews financial information about each of these business segments in deciding how to allocate resources and
evaluate performance. Each of these busingss units is considered to be a separale feportable segment under SFAS No. 131, " Discloswres about
Segments of an Enlerprise and Related Informalion " {See Nole 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Business Segments,” for additional
information, including financial information about each business unit.)

Franchised Electric and Gas consists of Duke Energy Ohig’s regulated electric and gas transmission and distribution systems including its
regutated electric generation in Kentucky. Franchised Electric and Gas plans, constructs, operates and maintains {uke Energy Chio’s fransmission and
dislribulion systems, which generate, transmit and disiribule electric energy 1o consumers, Franchised Eleckric and Gas also sells and transports natural
gas. These electric and gas operations are subject to the rules and regulations of the Federal Energy Regu'atory Commission (FERCY), the Public
Utitities Commission of Ohio (PUCO), and the Kenlucky Public Service Commission (KPSC).

Commercial Power primarily consists of Duke Energy Ohio's non-reguialed generation in Ohio and ceriain merchant generation assels discussed in
MNote 3, “Transfer of Certain Duke Energy Generating Assets ko Duke Energy Ohio,” and the energy marketing and risk management aclivities
associated with those assets. -

The remainder of Duka Energy Ohio’s operalions are presented as "Other.” While it is nol considered a business segment, "Cther” for Duke Energy
Ohio includes certain aliccated governance costs.

Duke Energy Ovio is an Ohio corparation. {ts principal execulive offices are localed at 138 Eas) Fourth Sireel, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202. The
lelaphone number is 513-421-9500. Duke Energy Ohic electronically fites reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Farm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendmenis {o such reports. The public may read and copy any
materials that Duke Energy Ohio files with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NLE., Washinglon, D.C. 20549. The public may

vinformaltion on the operation of the Public Reference Roem by calting the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC alse maintains an inlernet site that
\_ s reporls, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at hlip»/aww.sec.gov .
Aﬁﬁ"honally information about Cuke Energy Ghio, including its reports filed with the SEC, is available through Duke Energy’s web site at
hitp:Avww. duke-energy.com . Such reports are accessible at no charge through Duke Energy’s web site and are made available as soon as reasonably
practicable after such material 15 filed with or furnished to the SEC.

FRANCHISED ELECTRIC AND GAS
Service Area and Customers

Franchised Electric and Gas generates, transmits, distribules and sells electricity. Franchised Electric and Gas also transports and selis natural
gas. Iis service area covers about 3,000 square mites with an estimated populalion of 2.t million in southern Ohio, and northern Kentucky, Franchised
Electric and Gas supplies electric service to approximalely 800,000 residential, commercial and industrial customers over 19,421 miles of distribution
lines and a 2.320-mile iransmission system in Ohio and Kenlucky. Franchised Electric and Gas
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provides regulated lransmission and distribulion services for natural gas to approximately 500,000 customers via approximately 8,900 mites of gas
mains {gas dislribution lines that serve as a common sauwrce of supply for more than one service line) and service lines.

COMMERCIAL POWER
Service Area and Customers

Commercial Power owns, operates and manages non-regulated merchant power plants and engages in the wholesale marketing and procurement
of electric power, fuel and emission allowances related to these plants as well as other contractual positions. Commercial Power's generalion asset fleet
consists of Duke Energy Ohio's non-regulated generation in Ohio and lhe five Midwestern gas-fired merchant generation assets that were transferred
from Duke Energy. Commercial Power's assels are comprised of approximately 7,600 net megawatts of power generation primarily lacaled in the
Midwestern United Slates. The asset penifolio has a diversified fuel mix with base-load and mid-mesil coal-fired units as well as combined cycle and
peaking nalural gas-fired units. Most of the generation asset culput in Ohio has been confracted through the Rate Stabilization Plan (RSP). See ltem 2.
“Praperlies” for further discussion of the generaling facllities.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Duke Energy Onio is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations wilh regard to air and waler quality, hazardous and solid waste

disposat and other environmental matlers. Environmental laws and regulalions affecting Duke Energy Ohio include, but are not limited to:

. The Clean Air Acl, as well as slate laws and regulations impacting air emissions, including State implementation Plans related to existing
and new nalional ambient air quality standards for ozone and particulate matter. Owners and/or operators of air emission sources are
respensible for oblainina permits and for annual compliance and revorting.

. The Clean Water Acl which requires permits for facililies that discharge wastewalers inlo the environment,

. The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensalion and Liability Act, which can require any individual or entity that currenily
owns or in the past may have owned or operated a disposal site. as well as transporters or generators of hazardous substances sent to a
disposal site. to share in remediation cosls,

. The Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by ihe Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, which requires certain solid wasles,
including hazardous wastes, to be managed pursvant lo a comprehensive regulatory rengime.
. The National Environmanial Policy Act, which requires federal agencies to consider potential environmental impacts in their decisions,

including siting approvals. X L . . X .
(For mare information on environmental mattars involving Duke Energy Ohio, including possible liability and capital costs, see Notes 5 and 17 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements, “Reguiatory Matters,” and "Cammiiments and Centingencies," respectively.)

Except to the exten] discussed in Nole 5 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Regulatory Matters,” and Note 17 to the Consolidated Sinancial
Statements, “Commitments and Contingencies,” compliance with federal, state and [ocal provisions regulating the discharge of materials inlo the
environment, or otherwise protecling the environmenl, is incorporated into the routing cost structure of our various business units and is not expected to
have a material adverse effect on the competilive posilion, consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position of Duke Energy Ohio.

item 1A. Risk Factors.
The risk tactors discussed herein reiate specifically io risks associated with Duke Energy Ohio.

Duke Energy Ohio's franchised electric revenues, earnings and results are depepdent on state legislation and regulation that affect
electric generation, transmission, distribution and rejated activities, which may limit Duke Energy Ohio's abifity to recover costs.

Duke Energy Chio's franchised electric businesses are regulaled on a cost-of-servicefrate-ef-relurn basis subject to the slatutes and regulatory
commission rules and procedures of Ohio and Kenlucky. If Duke Energy Ohio's franchised electric eamings exceed the returns eslablished by the stale
requialory commissions, Duke Energy Ohio's relail electric rates may be subject o review by the commissions and possible reduction, which may
decrease Duke Energy Ohio's fulure earnings. Additionaliy, if regulatory bodies do not allow recovery of costs incurred in providing service on a timely
basig, Duke Energy Ohin's future eamings could be nagatively impacled.
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Duke Energy Ohio is subject lo regulation by FERC and by federal, state and tozal authorities under environmental laws and by state public utifity
Tissions under laws regulating Duke Energy Ohia’s businesses. Regulation affects almost every aspect of Duke Energy Ohio's businesses,

s, _ding, amang other things, Duke Energy Chia's ability t0: teke fundamental business management actions; determine the terms and rates of Duke
Energy QOhio's fransmission and distriibution businesses' services; as well as its regulated generation business; make acquisitions; issue debt secuuilies;
engage in transactions between Duke Energy Ohio’s utilities and other subsidiaries and affiliates; and pay dividends. Changes to these regulations are
ongoing, and Duke Energy Ohio cannol predict the fulure course of changes in this regulatory environment or the ultimate effect that this changing
regulalory environment will have on Duke Enargy Ohio’s business. However, changes in regulation (including re-regulating previously deregulated
markels) can cause delays in or affect business planning and transactions and can substantiaily increase Duke Energy Ohio's costs.

Dereguiation or restructuring in the electric industry may result in increased competition and unrecovered costs that could adversely
affect Duke Energy Ohig’s financial condition, resuits of operations or cash flows and its utilities’ businesses.

Increased competition resuiting from deregulation or resfructuring efforts, including from the Energy Policy Act of 2005, could have a significani
adverse financial impact on Duke Energy Ohio and consequenlly on its resulls of operations, financial position, or cash flows. Increased competition
could alse result in increased pressure lo lower costs, including the cost of eleciricity. Retail competition and the unbundling of regulated energy and gas
sesvice could have a significant adverse financial impact on Duke Energy Ohio due 1o an impairment of assets, a loss of retait customers, lower profit
marging or increased costs of capital, Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict the extent and 1iming of entry by additional competitors into the electric markets.
Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict when it will be subject to changes in legislalion or regutation, nor can it predict the impact of these changes on ils
financial position, resulls of operations or cash flows. b

Duke Energy Ohio may be unable to secure long-term power purchase agreements or transmission agreements, which could expose
Duke Energy Qhia’s sales to increased valatility.

In the future, Duke Energy Ohio may nol be able to secure long-term power purchase agreemenis for its unregulated power generation facilities. If
Duke Energy Ohio is unable to secure these types of agreements, its sales volumes would be exposed to increased volatility. Without the benefit of long-
term power purchase agreements, Duke Energy Ohio cannot assure that it will be able to operate profilably. The inability to secure these agreements
could materially adversely affect Duke Energy Ohio's resuits-and business.

Competition in the unregulated markets in which Duke Energy Ohio operates may adversely affect the growth and profitability of its
business.

Duke Energy Chio may nol be able to respond in a timely or effective manner to the many changes designed to mcrease competition in the
etectricity industry. To the exlent competitive pressures increase, ihe economics of Duke Energy Ohio’s business may come under [ong-term pressure.

In addition, requlatory changes have been proposed to increase access to eleciricity transmission grids by ufility and non-utility purchasers and
selers of electricity. These changes could continue the disaggregation of many vertically-integrated uiilities into separale generation, transmission,
distribution and retail businesses. As a result, a significant number of additional competiters could become active in the whotesale power generation
segment of Duke Energy Ohig's industry.

) Duke Energy Ohio may also face compef(ition from new competitors that have greater financial resources than Duke Energy Ohio does, seeking
s e oppertunities lo acquire or develop energy assets or energy trading operations both in the United States and abroad. These new compelitors
md? include sophisticated financial instilutions, some of which are already entering Ihe energy trading and marketing sector, and international energy

players, which may enler regulated or unregulaled energy businesses. This competition may adversely affect Duke Energy Ohio’s ability to make
investments or acquisilions.

Duke Energy Ohio operates under the RSP Markel Based Standard Service Offer (MBSSO0), which pravides price certainty for generation in Ghio
through Oecember 31, 2008. Duke Energy Ohio has flled for a regulalory extension of the RSP through 2010, Resolution of this regulatory extension of
the RSP could have a materially adverse effect on Buke Energy Ohio's financial position, resulfs of operafions or cash flows.
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Duke Energy Chio must meet credit quality standards, If Duke Energy Ohlo or its rated subsidiary is upable to maintain an investment
grade credit rating, it would be requiired under credit agreements to provide coffateral in the form of letters of credit or cash, which may
materially adversely affact its liquidity. Duke Energy Ohio cannot be sure that it will maintain investment grade credit ratings.

Each of Duke Energy Ohio's or its rated subsidiary’s senior unsecured long-term debt is rated investment grade by various raling agencies. Duke
Energy Ohio cannol be sure lhat its senior unsecured long-term debt will conlinue to be rated invesiment grade.

If the rating agencies were to rate Duke Energy Ohio or ils rated subsidiary below investment grade, Duke Energy Ohio's borrowing costs would
increase, perhaps significantly. In addition, Dike Energy Ohio would likely be required to pay a higher interest rate in future financings, and its polential
pool of investors and funding sources would likely decrease. Any downgrade or olher event negatively affecting the credit ratings of Duke Ensrgy Ohio
or its rated subsidiary could also increase Cinergy’s nead to provide liquidity in the form of capifal contributions or loans to such subsidiaries, thus
reducing the liquidity and borrowing availability of the consolidated group.

A downgrade betow investment grade could also trigger lermination clauses in seme interest rate and foreign exchange derivalive agreements,
which would require cash payments. All of these events would likely reduce Duke Energy Ohio's liquidily and profitability and could have a maleriat
advarse effect on its financial posilion, results of operations or cash flows,

Duke Energy Chio relies on access to short-term money markets and longer-term capital markets to finance fts capital requirements and
support its liquidity needs, and Duke Energy Ohio’s access to those markels can be adversely affected by a number of conditions, many of
which are beyond its controi.

Duke Energy Ohio's business is financed to a large degree through debt and the malurity and repayment prefile of debl used 1o finance
investments often does not correlate 1o cash flows from its assets. Accordingly, Duke Energy Ohio relies on access lo both shorl-term money markets
ant longer-lerm capital markets as a source of liquidity tor capital requirements not satisfied by the cash flow Trom its operations and lo fund investments
originally financed through debt instruments with disparate malturities. if Duke Energy Ohic is not able 1o access capital at competilive rates, its ability to
finance ils operations and implemenl ils slralegy could be adversely affected.

Markel disruptions may increase Duke Energy Chio's cost of borrowing or adversely affect its ability to access one or more financial markets. Such
disruptions couid include: economic downtums; the bankruplcy of an uivelated energy company: capital markel condilions generally, markel prices for
electricity and gas; terrorist attacks or threatened allacks on Duke Energy Ohio's facilities or unrelated energy companies; or the overall health of the
energy indusiry. Restrictions on Duke Energy Ohio's ability lo access financlal markets may also affect its ability to execute its business plan as
scheduled. An inability to access capital may limit Duke Energy Ohio’s ability to pursue improvements or acguisitions that it may otherwise rely on for
fulure growth.

Puke Fnergy Ohio's parent, Cinergy, maintains revelving credit facitilies 1o provide back-up for commercial paper programs andfor letters of credit
at various entilies. These facililies typically include financial covenants which fimit the amount of debt! that can be outstanding as a percenlage of the
tolal capital for the specific entity. Failure to maintain these covenants al a parlicular entity could preclude that entity from issuing commercial paper or
letters of credit or borrowing under the revolving credil facility and could require other of Duke Energy Ohic’s affiliates to immediately pay down any
oulstanding drawn amounis under other revolving credit agreemenls.

Puke Encrgy Ohio is exposed to credit risk of counterparties with whom it does business.

Adverse econemic conditions affecting, or financial difficulties of, counterparties with whom Duke Energy Ohio does business could impair the
ability of these counterparties to pay for Duke Energy Ohic’s services or fulfill their contractual obligations, or cause them to delay such payments or
ohligations. Duke Energy Ohio depends on these counterparties to remil payments on a limely basis. Any delay or default in payment could adversely
affect Duke Energy Ohia's cash flows, financial position or resuits of operations.

Poor investment performance of Cinergy's pension plan holdings and other faciors impacting pension plan cosis could unfavorably
impact Duke Energy Ohio's liquidity and resuits of operations.

Duke Energy Ohio pariicipates in cerlain employee benefit plans sponsored by its parent, Cinergy. Duke Energy Ohio is allocated costs and
obligations refated to these plans. Cinergy’s cosis of providing non-contributory defined benefit pension plans are dependent upon a numhber of factors,
such as the rales of relurn on plan assels, discount rales, 1he level of inlerest rates used lo measure the required minimum funding levels of the plans,
fulure government regulalion and required or voluntary conliibutions made to the plans. While Cinergy complies with the minimum funding reguirements
as of September 30, 2008, Cineray's qualified pension plans had obligations which exceeded the value of plan assets by approximately $674 million.
Wilhout sustained growth in the pensicon investments over
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fime to increase the value of plan assets and depending upon the other Tactors impacling Cinergy's costs as listed above, Duke Energy Ohic could be
uired 1o fund its parent's plans with significant amounis of cash, Such cash funding obfigations could have a material impact on Duke Energy Ohio's
1ilows, financial position o results of operations.

Duke Energy Ohio Is subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations that require significant capital expenditures, can mr:rease
its cost of operations, and which may impact or limit its business plans, or expose it to environmental liabilities.

Duke Energy Ohio is subject 1o numerous environmenial laws and reguiations affecting many aspects of its present and future operations. including
air emissions {such as reducing NO, , S0, and mercury emissions or potential future control of greenhouse-gas emissions), water quality, wastewater
discharges, solid waste and hazardous waste. These laws and regulations can result in increased capital, operating, and other costs. These laws and
regulations generally require Duke Energy Ohio 10 obtain and comply with a wide variely of environmental licenses, pemmnits, inspections and other
approvals. Compliance with environmental laws and regulations can require significant expenditures, including expenditures for clean up costs and
damages arising cul of contaminaled properiies, and failure to comply with environmental regulations may result in the imposition of fines, penalties and
injunctive measures affecling operating assets. The steps Duke Energy Ohio takes to ensure that its facifities are in compliznce could he prohibitively
expensive. As a result, Duke Energy Ohio may be required 1o shut down or alter the operation of its fadililies, which may cause it to incur losses. Fusther,
Duke Energy Ohio's regulatory rate structure and its contracts with customers may nol necessarily aliow it to recover capital costs Duke Energy Ohio
inGurs to comply with new environmental regutalions. Also, Duke Energy Ohio may not be able to obtain or maintain from time to time ali required
environmental regulatory approvals for its operating assets or development projects. If there is a delay in obtaining any required environmental
regulalory approvals, if Duke Energy Ohio fails 1o oblain and comply with them or Jf[ environmental taws or regulations change and become more
stringent, then the cperation of Duke Energy Ohio’s facilities or the development of new facilities could be prevented, deleyed or become subject to
additicnal costs. Although it is nol expected that the costs of complying with current environmental requlations wilt have a material adverse effect on
Duke Energy Chio’s cash flows, financial position or results of operations, no assurance can be made that the cosls of complying with environmental
regutations in the tuture will nol have such an effect.

There is growing consensus that some form of regulation will be forthcoming at the federal tevel with respect 1o greenhouse gas emissions,
incluging carbon dioxide {CO» ), and such regulation could result in the creation of substantial compliance costs.

In addilion, Duke Energy Ohio is generaily responsible for on-site liabilities, and in some cases off-site liabilities, associated with the environmenlal
condilion of Duke Energy Ohio’s power generalion facilities and nalural gas assels which it has acquired or developed, regardless of when the liabilities
arpse and whether they are known or unknown . In connection with some acquisitions and sales of assets, Duke Energy Ohio may obtain, or be required
lo provide, indemnification against some environmental liabilities. If Duke &nergy Ohio incurs a malerial iability, or the other party to a transaction failg 1o
meet its indemnification obligations 1o Duke Energy Ohio, Duke Energy Ohio coutd suffer material losses.

Duke Energy Ohio is involved in numerous legal proceedings, the outcomes of which are uncertain, and resolution adverse to Duke
Energy Ohfo could negatively affect jts cash flows, financfal condition or results of operations.,
Duke Energy Ohio is subjecl lo numerous legal proceedings. Litigation is subjecl to many uncertainties and Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict the
oulcome of individual matters wilh assurance. It is reasonably possible that the final resolution of some of the matters in which Duke Energy Ohio is
- ~ived gould require it to rake additional expenditures, in excess of established reserves, over an extended period of lime and in a range of amounts
, sould have a malerial effect onils cash flows and resulls of aperations. Similarly, it is reasonably possible that the terms of resolulion could require
Nk Energy Ohio to change its business practices and procedures, which could also have a malerial effect on its cash flows, financial position or
results of operations.

Duke Energy Ohio's results of operations may be negatively affected by sustained downturns or sluggishness in the economy, including
low levels in the market prices of commaodities, all of which are beyond Duke Energy Ohio's control.

Sustained downlurns or sluggishness in the economy generally affect the markets in which Duke Energy Ohio operates and negatively influence its
aperalions. Declines in demand for electricily as a result of economic downturns in Duke Energy Chia’s franchised electric service territaries will reduce
overall electricity sales and lessen Duke Energy Ohio's cash flows, especially as its industrial customers reduce production and, therefore, consumption
of electricily and gas. Although Duke Energy Ohio's franchised electic business is subject 1o regulated allowable rates of return and recovery of fuel
costs under a fuel adjustment ctause, overall declines in electricity sold as a result of economic downturn ¢r recession could reduce revenues and cash
flows, thus diminishing results of operations.
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Duke Energy Ohic also sells electricity into the spot market or other competitive power markels on a contractual basis. With respect 1o such
fransaclions, revenues and results of operalions are likely to depend, in large part, upon prevailing market prices in Duke Energy Ohio's regional
markets and other competifive markets. These market prices may flucluate substantially over relatively short periods of fime and could reduce Duke
Energy Chio's revenues and margins and therehy diminish its resuits of operations.

Lower demand for Lhe electricity Duke Energy Ohio sells and lower prices for eleciricity resull from multiple faciors that aflect the markels where it
sclls electricity including:

. weather condittons, including abnormally mild winter or summer weather that cause lower anergy usage for heating or cooling purposes,

. supply of and demand for energy commodities;

. Miguid markets including reductions in trading volumes which resuit in lower revenues and sarnings;

. general economic conditions, including downtums in the U.S. or other economies which impact energy consumption particutarly in which
sales lo industrial or large commercia! customers comprise a sianificant portion of total sales;

. transmission or {ransporialion constraints or inefiiciencies which impact Duke Energy Ohio's merchant enargy operations;

. availability of compelitively priced alternalive energy sources, which are preferred by some cuslomers over eleciricily producad from coal,
or gas plants, and of energy-efficient equipment which reduces energy demand;

. natural gas prices;

. ability to procure salisfactory levels of fuel supplies and inventory, such as coal and natural gas;

. eteclric generation capacity surpluses which cause Duke Energy Ohid's merchant energy plants to generate and sell less electricity at
lower prices and may cavse some plants le become non-ecancomical to operata,

. capacity and transmission service into, or out of, Duke Energy Ohio’s markets;

. natural disasters, acts of terrofism, wars, embargoes and other catasirophic events 1o the extent they affect Duke Energy Ohio's operations
and markets, as well as the cost and availability of insurance covering such risks; and

. federal, and state energy and environmental regulation and legislation. -

Duke Energy Chio's operating results may fluctuate on a seasonal and quarterly basis,

Fieclric power generation is generally a seasonal business. In most parts of the United States and in markets in which Duke Energy Ohio operales,
demand for power peaks during Lthe hot summer months, with market prices also peaking at that time. In olher areas, demand for power peaks during
the winter. Further, extreme weather conditions such as heal waves or winler storms could cause (hese seasonal fluctuations to be more pronounced.
As a result, in the future, the overall operating resufts of Duke Energy Ohio’s businesses may fluctuale substantially on a seasonal and quarierly basis
and thus make period comparison less relevant. :

Certain events in the energy markets beyond Duke Energy Ohio’s control could result in new laws or regulations which could have a
negative impact on Duke Energy Ohia’s financial position, cash flows or resufts of operations.

There is growing consensus that scme form of regulation will be ferthcoming al the federal level with respect to greenhouse gas emissions
(including CQ;). Additionaily, accounting standard selters are evaluating the accounting and reporting for emission allowances. Resolution of these
matters could lead to substantial changes in laws and regulations affecting Duke Energy Ohio, including new accounting standards thal could change
the way Duke Energy Ohio is required e record revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. These types of regulations could have a negative impact on
Duke Energy Ohio's financial position, cash flows or results of operations or access to capital.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None

PRI
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“em 2. Properties.
[
“__<ANCHISED ELECTRIC AND GAS )
As of December 31, 20086, Franchised Eleckic and Gas operaled two coal-fired stations with a cembined net capacity of 577 megawatts (MW) and
one cormbustion urbing (CT) station with a net capacity of 500 MW. Franchised Electric and Gas also owns three underground storage caverns with a -
tota! starage capacity of approximaiely 23 million gallons of liquid propane. The stations and cavems are located in Uhic and Kentucky.

COMMERCIAL POWER

As of December 31, 2006, Commercial Power jointly owns six ¢oal-fired stafions with a combined net capacity of 3,607, of which Duke Energy Ohio
operates three. Commercial Power also owns and operates five CT stations with a combined net capacity of 1,580 MW and three combined cyele {(CC)
stalions with 3 combined nel capacity of 2,480 MW. The stalions are localed in Ohio, lineis, Indiana and Pennsylvania.

item 3. Legal Proceedings. '

For information regarding legal proceedings, including regulalory and environmental matlers, see Note § to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
"Regulatory Matters" and Note 17 to \he Consolidaled Financizl Statements, “Commitments and Contingencies—Litigation” and "Commitments and
Canlingencies—Environmental.”
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Hem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Cinergy owns all of the common stock of Duke Enargy Ohio. o Apfil 2008, Duke Eneigy acquired 100 percent of Cinergy's outslanding stock by
issuing 1.56 shares of Duke Energy commaon stock in exchange for each outstanding share of Cinergy common stock. This conversion resulted in the
issvance of approximately 313 million shares of Duke Energy common stock. Duke Energy Ohio anlicipates making periodic dividends to provide
funding support for Duke Energy’s dividend. During the three months ended March 31, 2006 and the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, Duke
Energy Ohio paid dividends to its parent, Cinergy, of $102 miliion, $250 million and $236 million, respectively. Duke Energy is a public registrant trading
on lhe New York Slock Exchange under DUK.
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ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
‘__, RODUCTION

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Management's Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consaolidaled Financial Statements and Notes for the
year ended December 31, 2006. Duke Energy Ohio has reclassified certain prior-year amounts in its Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to
current presentation {see Note 1 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” for further details).

CINERGY MERGER WITH DUKE ENERGY

On April 3, 2008, in accordance with their previously announced merger agreement, Duke Energy Corporation (Otd Duke Energy) and Ginergy
merged into wholly owned subsidiaries of Duke Energy Holding Corp. (Duke Energy HC), resulting in Duke Energy HC becoming the parent entity. [n
connection with the closing of the merger transactions, Duke Energy HC changed tis name to Duke Energy Corporation (New Duke Energy or Duke
Energy} and Old Duke Energy converted into a limited liabiiity company named Duke Power Company LLC {subsequenily renamed Duke Energy
Carolinas, LLC). As a result of the merger transactions, each ouistanding share of Cinergy commaon stock was converted into 1.56 shares of Duke
Energy common stock which resulted in the issuance of approximately 313 million shares of Duke Energy commaon stock. Both Old Duke Energy and
New Duke Energy are referred to as Duke Energy herein. Duke Energy is a public registrant trading on the New York Stock Exchange under DUK.

The merger has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting with Duke Energy treated as the acquirer for accounting purposes.
As a resull, the assets and liabilities of Cinergy were recorded at their respeciive fair values as of April 3, 2006. Except for an adjustment related to
pension and other postretirement benefit obligations, as mandated by Statement of Financiat Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 87, © Employers’
Accounting for Pensions ™ and SFAS No. 108, * Employers' Accounting for Poslretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions " the accompanying
consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjusiments refated to Duke Energy Ohio's regulated operations that are accounted for pursuant o
SFAS No. 71, * Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation " (SFAS No. 71), which are comprised of Duke Energy Ohio's regulated
fransmission and distribution, and Duke Energy Kentucky. Under the rate setling and recovery provisions currently in place for these regulated
operalions which provide revenues derived from cost, the fair values of the individual tangible and intangible assets and liabitities are considered to
approXimate their carrying values.

Based on the market price of Duke Energy common stock during the period, induding the two trading days before through the two trading days
after May 9, 2005, the dale Duke Energy and Cinergy announced (he merger, the transaction was valued at approximately $9.1 billion and resulted in
goodwill 1o Duke Energy Ghio of approximately $2.3 billion. The amount of goodwill results from significant strategic and financial benefits expected to
be reatized by Duke Energy inciuding:

- increased financiat strength and Nexibility;

stronger ulility business platform;
. greater scale and fuel diversily, as well as improved operational efficiencies for the merchant generation business;

‘ . broadened electric distribution platform;
R improved reliability and customer service through the sharing of best praciices;
. increased scale and scope of the electric and gas businesses with stand-alone strength;
. complementary positions in the Midwestern United States (Midwest);
- greater cusiomer diversity:
- combined expertise; and
. significant cost savings synergies.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Summary of Significanl Accounting Policies,” purchase accounting impacts,
including goodwilt recognition, have been “pushed down” to Duke Energy Ohio, resulling in the assets and liabilities of Duke Energy Ohio being recorded
at their respective fair values as of April 3, 2006,

Cue to the impact of push-down accounting, the financial statements and certain note presentations separate Duke Energy Ohio’s presentations
into two dislinct periods, the period befare the consummation of the merger (labeled “Predecessor™) and the period after that date (labeled “Successor’},
to indicate the applicalion of different bases of accounting between the periods presented.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The resulls of operations and variance discussion for Duke £nergy Ohio is presented in a reduced disclosure format in accordance with Generat
tnstruclion (1){2)(a} of Form 10-K.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Qperations and Varlances
Sumimary of Results for the nine months ended December 31, 2006 (in millions)

Nine Months Ended December 31,

Succes Predeces Increase
sor‘” o sor'"

Ope:almg reven‘:
Operating expenses
{Losses) gains on'sale

‘of other assets dnd other, pet - .-

Operaling income

Olher mcom : aﬂd expenses, net
lnteresl expense

Income tax Expense Tiom-continuing eperations: :
(Loss) income from d:sconilnued operatuons net of tax
Cumu!ative &fta hatige In accoummg principle; net of: la o

Net income $ 55 3 213 5 {158)

-

(1) See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” for additional information on Predecessor and
Successor reporting.

Net Income
The 74 percen! decrease in Duke Energy Ohio’s Net income for the nine months ended December 31, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005
was primarily due to the following factors:

Operaling Revenues
Increased Operating Revenues were primarily due (o the following factors:

. An increase in the electric retail distribution base rates implemented in January 20086;
. The revenues generated by the five Midwest generating plants contributed in the second quarter of 2006 as part of the
merger;

Increased retait operating revenues from the RSP Market Based Standard Service Offer (MBSSC), primarily due to its implementation for
residential customers in Ohio beginning in January 2006; and
. Mark-1o-market (MTM) 9ains on generalicn power hedges in 2006 compared lo losses in 2005.

These increases were partially offset by temporary rate reductions due o regulalory approvals as a result of the Duke Energy merger wilh Cinargy
and milder weather.

Operating Expenses
Increased Operating Expenses were primarily due lo lhe following faclors:
. Purchase accounting deprecialion and amortization primarily relaled to fuel, emission allowances and properly, plant and equipment
resulting from the Duke Energy merger with Cinergy recorded for the nine menths ended December 31, 20086;

. Operaling expenses related to the five Midwest generating planlts conlributed in the second quarter of 2006;
Higher fuet cosls due to higher average coal prices per ton;

. MTM losses on generalion coal fuel hedges in 2006 compared to immaterial gains in 2005; and

. Costs incurred as a result of lhe Duke Energy merger wilh Cinergy, including integration costs.

12
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{l nsses) Gains on Sales of Other Assets and Other, net
i The change in {Losses) Gains on Sales of Other Assets and Other, net is due to the decrease in emission allowance szles aclivity due to tess
s . _dy commaodily valatifity in power and coal market prices. The decrease is also due to the impacis of purchase accounting resuiting in emission
allgwances being recorded at lheir eslimated lair valves as of April 3, 2006. Prior to the impacts of purchase accounting, emission allowances had a

lower carrying value, based on historical costs, resulting in farger gains on sales.

Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations

The decrease in Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations was primarily due to a decrease in Income from Continuing Operations Before
income Taxes. The decrease is partially offsat by an increase in Duke Energy Ohio's effective tax rate as compared 1o priof year due lo & June 2005
change in Ohio Tax Law Yo eliminate the Ohio Income Tax on corporations and a drop in Investment tax credit (ITC)} amortization due fo purchase
accounting adjusiments that eliminaled lhe non-regulated portion of ITC.

{Loss) Income from Discontinued Operations, net of lax

The (Loss) Income from Discontinued Operations, net of tax, for 2006 and 2005 is primarily related 1o the markeling and trading operations, which
were classified as disconlinued operations in conneclion with Cinergy’s Jung 2006 announcement lo sell its commercial marketing and trading
businesses, including certain of Duke Energy Ohio's trading contracts, to Fortis Bank 5.AJN.V. (Fortis), a Benelux-based financiat services group. The
lower resulls from {Loss) income from Discantinued Operations, net of tax was primarily due lo lower. and Tess profitable, trading activity during 2006 as
compared lo 2005. :

Summary of Results for the three months ended March 31 (in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31,

Predecessor)
20035 Increase

Operating revenues - e ¥ -1
Operating expenses ) .
Gainis on sales of olher assels and other, ngt -~ .
Operating income ]

Other income 'and expenses, net -

Interest expense . . o R
Income tax expense from continuing operatioris -, LT
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, netof tax
Nelincome - . S Se

) *ee Nole 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” for additional information on Predecessor
“__-eporting.

Net Income :
The 36 percent increase in Duke Energy Ohio's Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared 10 the same period in 2005 was
primarily due to ihe following factors:

Operating Revenues
Increased operaling revenues were primanly due to the foliowing factors:

- An increase in relail operating revenues from the MBSS50, primarily due to its implementation for residential customers in Ohio beginning in
January 20086;

. Increased revenues from non-residential customers related 1o the iming of callection of fuel. purchased power, and emission allowance
cosls;
MTM gains on generalion power hedges;

- An increase in the average price received per megawali hour (MWh), primarily due 1o the return of certain retail customers 1o full electric
service; and
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. Anincrease in retail distribution base rates implemented in January 2006,
Partially offselting these increases was a decrease due to milder weather in the first quarler of 2006, as compared to 2005.

Qperaling Expenses
Increased operaling expenses were primarily due o the following factors:

. MTM fosses on generalion coal fuel hedges; and
. An increase In operation, maintenance, and other expenses, including significant merger relaled costs in he first quarter of
2006.

Income Tax Expense from Conlinuing Operations

The increase in Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations was primarily due to an increase in income from Continuing Operations Before
Income Taxes slightty offset by a decrease in the effective {ax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2006 as compared to the prior year due 1o a
June 2005 change in Ohio Tax Law to eliminate the Ohio Income tax on corporations.

{Loss) Income from Discondinued Operations, nel of fax

The {Loss) Income from Discontinued Operalions, net of tax, for 2006 and 2005 is primarily related o the marketing and trading operations, which
were ciassified as discontinued operations in cennection with Cinergy's June 2008 announcement to sefl its commercial marketing and trading
businesses, including cenain of Duke Energy Ohio’s trading confracts, 1o Fortis. The tower results from {Loss) Income from Discontinued Operations, net
of tax was primarily due to lower, and tess prafitable trading activity during 2006 as compared to 2005.

Matters impacting Fulure Duke Energy Ohio Results

Duke Energy Ohio's current strategy is focused on maximizing the returns and cash flows from its current portfalio. Results for Duke Energy Ohio
are sensitive to changes in power supply, power demand. fuel prices, and weather. Future rasults for Duke Energy Ohio are subject to volatility due 1o
ihe over or under-collection of fuel costs since Duke Energy Ohio's RSP MBSSO is not subject 1o regulatory accounting pursvant to SFAS No. 71. In
addition, the outcome of the remand hearing by the Ohio Supreme Court in regard 10 the RSP with the PUCO {see Note 5 1o the Consolidaied Financial
Stalemenls, ‘Regulatory Matters”) could aifect the current tariff structure of the RSP. Duke Energy Ohia's fulure results will also be favorably impacted
by the reduced impact of purchase accounting. -

Other Matters
Duke Energy Chio's fixed charges coverage ratio, as calculated using Securities and Exchange Commission guldelines, was 1.9 for the nine
monihs ended December 31, 2006, 6.2 times for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 4.6 times for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Risk and Accounting Policies

Duke Energy Chic is exposed to market risks associated with commodity prices, credit exposure and interest rates. Managemenl has established
comprehensive risk management policies to monitor and manage these market risks. The Treasurer of Duke Energy, the tllimate parent entity of
Cinergy, is responsible for the overall governance of managing credil risk and commuodity price risk, including monitoring exposure limits, for Duke
Energy Ohio, a wholly owned subsidiary of Cinergy.

Commodity Price Risk

Duke Energy Ohio is exposed to the impact of markel fluctualions in the prices of electricity, coal, natural gas and other energy-related products
marketed and purchased as a result of its ownership of its non-regulated generation portfolic. Price risk represents the potential risk of loss from adverse
changes in the market price of eleclricity ar other energy commaoditias, such as gas and coal. Duke Energy Ohio employs established policies and
procedures to manage its risks associaled with these markel fluclualions using various commaodity derivatives, such as swaps, futures, forwards and
aptions. {See Nole 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” and Note 9 1o the Consolidated Financial
Stalements, "Risk Management and Hedging Activilies, Credit Risk, and Financial Instruments.™}

14

RICERSRE

CIGEERTI T e e e e Tared



Table of Contents
PART It

Validation of a contract's fair value is performed by an internal group independent of Duke Energy Ohio's deal origination areas. While Duke Energy
uses common induslry practices to develop its valuation techniques, changes in its pricing methodologies or the underlying assumptions could

‘\ it in significantly different fair values and income recognition.

!

Generation Portiolio Risks. Duke Energy Ohio is primarity expoased to market price fluctuations of wholesale power, coal, natural gas and emission
allowance prices associaled with its non-regufated generation portfolio. Duke Energy Ohio closely monitors the risks associated with these commodity
price changes on its fulure generalion operalions and, where appropriate, uses various commedily instruments such as ¢leciricity, coal and natural gas
forward contracts 10 mitigate the effect of such flucluations on gperaticns, in addifion 1o optimizing the value of its non-regulated generation portfolio. The
porfolio includes generalion assels (power and capacity), fuel, and emission allowances. Modeled forecasts of future generation output, fuel
requirements, and emission allowance requirements are based on forward power, fuel and emission allowance markets. The component pieces of the
portfolio are bought and sold based on this model in order to manage the economic value of the portfolio, where such market transparency exists. The
generation portfolio not ulilized 1o serve native load or commitled load is subjec! to commodity price fluciuations. Based on a sensitivity analysis as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, it was estimated 1hat a ten percent price change per mega-watt hour in wholesale power prices would have a
corresponding effect on Duke Energy Ohio's pre-1ax income of approximately $10 million s 2007 and §1 million in 2006, respeclively. Based on a
sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2008, it was eslimated that a ten percent price change per MMBtu in natural gas prices would have a
corresponding effect on Duke Energy Chio's pre-1ax income of approximately $15 million in 2007. The increased exposure to both power and natural
gas prices was driven by the 2006 acquisition of merchant generalion assets from Duke Energy. (See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
“Transfer of Certain Duke Energy Generating Assets to Duke Energy Ohio.”)

Normal Purchases and Normal Sales. Duke Energy Chio enters into other contracls on a limiled basis thal qualify for the normal purchases and
sales exceplion described in paragraph 10 of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Dersivalive Instruments and Hedging Aclivities,” Derivalive Implementation
Group Issue C15, "Scope Exceplicns: Normal Purchases and Narmal Sales Exceplion for Option-Type Contracts and Forward Contracts in Efectricity,”
and amended by SFAS No. 149, * Amendmeni to Stalement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Aclivities” [SFAS No. 149). For contracts
qualifying for the scope exception, no recognilion of the contract's fair value in the Consolidated Financial Statements is required untit setttement of the
contract which generally coincides with the physical delivery of the commadity being beught or soid.

Trading Coniracts. Prior 1o the sale of 1S commercial marketing and trading business, as discussed below, the risk in the trading portfolio was
measured and monilored on a daily basis utilizing a Value-al-Risk {VaR} model te determine the polential one-day lavorable or unfavorable VaR
calcuration, Duke Energy Ohio's VaR amounis for commadity irading derivalives are not materiat as a result of the 2008 sate of Cinergy's commerciai
marketing and lrading business, including certain of Duke Energy Ohio's trading coniracls, to Fortis, which was finalized in the fourih quarter of 2006,
Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the loss that Duke Energy Chio would incur if a counterparly fails to perform under its contraciuat obligations. To reduce
credit exposure, Duke Energy Ohio seeks o enter into neiting agreements with counterparties that permit it to offset receivables and payables with such
counderparties. Duke Energy Ohio atlempts to further reduce credit risk with certain counterparties by eniering into agreements that enable it fo obtain
colfateral or to terminate or resel he terms of ransaclions after specified time pericds or upon the occurrence of credit-related events. Duke Energy
Ohio may, al times, use credit derivatives or other structures and techniques o provide for third-party credit enhancement of its counterparties’

ations.

. Where exposed 1o credit risk, Duke Energy Ohio analyzes the counterparties' financial condition prior io entering into an agreement, eslablishes
credit limits and monitors the appropriateness of those limits on an ongoing basis.

The following table represents Duke Energy Ohio’s distribution of unsecured credit exposures at December 31, 2006. These credit exposures are
aggregated by ullimate parent company, include on and off balance sheet exposures, are presented net of collateral, and take into account contractual
netling rights.

Distribulion of Enlerprise Credil Exposures
As of December 31, 2006

% of Totai

Investment Graile-—Externaliy Rated T BB,
Non-tnvestment Grade—Extemally Rated L 3
Invesiment Grade:—~Intetnally Rated - . . I A TR T eg
Non-tnvesiment Grade—Iniernally Raled o ) o 16
Tolal -0 - 7 ' . - B T 100%

15

"



Table of Contents

PART Il

"Externally Rated” represents enterprise relationships that have published ratings from al least one major credil raling agency. “Internally Rated”
represents those relalionships which have no rating by a major credit rating agency. For those relationships, Duke Energy Obio ulilizes appropriate risk.
rating methedologies and credit scoring models te develop an internal risk rating which is intended to map to an externat raling equivalent.

Duke Energy Ohio had no net exposure to any one customer that represented grealer than 10% of the gross fair value of trade accounls receivable
and unrealized gains on mark-ta-market and hedging transactions at December 31, 2006. Based on Duke Energy Ohio’s policies for managing credit
risk, ils exposures and ils credit and other reserves, Duke Energy Ohio does not anticipate a materially adverse effect on its consolidated financial
position or resulls of operations as a result of non-performance by any counterparly.

During 2006, Cinergy and Duke Energy Ohio sold the commercial markeling and trading business 1o Fortis, which eliminaled Duke Energy Ohio's
credit, coltateral, market and legal risk associated with these lrading postlions.

Ouke Energy Ohio's industry has historically operated under negoliated cradit ines for physical delivery contracts. Duke Energy Ohio frequently
uses master collateral agreements to mitigate certain credit exposures. The collaleral agreements provide for a counterparty to post cash or letters of
credit 1o the exposed party for exposure in excess of an established threshold, The threshold amount represents an unsecured credit limit, determined in
accordance wilh the carporate credit policy. Collateral agreements also provide that the inability to post collateral is sufficient cause to terminate
contracis and liquidate alf positions.

Duke Energy Ohio also obtains cash or lelters of credit from customers lo provide credit support outside of collateral agreements, whare
appropriate, based on its financial analysis of the customer and the regulatory or contractual terms and conditions applicable to each transaction.

Collateral amounts held or posted may be fixed or may vary depending on the terms of the collaleral agreement and the nalure of the underying
exposure and cover normal purchases and normal sales, hedging contracts, and oplimization contracts outstanding. Duke Energy Ohio may be required
10 return cerlain held coliateral and post addilional collateral should price movemenis adversely impact the value of open contracts or positions. In many
cases, Duke Energy Qhio's and its counterparties’ publicly disclosed credit ralings impact the amounts of additional collateral to be posted. If Duke
Energy Ohia or its affiliales have a credil rating downgrade, it could result in reductions in Duke Energy Ohio’s unsecured thresholds granted by
counterpartias . Likewise, downgrades in credil catings of counterpadties could require counterparties to post additional collateral to Duke Enecgy Ohio
and its affiliates.

Interest Rate Risk

Duke Energy Ohia is exposed to risk resulling from changes in inlerest rates as a result of its issuance of variable and fixed rate debt. Duke Energy
Ohio manages its interest rate exposure by limiling its variable-rate exposures to percentages of total capitailization and by monitoring the effects of
market changes in inlerest rates. Duke Energy Ohio manages its exposure 1o fluctuation in interest rates primarily through entering into interest rate
swaps. {See Notes 1, 9, and 15 lo the Consoclidated Financial Statements, "Summary of Significani Accounting Policies,” "Risk Management and
Hedging Aclivities, Credit Risk, and Financial Instruments,” and “Debt and Credit Facilities.”)

Based on a sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2006, it was esfimatad that if markel interest rates average 1% higher {lower) in 2007 than in
2006, interest expense, nel of offsetling impacts in inlerest income, would increase (decrease) by approximately §7 million, Comparatively, based ona
sengilivity analysis as of December 31, 2005, had interest rates averaged 1% higher (lower} in 2008 than in 20085, it was astimaled that inlerest expanse,
nel of effsetting impacts in interest income, would have increased (decreased) by approximately $6 million. Thase amounts were eslimated by
considering the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on variable-rate securities outstanding, adjusted for interest rate hedges, short-term
investments, cash and cash equivalents outstending as of December 31, 2006. If interest rates changed significantly, management would likely 1ake
actiens to manage its exposure to the change, However, due fo the uncenainty of the specific actions that would be taken and their possible effects, the
sensitivily analysis assumes no changes in Duke Energy Ohio's financial structure.
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ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
REPCORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Direclors and Stockholders of Duke Energy Corporation:

We have audiled the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Duke Energy Chio, Inc. and subsidiaries (the *Company”) as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated slatemenis of operations, common stockholder's eguity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the i
nine-month peried ended December 31, 20086, the three-month perod ended March 31, 2006 2nd the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. Our 5
audils also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at item 15. These financial statemenis and financial stalement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an oginion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule
based an gur audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require thal we plan and perfarm the audit lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiat statements are free of malerial misstatement. The
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporling. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
Ihe purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemenls, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financiat statemant presentation. We
believe thal our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our epinion, such consolidaled financial stalements present fairly, in all matenal respecls, the financiat position of Duke Energy Ohip, Inc. and
subsidiaries at December 31, 2008 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the periods stated, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our apinion, such financial statement-schedule, when considered in relation to the
hasic consolidated financial stalements taken as a who'e, presents fairly in all matenal respects the information sef forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consoligated financial statements, on April 3, 2008, Cinergy Corp., parent company of Duke Eneargy Ohio, Inc., was
acquired by Duke Energy Corporation in a transaction accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The purchase accounting impacts of the
acquisilion have been “pushed down™ to the post-acquisition financial statements of the Company. Consequently, the pre-acquisition financial
statements of the Company {labeted "Predecessor™) are not generally comparable to the financial statements subsequent to the merger (iabeled
"Successor).

" 'DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

“..__acinnati, OH
March 30, 2007
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Operating Reveniies: -
Non-regulated elecmc natural
‘Regulatedglectric: RS
Reg&ted nalural qas

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in millions)

Predecessor

Successor
Nine Months Three Months
Ended Ended

Twelve Months Twelve Months

Ended Ended

Operatmq Expenses
- Natural gas purchased.-
_ Operalion, maintenance arjd‘o_lh

“and purchased power..
Costs of fue| resold
-Depreciaticii 2nd amorization”
Property and olher taxes

-~ Total ogerating é%penses

{Losses} Gains on Sales of Olher

Assets and Other. net
Operating ncomé>

Other Income and Expensesr.r net

Intere$t Expense

income from Conhnumg

Onerations Before Income Taxes
Income Tax: Expense from
Contlnutnq Opgrations. -

income from Conlinuing

{Loss):tome from. Dlsconﬂnued i

-Operations. ng(_uf .

Income Before Cumulatlve Effecl

of Chapae in Aecounting
Cumulative Effect of Change In

Accgun! pd.Princinle, net of tax. -~ -

Net Income_
Dmdends and Piemiums on .

‘Redemition of Preferred dnd’

Earnings Available for Cornmon

55 3 116

See Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
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\J DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
{kn millions})

Successor Predecessor
December 31 December 31,
20086 2005

Assets hekd tor sale
Unrealized gains on mark: lo-miarket 3hd Hedging fransactions:
Other

_ Total currént assets - R
Inv3§tments and Other Assets . o
Restricted filnds held Intrst 7270 20 Ty
Goodwill
Intangitle assets,. ., . R : o E
Unrealized gains on rnark lo market and hedqmq lransacllons L
Assets held for sale C S : Sty

Requlatorv Assets and Defe
Deforred debt eXpense " | ;
Regqulatory assets related 10 mcome taxes .

Total renulatorv assets and deferred deblls i
*al’ASsets - : R i T o

AN See Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements
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DUKE ENERGY OHIQ, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets—{Conlinued)
{in millions, except per share amount)

Successor

Pecemher 31,

2005

Predecessor
December 31,

2005

LIARILITIES AND COMMON STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY.
Cirent Liabilities )
Arcodrnits pavable . o
Neles payable and commercral paper

Taxés accrugd™- R R
inferest accrued

Liabilities associaled with assets held) for gale.-
Current maiurifies of long-tern debi
Unrealized Josses, oh mark-to-market and hedging trarisactions
Clber

2 Total current Habilities -

Long-term Debt

Deferred Gredits and Other Liabilities - =7~ 0o oo -0 0 e 0 sy s T )
Deferred income taxes
nvestiment tax credit' Lo
Accrued pension and olher ;mstrehremenl ben r
Regulatory fiabilities = : e
Unrealized logses on mark-to- marke[ and hedgmq \fansacfmns
Liabiiitiés associated withiassets held forsale .7 777 7 e
Assel rehrement U'Dhqahons
Other: = w0 e -

Tﬂlal de(erred credzls and other Ilabmi!es 77 7

Commitments and Contingancies - G TR T
Cumudative Preferred Stock Not SugL_ct 10 Mandatory Rademptlon .

Common Stofkholder's Equity. .+
Comemon slock, $8.50 par value, 120 000 000 shares authonzed an
at December 31, 2006 and December 31 2005 N o o o
Additional Paid-in capltai T et b W e T
Retained eamings . o
Accumulaled ather comprehensive loss. -

9 663 086 sha res cutstandmg

Total common stockhalder's equity

Total Lighilities and Commaon Stackholder's Equity.

Sea Notes lo Consolidated Financial Statements
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CASH FLOWS: FROM
“ OPERATING' ACTW}TIES
Netincome

Adjuslmenls to.feconicile et "
" ificome to nigl cash provided -

. Depreciation and

© % Ligsses {gains) on sales of

Bhuity Investmernits and
Deferred income taxes
. and investment tax
" . Reguiatory assetfiability -
Cumulative effect of
changes in accounting

", Contiibution to company -
- sponsored pension plan

Accrued pension and

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, ING.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions)

Successor

Predecessor

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2006

Nine Months Ended
December 31,_2006

Twelve Months Ended

Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004

Nel proceeds from the sales
of equity investments and

other assets. and sales of
Notes from affiliate, net
i thdrawal of restricted funds

. postretirement benefit 30
(Increase) decrease in: -
Net realized and
unrealized mark-to-
market and hedaing (6}
" Receivables S 132
Inyentory A4y o
Other current assels. - R -+ M S
 Increase (decrease) in: N
- Atcounts payable SN € )| IR A
Taxes accrued 54
.Other current liabilities™ RIS (%)) ER
Regulatory asset/liability (7} o {1
- other assats - RREEIRES B2 K T R
. o Other liabililies (50) ]
N Net.cash provided by . N
e e BEE
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES , . o
"‘Capital expendstures - {391 C-135) : M YL{298)
Purchases of emission (167) (162) o ) _(433) (180}
Sales of emission alfowances 138 s R e L e T £

Net cash used in _
&5

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Issvarce of longderm debt
Redemplion of long-term
‘Redempnon of preferred .
stock of subsidiaties
 Noles payable and
- Dividénds paid

Q_th er

Net cash prowded by .

Net |ncrease {decrease) in

cash and cash
: Cash and ca"h)equwalenls ]

L at. begmnmg of periog-

Cash and cash equwalenis

—__atend of periad

Supplemental Disclosures

e gificant non-cash

$ 43 5 ] & 557 7 103 7 4
Cash paid for interesi, nel of - B - - ' o " N 7
amount capitalized 0 03| % .98 $
ash'paid for incorme taxes Y & B I 204
Purchase accounting lZead
Allowance for funds used
during construclion
{2) (1) {n (1)

{AFUDCY—equity



See Noles to Consolidated Financial Statemenls
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DUKE ENERGY:OHIO, INC.
Consolidated Staterments of Common Stockholder's Equity
L and Comprehensive income
- {n millions)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Minimum
Additional Retained Net Gains {Losses) SFAS No. 158
Common Paid-in on Cash Flow Pension Liability Pension
Stock Capital Earnings Hedges ; Adjustment Total ;
successor . - ‘ SR A '
Nineg Momhs Ended ]
Balarice at Apii} 1,2006 . | §. - 7627 § 447 z
Net income —

- ‘Other comprehensive -1 =7
" income, net of tax effect Lo :
Cash flow hedges =
O Total compréhensive 2 U0

Transfer of generating
assets from Duke — 1,462
Conlrlbutlon from parent e e
‘companyfor - R
Pension Adjustment—

FAS 158 trapsition - —_ ol =
Balance at Decembér 31, - T2, . § -0 55
Predecessor
Balanhce at January 1, 2004 . $-. 762 - %
Net income . —

Other oomprehenswe . )
" income, net of tax effect
Cash flow hedges —
Minimum pension - - - @ 20
Toltal comprehensive ‘
- Commen stock dividends ~ i T
Preferred dividends -
Coritribirtion from’ parent SR
comipany from . i . L. e
nce at December 31, $ 762
~ et incoing . - R —
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax effect
Cashflowhedges - =
Minimum pension —
Total compreherisive
Common stock dividends —
" Preferred dividends : S
Contribution from parent
company for reaflocation o
Balance at December 31, -$ 162
Net income -
Olhercomprehenswe L
. income, net of tax affect :
Cash flow hedges —
. Minimum pension } — . i T SRS LR .
Total comprehensive _ o . L . LA
~Common stock dividends - — ) — ey L A T TR s e Rl LA
Balance at March 31, 2006 $ 62 % 603 % 6711 % {13} 3 {32) $ —_ $1.001%

— {39) — — 1,423

@

e

{a) Includes $39 (net of lax benelit of $24} relaled lo deferred losses on terminated cash fiow hedges included in Accumuiated Other Comprebensive
Loss.
{b) Difference in equity balances at March 31, 2008 and Apsit 1, 2006 is due to the application of push-down accounting reflecting Duke Energy’s
merger with Cineray (see Notes 1 and 2 to the Consolidated Financial Siatements).
See Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
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DUKE ENERGY OHIOQ, INC.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

1. Summmary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations and Basis of Consolidation, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (Duke Energy Uhio, formerlty The Cincinnali Gas & Electric
Company), an Ohio corporation organized in 1837, is a whoily owned subsidiary of Cinergy Corp. (Cinergy). Duke Enaergy Ohio is a combination slectric
and gas public ulility company that provides service in the southwestern portion of Ohio and through Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (Duke Energy
Kenlucky, formerly Union Light, Heat and Power Company) in nearby areas of Kenlucky. Duke Energy Ohio's principal lines of business include
generation, iransmission ang distribution of electrdcity, the sale of andfor fransportalion of natural gas, and enargy marketing. Duke Energy Ohin's
principal subsidiary is Duke Energy Kentucky, a Kenlucky corporation organized in 1904. Duke Energy Kentucky's principal lines of business include
generalion, fransmission and distribution of electricity as well as the sale of andfor fransporiation of natural gas. References herein 1o Duke Energy Ohio
includes Duke Energy Ohio and its subsidiaries. In October 2008, Cinergy and Duke Energy Ohio completed the sale of Duke Energy Ohic's trading
contracts to Fortis Bank S.AJ/N.V, (Forlis), a Benelux-based financial services group. See Note 13 for additienal information.

On April 3, 2006, in accordzance with their previously announced merger agreement, Duke Energy Corporation (Old Duke Energy) and Cinergy
merged inlo wholly owned subsidiaries of Duke Energy Holding Corp, (Duke Energy HC}, resulting in Duke Energy HC becoming the parent entity. In
conneclion with the closing of the merger transactions, Duke Energy HC changed iis name to Duke Energy Corporation (New Duke Energy or Duke
Energy) and Old Duke Energy converted inta a limited [ability company named Duke Power Company LLC (subsequenlly renamed Duke Energy
Carolinas, LLC). As a result of the merger lransactions, each oulstanding share of Cinergy common stock was converted into 1.56 shares of Duke
Energy common slock which resulied in the issuance of approximately 313 milion shares of Duke Energy common stock. See Note 2 for additional
intorrnation regarding the merger. Both Old Duke Energy and New Duke Energy are referred 1o as Duke Energy herein. Duke Energy is a public
registrant trading on the New York Stock Exchange under DUK.

As a result of Duke Energy’s merger with Cinergy, Duke Energy Ohio entered into a lax sharing agreement with Duke Energy, where the separate
returny methoed is used o allocate tax expense or benefits to the subsidiaries whose invesiments or results of operations provide these tax expense or
henefits. The accounting for income taxes essentially represents the income taxes thal Duke Engrgy Chio would incur if Duke Energy Ohio were &
separale company filing its own tax return. The current tax sharing agreemenlt Duke Energy Ohio has with Duke Energy is substantially the same as the
lax sharing agreement betweaen Duke Energy Ohio and Cinergy prior to the merger,

These Consolidated Financial Stalements include, after eliminating intercompany transactions and balances, the accounts of Duke Energy Ohio
and all majority-owned subsidiaries where Duke Energy Chio has control.

Predecessor and Successor Reperting. In conneclion wilh the Duke Energy merger, Duke Energy acquired all of the outslanding common stock
of Cinergy. The merger has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounling with Duke Energy treated as the acquirer for accounting
purpoges. As a resull, the assets and liabililies of Cinergy were recorded at their respective fair valtes as of the merger consummation date. Purchase
accounting impacls, including goodwill recognilion, have been "pushed down™ o Duke Energy Chio, resuiting in the asseis and liabilities of Duke Energy
Ohip being recorded at thelr respective fair values as of April 3, 2006 {see Note 2. Except for an adjustment related to pension and olher postretirement
benefit obligations, as mandated by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 87, " Employers’ Accounting for Pension 8,” and SFAS
No. 106, © Employers' Accounting for Postretirernent Benefits Qther Than Pensions " \he accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect
any adjustments related 1o Duke Energy Ohio’s regulated operalions that are accounted for pursuant to SFAS No. 71, ¥ Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation™ (SFAS No. 71), which are comprised of Duke Energy Chio's regulated transmission and distribution and Duke Energy
Kentucky. Under the rate selling and recovery provisions currently in place for these regulated operations which provide revenues derived from cost, the
fair values of the individual tangible and intangible assels and liabililies are considared to approximate their carrying velues.

Cuke Energy Ohio's Consolidated Statements of Operations subsequenl to the merger include amerlizalion expense relaling lo purchase
accounting adjustments and depreciation of fixed assets based upon their fair value. Therefore, the Duke Energy Ohio financial daia prior o the merger
will not generally be comparable to its financial data subsequent 10 the merger. See MNote 2 for additiona! information.

Due to the impacl of push-down accounling, the financial statements and cerlain note presentalions separate Duke Energy Ohio's presentations
into two distinct periods, the period before the consummation of he merger {labeled "Predecessor”) and the peried afler that dalte {labeled “Successor™),
to indicate the application of different bases of accounting between the periods presented.
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DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued}

.- The portion of the goodwill resulting from Duke Energy's merger with Cinergy and the related purchase price pushed down fo Duke Energy Ohia is
based on allocations of goadwill which are subslantialiy complete and are based upon estimales of Duke Energy Ohio's fair value relative to the fair
vatue of other enlilies acquired. See Note 2 for additional informaltion.

Use of Estimates. To conform to generally accepted accaunting principtes (GAAPY} in the United States, management makes estimates and
assumplions that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes. Although these estimates are based on
management's best available knowledge at the time, actual results could differ.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Alf hlghly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date ©f purchase are considered
cash equivalents.

Restricted Funds Held in Trust. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, Duke Energy Ohio had approximately $30 million and $58 milfion, respectively,
of restricted cash related primarily to proceeds from debt issuances that are held in trust, primaiily for the purpose of funding future enwmnmental
expenditures. This amount is reflected in Reslricted funds held in trust on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Inventory. Inventory consists primarily of materials and supplies and natural gas held in storage for Iransmission and sales commitments; and coal
held for electric generation, Invertory is recorced al the lower of cost or market value, using the averags cost method.

Components of Inventory

Successor'”? Predecessor"
December 31, December 31,
___.2006 | — 2008

fin miflions})

lnventory

Gas stored lor currenl use
Fuet for: use in eléctric production
Other materials and supplies

Tota!l Inveéntory

(1) See "Predecessor and Successor Reporting™ in Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Cost-Based Regulation. Duke Energy Ohio uses the same accounting policies and practices for financial reporting purposes as non-regulaled
companies under GAAP. However, somelimes actions by its regulators, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and the stale utility
commissions, result in accounting treatment different from that used by non-regulated companies. ¥When this occurs Duke Energy Ohio applies the
provisions of Slalement of Financial Accounting Standard {SFAS) No. 71, "Accountfing for the Effect of Certain Types of Regufation” [ SFAS No. 71 ).
The economic effects of regutaticn can result in a regutated company recording assets for costs thal have been or are expected to be approved for

wery from customers or recording Yiabilities for amounts that are expected to be returned to cuslomers in the rate-setting process in a period different

... the period in which the amounts would be recorded by an unregulated enterprise. Accordingly, Duke Energy Chio records assets and liabilities that
result from the regulated ratemaking process thal would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated entiies. Managernent continually assesses
whether regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by considering factors such as applicable regutatory changes, recent rate orders applicable to
other reguiated enlities and the status of any pending or potential deregulation tegisialion. Based on lhis continual assessment, management betieves
the exsting regulalory assets are probable of recovery. These regulatory assets and liabilities are primarily classified in the Consolidated Balance
Sheetls as Regulatory Assels and Deferred Debits, and Deferred Credits and Uther Liabilities. Duke Energy Ohio periodically evaluates the applicability
of SFAS No. 71, and considers factors such as regutatory changes andg the impact of competition. if cost-based regulalion ends or competition
increasas, Duke Energy Ohio may have lo reduce its asset balances to reflect a market basis less than cost and wrile-off their associated regulatory
assets and liabilities, (For further information see Note 5.)

The state of Ohio passed compiehensive eleclric deregulation legislation in 1999, and in 2000, the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCO)
approved a stipulation agreement relaling to Duke Energy Ohio’s transition plan creating a Regutatory Transition Charge (RTC) designed o recover
Duke Energy Ohio's generation-related regulatory assets and transition costs over a ten-year pericd beginning January 1, 2001. Accordingly, application
of 5FAS Na. 71 was discontinued for the generation portion of Duke Energy Ohio’s business, Duke Energy Ohio has a RTC balance of approximately
$331 millcon and $414 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
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which is classified in Other Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debils on the Consolidaled Balance Sheets. The RTC sesulted from comprehensive
deregulation legisiation passed in the state of Chia in 1989 and has been approved by the PUCGO to be recovered over a ten-year period beginning
Janvary 1, 2001.

Duke Energy Chio operates under the Rale Stabilization Plan (RSP) Market Based Slandard Service Offer (MBSS0) which was approved by the
PUCQ in November 2004, and which provides price certainty through December 31, 2008. In March 20085, the Office of the Ohio Consumers’ Counsel
(OCC) appealed the PUCQO's approval of the MBSSO and in November 2008, the Ohio Supreme Court remanded the PUCO’s order approving the
MBSSO for further evidentiary support and explanation, and to require Duke Energy Ohio to disclose certain confidential commercial agreements
hetween an affiliate of Duke Energy Ohio and certain Duke Energy Ohio custormers which had been previousty requasted by the QCC. A hearing on
remand occurred in March 2007, and a decision is expected by the third quarter 2007. A major fealure of the MBSSO is the Provider of Last Resort
{POLR} Charge. Duke Energy Chio has been colfecting a POLR charge frern non-residential customers since January 1, 2005, and from residential
cuslomers since January 1, 2006. The POLR charge consists of the fcliowing discrete charges:

Annually Ad]usle{i Componant—intended to provida cosl recovery primarily for environmental compliance expenditures, This component is
avoidable {or hy-passable) for the first 25% of residential load and 50% of non-residential load to switch to an alternative efectric service

provider.

. Infrastructure Maintenance Fund Charge—intended to compensate Duke Energy Ohio for commitling its physical capacity. This charge is
unavoidable {or non-by-passabie).

. System Reliability Tracker—inlended to provide actual cost recovery for capacily purchases, purchased power, reserve capacity, and

related market costs for purchases to meet capacily needs. This charge is non-by-passable for residential 1oad and by-passabie for non-
residential load under certain circumstances.

. Rate Stabilization Charge—iniended to compensale Duke Energy Ohio for maintaining a fixed price through 2008. This charge is by-
passable by the first 20% of residential load and 50% of nan-residential load lo switch.
. Generation Prices and Fuel Recovery—A markel price has been established for generation service. A component of the market price is a

fuel cost recovery mechanism that is adjusted quarterly for fuel, emission allowances, and certain purchased power ¢osis, that exceed the
amount originally included in the rates frozen in the Duke Energy Ohio transition plan. These new prices were applied to non-residential
customers beginning January 1, 2006 and to residential customers beginning January 1, 2006,

- Transmission Cost Recovery—A transmission cost recovery mechanism was established beginning January 1, 2005 for non-residential
customers and beginning January 1, 2006 for residential customers. The fransmission cost recovery mechanism is designed to permit
Duke Energy Ohio to recover certain Midwest Independent Transition Syslem Operator, inc. (Midwesl IS0} charges, all FERC approved
transmissicn costs, and all congestion cosls allocable to retail ralepayers thal are provided service by Duke Energy Ohio.

Excluding Duke Energy Ohio's deregulated generalion-related assets and liahilities, as of December 31, 2008, Duke Energy Ohio continues {o
meel the criteria 1o apply SFAS No. T1.

Energy Purchases and Fuel Costs. As part of the PUCO’s November 2004 approval of Duke Energy Ohio's RSP, a cost {racking recovery
mechanism was established Lo recover costs of retait fuel and emission allowances that exceed the amount originatly included in the rates frozen in the
Duke Energy Ohio transition plan. This mechanism was effective January 1, 2005 for nan-residential customers and January 1, 2006 for residential
customers., Also, Duke Energy Ohio began utilizing a tracking mechanism approved by the PUCC for the recovery of system reliability capacity costs
related to certain specified purchases of power. This mechanism was effective January t, 2005 for non-residenlial customers and January 1, 20C6 for
residenlial customers. Because Duke Energy Ohio does not apply SFAS No. 71 lo its generalion operations, differences belween [uel costs billed and
costs incurred are not recorded as regulatory assets or liabilities.

Accounting for Risk Management and Hedging Activities and Financial instruments. Duke Energy Ohio uses a number of different derivative
and non-derivative instruments in connection wilh its commodity price and inlerest rate risk management activities, including swaps, fulures, forwards
and oplions. All derivative inslruments not designated and gualifying for the normat purchases and normal sales exception under SFAS No. 133, "
Accounling for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activifies ™ (SFAS No. 133), as amended, are recorded an the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their
fair vaiue as Unrealized Gaing or Unrealized Losses on Mark-to-Market and Hedging Transactions. Cash inflows and oulflows related o derivative
instruments, except those that contain financing elements and
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'\Hﬁ,se refated to other investing activities, are a component of operaling cash flows in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Cash
inflows and outflows related to derivative instruments containing financing elements are a component of Anancing cash flows in the accompanying
Consolidated Stalements of Cash Flows while cash inflows and outflows from derivatives refaled 1o investing activities are a component of investing
cash flows in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Duke Energy Ohio designates all energy commaodity derivatives as either trading or non-trading. Gains and losses for alf derivalive contracts that do
nol represent physical delivery contracts are reported on a nel basis in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. For each of Duke Energy Ohio's
physical delivery contracts that are derivatives, the accounling model and presentation of gains and losses, of revenue and expense in the Consofidated
Statements of Operations is shown below.

Duke Energy Ohio

Classification of Contract Accounting Model
Trading derivatives . ' Mark-loanarket,
Non-trading derivatives:

~ - Cash iow hedge, - -+ ¢ " Adcrual?
" Falr vatue hedgié Accruat®
-~ Normal purchase.or sale - - Actrual®™.

" Undesignated Mark-to-market®™

and commodity derivatives

(3} Anaccounting lemm used by Duke Energy Ohio to refer to derivative contracts for which an asset or liabilily is recognized at fair value and the change in the fair value of that asset or
liakility is recognized in \he Consolidaled Siatements of Operations. This lerm is applied 10 trading and undesignated non-trading derivalive conlracls. As this term is not explicilly
defined within GAAP, Duke Eaergy Chin's application of this term could differ from that of other companies.,

{b) Anaccounling ferm used by Duke Energy Ohio 1o refer Lo contracts for which there is generally na recognition in the Consolidzled Statements of Operations for any changes in fair
value until the service is provided, the associated delivery pericd occurs or there is hedge ineffectiveness. As discussed furiher below, this term is applied to derivative contracts that
are accounted for as cash fiow hedges, fair value hedges, and narmal purchases or sales. as well as to non-denvative contracls used for commaodily risk management purposes. As
this lerm is not explicitly defined within GAAP, Duke Energy Ohia's application of this term could differ from that of other companies.

‘Whare Duke Energy Qhio's darivalive instrumenis are sytject to a master netting agreement and the criteria of th2 Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) Inlerprotation ¢Fli)
Ne. 39, * Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Conlracis—arn Intarprefation of Accounting Principfes Board (APB} Opinion No. 10 and FASE Statement Na. 105" (FIN 38), ara met,
Duke Energy Ohio presents iLs derivative assels and liabilities, and accompanying receivables and payables, on a net basis in lhe accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Cash Ftow and Fair Velue Hedges. Qualifying energy commadity and other derivatives may be designated as either 2 hedge of a forecasted transaction or fture cash Rows {cash
hedge} or a hedge of a recognizad assel, liability or firm commilment [fair value hedge). For all hedge contracts, Duke Energy Ohio prepares formal documentation of the hedge in
: rdance wilh SFAS No. 133. In addilion, at inception and every three months, Duke Energy Ohio formally assesses whether the hedge contract is bighly effective in ofisetling changes
. .cash Rows or (air values of hedged items. Duke Energy Ohio documents hedging activilty by transaction lype (futures/swaps) and risk management strategy {commodity price riskfinlerest
rate risk).
Changes in the fair value of a derivative designated and qualified as a cash flow hedge, 1o the extent effeclive, are inciuded in the Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholder's
Equity and Comprehensive income as Accumolated Other Comprehensive Loss (AGGH untit eamings are affecied by the hedged tansaction. Duke Energy Ohia discontinues hadge
accounting prospectively when it has delermined that a derivative no longer qualifies a5 an effective hedge, or when it is no fonger probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will
atcur. When hedge accounting is discontinued because the dervalive no longer qualifies as an effeclive hedge, the derivative is subject o the Mark-to-Market Model of accounting (MTR
Model) prospectively. Gains and losses relaled 1o discontinued hedges thal were previously accumulated in AOCH will remain in AGCH unlil the underlying contract is reflected in earnings;
untess il 13 probable hat the hedged forecasted transaction will nal occur at which lime associated deferred amounts in ADCI are immediately recognized in current earmings.
Far derivatives designaled as fair value hedges, Duke Energy Chio recognizes the gain or loss on the derivalive instrument, as well as the offselting loss or gain on the hedged ilem
in earnings, to the exient effeclive, in the current periad. All derivatives designaled and agcounted for as hedges are classified in the same category as the item being hedged in the
Congolidaled Siatements of Cash Flows. In addition. ak camponents of each denvative gain or loss are included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness.
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Normaf Purchases and Normai Sales. On a fimited basis, Duke Energy Ohio applies the normal purchase and normal sales exceplion to certain
contracls. If contracls cease (0 meet this exceplion, the fair value of the conlracts is recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the contracts
are accounted for using the MTM Model unless immediately designated as a cash flow or fair value hedge.

Valuation. When available, quoted market prices or prices obtained through axternal sources are used to measure a conlract’s fair value. For
conlracls with a delivery location or duralion for which quoted market prices arg not availabile, fair value is determined based on internally developed
valuation techniques or models. For derivatives recognized under the MTM Model, valuation adjustments are also recognized in the Consdlidated
Statemenis of Qperations.

Goodwill. Duke Energy Ohio evaluates goodwill for polential impairment under the guidance of SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assels " (SFAS No. 142). Under this provision, goodwill is subject to an annuat test for impairment. Duke Energy Ohio has designated Augus! 31 as the
date it performs the annual review for goodwill impairment for its reporting units, Under the previsions of SFAS No. 142, Duke Energy Ohic performs the
arnual review for goodwill impairment at the reporting unit level, which Duke Energy Ohio has determined to be an operating segment.

Impairment testing of goodwill consists of a two-step process. The first step involves a comparison of the implied fair value of a reporting unit with
its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit ekceeds its fair value, 1he second step of the process involves a comparison of the fair
value and carrying value of the goodwill of Ihat reporting unit. if the camying value of the goodwill of a reporting unit exceeds the implied fair vaiue of that
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal o the excess_ Additional impairment tests are performed between the annual reviews if
ovents or changes in circumstances makae it more likely than not that the fair vaiue.of a reporling unit is below its carrying amount.

Duke Energy Ohio primarily uses a discounted cash flow anzlysis 10 determine fair value. Key assumplions in the detemination of fair value include
the use of an appropriate discount rate, estimaled future cash flows and an estimated run rales of operation, maintenance, and general and
administralive costs. In estimaling cash flows, Duke Energy Ohio incorporales expected growth rates, regulatory slability and ability to renew contracts
as weli as other factors into its revenue and expense forecasts.

Property, Plant and Equipment, As discussed under “Predecessor and Successor Reporting” above, recorded balances for proparty, plant and
equipmenl exiling as of April 3, 2006 were adjusted to reflect fair values as of that date. Due to rate setting and recovery provisions currenliy in place for
regulated operations, the fair values of property plant and equipment of the regulated operations were considered 1o approximate their carrying values
as of the date of Duke Energy's merger with Cinergy. Accumulaied depreciation was not reset 1o zero as of Ihe merger date for the regulated property,
plani and equipment due primarily 1o regulatary reporting implications. Unregulated property, plant and equipment were recorded al respective fair
values afd accumulated deprecalion was resel to zero as of the merger date. Othemise, property, plant and equipment are stated al the lower of
historical cost less accumulaled depreciation or fair value, if impaired. Duke Energy Ohio capilalizes all cons{ruction-related direcl labor and material
cosls, as well as indirect construction costs, Indirect costs include general engineering, taxes and the cost of funds used during construction. The cost of
renewals and belierments that extend the usefu! life of property, plant and equipmenl is also capitalized. The cost of repairs, replacements and major
maintenance projects, which do not exlend the useful life or increase the expecied output of property, plant and equipment, is expensed as it is Incurred.
Depreciation is generafly computed over the assel's estimated usefu! life using the straight-line method. The composite weighted-average deprecfation
rates were 2.7% for 2006, 2.4% for 2005, and 2.6% for 2004. Also, see "Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC),” discussed below.

when Duke Energy Ohio retires its regulated property, plant and equipment, il charges the original cost plus the cost of relirement, less salvage 1
valug, o accumulated depreciaiion and amorlization. When il sells enlire regulated operating unils, or retires or sells non-regulated properties, the cost
is remroved from the property account and the retaled accumulaled depreciation and amorlizalion accounts are reduced. Any gain or loss is recorded in
earnings, unless otherwise required by The applicable regulatory body.

Duke Energy Ohio recognizes assel retirement obligalions (ARO's) in accordance with SFAS No. 143, “Accounting For Asset Refirement
Obfigations " (SFAS No. 143), for legal obligalions associaled with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisilion, construction,
development andfor normal use of the assel and FIN No. 47, * Accounling for Conditional Assel Refirement Obfigations " (FIN 47}, for conditiopal ARO's
in which the timing or method of seltlement are condiliona! on a future event that may or may not be within the control of Duke Energy Ohio. Both SFAS
No. 143 and FIN 47 require thal the fair value of a liability for an ARO be recognized in the period in which it is incurred, if a reasonable eslimate of fair
vatue can be made. The fair value of the lizbility is added 1o the carrying amount of the associaled asset. This additiona! carrying amount is then
depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset.
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- Long-Lived Asset Impairments, Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations. Duke Energy Chio evaluates whether long-lived asseis,
fficluding intangibles but excluding goodwill, have been impaired when circumstances indicate the carrying value of those assets may not be
recoverable. For such tong-lived assets, an impairment exists when its carrying value exceeds lhe sum of eslimates of the undiscounted cash flows
expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the assel. When alternative courses of action to recover the canying amount of a long-lived
asset are under consideration, a probability-weighted approach is used for developing estimates of future undiscounted cash flows. if the carrying value
of the long-lived asset is not recoverable based on these estimalted future undiscounted cash flows, the impairment toss is measured as the excess of
the assel's carrying value over ils fair value, such that the asset’s carrying value is adjusted Lo its estimated fair value.

Management assesses the fair value of long-lived assets using commonly accepted techriques, and may use more than ¢ne seurce. Seurces to
delermine fair value include, bul are not limited 10, recent third party comparable sales, intemally developed discounted cash flow analysis and analysis
from ouiside advisors. Significant changes in market conditions resulting from events such as changes in commeodity prices or the condition of an asset, -
or a change in management's intent to utilize the assel would generally require management to re-assess the cash flows related o the long-ived assets. '

Duke Energy Ohio uses the criteria in SFAS No. 144 “Acceunting for the Impairment of or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS No. 144), to
determine when an asset s classified as “hefd for sale.” Upon classification as “held for sale,” the long-lived asset or asset group is measured at the
lower of its carrying amount or fair value less cost to seli, depreciation is ceased and the asset or asset greup is separately presented on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. When an asset or asset group meets the SFAS No. 144 criteria for classification as held for sale within the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, Duke Energy Ohio does not refrospectively adjust prior period balance sheets to conform to current year presentation. Historically,

Duke Energy Ohio classified all *held for sale” amounis as non-current and adjusted their Consolidated Balance Sheets retrospectively to conform ta the
current presentation. This change in presentalion has been adoptled in arder for the Duke Energy Ohio financial statements to conform lo the Duke
Energy presentation as a result of push-down accounting. See Note 13 for addilional information.

Duke Energy Ghio uses the criteria in SFAS No. 144 and EITF Issue No. 03-13, "Applying the Conditions i Paragraph 42 of FASB Statement
No. 144 in Determining Whether to Report Discontinued Operations " (EITF (3-13), to defermine whether components of Duke Energy Ohio that are
being disposed of or are classified as held for sale are required to be reported as discontinued operations in the Consofidated Statements of Operations.

To qualify as a discontinued operation under SFAS No. 144, the component being disposed of must have clearly distinguishable operations and cash
flows. Addiionally, pursuant to EITF 03-13, Duke Energy Ohic must not have significant continuing involvement in the operations after the disposal {i.e.
Duke Energy Ohio must not have the abitity to influence the operating or financial poficies of the disposed component) and cash flows of the operations
being disposed of must have been eliminated from Dule Energy Ohio's ongoing operations {i.e. Duke Energy Ohlo does not expect to generate
significant direct cash flows from aclivilies involving the disposed component after the disposal ransaclion is completed). Assuming both preceding
conditions are met, the related results of operations for the current and prior periods, induding any related impaiments, are reflected as (Loss) Income
From Discontinued Operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. If an asset held for sale does nol meel the requirements for
discontinued operations classification, any impairments and gains or losses on sales are recorded in continuing cperations as (Losses) Gains on Sales
of Olher Assels and Other, net, in the Cansolidated Statemenis of Operations. Impairments for all other long-lived assets, excluding goodwill, are
recorded in Operaling Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Unamortized Debt Premjum, Discount and Expense. Premiums, discounts and expenses incumed with the issuance of outstanding long-term

. arg amorlized over the lerms of the debt issues. Any call premiums or unamoriized expenses assaciated with refinancing higher-cost debt
wofigations 1o finance regulaled assets and operations are amorlized consistent with regulatory treatment of those items, where appropriate.

Environmental Expenditures. Duke Energy Chio expenses environmental expenditures related to conditions caused by past operations that do
not generate current or fulure revenues. Environmental expenditures related to operations that generate curreni of future revenues are expensed or
capilalized, as appropriate. Liabilities are recorded when the necessily for environmental remediation becomes probable and the costs can be
reasonably eslimated, or when other potential environmenial lisbililies are reasonably estimable and probable.
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Revenue Recognition, Revenues for efeclric and gas service are recorded when delivered to customers. Cuslomers are billed throughout the
month as both gas and electric meters are read. Duke Energy Ghio recognizes revenues for retait energy sales that have not yet been billed, but where
gas or glectricity has been consumed, Given the use of these syslems and the fact that customers are billed monthly, Duke Energy Ohio believes it is
unlikely that materially different resulls will ocour in future periods when these amounts are subsequently billed.

Unbilled revenues for Duke Energy Ohio at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $132 million and $150 million, respectively.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC). AFUDC, which represents the estimated debt and equity costs of capilal funds -
necessary (o finance the construction of pew regulated lacililies, consists of two components, an equily component and an interest component. The
equity companent is a non-cash item. AFUDC is capitalized as a component of Properly, Plant and Equipmen cost, with offseiting credils to the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. After construction is completed, Duke Energy Ohio is permitted {o recover these costs through inclusion in the
rate base and in the depreciation provision. The toflal amount of AFUDC included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the nine months
ended December 31, 2006 was $16 million, which consisted of an alier-tax equity componenl of $2 million and a before-tax interest expense component
of $14 million. The total amount of AFUDC included in the Consolidated Statements of Operalions for the three months ended March 31, 2006 was 34
million, which consisted of an after-tax equily component of $1 million and a before-tax interest expense component of $3 million. The lotal amount of
AFUDC included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations was §8 million in 2005, which consisted of an after-tax equity component of $1 miliion
and a bhefore-tax interest expense component of $7 million. The otal amount of AFUDC included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations was 6
million in 2004, which consisted of an afier-1ax equily component of $1 million and a before-tax inlerest expense component of £5 miflion.

Accounting For Purchases and Sales of Emission Allowances. Duke Enetgy Ohio recognizes emission allowances, which de not have an
expirafion date, in €3rnings as they are consurned or sold, Gains or losses on sales of emission allowances for non-regutated businesses are presented
on a net basis in (Losses) Gains on Sales of Olher Assels and Other, nel, in the accompanying Consolidated Statemenis of Operations. For regulated
husinesses that do provide lor direct recovery of emissian allowances, any gains or losses on sales of recoverable emission allowances are included in
the rate structure of the regulated entity and are deferred as a regutatory asset or liability. Future rates charged 1o retail customers are impacted by any
gain or loss on sales of recoverable emission aflowances and, therefore, as the recovery of the gain or foss is recognized in operaling revenues, the
regulalory asset or liabilily related to the emission atlowance activily is recognized as a component of Fuel Used in Eleclic Generation and Purchased
Power in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Purchases and sales of emission allowances are presented gross as investing activities on lhe
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, See Note 1, "Conforming Changes in Accounting and Reporting” for additional information.

Income Taxes. As a resuit of Duke Energy's merger with Cinergy, Duke Energy Ohio entered into a tax sharing agreement wilh Duke Energy,
where the separate return method is used to allocate benefils to the subsidiaries whose investmenls or resulls of operations provida these tax benefits.
The accounting for income taxes essenlially represants the income taxes that Duke Energy Ohio would incur if Duke Energy Ohio were a separale
company filing its own tax return. The current tax sharing agreeament Duke Energy Ohio has with Duke Energy is subslanfially the same as the tax
sharing agreement between Duke Energy Ohio and Cinergy prior to the merger.

Management evaluates and records contingent tax liabilities and related interest based on the probability of ultimately sustaining the tax deductions
or income posilicns. Management assesses the probabilities of successfully defending the lax deductions or income pesitions based upon statutary,
judicial or adminisirative authority, ’
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Zxcise Taxes. Certain excise taxes levied by slate or local governments are collected by Duke Energy Ohio from its customers. These taxes,
waiteh are required to be paid regardless of Duke Energy Ohio's ability to collect from the customer, are accounted for on a gross basis. When Duke
Energy Ohio acts as an agent, and the tax is not required to be remitted if it is not collected from the customer, the laxes are accounted for on a nel
basis. Duke Energy Ohio’s excise taxes accounted for on a gross basis and recorded as revenues in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Cperations for nine months endad December 31, 2006, the three months ended March 31, 2006 and the twelve months ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 were as follows:

Successor'” Predecessor’™”
Nine Months Ended Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2006 March 31, 2006 December 317, 2005 December 31, 2004

in miltions}

b l38

v 'I, S T T

{1} See *Predecessor and Successor Reporting” in Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Segment Reporting. As a result of the merger with Duke Energy, effective in the second quarter of 2006, Duke Energy Ohio adopled new
business segments, and the segment performance measure has been changed to garnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) from continuing operations.
As a result, certain prier period amounis have been retroaclively adjusted to conform to the new segment presentation and measures.

SFAS Na. 131, "Disclosures aboul Segments of an Enlerprise and Related Information” (SFAS No. 131), establishes standards for a public
company o report financial and descriplive information about its reportable operating segments in annuat and interim financial reporls. Qperating
segments are components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available and evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker in deciding how to allocate rescurces and evaluate performance. Twao or more operaling segments may be aggregated into a single
reporiable segment provided aggregatlion is consistent with the objective and basic principles of SFAS No. 131, if the segments have similar economic
characteristics, and the segments are considered similar under criteria provided by SFAS No. 121, There is no aggregation within Duke Energy Ohio's
defined business segments. SFAS No. 131 alsg establishes standards and related disclosures about the way the operating segmenis were determined,
producis and services, geographic areas and major customers, differences between the measurements used in reporting segrment information and those
used in the general-purpose financial statements, and changes in the measurement of segment amounts from peried to period. The description of Duke
Energy Ohio’s reporlable segments, consistent with how business results are reported internally to management and the disclosure of segment
information in accordance with SFAS No. 131, are presented in Nole 4.

Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles. As of December 31, 2005, Duke Energy Ohio adopted the provisions of FIN 47 In
accordance with the transition guidance of this standard, Duke Energy Ohio recorded a net-of-tax cumulative effect adjustment of approximately $3
friiltion.

Conforming Changes in Accounting and Reporting, £mission Allowance Accounting. Effective with the merger between Duke Energy and
“ gy, Duke Energy Ohio classifies emission allowances as Intangible Assets in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and includes cash

§ _from purchases and sales of emission allowances as investing activities. Historicaily, Duke Energy Ghio classified emission allowances as
\t?rﬁéhtory and Other non-current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, presented revenues from sales of emission allowances as aperating
revenues and lhe cost of emission allowances sold as cost of fuel resold in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and presented cash flows from
purchases and sales of emission allowances as operating activities in the accompanying Conselidated Statements of Cash Flows. The classification of
Inventory or Other non-current assels was determined by the emission allowances vintage year. Duke Energy Ohio changed its method of aceounting
for ernission allowances in connection with their application of push-down accounting in order io conform to the accounting policies of Duke Energy. As a
result of this change in classification, gains or losses on sales of emission allowances are presented on a nel basis in (Losses) Gains on Sales of Other
Assets and Other, net in the accempanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and purchases and sales of ernission allowances are presented
aross as investing aclivities on Ihe Consolidated Statemenls of Cash Flows.

7.
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Cuke Energy Ohio recerded the change in accounting policy in accordance with SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—a
Replacement of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 20 and SFAS No. 3. " SFAS No, 154 requires that a change in accounting policy be
made threugh retrospective application of the new policy 10 all prior periods presented. This change does not impact income frem conlinuing operations,
net income, tolal assets, or cash flows from financing activities as previously presented. A summary of the financial statement ilems alfected by the

retroactive application of this change in accounting principle is as follows:

Successor'” Predecessor'™
Nine Months
Ended Three Months TFwelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended
December 34, March 31, December 31, December 31,
200R 2006 2005 2004
_{in millians)

Tola% Operatmg Reéveniii

Befors reclassnﬁca on of emission allowances
Effect of émlssion Allowance reciassification’:

After recIaSS|f|cal|on of emussmn allowances

Before rec assn"callon of emis on allowances . 4216 I
Elfect of émission allowarice reclassification. R 1) | R

Aflerrac?asssfcallonofgmlssmn aﬂowances L - 2,067 |

Beiore reolassnﬁcahon ot emission aliowances ) 1

Elact 0f Binissioh allowanes reclassification - ST e 28) A A5 47
After reclassification of emission allowances $ {28) $ 26 3 125 3 8
{1} See "Predecessor and Successar Reporling” in Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
Successor'” Predecessor”
December 31, December 31,
—_2M08

Before reclassnfcahon of emlssmn aliowances

Effect of emissiomdliowancg reclassification . .-
Afler reclassificalion of emission al!owances
Olher

Before reclass cahon 0 em smn allowances
Effect of emission.alldwance reclassification -~ 70 50
After reciassn" cahan of emission allowances

Before rec!ass:r callon of emission al!owancesr o
Eftett of emission allowdnce 1eckssification "
After reciassification of emission alfowances

{in milljons:u

{1} See "Predecessor and Successor Reporting” in Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporling.
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Successor'” Predecessor'”
e Nine Months
Ended Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended
March 34 December 31 December 31
1 . s .
December 31, 2006 2005 2004

ilions)

Effact of emissisn allowince réclassification- g}
After reclassification of emission allowances $ {366)

57 417y,
$§  (184) $ {335) g {398)

{1} See “Predecessor and Successor Reporting” in Note 1 for additionat information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Assels Held for Sale. When a determination is made that a long-lived asset or asset group should be classified as an asset “held for sale" pursuant
to SFAS No. 144 the long-lived assel or asset group is presented on the Consalidated Balance Sheet with the current and non-current portions
separately presented hased upon their previous classification {prior to meeting the "held for safe” criteria). Prior period balance sheels are not
retrospectively adjusted for current period assets held for sale fo conform to the cusrent year presentation. Historically, Duke Energy Ohio classified alt
“netd for saie” amounts as non-current and adjusied their Consolidated Balance Sheels retrospectively to conform to the current presentation. This
change in presentation has been adopted in order for the Duke Energy Ohio financial statements to conform to the Duke Energy presentation as a result
of push-down accounting. See Note 13 for additional information.

Reclassifications and Revisions. The financial statements have been reclassified to conform with Duke Energy's format. Certain other prior
‘period amounts havebeen reclassified ko conform to current year presentation. Such reclassifications include the reclassification of income from
continuing operations from Duke Energy Ohio’s commercial marketing and trading business to discontinuad operafions. See Note 13 for additional
information.

As aresult of the merger with Duke Energy, effective in the second quarter of 2006, Duke Energy Ohio adopted new business segments, and the
segment performance measure has been changed o eamings before interesl and taxes (EBIT) from continuing operations, As a result, certain prior
period amounis have been refroactively adjusted to conform to the new segment presentation and measures. See Note 4 for further discussion of
segmenls.

’ New Accounting Standards. The following new accounting standards were adopled by Duke Energy Ohio during the year ended December 31,
i and the impact of such adoption, if applicable, has been presented in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements:
“~~FASB Staif Position {(FSF) No. FIN 46{R)-6, “Determining the Variabilily to Be Considered in Applying FASE Interpretation No. 46(R) (FSP No. FiN
46(R}-6)." In April 2006, the FASB staff issued FSP No. FIN 46{R)-6 to address how o determine lhe variability to be considered in applying FIN 46(R),
* Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities .” The variability that is censidered in applying FIN 46(R) affects the determination of whether the entity is a
vatiable interesi entity {VIE), which interests are variable interests in the entity, and which parly, if any, is the primary beneficiary of the VIE. The
vatiabilily affects the calculation of expected losses and expected residual returns. This guidance is effective for all entities with which Ouke Energy Ohio
first becomes involved or exisling entifies for which a reconsideration event oocours after July 1, 2006. The adoption of FSP No. FIN 46(R}-6 did not have
a material impacl on Duke £nergy Ohio's consolidated resuils of operations, cash flows or financial position.

SFAS No. 158, “Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Cther Pastretireiment Plans, an amandment of FASE Stalements No. 87,
88, 108, and 132(R}” (SFAS No, 158) . In October 2006, the FASB issued SFAS Mo. 158, which changes the recognilion and disclosure provisions and
measuremenl dale requirements for an employer's accounting for defined benefit pension and ciher postretirement plans. The recognition and
disclosure provisions require an employer 1o (1) recognize the funded slatus of 2 benefit plan—measured as the difference between plan assets at fair
valug and the benefit obligation—in its statement of financial position, {(2) recognize as a component of OCI, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior
service costs or credits thal arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost, and (3) disclose in the notes to
financial statements certain additional
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informalion. SFAS No. 158 does not change the amounts recognized in the income stalement as net pericdic benefit cost. Duke Energy Ohio is required
to initially recognize the funded status of its allocated portion of Cinergy's defined benefil pension and other postretirement plans and to provide the
required additional disclosures as of December 31, 2006 (see Note 18). Retrospective application is not permitted. The adoption of SFAS No. 158
recognition and disclosure provisions resulted in an increase in total assets of approximately $33 million {consisting of an increase in regulatory assets of
$31 million and an increase in defered lax assels of $2 milion), an increase in total lizbililies of approximately $35 million and a decrease in
accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, of approximalely $2 million as of December 31, 2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 did nol have
any material impact on Duke Energy Ohlo’s consclidated results of operations or cash flows.

Under the measurement date requirements of SFAS No. 158, an employer is required 10 measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of
Ihe date of the employer's fiscal year-end statement of financizl position (with limited exceptions). Historically, Duke Energy Ohic has measurad ils plan
assets and obligations up to three months prior to the fiscal year-end, as allowed under the authorilative accounting iterature. The measurement date
requirement is eflective for the year ending December 31, 2008, and early application is encouraged. Duke Energy Ohio intends to adopt the change in
measurement dale eflactive January 1, 2007 by remeasuring plan assets and benefit obligations as of that dale, pursuant to the transilion requirements
of SFAS No. 158, MNet periodic benefit cost for the three-month period between September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2006 will be recognized, net of
fax, as a separate adjusiment of refained earnings as of January 1, 2007. Additicnally, changes in plan assels and plan obligations between
Seplember 30, 2006 and December 31, 2006 not related to net periodic benefit cost will be recognized, nel of tax, as an adjustment to OCI,

Staff Accounling Bufletin {(SAB} No. 108, "Considering the Effects of Frior Year Misstatemenis When Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statemenis” {(SAB No. 108) . In September 2006, the SEC staff issued SAB No. 108, which provides interpretive guidance on how the effects
of Ihe carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered in quantifying a currenl year misstatement. Tradilionatly, there have been
two widely-recognized approaches for quantifying the effects of financial statement misslatements. The income statement approach focuses primarily on
the impact of a misstaiement on the income statemem—including 1he reversing effect of prior year misstatements—bul its use can lead to the
accumulation of misstatements in the balance sheel. The balance sheet approach, on the other hand, focuses primarily on the effect of correcting the
period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on the income statement. The SEC staff believes that
registrants should quantify errors using both a balance sheet and an income statement approach (a "dual approach”) and evaluate whether either
approach resulls in quanlifying a misstalement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitalive faclors are considerad, is material.

SAB No. 108 was effective for Duke Energy Ohio's year ended Dacember 31, 2006. SAB No. 108 permits existing public companies to initially
apply its provisions either by (i} restating prior financial statements as if the "dua! approach” had always be®n used or {ii), under certain circumstances,
recording the cumulative effect of initially applying the “dual approach” as adjustments {o the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of January 1,
20086 with an offsetting adjusiment recorded to the opening balance of retained 2amings. Duke Energy Ohio has historically used a dual approach for
quantifying identified financial statement misstatements. Therefore, the adopticn of SAB No. 108 did net have any material impact on Duke Energy
Ohio's consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

The following new accounting standards were adopted by Cuke Energy Chio during the year ended December 31, 2005 and the impact of such
adoption, if applicable, has been presented in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Stalements:

SFAS No. 153, "Exchanges of Nonmonetlary Assels—an amendment of APB Opiion No. 297 (SFAS Na. 153). In December 2004, the FASE
issued SFAS No. 153 which amends APB Opinion No. 28, “ Accaunting for Nonmoneltary Transactions " by eliminzting the exception to the fair-value
principle far exchanges of similar produclive assets, which were accounted for under APB Qpinion No. 28 based on the book valug of ihe assel .
surrendered with no gain or Inss recognilion, SFAS No. 153 also eliminales APB Opinion No. 28°s concept of cufminalion of an earnings pracess. The
amendmient requires that an exchange of nonmonetary assets be accounted for at fair value if the exchange has commercial substance and fair value is
determinable within reasonable limits. Commercial substance is assessed by comparing the entity's expecled cash flows immedialely hefore and after
the exchange. If the difference is significant, the lransaction is considered to have commergial subsiance and should be recognized at fair value. SFAS
No. 153 is effective for nonmonetary lransactions ocourring on or after July 1, 2005. The adoption of SFAS Ne. 153 did not have a material impact cn
Duke Energy Ohio's consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

FASB Interprefation No.(FIN) 47 "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligafions™ (FIN 47). In March 2003, the FASB issued FIN 47,
which elarifies the accounting for conditional asset retirement chligations as used in SFAS No. 143, A conditional asset retirement obligation is an
unconditicnal legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activily in which the {iming and (or) melthcd of selllement are
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littonal on a future evenl thal may ar may not be within the control of the entity. Therefore, an enlity is required to recognize a liability for the fair
vai(te of a conditional agset retirement obligation under SFAS No. 143 if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The provisions of FIN
47 were effective for Duke Eneirgy Ohio as of December 31, 2005, and the adoplion of FIN 47 did not bave a malenal impaci on Duke Energy Ohio's
consaolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

The following new accounting slandards were adopted by Duke Energy Ohio during the year ended December 31, 2004 and the impact of such
adoption, if applicable, has been presented in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements:

FIN 48, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”. In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46 which requires the primary beneficiary of a variable
inlerest enlity’s activities to consalidate the variable interest entity. FIN 46 defines a variable interest entity as an entity in which the equily investors do
nect have substanlive voting rights and there is not sufficient equity at Aisk for the entity to finance its activities without addittonal subordinated financial
supporl. The primary beneficiary absorbs a majority of the expected fosses and/or receives a majority of the expected residual retumns of the variable
interest enlity's activities. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46 (Revised December 2003), © Consolidafion of Variable interest Eniitfes—an
Interpretation of ARB No, 51 * (FIN 46R), which supersedes and amends the provisions of FIN 46. While FIN 46R retains many of the concepts and
provisions of FIN 46, it also provides additionat guidance and additivnal scope exceptions, and incorporates FASE Staff Positions related to the
application of FIN 46.

The provisions of FIN 46 applied immediately to variable interest entities created, or interests in variable interest entities obtained, after January 31,
2003, while the provisions of FIN 46R were required to be applied to those entilies, except for special purpose entities, by the end of the first reporting
period ending after March 15, 2004 {March 31, 2004 for Duke Energy Ohio). For varable interest enlities created, or interests in variable interest entities
obtained, on or before Janvary 31, 2003, FIN 46 or FIN 48R was required to be applied io special-purpose éntities by the end of the first reporting period
ending after December 15, 2003 (December 31, 2003 for Duke Energy Ohio), and was required to be applied to alt other non-special purpose entities by
the end of the first reporting period ending after March 15, 2004 (March 31, 2004 for Duke Energy Ohio). Duke Energy Ohio did not consclidzate any
entilies as a result of the adoption of FIN 46R.

Various changes and clarifications to the provisions of FIN 46 have been made by the FASB since its original issuance in January 2003. While nol
anticipated al this time, any addilional clarifying guidance or further changes to these complex rules could have an impact on Duke Energy Ohio's
Consalidaled Financial Stalements.

FSP No. FAS 106-1, "Application of FASE Statement No. 109, ‘Accouniing for Income Taxes,’ to the Tax Deduclion en Qualified Production
Activities Provided by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004" (FSP No. FAS 109-1) . On Octoher 22, 2004, the President sigried the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004 (the Act). The Acl provides a deduclion for income from qualified domestic production activities, which will be phased in from 2005
through 2010.

Under the guidance in FSP MNo. FAS 100-1, which was issued in December 2004, the deduction wilt be treated as a “speciat deduction” as
described in SFAS No. 109, ¥ Accounting for Income Taxes "™ {SFAS No. 109). As such, for Duke Energy Ohio, the special deduction had no material
impacl on deferred tax assels and liabilities existing at the enactment date. Rather, the impact of this deduction is reported in the pericds in which the
deductions are claimed an lhe tax retums. For the nine months ended Cecember 31, 2006, the three months ended March 31, 2006, and the year ended
~ -~ember 31, 2005, Duke Fnergy Ohio recognized a benefit of approximately $2 million, $1 million and 32 million, respectively, refating to the deduction

. qualified domestic aclivities.
“_~" The fallowing new accounting standards have been issued, but have not yet been adopted by Duke Energy Ohio as of December 31, 2008:

SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrumenis—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140" (SFAS No. 155). In
February 20086, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, which amends SFAS No. 133, * Accounting for Derivalive Instrumenis and Hedging Aclivities ™ and
SFAS Mo. 140, ¥ Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assels and Extinguishments of Liabilities ." SFAS No. 155 allows financial
instruments that have embedded derivalives to be accounted for at fair value at acquisition, at issuance, or when a previously recognized financial
instrument is subject lo a remeasurement (new basis} event, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, in cases in which a derivative would otherwise have
to be bifurcated. SFAS No. 155 is effective for Duke Energy Ohio for all financial instruments acquired, issued, or subject 1o remeasurement after
January 1, 2007, and for certain hybrid financial instruments that have been bifurcated prior to the effective date, for which the effectis to be reported as
a cumulative-eflect adjusiment to beginning retained earmings. Duke Energy Ohio does not anticipate the adoption of SFAS No. 155 will have any
material impact on its consolidated resulls of aperations, cash flows or financial position.
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SFAS No. 156, "Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assels—an amendment of FASB Sialemen! No. 140" (SFAS No. 156). In March 2006, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 156, which amends SFAS No. 140, * Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabifities " SFAS No. 156 requires recognition of a servicing asset or liability when an enlity enters into arrangements to service financial instruments in
certain situations. Such servicing assets or servicing liabilities are required 10 be initially measured at fair value, if practicable. SFAS No. 156 also allows
an entily 10 subsequently measure its servicing assels or servicing labilities using either an amortization method or a fair value method. SFAS No. 196 is
eflective for Duke Energy Ohto as of January 1, 2007, and must be applied prospectively, except that where an entily elects to remeasure separately
recognized existing arrangements and raclassify certain available-for-sale securities to frading securilies, any effects must be reported as a cumulative-
effect adjustment to retained earnings. Duke Energy Ohio does not anticipate the adoplion of SFAS No. 156 will have any malerial impaci on ils
consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” {SFAS No. 157). in September 2008, the FASB Issued SFAS No. 157, which defines fair value,
eslablishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does nol require
any new fair value measuremenls. However, in some cases, the application of SFAS No. 157 may change Duke Energy Ohio's current practice for
measuring and disclosing fair values under other accounling pronouncemernts that require or permit fair value measurements. For Duke Energy Ohio,
SFAS No. 157 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and must be applied prospectively except in certain cases. Duke Energy Ohio is currently evalualing the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 157, and cannot currently estimate the imgact of SFAS Mo. 157 on ils consolidated resulls of operations, cash flows or
financial position.

SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Asseis and Financial Liabililies” (SFAS No. 159). In February 2007, the FASB issusd SFAS
No. 159, which permils entities o choose to measure many financial instruments and cerlain other items at fair value. For Duke Energy Ohio, SFAS
Ne, 159 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and will have no impact on amounts presented for periods prior to the effeclive date. Duke Energy Ohio
cannot currently estimate the impact of SFAS No. 159 on ils consolidated resulls of operations, cash flows or financial position and has not yet
determined whether or nol it will choose to measure items subject o SFAS No. 159 at fair value.

FIN 48, "Accounting for Unceriainty in Income Taxes—an inlerprelation of FASB Statement No. 109" (FIN 48). tn July 2006 the FASB issued FIN
48, which provides guidance on accounting for income 1ax positions aboul which Duke Energy Ohio has cencluded there is a level of uncertainty with
respect 1o the recognilion in its inancial statements, FIN 48 prescribes a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet. Tax positions
are defined very broadly and include not only tax deductions and credits but also decisions not to file in a particular jurisdiction, as well as the taxabilily
of transaclions. Duke Energy Chio will implement this new accounting standard effective January 1, 2007. The implementation will impact g variety of
halance sheet line items, including Deferred income taxes, Taxes accrued, Goodwill, and Other Liabitities. Upon implementation of FIN 48, Duke Energy
Ohio wilt reflect inlerest expense relaled 1o taxes as interest expense, in Other lncome and Expenses, net in the Consclidated Statement of Operalions.
in addition, accounting for this standard afier January 1, 2007 will involve an evaluation to determine if any changes have occurred that would impact the
exisling uncerlain tax posilions as well as delermining whether any new tax posilions are uncertain. Any impacts resulting from the evaluation of existing
uncertain 1ax positions or from the recognition of new uncertain tax positions would impact income tax expense and interest expense in the Consolidated
Stalement of Operalions, wilh offselling impacis to the balance sheet line items described above. Duke Energy Ohio is still in the process of reviewing
the impacts of this standard and expects thal the Goodwill adjustiment will be immaterial,

FSP No, AUG AlR-1, "Accounting for Flanned Major Maintenance Aciivilies” (FSP No. AUG AIR-1). In September 2006, lhe FASB Staff issued FSP
No. AUG AIR-1. This FSP prohibits the use of the accrue-in-advance method of accounting for planned major maintenance activities in annual and
interim financial reporting periads, if no liability is required to be recorded for an assel retirement obligation based on a legal obligation for which the
avenl obligaling the enlity has occurred. The FSP also requires disclosures regarding the method of accounting for planned major maintenance activilies
and the efiects of implemenling the FSP. The guidance in lhis FSP is effeclive for Duke Energy Chio as of January 1, 2007 and will be applied
retrospeclively for all financial staiements presented. Duke Energy Ohio does nol anticipale the adoplion of FSP No. AUG AIR-1 will have any malerial
impacl on its consolidated results of operations, cash {lows or financial position.

EITF Issue No. 06-3, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitied fo Governmental Authorities Should Be Presenled in the Income
Staiement (That Is, Gross versus Net Presentation)” (EITF No. 06-3) . In June 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF No. 06-3 to address any tax
assessed by a governmental authority that is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer and may include,
but are not imited to, sales, use, value added, and some excise laxes. For taxes within the
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2's scope, he consensus requires that enfities present such taxes on either a gross (i.e. included in revenues and costs) or net (i.e. exclude from
¥evenues) basis according to their accounting policies, which should be disclosed. If such taxes are reported gross and are significant, enlities should
disclose the amounts of those taxes. Disclosures may be made cn an aggregate basis. The consensus is effective for Duke Energy Ohio beginning
January 1, 2007. Duke Energy Chio does not anticipate the adoption of FITF No. 06-3 will have any material impact on its consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or financial position.

2. Duke Energy/Cinergy Merger

Duke Energy Ohic consolidates assets and liabilities from acquisitions as of the purchase date, and includes earnings from acquisifions in
consolidated eamnings after the purchase date. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded al estimated fair values on the date of acquisition.
The purchase price minus the eslimated fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities for entities acquired that meet the definition of a business as
definad in EITF Issue No. 98-3, “Delermining Whether a Nonmonetary Transaclion Invalves Receipt of Productive Assets or of a Business” (EITF 98-3),
is recorded as goodwill. The allocation of the purchase price may be adjusted if additional, requested information is received during the allacation period,
which generally does not exceed one year from the consummation date, however, il may be longer for cerlain income tax items.

On April 3, 2008, the previously announced merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy was consummated (see Nete 1 for addilional information on
the merger, purchase accounting and Predecessor and Successor reporting). For accounting purposes, the effective date of the merger was April 1,
2006. The merger combines the Duke Energy and Cinergy regulated franchises as wetl as deregulated generation in the Midwestern United Stales
(Midwesl). See Note 5 for discussion of regulatory impacls of the merger. In connection with the merger, Duke Energy issued 1.56 shares of Duke
Energy common slock for each cutstanding share of Cinergy common stock, which resuited in the issuance of approximately 313 million shares of Duke
Energy common stock. Based on the market price of Duke Energy common stock during the period, including the two trading days before, through the
two trading days aiter, May 9, 2005, the date Duke Energy and Cinergy announced the merger, the ransaction is valued at approxXimately $9.1 billicn
and has resulied in goodwill recorded at Duke Energy Ohio of approximately $2.3 billion.

The amount of goodwill results from significant strategic and financial benefits expected to be realized by Duke Energy including:

. increased financial strength and flexibility;

. sironger ulility business plattorm;

. greater scale and fuel diversity, as weil as improved operational efficiencies for the merchant generation business;
. broadened electric distribution platform; -

. improved reliabitity and customer service through the sharing of best practices;

. increased scale and scope of the eleclric and gas businesses wilh sland-alone strength;

. complementary positions in the Midwest;

- greater customer diversity;

combined expertise; and
. . . .
= significant cost savings synergies.

As discussed in Nete 1, purchase accounting impacts, including goodwill recognition, have been “pushed down” to Duke Energy Ohio, resulting in
the assets and liabilities of Duke Energy Ohio being recorded at their respective fair values as of April 3, 2036.
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Furchase price aflocation and goodwill

The following labfe summarizes the differences between the fair values and the carrying values of the Duke Energy Ohio assets and fiabililies at the
date of acquisition.

{in miltions)

Purchasé prices 7.
) Tolaipurchase pnce )

- Lesg"Diike Engrgy Ohia nef bobk valiie at scyoisition A t=LA

Excess purchase price. L 3 2,894
Fair-value adjustinents to assets acguired - vt a T

_Current assets

“Property; piant, ahd equipmeit™

Intangibles

‘Requlatory assets and deferréd debits
Falr value adjustments tu hablhtles assumed

Accrued pensnon and posl-rehrement benef I cosls .

- Deferréd taxes ! R A e )
Olher non- currenl Ilabllllles ) L . . 120 . "
Goodwnl 2 348

{1} Allocation of purchase price lo Duke Energy Ohio was based on relative fair value of enlittes acquired (including Duke Energy Ohio) compared to a
total purchase price of $8, 115 million for Cineray. See Note 1 for additional information.

{2) Amounts recorded for regulated property, plant, and equipment by Duke Energy Ohio on the acquisition dale include approximalely $1,510 million
related to accumulated depreciation of acquired assets.

Goodwill recorded by Duke Energy Ohio as of December 31, 2006 resulting from Duke Energy's merger with Cinergy is 52,348 million, As of
December 31, 20086, the allocation of goodwill to Duke Energy Ohio and to the reporting units within Duke Energy Ohio was substantially complete, with
approximately $1,148 million and $1,200 million being allocated 1o the Franchised Etectric and Gas and Commerdial Power segments, respectively (see
MNote 10).

The following unaudited consolidaled pro forma financial resulls for Duke Energy Ohio are presented as if the merger with Quke Energy had
accurred at the beginning of each of the periods presenled:

Unaudited Consalidated Pro Forma Resulls (Predecessor)

Three Months Twelva Months
Ended Ended
March 31, December 31,
2008 —20p5
. . Ain millions)
Operaling revenues gL 966

Income from continuing. operallons

88
Netincome - SRR S Do e S e
Eamings available for comman stockholder 86

Fro forma results for the nine months ended December 31, 2006 are not presented since the merger ocourred al the beginning of the period
presented. Additionally, pra lorma resulis do not include any significant transactions completed by Duke Energy Chio other than the impaclt of Cinergy's
merger with Duke Enerqgy. The pre-tax impacts of purchase accounting on the results of operations of Duke Energy Ohio were approximalely $117
miltion during the nine menths ended December 31, 2006.

Prior to consummation of the merger, certain regulatory approvals were received frem the state ulility commissions and the FERC. See Note 5 for a
discussion of the regulatory impacls of the merger.
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_ransfer of Certain Duke Energy Generating Assets to Duke Energy Ohio
in April 2006, Duke Energy contributed to Duke Energy Ohio its cwnership interest in five plants, representing a mix of combined cycle and peaking
plants, wilh a combined capacily of 3,600 megawatts (MWs), as folfows:

Ownershi Fuel Typ Owned
Generatmg Plant o Lacation MW CaEam
Fayette” " - T U P avette CoUntY; Pennsvivaniz 20
Hangmg Rock ) Lawrence County,
Eeeiwnord Doon e en s e R G L GoUnky IRRDIS
Vetrmlllon ‘ L _Vverm |on‘00unty, Indsana

Washinglon = -, e
3,600
The transaction was effective in April 2006 and was accounted for at Duke Energy's net book value for these assets. The endilies holding these
generating plants, which were indirect subsidiaries of Duke Energy, were first distributed to Duke Energy, which then contributed them to Cinergy which,

in turn, contributed them to Duke Energy Chio. In the final step, the entities were then merged into Duke Energy Chia.

In connection wilh the contribution of these assets, Duke Energy Chio assumad certain related liabilities. in particular, Duke Energy Ohie assumed
from Duke Energy all payment, perfermance, and other obligations of Duke Encrgy, with respect to cerlain deferred tax liabilities related to the assets.
Duke Energy Ohio also assumed pre-tax deferred losses associated with contracts formerly designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted power sales
and gas purchases from Duke Energy's Midwestern generation flzet. See Nole 9 for additional information_ The following table summarizes this

transaction for Duke Energy Ohio:

Assets Received -
Generaling Asse!s
Other Assels -
Total Assels Recewed
Liabilities Assumed.
Deferred Tax Llabllltles
© Other™ ™ i

Total Llablhtles Assumed $ 178
Contributed Gapital from Duke Engrgy - - 2. PR A i

The foliowing unaudited consalidated pro forma fnanmal results for Duke Energy Ohlo are presented as if the contnbuuon of the Duke Eﬁﬁr
nenerating assets to Duke Energy Ohio had occurred al the beginning of each of the pericds presented:

"\7_ _+<udited Consolidated Pro Forma Results {Predecessor)

Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended
March 31, Becember 31, December 31,
2006 205
. L in millions)
Operating revenues ool v R ;95;
Income from conlinuing operations
Net income S

Earnings available for common stockholder
These pro forma results do not include any significant transactions completed by Duke Energy Ohio other than the impact of the transfer of the
cwnership interestin the five plants as discussed above. As part of this fransaction, Duke Energy agreed to reimburse Duke Energy Ohio, on a quarterly

basis, threugh April 2016 in the event of certain cash shortfalls refated to the pedformance of the five
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plants. During the third quarler of 2006, Duke Energy reimbursed Duke Energy Ghio $1.9 mitlion for certain cash shortfalls that occurred curing the
second quarter 2006. Howeaver, in the fourth quarter 2006, Duke Energy Chio retusned the $1.9 miilion to Duke Energy based on the perfformance of the
five plants in the third quarter 2006. Based on the assessment of the performance of the five plants during the fourth quarter 2006, Duke Energy Ohio
did not incur certain cash shortfalls related to the performance of the five plants thus no cash setllement was required from Duke Energy. Duke Energy
Ohio accounts for any payments from or return of payments to Duke Energy in its Common Stockholder's Equity as Additional paid-in capital.

4. Business Segments

In conjunction with the merger with Duke Energy, effective with the second quarter of 2008, Duke Energy Ohio adopted business segments that
management believes align the various operalions of Duke Energy Ohio with how the chiel operating decision maker views lhe business. Prior period
segment information has been recast to conform to the new segment structure. Accordingly, Duke Energy Ohio has the foillowing reportable business
segments:

Franchised Electric and Gas consisis of regulaled eleclric and gas transmission and distribulion systems and iis regulated electric
generalion in Kentucky, and
’ Commaercial Power primarily consists of Duke Energy Ohio's non-requlated generation in Ohio, the merchant generalion assels ransferred

from Duke Enerqy as discussed in Nots 3, and the energy risk manadement activities associated with Ihose assets.
Duke Energy Ohio’s chief operating decision maker regularly reviews financial information about each of these business units in deciding how to

allocate resources and evaluate performance. Both of the business units are considered reportable segments under SFAS No. 131. There is no
aggregation within Duke Energy Ohio's defined business segments.

Prior to the merger with Duke Energy, Duke Energy Ohio operaled ihe following two business units, which were both considered reportable
segments under SFAS No. 131: Regulated and Commercial. Regulaied consisted of Duke Energy Ohio's regulated electric and gas fransmission and
dislribution systems. Commercial managed Duke Energy Ohio’s wholesale generation and energy markeling and trading activilies.

Franchised Electric and Gas plans, conslructs, operates and maintains Duke Energy Ohio’s generation, ransmission and distribufion syslems and
delivers gas and electric energy lo consumers. Thase businesses are subject ko cost of service rate making where rates to be charged to customers are
based on prudently incurred costs over a test period pius a reasonable rate of return.

Commercial Power owns, opefales and manages non-regulaled merchant power plants and engages in the wholesale marketing and procurement
of electric power, fuel and emission allowances related to these plants. tn October 2006, Duke Energy completed the sale of Commercial Power's
energy markeling and trading activities to Foriis. As a result, the operations of Commercial Power's energy marketing and rading activities are classified
in (Loss) Income from Discontinued Operations, nel of tax, in the Consclidated Statements of Operations.

The remainder of Duke Energy Ohio's operations is presented as "Other.” While it is nol considered a business segment, “Other” for Duke Energy
Ohie includes certain allocated governance cosls.

Management evaluales segment performance based on EBIT. On a segmen! basis, EBIT excludes discontinued operations and represents all
prolits from continuing operalions {bolh operating and non-operating) before deducting interest and taxes. Cash, cash equivalents, and short-ferm
investments are managed centrally by Cinergy and Duke Energy, so lhe interest and dividend income on those balances are excluded from the
segments’ EBIT,

Transactions between repertable segments are accounted for on the same basis as unaffilialed revenues and expenses in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Slatements.
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Segment EBITf
Consolidated
Earnings

N from Continuing Depreciation  Capital and
Unatfiliated Intersegment Total Operations before and Investment Segment
Revenues Revenues Revenues lneame Taxes Amortization Expenditures  Assets®¥

Successor’™. -
Nine months Ended
Frahchised-Electic and Gas

Commerc | Power

Other

Efifiinations ard reclassifications -

Interes! expense
Interestincoffia and. other

- Tolat reporiabie seqments

Tolal consolidated

2261 _§

redecesso

Three Months Ended March- 31, -

Franchised Efectric and Gas

Commertial Power T 420
... Total reporlame seqments 963
Other . =
Eliminations and recIassnf calrons —
ntérest expense.” : : —
Interesl income and olher —
AL 963 %
Twelve Months Ended L
Franchised Eleclric aiid Gas % 1,561, - §
Commermal Power 1,219
“- . Totat repartable seaments - 2,780
Oiher —
Frimiinations and reciassifications’ el
) ‘est expense —
‘... €8l income and other S
i Tolal consglidated 3 2780 %
Twelve Months Ended oL
Franchised Electric and Gas b3 1427 %
Comimercial Power 1,005:
To_tal reportable seaments 2,432
Other ’ =
Eliminations and reclassmcalmns —
Intérest expense -
interest income and other —
Total consolidated - .~ - "§- --2.432- '§. -

{a) Segment results exclude resufls of entilies classified as discontinued operations.

{b) Includes assets hetd for sala.

(c) See Note 1 for additional informalion on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

(&) Amounis include goodwill recorded as of December 31, 2006 resulting from Duke Energy's merger with Cinergy in the amount of $2,348 million.
Franchised Eleclric and Gas has been allocated $1,148 million. Commercial Power has been allocated $1,200 million.
All of Duke Energy Ohio's revenues are generated and 113 long-lived assets are invested domestically.
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5. Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Assels and Liahilifies. Duke Energy Ohio’s regulated operations are subjeclt to SFAS No. 71. Accordingly, Duke Energy Ohio records
assets and liabilities that result from the regulaled ratemaking process that would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regufalad entities. {For further
information see Note 1.)

Duke Energy Ohio's Regulatory Assets and Liabilities:

Successor"l Predecessort”
— R R 3
As of December 31, ecove:fyi efun

2006 | 2005 Period Ends
_{in millions)

Net 1egulat0ry asset related to income 1axes
Accrist pension and post retirement™ - -
Regulatory Transiticn Charges (RTC)
Capital-related distiibution costs? * - bl e
Unamortized costs of reacquiring debt (@’ o B
Paskin-senvicé carrying cosis and deferred Gpérafing expense -7 -1
Hedge cosls and other deferrals B ]

Qther = " ey e T

Total Regulatory Assels $ 654 $ 565

R L T A 149 L

Tatal Regulatory Liabilities $ 167 $ 152

{1} See Note 1 far additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

(a} All regutatory assets and liabilities are excludad from rate base unless otherwise noted.

(b} Included in Regulalory Assels and Deferred Debils on the Consolidated Balance Sheels.

{c) included inrale base.

{d) Included in Regulatory Liabilities on the Consclidated Balance Sheets.

{e} Recovery/refund is over the life of lhe associated asset or liability.

{f) Liability is extinguished over the lives of the associated assets.

(g} Recovery/Refund period currently unknown.

(1) Includes $31 million related to adoplion of SFAS No. 158 (see Note 18) and $116 million related to impacts of purchase accounting as a result of

Duke Energy's merger with Cinergy (see Mote 2).

{iy Recovered via revenue rider.

Regulatory Merger Approvals. As discussed in Nate 1 and Note 2, on April 3, 2008, the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy was
consummaled to creale a newly formed company, Duke Energy Hotding Corp. (subsequantly renamed Duke Energy Corporalion). As a condition 1o the
merger approval, he PUCO and the Kentucky Public Service Commission (KPSC) required that certain merger related savings be shared with
consumers in Ohio and Kentucky, respectively. The commissions also required Duke Energy Ohio and Duke Energy Kenlucky 1o meet additional
conditions. Key elements of these conditions incluce:

. The PUCO required that Duke Energy Ohio provide (i) a rale reduction of approximately $15 million for ene year to facilitale economic
developmenl in a time of increasing rates and markel prices (if} a reduction of approximately $21 million to ils gas and electric consumers
in Ohio for one year, with both credits beginning January 1, 2006. In April 2008, the OCC {iled a Notice of Appeal with the Supreme Court
of Ohio, requesling the Court remand the PUCQ's merger approval for a full evidentiary hearing. The OCC alleged that the PUCO
improperly failed to: {i) set the malter for a full evidenliary hearing; (ii) consider evidence regarding the lransfer of certain Duke Energy
generating assets lo Duke Energy Chio; and (i) tift the slay on discovery. Duke Energy Ohio and the OCC settled this malter and in June
2006, the Courl granled the OCC’s motion 1o dismiss. As of December 31, 2006, Duke Energy Ohio has relurned $14 miliion and $20
million, respeclively, on each of lhese rale reductions.

. The KPSCG required that Duke Energy Kentucky provide $8 millien in rate reductions to its customers over five years, ending when new
rates are established in the next rate case after January 1, 2008. As of December 31, 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky has returned $1 million
to customers an this rate reduction.
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Lt FERC the merger withaut conditions. |n January 2008, Public Citizen's Energy Program, Cilizens Action Coalition of Indiana, Inc., Ohio
- Partners for Affordable Energy and Southern Allfance for Clean Energy requested rehearing of the FERC approval. In February 2008, the

FERC issued an order granting rehearing of FERC's order for further consideration. On February 5, 2007, after further consideration, the

FERC issued an order dismissina the reauest for a rehearina. . . o
Franchised Electric and Gas, Rate Related Information. Trie KPSC approves rates for retail eleciric and gas sales within the state of Kentucky.

The PUCO approves rates and market prices for retail electric and gas sales within Ohio, The FERC approves rates for electric sales to wholesale
customers served under cost-based rates.

Duke Energy Ohio Eleciric Rate Filings. Duke Energy Ohio operates under a RSP, which includes a MBSS0O approved by the PUCO in November
2004. In March 2005, the OCC appealed the PUCQO’s approval of the MBSSO o the Supreme Court of Ohio and the court issued its decision in
November 2006. il upheld the MBSSO in virtually every respect bul remanded to the PUCO on two issues. The Court ordered the PUCO to support a
certain portion of its order with reasoning and record evidence and to require Duke Energy Ohio to disclose certain confidential commercial agreements
hetween an affitiate of Duke Energy Ohio and certain Duke Energy Ohio cuslomers which had been previously requested by the OCC. Duke Energy
Ohio has complied with the disclosure order. Such confidential commercial agreemenis are relatively common in the jurisdiction and the PUCO has not
alfowed preduclion of such agreements in past cases in which the PUCO was presented with a settlement agreement on ihe basis that they are
irrelevant. A hearing on remand ocourred in March 2007 and a decision is expected in the third quarter 2007. Duke Energy Chio cannot predict the
oulcome of this proceeding, .

On August 2, 2008, Duke Energy Ohia filed an application with the PUCO to amend its MBSSO. The proposal provides for continued electiic
system reliability, a simplified markel price structure and clear price signals for customers, while helping to mainitain a slable revenue stream for Duke
Energy Ohio. The application is pending and Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding.

Duke Energy Ohio's MBSSO includes a fuel clause recovery component which is audited annually by the PUCQ. In January 2006, Duke Energy
Ohic entered into a seltiement resolving all open issues identified in the 2005 audit. The PUCO approved the settiement in February 2006. Duke Energy
Ohic does noi expect the agreement to have a malerial impact on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

In addilion to the fuel clause recovery component, Duke Energy Ohio's MBSSO includes a reserve capacity component known as the System
Reliability Tracker, and an Amwally Adjusted Compenent to recover certain incremental envircnmentat, tax and homeland security cosls. In 2006, Duke
Energy Ohio filed an application requesting to modify each of these components. Afler the Ohio Supreme Court issued its remand order in the MBSSO
appeal, the PUCO issued an order permilting Duke Energy Ohio to continue to charge its existing market prices (except for the Sysiem Reliabitity
Tracker which was reset to $0) with true-up lo aclual costs to be decided at a laler date. In the meantime, consideration of Duke Energy Ohio's filing to
amend the MBSSO is suspended pending the outcome of the remand case. Duke Energy Ohio does not expecl a significant change, if any, to the
MBSSG coemponents but cannot predict the outcome of the cases. The PUCQ is expected to decide afl of thesa matters in 2007,

Duke Energy Kenlucky Eleclric Rate Case. In May 20086, Duke Energy Kentucky filed an application for an increase in its base electric rates. The
application, which soughl an increase of approximately $67 million in revenue, or approximately 28 percent, to be efiective in January 2007, was filed
pursuant to the KPSC's 2003 Crder approving the transfer of 1,100 MW of generaling assets from Duke Energy Ohio fo Duke Energy Kenltucky. Duke
-~rgy Kentucky also sought to reinslilute its fuel cost recovery mechanism which had been frozen since 2001, and has proposed to refresh the pricing

‘ ‘e back-up power supply contracl lo reflect current market pricing. In the fourth quarter of 2006, Duke Energy Kentucky reached a setllement

w g-<ement in principle with all parties to this proceeding resolving all the issues raised in the proceeding. Among other things, the seitlemenl agreement
provided for 2 $49 million increase in Duke Energy Kentucky's base electiic rales and reinstitution of the fuel cost recovery mechanism. ln December
2006, the KPSG approved the selllement agreement.

Duke Enerqy Kentuchky Gas Rale Cases. In 2002, the KPSC approved Duke Energy Kentucky's gas base rate case which included, among other
things, recovery of cosls associaled with an accelerated gas main replacement program. The approval authorized a fracking mechanism to recover
certain costs including depreciation and a rate of return en the program’s capital expenditures. The Kentucky Attorney General appealed to the Franklin
Circuit Court the KPSC's approval of the tracking mechanism as well as the KPSC's subsequent approval of annuat rate adjustments under this tracking
mechanism. In 2005, both Duke Energy Kentucky and the KPSC requesled that the court dismiss these cases. At the present lime, Duke Energy
Kentucky cannot predict 1he timing or outcome of this liligation.
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In February 2005, Duke Energy Kentucky filed a gas base rate case with the KPSC requesiing approval to conlinue the tracking mechanism and for
a 314 million annual increase in base rates. A portion of the increase |s altributable to recovery of the current cost of Ihe accelerated main raplacement
program in base rates. In December 2005, the KPSC approved an annual rate increase of $8 million and re-approved the tracking mechanism through
2011. in February 2008, the Kenlucky Attorney General appealed lhe KPSC's order 1o the Franklin Circuit Court, claiming that the order improperly
allows Duke Energy Kenlucky lo increase its rates for gas main replacement cosks in between general rate cases, and also claiming that the order
improperly allows Duke Energy Kentucky to earn a return on investment for the costs recovered under the tracking mechanism which permits Duke
Energy Kenlucky to recover its gas main replacement costs. At this time, Duke Energy Kentlucky cannot predict the oulcome of this litigation.

Other. In April 2005, the PUCO issued an order opening a statewide investigation into riser leaks in gas pipeline systems throughout Chio. The
invesiigation foilowed four explosions since 2000 caused by gas riser leaks, including an Aprit 2000 explosion in Duke Energy Ohio’s service area, In
November 2006, the PUCO Staff released the expert report, which concluded thal certain types of risers are prone to feaks under various conditions,
including over-tighlening during initial installation. The PUCO Staff recommended that natural gas companies continue to monitor the situaticn and siudy
lhe cause of any further riser leaks to determine whether furlher remedial action is warranted. Duke Energy Ohic has approximately 87,000 of these
risers on its dislribution sysiem, If the PUCO ordars natural gas companies to replace all of these risers, Duke Energy Ohio estimates a replacement
cosl of $35 million. At this time, Duke Energy Ohio cannol predict the cutcome or the impact of the statewide Ohio investigation.

In April 2006, the FERC issued an order on the Midwest 1S0's revisions to its Transmission and Energy Markets Tariffs regarding its Revenue
Sufliciency Guarantee (RSG). The FERC feund ihat the Midwest 1SO violated Lhe tariffs when it did not charge RSG costs teo virtual supply offers. The
FERC, among other things, orderad the Midwest 130 to recatculate the rate and make refunds lo customers, with inleresl, to reflect the correct altocation
of RSG costs. Duke Energy Shared Services, on behalf of Duke Energy Chio, filed a Request for Rehearing, and in October 2008, the FERC issued an
arder which, among other things, granted rehearing on the issue of refunds. The FERC slated that it would not require recalculation of the rates and, as
such, refunds are no longer required. As a result, Duke Energy Ohin does not believe lhat this issue will have a malerial effect on its consaolidated results
of operalions, cash flows, or financial position.

FERC To Issue Eleclric Refiability Standards. Consistent with reliability provisions of the Energy Policy Act of 2003, on July 20, 2006, FERC issued
its Final Rule cerifying North American Eteclric Reliability Corporation {(NERC) as the Electric Reliability Organization (ERQ). NERC has filed over 100
proposed reliability standards with FERG. FERC's proposed action {o approve a large number of these standards will result in thosé standards becoming
mandatory and enforceable for the 2007 peak summer season. Other reliability standards will become mandatory and enforceable therealter. Duke
Energy Ohio does not betieve that the issuance of these standards will have a material impact on its consolidated resulis of operalions, cash flows, or
financial position.

6. Joint Ownership of Generating and Transmission Facilities

Duke Energy Ohio, Columbus Southern Power Company, and Dayton Power & Light jointly own efectric generating units and refated transmission
facifities in Ohio. Duke Energy Ohio and Wabash Valley Power Associalion, Inc jointly own the Vermillion generating station in Indiapa.

As of December 31, 2006, Duke Energy Ohio's share in joinlly-owned plant or facilities were as follows:

Property, Plant, Accumulated
Ownership and Construction Work
Share __Eauipment Denreciation in Progress

- ] L ~{in millions)
Duke Energy Ohig - .00 S e L0 R
Producizon

- Miami Fort Station (Units 7 and 8Y® - E3A0 R S 497

W.C. Beckjord Stallon(Unlt 6)“” o 46 _ 3

- LM, Stuart Stationt2¥ S ©420.. 153

Conesvilte Station (Umm)‘“"’ Bl o 28

WML Zimmer Station®™: T FUBAS LT T "0

Killen Station'*® 210 12 44

o -Vemmiliion Station®™:: - RIS K PR R 1 T T SRVANL R

Transmlssmn o ) Varmus_, ) L 88 1

Duke Energy Kenfueky - B S TR T TR

Production: o e o . - e

-~East Bend Stafion®™ . - 890 CLAREE AT e i L A

(@) Stalion is not cperated by Duke Energy Ohio.
(b} Included in Commeicial Power segment

(¢} Included in Franchised Eleclric and Gas segment
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Duke Energy Ohia's share of revenues and operating cosis of the above jointly owned generating faciliies are ingluded within the corresponding

“yihé on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

7. Income Taxes

The following details the components of income tax expense from continuing opesations:

Income Tax Expense from Conlinuing Operations

Successor'”

Predecessor''

Nine Months
Ended
December 31, 2006

Total current mcome taxes '
Deffsrred Income raxes s

Federal ‘

Tolal def ' red mc.ome

Three Months
Ended
March 3%, 2006

December 31, 2005

Twelve Months
Ended
December 31, 2004

Twelve Months
Ended

irsestment 1ax credit amortization
Total income tax expense from
) conllnmnq operallons .

~ e¥pensd from dfsccnhnued
Tolal income tax benefit from

cumuIatwe effect of chanqe in )

" See Nole 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporling.

{Statutory Rate Reconciliation)

~_.conciliation of Income Tax Expense at the U.S. Federal Statutory Tax Rate to the Actual Tax Expense from Conlinving Operations

Successor'” Predecessor”
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
December 312006 March 31, 2006 December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004

|ncome tax expense compuied

-at the statutory fate of 35%:
State income tax, net of

... Jederal income tax effect
Deprecla on and other PP&E

 felated differences ‘

ITC amortization
Other ftems. net

Tolal income tax expense
from conlinuing

Effective Ta¥ Rates -

{1} Sea Note 1 for addilional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
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The decrease in income tax expense {rom continuing operations was primarily due to a decrease in income from continuing operations before
income laxes for the nine months ended December 31, 2006 compared o the predecessor three mordhs ended March 31, 2006 and twelve months
ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. The increase in the effeclive tax rate for the ning months ended Dacember 31, 2006 as compared

la prior periods is primarily related to a change in stale income tax apportionment.
Net Deferred Income Tax Liability Components

Successer " '

Predecessor’”

As of December 31,

2006 |

2005

(in miltions)

Deferred credits and olher liabifities S i V8
Other 6

~ Tofal deferrid incomp faxassets -0 00

Invesiments and olher agsels ) e
Accelérated depreciation ralés R e T IRt

Requlatory assets and deferred deblts o . -7 -~ 1252) )

-+ Total déféifed income Yax fiabifities, = = 7.

Total net deferred income lax liabilities 3 1,454)

-

{1) See Note 1 for addifional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Net Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

Successor l

Predecessort”
As of December 31,

2006 |

Current deférrad tax agsets; included in other current assetd:- " S TR PRI A I s SERAC. SRt .l 1 I
Non-current deferred ax liabilities 1,475)
~ . Totalnet deferred incomietax fabiliies” = rss 70 e DT T T T T e e

(1) See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

{in millrions)

il (1.061)

2005

Although the oulcome of tax audils is uncertain, managemenl believes thal adequate provisions for income and other taxes, such as sales and use,
franchise, and property, have been made for polentiat liabilities resulting from such matters. As of December 31, 2006, Duke Energy Ohio has lotal

provisions of approximalely $26 millicn for unceriain tax positions, as compared 1o approximately $28 million as of December 31, 2005.

8. Assel Retirement Obligations

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, which was adopled by Duke Energy Ohia on January 1, 2003 and addresses financial accounting
and reporting for legal obligations associated with the relirement of langible long-lived assets and the related assel relirement costs, The standard
applies to lega! obligalions assoclated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construclion, development andfor normal
use of the assel. SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which il is
incurred, if a reasonzable estimalte of fair value can be made. The fair value of the liability is added to the carrying amount of the associaled asset. This
additional carrying amounl is then depreciated over the life of the assel. The liability increases due lo the passage of time based on the ime value of
money uniil the obligalion is settled. Subksequent o the inilial recognition, the liability is adjusted for any revisions to the expected value of the retirement
obligation {with corresponding adjustments to property, plant, and equipment), and for accretion of the liability due to the passage of time. Additional

depreciation expense is recorded prospeciively for any property, plant and equipment increases.

Asset retirement obfigaticns at Duke Energy Ohio relate primarily lo the relirement of gas mains, asbestos abatement at certain generaling stations

and closure and post-closure aclivities of landfills. In accordance with SFAS No.143, Duke Energy Ohio identifies

a5
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iin assels that have an indeterminate life, and thus the fair value of the retirement ohligation is not reasonably estimable. These assels include
“yaiismission pipelines. A liability for these assel retirement obligations will be recorded when a fair value is determinable,

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 143, Duke Energy Ohio's regulated electric and regulated natural gas operations classified removal costs for property
{hzl does not have an associated legal retirement obligation as a regulatory lability, in accordance with regulatory treaiment under SFAS Neo. 71. Duke
Energy Ohlo does not accrue the estimated cost of removal when no legaf obligation associated wilh refirement or removal exists for any of our non-
regulated assets (including Duke Energy Ohio's generation assets). The 1otal amount of removal costs included in Regulatory Liabilities on the
Consolitated Balance Sheels was $158 million and $149 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The adoption of SFAS No. 143 had no impact on the income of the regulated electric and gas operations, as the effecis were offset by the
eslablishmeant of regulatory assets and liabilities pursuant to SFAS No. 71.

As a result of the adoption of FIN 47 in 2005, net property, plant and equipment decreased by approximately $7 million, regulatary liabilities
decreased by approximately $27 million, and ARO liabilities increased by approximately $39 million. The adoption of FIN 47 had no impact on the
income of the regulated efectric operations, as the effects were offset by the establishment of regulatory assets. and kabilities pursuant to SFAS No. 71,
For obligations related to other operations, a before tax cumulative effect adjustment of approximately $5 million was recorded in the fourth quarter of
2005 as a reduction in eamings {see Nole 1}.

The pro forma effects of adopting FIN 47, including the impact on the balance sheet and net income are nol presenied due lo the immalierial
impact.

Tha assel retirement cbligation is adjusted each period for any liabilities incurted or settled during the period, accretion expense and any revisions
made to the estimated cash flows.

f

Reconciliation of Asset Retirement Obligation Liahility

Siucéessor"” .

Balance as of April 1, 2006
Acerélion expense -
Revisions in eslimated cash ﬂows
Batance as of December 31, 2006
Predecessor”

Balance as of January .1, 2005.
Adoptian of FIN 47

Hatance as of Decembier 31, 2605
Accretion expense

Revisions in éstimated cash flows
Batance as of March 31, 2006

A See Nole 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

9. Risk Management and Hedging Activities, Credit Risk, and Financial Instruments

Duke Energy Ohio is exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the prices of electricity, coal, natural gas and other energy-related products
marketed and purchased as a result of ils ownership of its non-regulated generation portfolio. Exposure to interest rate risk exists as a result of the
issuance of variable and fixed rate debl. Duke Energy Ohio employs established policies and procedures to manage its risks associated with these
market Ructuations using various commadity and financial derivative instruments, including swaps, fulures, forwards and oplions.
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Duke Energy Chio's Derivative Portiolio Carrying Value as of December 31, 2006

Maturity
in 2010 Total
Maturity Maturity Maturity and Carrying
Asset(Liabiity) in 2007 in 2008 in 2009 Thereafter Value
{in mnilli; )
Hedging 02 5rEhs . e s iy 5
Undesignated

The amounls in the 1able above represent the combination of amounts presented as assets and (fabilities) for unrealized gains and losses on mark-
to-market and hedging transaclions on Duke Energy Ohic's Consolidaled Balance Sheeis, excluding approximately $43 million of derivative assets and
$43 million of derivative liabilities presenied as assets and liabilities held for sale at Cecember 31, 2006 (see Note 13).

As part of the merger with Duke Energy on April 3, 2006, Duke Energy Ohio acquired certain generation assets frem Duke Energy, representing
approximately 3,600 megawatis of power generation and those assels were added to Duke Energy Ohio’s nen-regulated generation portfolio. All
derivatives related 1o the Midwestern generation fleet are included in Duke Energy Ohio's Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006, Duke
Energy Ohio alse assumed approximatety $63 million of pre-tax deferred losses ($39 million, net of tax} associated with contracts formerly designaled as
cash flow hedges of forecasled power sales and gas purchases from Duke Energy's Midwestern generalion fleet. These contracts were sold by Duke
Energy in 2005 and the deferred losses remain an the Consolidated Balanice Sheet in AOC! unti! the related hadged transactions (gas purchases and
power sales) occur. As of Dacember 31, 2008, $30 million of pre-lax deferred net losses on derivative instruments related o commodily cash flow
hedges were accumulated on the Consclidated Balance Sheel in AOCI, and are expected 1o be recoegnized in earnings during the next 12 months. {See
Note 1 and Nole 2 for furiher detaila on the completed merger and Note 3 for details on the transfer of generalion assets. )

Trading and Undesignated Derivative Contracts. Trading. Duke Energy Ohio has heen exposed to lhe impact of market fluctuations in the prices
of naturaf gas, electricity and other energy-related products marketed and purchased as a result of proprietary trading activifies. In June 2008, Cinergy
sold ils commercial markeling and trading business, including certain of Duke Energy Ohio's frading contracis, 1o Forlis. The results of Lhis trading
activity has been reflected in (Loss) Income from Disconftnued Operations, nel of tax in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. In Qclober 2006,
the sale transaclion was completed and Duke Enargy Ohio entered into a senes of Tolal Relurn Swaps (TRS) with Forlis (see Note 13}, As of
December 31, 2006, the remaining power and gas lrading conlracl assets and lisbilities and offsetting TRS were classilied as Assels held for sale and
Liabililies associated with assets held for sale in the Cansolidated Balance Sheets.

Undesignaled. In addition, Duke Energy Ohio uses derivalive contracts to manage the market risk exposures that arise from commaodity price risk
associaled with its future production from its non-regulaled generation fleel. For those contracts serving as economic hedges to manage price risk
assoclated with the generation portfolio, Duke Energy Ohio is subjecl to eamnings volatility associated with mark-to-markel gains and fosses from
changes in the value of the derivative contracts.

Normal Purchases and Normal Sales Exception. Duke Energy Ohio has applied the normal purchases and normal sales scope exceplion, as
provided in SFAS No. 133 and inlerpreted by Derivative Implementation Group Issue C15, "Scope Exceptions: Normal Purchases and Normal Sales
Exception for Option-Type Contracts and Forward Conlracts in Electricily,” and amended by SFAS No. 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Aclivities,” to certain conlracls involving the purchase and sale of electricity at fixed prices in future periods. These
confracts, which refate primarily to the defivery of electricity over the next 8 years, are not included in the table above.

Interest Rate (Fair Value or Cash Flow) Hedges. Changes in interest rates expose Ouke Energy Ohio to risk as a resull of its issuance of variable
and fixed rate debt. Duke Energy Ohio manages its interest rate exposure by limiling its variable-rale exposures o percenlages of fotal capitalization
and by monitoring the effects of markel changes in interest rates. Duke Energy Ohic also enters inlo interest rate swaps to manage and mitigate interesl
rate risk exposure.

Duke Energy Ohio has an outstanding interest rate swap agreement Ihat decreased the percentage of variable rate debt. Under the provisions of
the swap, which has a notional amount of $100 million, Duke Energy Ohio pays a fixed rate and receives a variable rate through October 2007. This
swap qualifies as a cash flow hedge under the provisions of SFAS No. 133. As the terms of the swap agreement mirror the terms of the debt agreement
that it is hedging, we aniicipate thal Lhis swap will continue lo be effective as a hedge. Changes in fair value of this swap are recorded in AQCL
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"\v, Duke Energy Ohio's recognized interest rate derivalive ineffectiveness was not material to its consolidated resulls of operations, cash flows or
financial position for the nine month period ended December 31, 2006 and the predecessor three months ended March 31, 2006 and the twelve monihs
ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. As of December 31, 2006, $4 miltion of pre-tax deferred net gains on derivative instruments refated
to inlerest rate cash flow hedges were accumulated on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in 3 separate component of Common stockholder’s equity, in
AQCI, and are expected to be recognized in earnings during the next twelve months as the hedged transactions occur. However, due 1o the volafility of
the commodities markels, the corresponding value in AOCI will likely change prior 1o its reclassification inlo earings.

Credit Risk. Where exposed to credit risk, Duke Energy Ohio analyzes the counterparties’ financial condition prior to entering into an agreement,
establishes credit Fmits and monitors the appropriateness of those limits on an ongoing basis.

Duke Energy Chio’s industry has historically operated under negotialed credit fines for physical delivery contracts. Duke Energy Ohio requently
uses master collateral agreements 1o mitigate cerlain credit exposures. The coliateral agreemenis provide for a counterpaity to post cash or letters of
credit to the expesed parly for exposure in excess of an established threshold. The threshold amount represents an unsecured credit imit, determined in
accordance with the corporale ¢redil policy. Collateral agreements aiso provide that the inability to post coliateral is sufficient cause to lerminate
contracts and liquidate all posilions.

Collateral amounts held or posted may be fixed or may vary depending on the terms of the collateral agreement and the nmature of the underlying
exposure and cover trading, normal purchases and narmal sales, hedging contracls, and optimization contracls outstanding. Duke Energy Ohio may be
required to return certain held collateral and post additional coliateral should price movements adversely impact the value of open contracts or positions.
In many cases, Duke Energy Ohio's and its counterparties’ publicly disclosed credit ratings impact the amounts of additional cotlateral 1o be posted.
Likewise, downgrades in cradit vatings of counterparties could require counterpariies to post additional coltateral to Duke Energy Ohio and its afiiliates.

Duke Energy Ohio also oblains cash or letters of credit from customers to provide credit support owlside of collateral agreements, where
appropriate, based on its financial analysis of the customer and the regulatory or confractual terms and conditions appficable to each iransaction.

included in Other Current Assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2005 are collateral assets of
appraximately $58 million and $118 miltion, respectively, which represents cash collateral posied by Duke Energy Ohio with other third parties. inciuded
in Other Current Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 are collateral liabilities of
approximately $27 million and $177 million, respectively, which represents cash collateral posied by other third parties to Duke Energy Ohio, This
decrease in cash collateral posted by olher third parlies to Duke Energy Ohio is primarily due the sale of the commercial marketing and trading business
1o Eortis in 2006.

Financial Instruments. The fair value of financiat instruments, excluding derivatives included eisewhere in this Note, is summarized in the
following table. Judgment is required in interpreling market data lo devetop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates determined as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, are not necessarily indicative of the amounts Duke Energy Chio could have realized in current markets.

Financial Instruments

As of December 31,

;\ 2006 2005
-~ (Successor)® {Predecessor)"
Book Approximate Book Approximate
Value Fair Value Vaiue Fajr Value
(in millions)

Lorig-term debtt? - TR PR SIS SRR, = 16 1. 1 PRNREES Jerat, IF 1 7 -, B

(1} See Note 1 {o the Consolidated Financial Slatements for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
(2) Includes cuirent maturities.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, restricted funds held in trust, accounts payable and notes payable and
commercial paper are not materially different from their carrying amounts because of the short-lerm nature of these instruments or because the stated
rates approximale market rates.
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10. Goodwill and Intangibles

As discussed further in Note 2, in April 2006, Duke Energy and Cinergy consummaled their merger, which resulted in Duke Energy Ohio recording
goodwill of approximately $2.3 billion. Duke Energy Ohio had no goodwill prier to this dale. Duke Energy Ohio evaluates the impairment of goodwill
under the guidance of SFAS No. 142 and ne impairment of goodwill has occurred. The following table shows the changes in goodwill for the nine months
endet December 31, 2006:

Carrying Amount of Goodwill

Successort”

Ralance at Balance at
April 1,

Changes

Cormicrcial Power
Franchnsed Electric & Gas
' Total Goodwill- -

{1) See Nole 1 for additional inforration on Successor reporting.

{2) The approximate $175 mitlion increase in goodwill resulting from 1he merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy reflects efforts 1o finalize valuations
and related allocations of goodwill. As of December 31, 20086, the allocation of goodwill jo Duke Energy Ohio and to the reporling units within Duke
Enerav Ohio was substanlially compiete (see Notes 2 and 4).

Intangibie Assets
Effective with the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy, Duke Energy Ohio’s emission allowances are classified as and accounted for as
Intangible assets under SFAS No. 142. The predecesser amounts also have been reclassified to show this presentation. Emission allowances were
previcusly included in Inventory and Olher non-current assets. See Note 1 for more information on this conforming change in accounting policy.
The carrying amounl and accumulated amoriization of inlangible assets are as follows:

Successor’” Predecessor'”
December 31, December 31, Weighted

_{in millions) y
Emission alldwances * [ 2 IR T
Gas, coal, and power conlracls
Other. . - : :

Total inlangible z25sels 776

Accumulated amorlization-—gas, toal and power contracts: -7
Accumulated amortization—other

Total accumuiated apiortization”

Total inlangible assels, net

(1) See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
(2} Emission allowances go not have a conlractual lerm or expiration date.

Carrying vaiues of emission allowances sold or consumed during the nine monlihs ended December 31, 2006, three months ended March 31, 2006,
and twelve months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as loflows:

Successor'” | Predecessor'”
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
December 31, Mareh 31, DPecember 31, December 31,
——— 2006 2006 2005 _20p4

it

ns) .
SR YR

$267.

(1) See Nole 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
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Armortization expense for intangible assets for the nine months ended December 31, 2008, three months ended March 31, 2006 and twelve months
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

Successor” Predecessor’”

Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
December 31, March 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2006 2005 2004

... {in millions)

§A3 T

(1) See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

The table below shows the expected amortization expense for the next five years for intangible assets as of December 31, 2006, The expected
amoHization expense includes estimales of emission allowances consumplion and estimates of consumption of commodities such as gas and coal
under existing confracls. The amorlization amounts discussed below are estimates. Actuat amounts may differ from these estimales due to such factors
as changes in consumption pattemns, sales or impairments of emission allowances or other intangible assets, additional intangible acquisitions and other
events.

2007 2008 2009 010 2011

(in milllons}

Amorlization expense. . ¢ - e e L - USRI e et e T T 0 e - 6

intangible Liabilities

Duke Energy Ohio has net intangible liabillies of $134 miliien as of December 31, 2006 associated with its MBSS0 and other power sale conlracts,
which are $95 million and $39 millien, respectively, that will be recognized in earnings over their contractual lives. Intangible liabilities are classified as
Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amounts expecied to be recognized in earnings over the next five
years are as follows:

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Amoiiization - - Fag et gy
— telated Party Transactions

~" Duke Energy Ohio engages in related parly transactions. These transactions are generally performed at cost and in accordance with the applicable
stale and federal commission regulalions. Balances due (o or due from refaied parties included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,
2008 and December 31, 2005 are as follows:

Successor'? Predecessor'"
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

. {in millions}

Cumentassels w. ... .« .. ST Teer o s o S 1l
Non-current assels o BT : . - g
Current liabilities "= 0% 0 0 e el e it L T e e S Lot ‘

Non-current liabililies

(1) See Mote 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Duke Energy Ohic is allocated its proportionate share of corporate governance and other costs by a consolidated affiliate of Duke Energy. Duke
Energy Ohio is also allocated ils proporiionate share of other corporaie governance costs from a consolidated affiliate of Cinergy. Corporate governance
and other shared services costs are primarily allocations of corporate costs, such as human resources, legal and accounling fees, as well as other third
party costs.
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The expenses assaciated wilh certain allocated corporate governance and other service costs for Duke Energy Ohio for the nine months ended
December 31, 20086, for Ihe three months ended March 31, 2006 and lwelve months ended December 31, 2005 and Becember 31, 2004 were as
foltows:

Successor'” Predecessor'”
Nine Months Three Months Fwelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
March i, December 31, December 31,
December 34 R (1] - P 11 LT . )1 7 S

ons}

250/

(1) See Note 1 for additional informalion on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

See Nole 18 for detail on expense amounts zilocated from Cinergy to Duke Energy Ohio refated to Duke Energy Ohio’s participation in Cinergy’s
qualified and non-quatified defined benefit pansion plans and health care and insurance benefits. Additionally, Duke Energy Ohio has been allocated
accrued pension and other postretirement banefit obligations from Cinergy of approximately $393 million at December 31, 2006 and approximately $248
million at December 31, 2005. See Note 18 for additional information. The above amounts have been classified in the Consclidated Balance Sheets as
follows:

Corporaté governange and shared sevices.éxpensas™:

Successor'” Predecessor'”
December 31; December 31,
2006 2005

ons)

Other carrend fiabiliies -~ - . S
Accrued pensmn and olher poslret:remenl b_enel"l cosls

{1} See Note 1 for additional informalion on Predecessor and Successcr.reporting.

Additionally, certain trade receivables have been sold by Duke Energy Ohio to Cinergy Receivables Company, LLC {Cinergy Receivahles), an
unconsolidated entity formed by Cinergy. The proceeds oblained from the sales of receivables are largely cash but do include a subordinated note from
Cinergy Receivables for a porlion of lhe purchase price. This subordinaled note is classified by Duke Energy Ohio as Receivables in the Consofidatled
Balance Sheels and was approximately $133 million and $177 million as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively {see Nole 12).

See Note 3 for a discussion of amounts paid to Duke Energy Ohio as a result of the agreement between Duke Energy and Duke Energy Ohio
relaled 1o Duke Encrgy's contribution of its ownership interests in five plants to Duke Energy Chio.

Duke Energy Ohio parlicipates in a money pool with Duke Energy and other Duke Energy subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, Duke
Energy Ohio was in a payable position of $274 million and $114 miflion, respectively, classified within Notes payable and commercial paper in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 15 for further discussion of the money pool arrangement.

12. Salas of Accounts Receivable

Accounls Receivable Securitization, Duke Energy Ohio sells certain of their accounis receivable and related collections through Cinergy
Receivables a bankrupley remole, special purpose entity. Cinergy Receivables is a wholly owned non-consolidated limited liability company of Cinergy.
As a resull of the securitization, Duke Energy Ohio sells, on a revolving basis, nearly all of their retail accounts receivable and related collections. The
securilizalion fransaclion was structured to meet the criteria for sale lreatment under SFAS Mo. 140.

The proceeds oblained from ihe sales of receivables are largely cash but do include a subordinated note from Cinergy Receivables for a portion of
Ihe purchase prica {typically approximates 25 percent of the tolal proceeds). The note is subordinate to senior Icans that Cinergy Receivables ¢btain
from commercial paper conduits conirolled by unrelated financiat institulions which is the source of funding for the subordinaled note.

This subordinated note is a retained interest (right to receive a specified porlion of cash flows from the sold assets) under SFAS No. 140 and is
classified within Receivables in tha accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheels. In addition, Cinergy's investment in Cinergy
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*.__~ivables constilutes a purchased beneficial interest (purchased right to receive specified cash flows, in our case residual cash flows), which is
subordinate 1o the retained interests held by Duke Energy Ohio,

The carrying vatues of the retained interests are defermined by allocaling the carrying value of the receivables between the assets sold and the
interests relained based on relalive fair value, The key assumptions in estimating fair value are credit losses, the selection of discount rates, and
expected receivables lumover rate. Because (a) the receivables generally lurnover in less than two menths, (b) eredit losses are reasonably prediclable
due lo Duke Energy Ohio's broad custorner base and lack of significant concentration, and (¢) the purchased beneficial interest is subordinate to all
retained interests and thus would absorb losses first, the allocaled bases of the subordinated notes are not materially different than their face value.
interest accrues to Duke Frergy Ohio on the retained interests using the accretabie yield method, which generally approximates the stated rate on the
noles since the allocated basis and the face value are nearly equivalent. An impairment charge is recorded against the carrying value of both the
retained interests and purchased beneficial interest whenever it is determined that an other-than-temporary impaisment has occurred (which is unlikely
unless credit fosses on the receivables far exceed the anlicipated level).

The key assumplions used in astimaling the fair value are as follows:

Years Ended
Pecember 31,

Anticipated credit loss rate e Tl
Discount rate on expecied c;ash ﬁows )
Receivables turripver raje - : s : 3 0% :

The hypothelical effecl on lhe fa|r value of Ihe retamed interesls assumlng bolh a 10% and a 20% unfavorable variation in credlt Iusses or discount
rates is not material due to the short turnover of receivables and historically low credit loss history.

Duke Energy Ohio relains servicing responsibiliies for its role as a celiection agent on the amounts due on the sold receivables. However, Cinergy
Receivables assumaes the risk of collection on the purchased receivables without recourse to Duke Energy Ohio in the event of a loss. While no direct
recourse to Duke Energy Ohio exisis, il risks loss in lhe event coliections are not sufficient to allow for full recovery of its retained interests. No servicing
asset or liability is recorded since the servicing fee paid to Duke Energy Ohio approximales a market rate.

The following table shows the gross and net receivables sold, relained interests, sales, and cash flows during the periods ending:

Successor'" Predecessor”
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
March 31, December 31, December 31,
December 31 | 2R —20A —__2na

L {in millions)

%, _wables sold as of period end.

LEss: Relained interests

177

Net receivables sold as of period end -~ -~ e v HEwe

Sales during period

Receivables sold SR LT N SRR SEPRTE St 1. 1. 7. R T
Loss recognized on sale Pt

Cash ﬂows during penod

Cash proceeds from soldr
Collection fees received 1" : S R A PR Do ; ‘
Return received on retained mteres{s 13 8 14 10
) See Note 1 for additionat information on Predecessor and Successor reporiing.

2 Cash flows from the sale of receivables are reflected within Operating Activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

i -
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13. Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale

In June 2008, Cinergy sold its commercial marketing and trading businesses, including certain of Duke Energy Ohio's trading contracis, to Fortis, a
Benelux-based financial services group. 1n October 2006, the sate was compieted. Cash proceeds atlributable to the Duke Energy Ohio trading
contracls were approximately $32 million on a pre-lax basis and Duke Energy Ohio recorded an approximate $3 million pre-tax foss on the sale. Results
of operations for ihese trading contracls, have been reflected in (Loss) income from Disconfinued Operations, net of tax, including prior periods for Duke
Energy Ohio.

In Qctober 2006, in connection with this transaction, Duke Energy Ohio entered inte a series of TRS with Fortis, which are accounted for as mark to
markel derivatives. The TRS offsets the net fair value of the contracls being sold (o Fortis. The TRS will be cancelfled for each underlying contracts as
each is translerred to Forlis. All economic and credit risk associaled with the contracts has been transferred to Forlis as of the date of the sale through
the TRS. As of December 31, 2008, approximatety 70% of the contracts have been novated by Fortls. At December 31, 2006, contracls with a net fair
value of approximately $43 million remain in Assets Held for Sale and represent conlracts that have yet 1o be novated by Fortis.

The following tables reflact the assets and liahilities held for sale, the resulls of operations, and the income (loss) on disposal related e investments
accaunled for as discontinued operalions lor the nine months ended December 31, 20086, three months ended March 31, 2006, and twelve months
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004:

Suceessort'! : Predecessor”
Nine Months
Ended Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended
December 31 March 31, December 31, December 31,
2005 ' 2006 2005 2004

(in millions)

Revenues ST :
Operating lncorne [Loss)

Income (Loss) Before Taxes & -
Income Tax Expense (Benefit)
Inceme (Loss) from Discontinuéd Operaiiohs; net'of

Net LLoss on Dispositions

Pra-tax loss on dispositions - .7 nT i s DT e n B LR T
Income tax benefit R & § | B

tLoss on dispositions, netof lax- . . .7 . A v |

Total Income (Loss) from Discontinued 2 (&

(1) See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Successor'” | Pradscessor’”
December 31 December 31,

Assets Held for Sale_'_' S
Currenl aséets
Other agsets: . : T
Total Assets Held for Sale
Llabihhes Assocnated With Assets Held for Sale

Current I|ab1|| les )
Other . Lo

Total Liabilities Assucmied wnh Assets Heid for-SaIe T
(1) See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
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‘. 'roperty, Plant and Equipment

Successor”
December 31,

Estimated

2000

Usefu? Life
3]

" “Electic gengratiory, distribution aid- transmisgion'™ e R TR IR Rl I N EYEE
Natural gas transmission and dlstnbulton‘
" Otfier billldings and improvémentst:
Plam—UnreguIated
. Eleetric generation, distiiuton and transmisgion!
Equ.upmenl )
Constrdction in process -
Other
Total property; plant and equipment. - FR
Total accumulated deprecnalson—requlated"’"°’
Total accumulated depraciation—unregulated' ™.
Total net property, plant and equipment

{a) Includes capitalized leases: $69 million for 2006 and 360 million for 2005,
(b} !ncludes accumulated amortization of capitalized leases: $3 million for 2006 and $3 million for 2005,

n millions}

Predecessor™
December 31,
2005 )

(c) Under purchase accounting, due to rate setting and recovery provisions currerly in place for regulaied oparations, the fair values of property plant
and equipment for the regufaled operations were considered to approximate their carrying values as of the dale of Duke Energy’'s merger with
Cinergy. Accumulated depreciation was not reset to zero for the regulated property, plant and equipment as of the merger date due primarily to
regulatory reporting implications. Unregulated property, plant and equipment was recorded al respective fair values and accumulated deprecalion

was resel to zera as of the merger date. For additional information see Noles 1, 2 and 3.

{d)
(e)

generaling assets to Duke Energy Ohio from Duke Energy {see Note 3).

Balance as of December 31, 20086 includes approximalely $200 million of accumulated depreciation associated with the transfer of cerlain

in January 2006, Duke Energy Ohio completed the transfer of an approximate 69% ownership interest in the East Bend Station and one generating

station to Duke Energy Kentucky. These assets were transferred at their net bocok value of approximately $397 million and are classified as
unreaulaled assets by Duke Energv Ohio. however these assets were previously classified by Duke Eneray Kentucky as requlated assets.

See Nole 1 for additional infermation on Predecessor and Successor regoriing.

\\/ Capilalized interest, which includes the interest expense componeant of AFUDC, amounied to $14 million for the ning months ended December 31,
2006, $3 million for he Ihree months ended March 31, 2008, $7 miflion for the year ended December 31, 2005, and $5 miliion for the year ended

December 31, 2004.
15. Debt and Credit Facilities
Summary of Debt and Related Terms

Weighted

December 31,

Average Year Due

Successor'
¥

¢ 00722036
2008 - 2015
L2014 2039

Unsecured debi-
Capital leases
Other-debt™
Money Pool o ) ) )
Unamortized debt discount and premium, net - 008 e SR v

Predecessor
1

Tolal debt
Current maturities of long-tem debt -

Shori-lerm notes payable and commercnal paper '
Tota! long-tenm debt ’ o R

(a)

Includes $398 million of Duke Energy Chio poliution control bonds as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, $131

million and $179 millicn, respectively, was secured by first and refunding mertgage bonds and $12 miltion and $12 million, respectively, was

secured by a leller of credit,

{1) See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
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As of December 31, 2006, approximately $96 million of pollution control bonds, which are short-lerm obligations by nature, were dassified as long-
term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets due to Duke Energy Ohio’s intent and abilily to utilize such borrowings as long-term financing. Cinergy's
credit facilities wilth non-cancelable terms in excess of one year as of the balance sheet daie give Duke Energy Ohio the ability o refinance these shaori-
term obligations on a long-lerm basis. As of December 31, 2005, $112 million of pollution control bonds, which are short-term obligations by nature, were
classified as a component of Notes payable and commercial paper on the Consolidaled Balance Sheets.

Unsecured Debt. In August 2006, Duke Energy Kentucky issued approximately $77 million principal amount of floaling raie lax-exempt notes due
August 1, 2027. Proceeds from the issuance were used lo refund a like amount of debt on September 1, 20€8 ouisianding at Duke Energy Qhio. The
Duke Energy Ohio debt was assumed by Duke Energy Kentucky as part of the recent transfer of generaling assets from Duke Energy Ohio to Duke
Energy Kenlucky. Approximately $27 million of the floating rale debt was swapped (o a fixed rate concurrent with closing.

Money Poot. Duke Energy Ohio parlicipates with Duke Energy and offver Duke Energy subsidiaries in a money poal arrangement to better manage
cash and working capital requiremenls. Under Lhis arrangement, those cocmpanies with short-term funds provide short-term loans to affiliates
participating under lhis arrangement. Prior to the merger, Duke Energy Ohio participated in a similar money pool arrangement with Cinergy and other
Cinergy subsidiaries. The amounis oulstanding under this money peol arrangement are shown as a component of Noles payable and commercial paper
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amounts outstanding were $274 million as of December 31, 2008, $222 million as of March 31, 2006 ang
$114 million as of December 31, 2005. The change in the money pocl rom March 31, 2006 1o December 31, 2008 is reflected as a $52 million cash
inflow in Notes payable and commarmai paper within Net cash provided by {used in) financing aclivilies on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
The change in the meney poot from December 31, 2005 to March 31, 2006 is reflected as a $108 million cash inflow in Notes payable and commercial
paper within Net cash provided by {used in) financing aclivilies on the Consolidated Statemenis of Cash Flows. The change in Ihe money paoal from
December 31, 2004 to December 31, 2005 is reflected as a $66 million cash outflow in Notes payabte and commerciat paper within Nel cash provided
by (used in}financing activities on the Consolidated Stalements of Cash Flows. The change in the money pool from December 31, 2003 to December
31, 2004 Is rellected as a $3 million cash inflow in Notes from affiliate, net within Net cash used in investing aclivities and a $131 million cash inflow in
Notes payable and commercial paper within Net cash provided by {used in) financing aclivities on Ihe Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Floating Rate Debt. Unsecured debt and other debt included approximately $451 miilion of floating-rate debt as of December 31, 2006 and $390
million as of December 31, 2005. Floating-rale debl is primarily based on commercial paper rates or a spread relative to anindex such as a London
interbank Offered Rate for debl denominated in L1.S. dollars. As of December 31, 2008, the weighted-average interest rale associaled with lealing-rate
debl was approximately 4.2%.

Maturities, Call Optlons and Acceleration Clauses.

Annual Maturities as of December 31, 2006

pnrnuhons[
2007 - - § o
2008 )
2009; -
2010 ,
20011 .0 o

Thereafter

Teotal fong-term.dedt (inciaditig Current matirities) - : e ; : R RO it
Cuke Energy Ohie has the abitily under certain debt facmtles 1o caII and repay lhe obhgatlon prlo: lo ils scheduled matunly Therefore the actual

liming of future cash repaymenls could be materially dilferent than the above as a result of Duke Energy Ohio’s ability to repay these obligations prior to

ineir scheduled maturily.
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\._- Available Credit Facilities and Reslriclive Debt Covenants. Duke Energy Ohio receives support for its short-term borrowing needs from its
parent entity, Cinergy, whose short-term borrowings censist primarity of unsecured revolving lines of credit and sale of commerdial paper. During June
2006, Cinergy and ils subsidiaries, including Duke Energy Ohio, amended their multi-year syndicated $2.0 billion revolving credit fadility to extend the
expiration date from September 2010 to Juna 2011, to reduce cosls, and to conform the terms 1o those found in the legacy Duke Energy facilities. In
November 2008, the credil facility was decreased from $2.0 bilfion to $1.5 billion. This credit facility contains an option allowing borrowing up to the full
amount of the facilily on the day of initial expiration for up to one year and conlains a covenant requiring the debt-to-tolal capitatization ratio to not
exceed 65% for Cinerqy and certain of its subsidiaries, including Duke Energy Ohio. The credil facility also contains a $500 million borrowing sub limit for
Duke Energy Ohio, and a $100 million borrowing sub limit for Duke Energy Kentucky.

The issuance of commercial paper, leliers of credit and other borrowings reduces the amount availablé under the available credit facilities.

Cinergy's credit agreement contains various financial and other covenants; however, Cinergy's credit agreement does not include maternial adverse
change clauses or any covenams based on credit ratings. Failure to meet those covenants beyend applicable grace periods could result in accelerated
due dates and/or terminalion of the agreements. As of December 31, 2006, Cinergy was in compliance with those covenants. In addition, some credit
agreemenls may ailow for acceleration of payments or termination of the agreements due te nonpayment, or 1o the acceleration of other significant
indebtedness of the borrower or some of its subsidiaries. None of the debt or credit agreemenls contain material adverse change clauses.

16. Common and Preferred Stock ;

Cinergy owns all of the common stack of Duke Energy Ohie. In Aprit 2006, Duke Energy acquired 100 percent of Cinergy's outstanding stock for
1.56 shares of Duke Energy common stock per outstanding share of Cinergy common stock. This conversion resulted in the issuance of approximately
313 mitfion shares of Duke Energy commaon stock. See Note 2 for additional information.

In April 2006, Duke Energy Ohio filed a petition with the FERC for a declaratory ruling that its payment of dividends out of ils paid-in capital account,
using the bafance transferred from the retained earnings account, resuiting from purchase accounting arising from the Duke Energy/Cinergy merger,
would not violate section 305(a) of the Federal Power Act, which generally precludes the payment of dividends out of paid-in capital. Such a ruling was
necessary because purchase/push-down accounting reset retained earnings to zero as of April 3, 2008, thus potentially precluding Duke Energy Ohio
from using pre-merger relained earnings 10 pay dividends. Without this approval, Duke Energy Ohio’s ability to pay dividends would bave
been consirained to earmnings since April 3, 2006, In May 2006, the FERC issued an order approving Duke Energy Ohio’s petition.

In March 2006, Duke Energy Ohio redeemed all oufslanding shares of its $16.98 million notional amount 4% Cumulalive Preferred Stock and its
$3.5 million notional amount 4.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock at a price of $108 per share and $101 per share, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid
dividends.

17. Commitments and Contingencies

General Insurance '

Etfective with the date of the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy, Duke Energy Ohio carries, either directly or through Duke Energy's
\.___iveinsurance company, Bisan insurance Company Limited, insurance and reinsurance coverages consistent with companies engaged in similar
comrmercial operations with similar lype properties. Duke Energy Ohio's insurance coverage includes (1) commercial general public liabifity insurance for
liabilities arising to third parties for bodily injury and property damage resulting from Duke Energy Ohio’s operations; (2) workers' compensation liability
coverage to required staiutory limits; (3) automaobile liabillty insurance for all pwned, non-owned and hired vehicies covering liabilities ta third parties for
badily injury and properly damage; (4) insurance policies in support of the indemnification provisicns of Duke Energy Ohio's by-laws and {5) properly
insurance covering the replacement value of all real and personal property damage, excluding eleciric iransmission and distribution lines, including
damages arising from boiler and machinery breakdowns, earthquake, flood damage and exira expense. All coverages are subject to certain deductibles,
terms and conditions common for companies with similar types of operations.
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Duke Energy Ohio also maintains excess labilily insurance coverage above the estabiished primary limits for commercial general liability and
automobile fiabilily insurance. Limits, terms, conditions and deductibles are comparzble to those carrted by other companies with similar types of
operations.

The cost of Duke Energy Ohia's general insurance coverages continued to fluciuate over the past year reflecting the changing conditions of the
insurance markets.

Environmental -

Duke Energy Ohlo is subject lo federal, state and local regulations regarding air and waler qualily, hazardous and sofid wasle disposal and other
environmenlal matters. These regulations can be changed from time to time, imposing new obligations on Duke Energy Ohio.

Remedialion activities. Like others in the energy industry, Duke Energy Ohio and its affilfales are responsibie for environmental remediation at
various contaminated sites. These include some properties that are part of engoing Duke Energy Ohio operations, sites formerly owned or used by Duke
Energy Ohio entities, and sites owned by third paries. Remedialion typically involves management of contaminated seils and may involve groundwater
remediation. Managed in conjunclion with relevant federa), slate and local agencies, aclivities vary wilh site conditions and locations, remedial
requirements, complexity and sharing of responsibility. If remediation activities involve statutory joinl and several liability provisions, strict liability, or cost
recovery ar confribution actions, Duke Energy Ohio or its affiliates could potenlizliy be held responsible for contamination caused by olher parties. [n
some instances, Duke Energy Ohie may share iiability assaciated with contamination with other potentially responsible parties, and may also benefit
from insurance policies or conlractual indemnilies Ihat cover some or all cleanup costs. All of these sites generally are managed in the normal course of
business or affiliate operations. Management believes that comptetion or resclution of these maltters will have no malerial adverse effact on Duke Energy
Ohio’s consolidated resulis of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Clean Water Act. The U.S. Environmental Proteclion Agency's (EPA's) final Clean Waler Act Seclion 316(b) rule became effechive July 8, 2004,
The rule established aguatic protection requirements for existing facililies that withdraw 50 million gallons or more of waler per day from rivers, streams,
lakes, reservoirs, esluaties, oceans, or other U.5. waters for cooling purposes. Coal-fired generating facilities in which Duke Eneargy Ohio is either a
whole or padial owner are affecied sources under that rule. On January 25, 2007, the U.S. Courl ¢f Appeals for the Second Circuit issued its opinion in
Riverkeeper, Inc. v. EPA | Nos. 04-6692-ag{L) et. al. {2d Cir. 2007) remanding most aspecis of EPA’s rule back 10 the agency. The court effectively
disallowad those porlions of the rule most favorable to industry, and the decision creates a great deal of uncertainty regarding fulure requirements and
their timing. Afthough Duke Energy Ohio is slill unable to estimate costs to comply with the EPA’s rule, itis expected that costs will increase as a result
af the court's decision. The magnitude of any such increase cannol be estimated al this time.

Clean Air Mercury Rule {CAMR) and Clean Air inlerstate Rule {CAIR). The EPA finatized its CAMR and CAIR in May 2005. The CAMR limits total
annual mercury emissions from coai-fired power planis across the Uniled States through a two-phased cap-and-trade program. Phase 1 begins in 2010
and Phase 2 beqgins in 2018. The CAIR limits tolal annual and summertime nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions and annual sulfur dioxide (S0, ) emissions
from electric generating facilities across the Eastern Uniled States through a two-phased cap-and-trade program. Phase 1 begins in 2008 {for NO, and
in 2010 for SO, . Phase 2 begins in 2015 for both NOx and SO, .

Duke Energy Ohio currently estimates that it wilt spend approximately $325 million between 2007 and 2011 to comply with Phase 1 of CAMR and
CAIR at plants that Duke Energy Ohio owns or partially owns but does not operate. Duke Energy Ohia currenlly estimaltes that any additional costs il
might incur (o comply with Phase 1 of CAMR or CAIR above the $325 million will have no material adverse effect on its consolidated results of
operations, cash flows or financial position. Duke Energy Ohio currently estimates that it will not incur any significant costs for complying with Phase 2 of
CAIR and is currenily unable to estimale the cosl of complying with Phase 2 of CAMR. Duke Energy Ohio receives parlial recovery of depreciation and
financing costs related to environmenlal compliance projecls for 2005-2008 through its rate stabilization plan.

Extended Environmental Activities, Accruals. Included in Other Current Liabilities and Other Deferred Credits and Other Liabililies on the
Consolidaled Balance Shaels were total accruals reialed to extended environmental-related activities of approximately $8 million for each year ending
December 31, 2006 and 2005. These accruals represent Duke Energy Ohio's provisions for cosis associated wilh remediation activilies at some of ils
current and former sites, as well as olher retevant environmenlal contingent liabilities. Management belfieves that compieticn or resolution of these
matters will have no malerial adverse effect on Duke Energy Ohio's consolidated results of operalions, cash flows or financial position.
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Jation

" New Source Review {NSR}). In 1993-2000, the LU.S. Justice Department, acting on behalf of the EPA, filed a number of complaints and notices of

viplation against muliipte utilities across the counlry for alleged violations of the NSR provisions of the Clean Air Act (CAA). Generally, the government
alleged that projects performed at various coal-fired unils were major modifications, as defined in the CAA, and that the utilities viotated the CAA when
they undertack those projects without oblaining permits and installing emission controls for SO 3 , NOx and particulate matter.

In November 1999, the United States brought a lawsuit in the United States Federal District Court for the Southern District of indiana against Duke
Energy Ohio alleging various violations af the CAA. Specifically, the lawsuit alleges that Duke Energy Ohio violated the CAA by not obtaining Prevention
of Significant Deterioration, Non-Atlainment NSR and Ohio’s State Implementation Plan {SIP) penmits for various projects at Duke Energy Ohio’'s ownad
and co-owned generating stations. Additionally, the suit claims that Duke Energy Ohio violaled an Administrative Consent Order eptered into in 1998
between the EPA and Cinergy relating lo alleged violalions of Ohia's SiP provisions goveming particulate maltter at Unit 1 al Duke Energy Ohio's W.C.
Beckjord Station. The complaints seek {1} injunctive relief to require instattation of pollution control technology on various generating units at Duke
Energy Chio’'s W.C. Beckjord and Miami Fort Stations and, {2) unspecified civil penalties in amounts of up to $27.500 per day for each violation. Duke
Energy Ohic asserts that there were no CAA violations because the applicable regulations do not require parmitting in cases where the projecis
undertaken are "routing” or otherwise do not resull in a net increase in emissions. in addition, three northeast states and two environmental groups have
intervened in the case.

1n August 2005, the district court issued a ruling regacding the emissions test that it will apply o Duke Energy Ohio at the trial of the case. Contrary
to Duke Energy Ohio's argument, the distric! court ruled that in determining whether a project was projected to increase annual emissions, it would not
hold hows of operation constant. However, the district court subsequently certified the matier for interlocutory appeal to the Seventh Circuit Court of
Appeals. In August 20086, the Seventh Circuit upheld the distiict court's opinion. Cinergy has petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court for a wiit of certiorari,
which is pending. This issue is before the U.S. Supreme Court in another NSR case involving an affiliate, Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, and we do not
expect further dispositive legal proceedings in this case until after the Supreme Court ruling.

In March 2000, the United Stales also filed in lhe United States District Court for the Scuthern District of Ohio an amended complaint in a separate
lawsuit alleging violations of ihe CAA regarding various generating stations, including a generating station operated by Columbus Southern Power
Company {CSP) and joinlly-owned by CSP, The Daylon Power and Light Company {DP&L). and Duke Energy Ohio. This suit is being defended by CSP
{the CSP case). In April 2001, the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio in that case ruted that the Government and the
intervening plaintiff environmenlal groups cannot seek monatary damages for alleged violations thal occurred prior lo Movember 3, 1994; however, they
are enlitted 10 seek injunctive retief for such alleged violations. Neither party appeated thal decision. This malter was heard in irial in July 2005. A
decision is pending,

in addition, Duke Energy Ohio has been informed by DP&L that in June 2000, the EPA issued a Notice of Violation (NOV) to OP&L far alleged
violations of CAA requirements at a stalion operated by DP&L and jointly-owned by DP&L, CSP, and Duke Energy Ohio. The NOV indicated the EPA
may (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Ohio SIP, or (2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief and civit penalties of
up 1o $27,500 per day for each violation. In September 2004, Marilyn Wall and the Siesra Club brought a lawsuit against Duke Energy Chio, DP&L and

~© for alleged violations of the CAA at this same generating station. This case is currently in discovery in front of the same judge who has the CSP

S ltis not possible e predict with certainty whether Duke Energy Ohio will incur any liability or to estimate the damages, it any, that Duke Energy Ohio

might incur in conneclion with these matters.

Section 126 Petitions. In March 2004, the stale of North Carolina filed a pelition under Saction 1286 of the CAA in which it alleges that sources in 13
upwind states, including Ohio, significantly contribute to North Carolina's non-attainment with certain ambient air gquality standards. In August 2005, the
EPA issued a proposed response to the petilion. The EPA proposed to deny the ozone poriien of the petition based upen a lack of contribution to air
quality by the named states. The EPA also proposed to deny the particutate matter portion of the pelition based upon the CAIR Federal implementation
Plan (FIP}, that would address the air quality concerns from neighboring states. On Aprit 28, 2006, the EPA denied North Carolina’s petition based upon
the fina! CAIR FIP described above. North Carolina has filed a legal chalienge to the EPA’s denial.

Carbon Dioxide Litigation. n July 2004, the slates of Conneclicul, New York, California, lowa, New Jersey, Rhede Island, Vermont, Wisconsin, and
the City of New Yark brought a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against

58



Table of Contents

PART I
DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)

Cinergy. American Electric Power Company, Inc., American Electric Power Service Corporation, The Southern Company, Tennessee Valley Autharity,
and Xcel Energy Inc. A similar lawsuit was fited in the United States District Court for the Southern Disbict of New York against the same companies by
Open Space Instituteg, Inc., Open Space Conservancy, Inc., and The Aucdubon Sociely of Mew Hampshire, These lawsuits allege that the defendants’
emissions of carbon dioxide (CQ , ) from the combustion of fossil fuels at efectric generating facilities contribute to global warming and amount 1o a
public nuisance. The complaints also allege that the defendants could generate the same amount of electricity while emitling significantly jess CO, . The
plaintiffs are seeking an injunction requiring each defendant te cap its CO; emisstons and then reduce them by a specified percentage each year for at
least a decade. In Seplember 2005, the district court granted the defendants’ motion o dismiss the lawsuit. The plaintiffs have appealed this ruling to the
Second Circuil Court of Appeals. Oral argument was held before the Second Circuit Court of Appeats on June 7, 2006,

i is not possible {0 predict with certainty whether Duke Energy Ohio will incur any liability or e estimate the damages, if any, that Duke Energy Ohic
might incur in connection with this matter.

Zimmer Generaling Stalion {(Zimmer Slation) Lawsuil. In November 2004, a cilizen of the Village ¢f Moscow, Chio, the lown adjacent to Duke
Energy Ghio’s Zimmer Station, brought a purporled class action in the Uniled Stales District Courl for the Southern District of Ohio seeking manetary
damages and infunciive refief against Duke Energy Ohia for alteged violations of the CAA, the Ghilo SIP, and Ohia taws against nuisance and common
law nuisance. The plainlifis have filed a number of additional notices of intent to sue and two lawsuits raising claims similar to those in the original claim.
One lawsuit was dismissed on procedural grounds, and the remaining two have been consolidated. On December 28, 2006, the District Court certified
this case as a class action. Limited discovery on dlass definilion continues. At this lime, Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict whether the outcome of this
matler will have a material impacl on ils consolidated financial posilion, cash flows ar resulls of operations. Duke Energy Chio intends to defend this
lawsuil vigorously in court.

Manufacfured Gas Plant (MGP} Sites. Duke Energy Ohio has performed site assessmenls on certain of ils sites where MGP activilies are believed
lo have occurred at seme point in the past and have found no imminent risk 10 the environment. At this time, Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict whether
investigation and/or remediation will be required in the fulure at any of these sites.

Ontario, Canada Lawsuit. Duke Energy Ohio understands that a class action lawsult was filed in Superior Court in Ontario, Canada against Duke
Energy Ohio and approximately 20 olher ulility and power generation companies alleging varfous claims relating o environmental emissions from coal-
fired power generation facilities in the Uniled Slates and Canada and damages of approximately $50 billion, with continuing damages in the amount of
appraximalely $4 billion annually. Duke Energy Ohic understands thal the lawsuit also claims enfilement to punilive and exemplary damages in the-
amount of $1 billien. Duke Energy Ohie has not yet been sarved in this lawsuit; however, if served, Duke Enargy Ohio intends 1o defend this lawsuit
vigorausly in coud. At this time, Duke Energy Ohlo Is not able to predict whether resolution of this matter would have a material effect on its consolidated
financial posilion, cash {lows or resulls of operations,

Hurricane Kalrina tawsuit. In April 2006, Cinergy was named in the third amended complaint of a purporied class action lawsuit filed in the United
States District Courl for the Southern District of Mississippi. Plaintiffs claim that Cinergy, along with numerous oither utilities, oil companies, caal
companies and chemical companies, are liable for damages relaling to losses suffered by viclims of Hurricang Katrina. Plaintiifs claim that defendants’
greenhouse gas emissions contributed to the frequency and intensity of storms such as Hurricane Katlrina. In Oclober 2006, Cinergy was served with
this lawsuit and subsequently filed a molion (o dismiss. Prior to a ruling on that motion, in December 2006 plaintiffs filed a motion for leave lo file a fourth
amended complaint to set forlh addilional claims, add additional parties and to substitute proper parties for improperly named defendants. Specifically,
plaintiffs seek to replace holding companies, such as Cinergy, with their operating company subsidiaries, such as Duke Energy Chio. It is not possible (o
predicl with cedainty whether Duke Energy Ohio will incur any liability or to estimate the damages, if any, thal Duke Energy Ohio might incur in
connection wilh this matter.

Asbestos-refated Injuries and Damages Claims. Duke Energy Ohic has been named as defendant or co-defendant in lawsuils related to asbestos
at its eleciric generating stations. Currently, there are fewer Ihan 10 pending lawsuils, in these lawsuils, plaintiffs claim to have been exposed 1o
asbestos-containing products in the course of their work as outside contractors. The plaintitfs furiher claim that as the property owner of the generating
slations, Duke Energy Ohio should be held liable for their injuries and illnesses based on an alleged duty to warn and protect them from any asbestos
exposure. The impact on Duke Energy Ohio's financial position, cash flows, or results of aperations of these cases to date has not been material. As
Ouke Energy Ohio has been named in fewer than 10 cases, it has virtually no seltlement history for asbestos cases. Thus, Duke Energy Ohio is nol abie
to reasonably estimate the range of polential loss from current or future lawsuils. Howaver, potential judgments or setllements of existing or luture claims
could be material to Duke Energy Ohio.
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L :Other Litigation and Legal Proceedings. Duke Energy Ohio and s subsiiares are involved in other legal, tax and regulatory proceedings arising in
lﬁé/ordinary course of business, some of which involve subslantial amounts. Management believes that the final disposition of these proceedings will not
have a material adverse effect on Duke Energy Ohio's consolidated resulls of operations, cash Rows or financial position.

Duke Energy Ohio has exposure to certain legal matters that are described herein. As of December 31, 2006, Duke Energy Ohio has recorded
immaterial reserves for these proceedings and exposures. Duke Energy Ohio expenses legal costs related to the defense of loss conlingencies as
incurred.

Mher Commitments and Conlingencies
Other. Duke Energy Ohio enters into various fixed-price, non-cancelable commitments to purchase or selt power {tolling arrangements or power
purchase contracts) thal may or may not be recognized on the Censclidated Balance Sheets.

Operating and Capital Lease Commitments

Duke Energy Ohio leases assels in several areas of its operalions, Consolidated renlal expense for operaling feases were $20 million for the nine
monihs ended December 31, 2006, $7 mitlion for the three months ended March 31, 2006, $30 mitlion for the year ended December 31, 2005 and $356
miillion for the year ended December 31, 2004, which is inciuded in Operalion, Maintenance and Other on the Consolidated Siatements of Operations.
Capitalized lease obligations are classified as debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets (see Note 15). Amortization of assets recorded under capital
leases was included in Depreciation and Amortization on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The following is a summary of feture minimum
lease payiments under operating leases, which at inception had a noncancelable term of more than one year, and capital leases as of December 31,

2006:

Operating Capital

2007 .

2008

2009 -

2010

2011 e

Therealler )

Total fisture minimium lease 'paymenls.

18. Employee Benefit Obligations
Cinergy Retirement Plans. Duke Energy Ohio participates in qualified and non-gualified defined benefit pension plans as well as other post-
) ment benefit plans sponsored by Cinergy. Cinergy allocates pension and other post-retirement obligations and cosis related to these plans to Buke
M. gy Ohio.

" Upon consummation of the merger with Duke Energy, Cinergy's benefit plan obfigations were remeasured. Cinergy updated the assumptions used
1o determine iheir accrued benefit obligations and prospective net periodic benefitipost-retirement costs 1o be allocated to Duke Energy Ohio. As a
resull, the discount rate used lo determine net periodic benefit cost 1o be allocated to Duke Energy Ohio by Cinergy ¢hanged from 5.50% to 6.00% in
2006.
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Duke Energy Ohio adopted the disclosure and recognition provisions of SFAS No. 138, effective December 31, 2008. The following table describes
the total incrementat effect of the adoption af SFAS No. 158 on individual line ilems in the Duke Energy Ohio December 31, 2006 Consolidated Batance
Sheel, including AQCI.

Duke Energy Ohio

Before After
Application of Application of
SFAS No. 158 Adjustment SFAS No. 158

. lin millions)_

Accrued pension and 'q';hé‘r,‘post'r;e‘ﬁremént‘ber‘geﬂ_t‘:_c_bs'ls T
Regutatory Assets o o e
Defeired incore. tax assals .. B T P
Accumulated other camprehenswe russ net of tax

Tatal Retognized -7 T

(a) Includes approximately $9 million related to pension benefits in Other Current Liabiliies and approximately $3 million related to other post-
employment benelits in Other within Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities on lhe Consolidated Balance Sheels at December 31, 2006.

Qualified Pension Pians .

Cinergy's qualified defined benefit pension plans cover substantially all United Slates employees meeling cerlain minimum age and service
requirements. Cinergy's qualified defined benefit pension plans use a final average earnings formula. Under a final average earnings formula, a plan
participant accumulales a retirement benefit equal lo a percentage of their highesl 3-year average earnings, plus a percenlage of the their highest 3-year
average eamnings in excess of covered compensation per year of participation (maximum of 35 years), plus a percentage of their highesl 3-year average
earnings times years of parlicipation n excess of 35 years. The pension plans’ assets consist of investments in equily and debt securilies.

. Actuarial gains and losses are amorlized over the average remaining service period of the active employees. The average remaining service period
of the active employees covered by the retirement plan is 12 years. Cinergy determines the market-related value of plan assets using a calcuiated vajue
that recagnizes changes in fair value of the plan assets over five years. Cinergy uses a September 30 measurement dale for its defined benefit
retirement plans.

Duke Energy Ohio's Qualified Pension Plan Pre-Tax Net Periodic Pension Benefil costs as allocated by Cinergy were as follows:

Successor'” Predecessor'”
Nine Months Three Manths Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
Pecember 31, WMarch 31, December 31, December 31,
___ 2006 | . .2008 2005
e . o (inmilionsy e
Qualifisd Pension Benefits™~ -~~~ % 20 G T g T g g

(1) See Note 1 for additional informalion on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
(2] Includes immaterial amounis refiected in (Loss) Income From Discontinued Operatiohs, net of tax, in the Consolidated Slatements of

Operations,

The fair value of Cinergy's plan assets was $1.302 million as of Seplernber 30, 2008 and $1,189 miilion as of September 30, 2005. The projected

" benefit obligation for the plans was 1,976 million as of September 30, 2006 and $1.751 million as of September 30, 2005. The accumulated benefit

abligation for the plans was $1,688 million at September 30, 2006 and $1.535 million al September 30, 2005. The accrued pension liability as allocated
by Cinergy to Duke Energy Ohio and recagnized in Accrued pension and olher posirelirement benefit costs within the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $246 million and $152 million, respectively.

Duke Energy Ohio contributed approximaltely $22 miltion, $18 million and $33 milfion for the nine months ended December 31, 2006 and the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, to the legacy Cinergy qualified pension plans. No amounts were contributed to the tegacy Cinergy
qualified pension plans for the three months ended March 31, 2006.
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. ified Pension Plans-—Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss and Regulatory Assets Consist of:
As of

December 31, 2006
{in millions}

Regitatory Assels”. P R
Accumulatecl Other omprehenswe Incnme )
. Deferred income tak asset : R

~ Prior service cost
L 'Nfat actuarial loss:-. B EO R g 3
Nel amount recogmzed—Accum ulated olher comprehenswe Ioss ¥ 2
An immalerial amount in AOCI will be recognized in net periodic pension costs in 2007. -

Assumptions Used for Cinergy's Pension Benefits Accounting

2006 2005 2604

Benefit Obligations *

Discount rate )

Salary increase ¥ -

Nef Perjodic Beneﬂ Cost

Discount rate” = 7 5

Salary i increase

Expected long-ténm rate of relurn on plaii-asséts -

{a) Discount rate for Successor was 6.00% for the nine months ended December 31, 2006. Discount rate for Predecessor was 5.50%, 5.75% and
6.29% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and ihe years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively (see Note 1 for additicnal
informalion on Predecessor and Successor repoding).

Non-Qualified Pension Plans
In addilion, Cinergy also maintains, and Duke Energy Ohio participates in, non-qualified, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans {plans
that do not meet the criteria for certain tax benefits} that cover officers, certain other key employees, and non-emplayee directors. There are no plan
assets. The projecled benefit obligation far the ptans was $114 million as of Seplember 30, 2006 and $147 milliors as of September 30, 2005. The
“imulaled benefil abligation fos the plans was $109 million at September 30, 2006 and $132 miflion at September 30, 2005. The accrued pension
ly as allacated by Cinergy to Duke Energy Ohio and recognized in Accrued pension and other postretirement benefit costs within the Consolidated
\;urénce Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $6 million and $10 millicn, respectively, and as recognized in Other Current Liabilities within the
Consalidated Balance Sheet al December 31, 2006 was $2 miliion.
Duke Energy Ohio"s Non-Qualified Pension Plan pre-tax Nel Periodic Pension Benefit Costs as allocated by Cinergy were as follows:

Successor Predecessor'”’
Nine Months Fhree Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
fdarch 31, December 31, December 31,
Nercpmbar 31| (1] : A — MN&s _2and .

{in millions)

Nop-Quatified Pension™? - - - v oD g e TTEREY

{1} See Note 1 for addilional information on Predecessor and Successor reporfing.

{2} Includes immaterial amounts reflected in (Loss) Income From Disconlinued Operations, nat of tax, in the Consolidated Slatemenls of
Operations.

G2



Table of Contents
PARTH
DUKE ENERGY OHID, INC,
Notes To Consolidaled Financial Statements—{Continued)

Non-Qualified Plans—Assumptions Used for Cinergy’s Pension Benefits Accounting

Banefit Obligations. - .F <
DLscounl Jate
Satary Ir_lcrezva'se

Salary increase

(a) Discount raie for Successor was 5.00% for the nine months ended December 31, 2006. Discount rale for Predecessor was 5.50%, 5.75% and
6.25% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respeciively (see Note 1 for additionat
information on Predecessor and Successor reportinal.

Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Duke Ensargy Ohio participates in other postretirement benefit plans sponsered by Cinergy. Cinergy provides ceriain health care and life insurance
benefits to retired United Stales employees and their eligible dependents on a conjribulory and non-conlributory basis. These benefits are subject 10
minimum age and service requirements. The health care benefits include medical coverage, denlal coverage, and prescription drug coverage and are
subject to cedain limitalions, such as deductibles and co-payments. These banefil cosls are accrued over an employee’s aclive service period to the
date of full benefils eligibi!ily. The net unrecognized transiticn obligation is amertized over approximalely 20 years. Actuarial gains and losses are
amoerlized over the average remaining service period of the active employees. The average remaining service period of the aclive employees covered by
the plan is 13 years. There are no plan assets. The accumulated other post-relirement benefit abligation for lhe plans was $497 million as of
September 30, 2006 and $414 million as of September 30, 2005. The accruad other post-retirement liability as allocated by Cinergy to Duke Energy
Ohio and recognized in Accrued pension and other postretirement benefit costs within the Consolidaled Balance Sheels at December 31, 2006 and
2005 was $129 millicn and $74 million, respectively and as recognized in Other Current Liabilities wilhin the Consuolidated Balance Sheet at
December 31, 2006 was 37 millign.

Duke Energy Ohio's Other Posl-Refirement Plan pre-tax Net Periodic Benefil costs as allocated by Cinergy were as follows:

Successor™” Predecessor "
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
March 31, December 31, December 31,
RNeremheor 311 — MK . wns A
e T _Ainmilliens) L
Other Péstratifement: =700 75 W Tn Sl fglo g : S

(1} See Mote 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
(2} Includes immaterial amounts reflected in {Loss) Income From Ofisconlinued Operations, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Duke Energy Ohio recognized regulatory assets and AOC! relaled to its olher post-retirement benefit plans of approximately $4 million and zaro,
respeciively, within the Censolidaled Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2006.

Assumptions Used in Cinergy's Other Postretirement Benefits Accounting

2004

Benefit Obligations =

5.75

Discount rale R Xk
Salary increase: 1 L C i  NIA
Net Periodic BenefltCost o
Discount fate™ - e B:28
Salary increase ... NiA
Expected lang-temi:rate of return on'pldn assets - e T NEA

(a) Discount rate for Successor was 6.00% for the nine months ended December 31, 2006. Discount rate for Predecessor was 5.50%, 6.00% and
8.75% for the three monihs ended March 31, 2006 and the years ended Dacember 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively {see Note 1 for addilional

information on Predecessor and Successor reportinal.
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Jther Income and Expenses, net

DUKE ENERGY CHIQ, INC.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

PRSNNEL Rk

S The components of Other Income and Expenses, nel on the Ceonsolidated Statements of Operations for the nine months ended December 31,

2008, three months ended March 31, 2008 and the years ended Becember 31 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Total s el

{1) See the‘ 1' for ad&i{.ior{a! inforenation on Predecessar an

20. Subsequent Events

Successor'” Predecessor™
Nine Months Three Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
March 3%, December 31, December 31,
Decemhbor 311 —— MMM —nns —200d

S A7
d Successar regorting'

For information related to subsequent evenls related to reguiatory matlers and commitments and contingencies, see Notes 5 and 17, respectivety.

21. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Operating revenues
Opéraling income - -
Net income {loss)

Opgra.t!r‘lgjr_guehﬁe:;
Operating income
Net income

Predecessor’’ Successor'”
Second Third Fourth
First Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

Quarter

§ ., 263 $ 696 3 776
116} ¥a] 60
Predecessor'"
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
finmillions}
Csw § B
L 89 e G

(1) See Note 1 for additional informaltion on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
During the first quarter 2008, Duke Energy Ohio recorded the following unusual or infrequently occurring item: approximately $12 million in
integration costs related to the merger of Duke Energy and Cinergy.
During the second quarter 2006, Duke Energy Chio recorded the following unusual or infrequenlly occurring items: approximately $2 million in
integration costs refated to the merger of Duke Energy and Cinergy; a temporary rate reduction of $46 million due to merger appravat oblzined from
PUCO related to the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy and approximately $51 million in pre-tax impacts of purchase accounting adjusiments
which are included in the resuits of operations.
During the third quarter 2006, Duke Energy Chic recorded the following unusuat or infrequently ocourring items: approximately $7 miltion in
inlegration cosls refated to the merger of Duke Energy and Cinargy; a temporary rate reduction of $10 million due to merger approval cbiained from
PUCQO related lo the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy and approximately $20 million in pre-tax impacts of purchase accounting adjustments
which are included in ihe results of operations.
During the fourth quarter 2006, Duke Energy Ohio recorded the following unusual ar infrequently occurring items: approximately 34 million in
inlegration costs related to the merger of Duke Energy and Cinergy; a ternporary rate reduction of $8 millior: due lo merger approval obtained from
PUCO related to the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy and approximately $46 million in pre-tax impacts of purchase accounting adjustments
which are included in the results of operaltions.
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DUKE ENERGY CHIOQ, INC.
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Balance at Balance at
Beginning End of
of Period Additions Deductions® Period
Charged to
Charged to Other

Expense

Mine Months Ended Decemher 31, 2006:
- Injuites dind damages
Allowancg for doubtful accuunts
Uncertain ta¥ provisions®
Other‘

Predecessor‘ o o
Three Months Ended March 31,-2006:"
_Injuries and damages
. Adlowsinca for, doubtiul agealits:
Uncertain tax prowsrons‘_“’ _
- Other™ . o

Year Ended. December. 31,:2005: ©
tnjuries and damages
Allnwance for doubtful a‘cg;ounts fit

Year Ended Decémiber 31, 20041+
Injuries and damages
- Allcwance for doubtful accotinds £
) Uncertam fax provlsmns‘ g
- Oer? e

(1} See MNole 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
(2) Principally cash payments and reserve reversats.,

(3} Included in Taxes accrued and interest accrued within Current Liabilities on lhe Consolidated Balance Sheels.

{4}y Principally environmental and other reserves, included in Unrealized gains on mark-to-market and hedging ransaclions wilhin Current Assets and
Investmenlis and Other Assets, Unrealized losses on mark-to-market and hedging transaclions within Current Liabilities and Other within Deferred
Credils and Other Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financiat Disciosure.
None.

M.esfn OA. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are controis and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required 1o be disclosed
by Duke Energy Ohio in the reports il files or submits under the Securiies Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act) is recorded, processed, summarized,
and reported, within the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission's (SEC) rules and forms.

Disclosure controls and procedures include, withoul limilation, controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information
required to be disdosed by Duke Energy Ohio in the reporls it files of submits under the Exchange Actis accumulated and communicated 1o
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financiat Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia) Officer, Duke Energy
Ohic has evaluated the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) tinder the
Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2006, and, based upon this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that
these controls and procedures are effective in providing reasonable assurance that information requiring disclesure is recorded, processed, summarized,
and reported within the timeframe specified by the SEC's rules and forms,

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting !

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Execulive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, Duke Energy
Chio has evaluated changes in internal control over financial reporting {as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f} and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act) that occurred during he fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2006 and, other than the Duke Energy and Cinergy merger discussed below, found no
change that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting.

On Apiil 3, 2008, the previously announced merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy was consummated. Duke Energy is in process of integraling
Cinergy's operations and has included Cinergy's activity in its evaluation of internal control over financial reparling pursvant to Seclion 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. See Motes 1, 2, 4 and 5 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information relating to the merger.
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Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services,

The foltowing table presents fees for professional services rendered by Defoitte & Touche LLP, and the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
and their respective affiliates (collectively, “Deloitte™} for Duke Energy Ohia for {he nine months ended Decermber 31, 2006, the three months ended
March 31, 2006, and the twelve months ended December 31, 2006:

Successor'” Predecessort”
Nine Months
Ended Three Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended
December 31, March 31, December 31,

20056 2008

Audif Feé:
Audit-Rel
Tax Feas's'.-
Total Fees:

{1} See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

{a) Audil Fees are fees billed or expected to be billed by Deloitte for professional services for the audit of Duke Energy Ohio's consolidated financial
stalements included in Duke Energy Obio's annual repert on Form 10-K and review of financial statements included in Duke Energy Ohio's quarlerly
reports on Form 10-Q, services thal are normally provided by Deloitte in conneclion with stalutory, regulatory or other filings or engagements ar any
other service performed by Deloitte to comply with generally accepted auditing standards and include comfort and consenl lelters in conneclion with

SF( filinng and financina fransactinns \ i

{b) Audil-Related Fees are fees billed by Deloitle for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of an audit or
review of Duke Energy Ohio's financial statements, including assistance wilh acquisilions and diveslitures and internal control reviews.

{€) Tax Fees are fees billed by Deloille for tax return assistance and preparation, tax examination assistance, and professional services refatad to tax

planning and tax strategy.
To safeguard (he conlinued independence of the independent auditar, the Duke Energy Audit Commitiee adapted a policy thal provides that the

independent public accountants are only permitted 10 provide services to Duke Energy Ohio that have been pre-appraved by the Duke Energy Audit
Commiliee. Pursuant 1o the policy, delailed audit services, audit-relaled services, tax services and certain other services have been specifically pre-
approved up 1o cerain fee limils. In the event that Ihe cost of any of these services may exceed the pre-approved limiis, the Duke Energy Audit
Committee musi pre-approve the service. All other services that are not prohibited pursuant to the SEC's or other applicable regutatory bodies' rules of
regulalicns must be specifically pre-approved by the Duke Energy Audit Commiltea. All services performed in 2005 by the independent public
accounlant were approved by the Duke Energy Audit Committee pursuant to its pre-approval policy.
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ltern 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules,
(a} Consolidated Financial Statements, Supplementat Financial Data and Supplemental Schedule included in Part Il of this annual report are as

WSl
RN
Consolidated Financial Stalements

Consolidaled Statements of Operalions for the Nine Months Ended December 31, 2006, Three Months Ended March 31, 2006 and the Years Ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Nine Months Ended December 31, 2006, Three Months Ended March 31, 2006, and the Years Ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidaled Statements of Common Slockholder’s Equity and Comprehensive Income for the Mine Months Ended December 31, 2008, Three
Months Ended March 31, 2006 and the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Quarterly Financial Dzla (unaudiled, included in Note 21 fo the Consolidated Financial Statements}

Consolidated Finantial Statement Schedule llI—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves for the Nine Months Ended December 31, 20086,
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 and the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

All other schedules are omilted because they are not required, or because the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial

Statements or Notes, .
(c) Exhibits—See Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page.
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PART IV
SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duty authorized.

Date: March 30, 2007

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
(Registrant)
By: s/ JAMES E. ROGERS
James E. Rogers
Chief Exaculive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 10834, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

i) /s JAMES £. ROGERS

James E. Rogers
Chief Execulive Offiser (Principal Execulive Officer)

{iy /s DAVID L. HAUSER

David 1., Hauser
Group Executive and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

(i) fsf STEVEN K. YOUNG -

Slever K. Yeung
Senior Vice President and Controller (Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: March 30, 2007
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibits fited herewilh are designated by an asterisk (*). All exhibits not so designated are incorporated by reference to a prior filing, as indicated.

A

Exhibit

31

3114
3.2
4.1

Amended Articles of Incorperation of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. effective October 23, 1986 (filed with Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.
{formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the quarter ended September 30, 1996, File No. 1-1232).

Amended Artictes of Consalidation, effective Octaber 1, 2006 (filed with Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati
Gas & Electiic Company) ksr the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File No. 1-1232)

Regulations of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., as amended on July 23, 2003 {filed with Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ghio, Inc. {formerly The
Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, File No. 1-1232).

Original Indenture {First Martgage Bonds} between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Bank of New York (as Trustee) dated as of

August 1, 1936 {filed with Regisiration Statement of Duke Energy Obio, inc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) Fite No. 2-
2374).

Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Bank of New York dated as of November 2, 1972 (filed
with Registration Statement of Duke Energy Chio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) File No. 2-60961).

Thirty-third Supplemental Indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, inc. and The Bank of New York dated as of September 1, 1292 (filed
with Registration Stalement of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (fermerly The Cincinnati Gas & Eleciric Company) File No. 2-53578).
Thirty-fourth Supplemental indenture betwaen Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Bank of New York dated as of October 1, 1993 (filed with
Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohig, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the quarter ended September 30, 1993, Fite
Mo, 1-1232).

Thirly-fifth Supplemental Indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Bank of New York dated as of January 1, 1994 (filed with
Regisiration Statement of Duke Enerqy Ohio, inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) File No. 2-52335).

Thirty-sixth Supplemental indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Bank of New York dated as of February 15, 1994 (fited
with Registration Statement of Duke Eneray Chio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) File Mo. 2-52335).
Thirty-seventh Supplementat indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Bank of New York dated as of Oclober 14, 1996 (filed
with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended December 31, 1986, File
Mo, 1-1232),

Thirly-eighth Supplemental indenture between Duke Energy Chie, Inc. and The Bank of New York dated as of February 1, 2001 (filed
with Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Obio, Inc. {formerty The Cincinnati Gas & Eleclric Company) for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, File
No. 1-1232).

Thirty-ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 1, 2002, between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as
Truslee (filed with Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the quarter ended

Sentember 30. 2002, File No., 1-1232).
Loan Agreemen between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and the County of Boone, Kentucky dated as of February 1, 1985 (filed with Form 10-K

of Duke Enerqy Ohic, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended December 31, 1984, Fite No, 1-1232).
Repayment Agreement between Duke Energy Chio, Inc. and The Dayton Power and Light Company dated as of December 23, 1992
{filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended December 31,
1992, File No. 1-1232).
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Exhibit
44

4.5

16

47

4.8

4.9

4.10
4101
4.10.2

4.10.3

4.10.4

4.10.5

4.10.6

4107

41

Loan Agreement belween Duke Energy Otvio, Inc. and the County of Boone, Kenthicky dated as of January 1, 1994 (filed with form 10-K
of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended December 31, 1993, File No. 1-1232).
Loan Agreement between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc, and the Stale of Ohio Air Quality Development Authority dated as of December 1,
1985 (fled with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended December
31, 1998, File No. 1-1232).

Loan Agreement between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and the State of Ohio Air Quality Development Authority daled as of September 13,
1995 (filed with Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ghio, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the quarler ended September
30, 1885, File No. 1-1232).

Loan Agreement between Duke Energy Ohilo, Inc. and the Siate of Ohio Water Development Authority dateg as of January 1, 1994 {filed
with the Farm 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (fermerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company} for the year ended December 31, 1993,
Fite No. 1-1232).

l.oan Agreemen)l between Duke Energy Chig, Inc. and the State of Ohio Air Quality Development Authority dated as of January 1, 1894
(filed with lhe Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Eleciric Company) for the year ended December 31,
1993, File No. 1-1232).

L.oan Agreemenl between Duke Energy Ohic, Inc. and the State of Ohio Air Quality Development Autherity dated August 1, 2001 {filed
with the Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnalti Gas & Electric Company} for the quarter ended September 30,
2001, Fila No. 1-1232). i

Originat tndenture (Unsecured Debt Securities) batween Duke Energy Chio, inc. and The Fifth Third Bank dated as of May 15, 1885
(filed with the registralion stalement on Form 8-A, filed on July 24, 1995, Fils No, 1-1232).

Firsl Supplemental indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, inc. and The Fifth Third Bank dated as of June 1, 1995 {filed with the Form 10-
Q of Guke Eneray Ohio. inc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company} for the quarter ended June 30, 1995, File No. 1-1232).
Second Supplemental Indenlure belween Duke Energy Ohia, Inc. and The Fifth Third Bank daled as of June 30, 1995 (filed with the
regisiralion statement on Form 8-A, filed on July 24, 1995, File No. 1-1232).

Third Supplemental Indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Fifth Thirg Bank dated as of Octoher 9, 1997 {filed with the Form
10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (farmerly The Cincinnali Gas & Eleciric Company) for the quarter ended September 30, 1997, File No. 1-
1237}

Fourth Supplemental indenlure between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Fifth Third Bank dated as of Aprit 1, 1998 (filed with the Form
10-C of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnalti Gas & Eleciric Company) for the quarier ended March 31, 1998, File No. 1-
1232).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Fifth Third Bank dated as of June 9, 1998 (filed with 1he Form 10-
Q of Duke Energy Chio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the quarter ended June 30, 1988, File No. 1-1232).
Sixth Supplemental indanture between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Fiflh Third Bank dated as of September 15, 2002 (fiied with the
Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Efectric Company) for the quarter ended Seplember 30, 2002, File
No. 1-1232).

Seventh Supplemental Indenture between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and The Fifiit Third Bank daled as of June 15, 2003 (fifed wilh the
Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formery The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, File Ng, 1-
1232).

Loan Agreement between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and the OChio Air Quality Development Authority dated as of September 1, 2002 {filed
with the Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Eleciric Company) for the quarter ended September 30,
2002, Fite No., 1-1232).
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4.13
101
10.2
10.2.1
103
10.4
10.4.1
10.4.2
10.5
10.5.1

10.6

N
T0.6.1

Loan Agreament between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority dated as of November 1, 2004,
relating to Series A (filed wilh the Form 8-K of Duke Energy Obhio, tnc. {formery The Cincinnafi Gas & Etectric Company), filed on
November 19, 2004, File No. 1-1232).

Loan Agreement between Duke Energy Chio, Inc. and the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority dated as of November 1, 2004,
relating to Series B (filed with the Form 8-K of Duke Energy Ohio, inc. (formerly The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Campany), filed on
November 19, 2004, File No. 1-1232).

Ernployment Agreement dated February 4, 2004, among Cinergy Corp., Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., and Duke Energy, fndiana, Inc_, and
James E. Rogers (filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended
12/31/03, File No. $-1232).

Amended and Restaled Employment Agreement dated October 11, 2002, among Cinergy Corp.. Services, Duke Energy Chio, Inc., and
Duke Energy Indiana, Inc., and William J. Grealis (filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric

Companv) for the vear ended 12/31/02. File No. 1-1232).
Amended Employment Agreement effective December 17, 2003 to Employment Agreement dated Cctober 11, 2002, among Cinergy

Corp.. Services, Duke Erergy Ohio, Ing., and Duke Energy Indiana, Inc., and Wiliam J. Greaiis {fited with Form 10-K of Duke Energy
Ohiog, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended 12/31/03, File No. 1-1232).

Amended and Restaled Employment Agreement dated October 1, 2002, among Cinergy Corp., Services, Duke Energy Ohig, Inc., ang
Duke Energy indiana, Inc., and Donald B. Ingle, Jr. {filed with Form 110-K of Duke Energy Chio, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnali Gas &

Electric Companv} for the vearended 12/34/02. File Mo. 1-1232).
Amended and Restated Employment Agreemen! dated September 12, 2002, among Cinergy Corp., Services, Duke Energy Ohip, Inc.,

ang Duke Energy Indiana, Inc., and Michael J. Cyrus (filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formesdy The Cincinnati Gas &

Electric Company} for the vear ended 12/31/02. File No. 1-1232).
Amended Employment Agreement effective December 17, 2003 1o Employment Agreement daled Seplember 12, 2002, among Cinergy

Coip., Seivices, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., and Duke Energy Indiana, Inc., and Michael J. Cyrus (fited with Form 10-K of Duke Fnergy

Ohio. Inc. (formerly The Cincinnalti Gas & Electric Company) for the vear ended 12/31/03. File No. 1-1232).
Farm of amendment to employment agreement, adopted and effective December 14, 2005, between Services and each of Michael J.

Cyrus and James L. Tumer (filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the

vear ended 12/31/02. File No. 1-1232). i .
Amended and Restated Employment Agreemenl dated Seplember 24, 2002, among Cinerdy Corp., Services, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.,

and Duke Energy Indiana, Inc., and James L. Turner {filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas &

Electric Companv) for the vear ended 12/31/03. Fite No. 1-1232).
Amended Employmeni Agreement effective December 17, 2003 fo Employmeni Agreement dated Seplember 24, 2002, among Cinergy

Corp., Services, Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., and Duke Energy Indiana, Inc., and James L. Tumer (filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy
Ohio. Inc. tformerty The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Companv) for the vear ended 12/31/03, File No_ 1-1232).

Employment Agreement dated November 15, 2002, among Cinergy Corp., Duke Energy Ohio, Inc_, and Duke Energy Indiana, in¢. and
Marc E. Manly (fiied with Form 10-K of Cuke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the year endad
12/31/03, File No. 1-1232).

Amended Employment Agreement effeclive December 17, 2002 to Employment Agreement dated November 15, 2002, ameng Cinergy
Corp., Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., and Duke Energy [ndiana, Inc., and Marc E. Maniy (filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.
{formerlv The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Comoany) for the vear ended 12/31/03. Fite No. 1-1232).
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10.7

10.8
10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

‘12

231
*31.1
*31.2
“32.1
"32.2

Deferred Compensation Agreement between Duke Energy Chio, Inc, and Jackson H. Randolph dated January 1, 1992 (filed with Form
10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Ing, {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Eleciric Company) for the year ended 12/31/92, File No. 1-1232),

Split Dollar Insurance Agreement, effeclive as of May 1, 1993, between Buke Energy Ohio, Inc. and Jacksen H. Randolph (filed with
Farm 19-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (formerdy The Cincinnali Gas & Electric Company) for the vear ended 12/31/94, File No. 1-1232).
Amended and Reslated Supplemental Retirement Income Agreement between Duke Energy Chio, Inc. and Jackson H. Randolph dated
January 1, 1995 (filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended
12/31/95. File No. 1-1232).

Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retiremen! Income Agreement between Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and certain executive
officers (filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. (lormerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the year ended 12/31/97,
Fite No. 1-1232).

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. and Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. and Allegheny Energy Supply
Company, LLC, Allegheny Energy Supply Wheatland Generaling Facility, LLC and Lake Acquisition Company, L.L.C., daled as of May 6,
2005 (filed with Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, tnc. (formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the guarier ended June 30,
2005, File No. 1-1232).

$2.000,000,000 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement amang the registrant, such subsidiaries, the banks listed therein, Barclays
Bank PLC, as Adminislrative Agent, and JPMoergan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent (fited wilh Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio,

Inc. lormerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electric Company) for the auarter ended June 30. 2006, File No. 1-1232).
Keepwell Agreement, dated April 10, 2006, between Duke Capital LLC and Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {filed with Form 10-K of Duke Energy

Chio, Inc. (farmerly The Cincinnali Gas & Eleclric Company), filed on April 14, 2008, Fite No, 1-1232).

Computalion of Ratio of Earnings lo Fixed Charges.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Cenlification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant lo Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Cerlification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuani lo Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of lhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification Fursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of lhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The total amount of securities of the registrant or its subsidiaries authorized under any instrument with respect to fong-term debt not filed as an
exhibit does not exceed 10% of the lotal assets of the regisfrant and its subsidiaries en a consolidated basis. The registrant agrees, upan request of the
Securilies and Exchange Commission, to furnish copies of any or alt of such instruments to it.
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COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Exhibit No. 12

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is calculated using the Securilies and Exchange Commission guidelines.

e

% charae's calcutations
Add:

copgnbing operations . -
Fixed charges

‘Interest capitalized'™

Total aarings (a5 defined for te -
Fixed-Charaés calculation)
Fixed charges:
- Iriterest on debl, mcluding
capitalized portions
Estimate of interest within
renial pxnensea

Total fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to fixed
charges

Successor”

Predecessor'?

Nine months

ended

Decembey 31.
Eamings as defined for fixed . .

100 | .

Three months  Twelve months

December 31,

Twelve months  Twelve months  Twelve months
ended ended ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,

2003 2007

11 10 9

g0

1.9

45 4.4 4.5

{a) Excludes equily cosls related to AFUDC Ihat are inctuded in Other Income and Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

{1} See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reposting.



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF IMDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.’s Registration Statement Nos. 333-112574 and 333-103200 of our report
dated March 30, 2007 (which expresses an unqualified opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and includes an explanatory
paragraph referring o the Company's application of "push-down accounting” effective April 1, 2006), appearing in this Annual Reporl on Form 10-K of
Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2006. '

/si DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
March 30, 2007



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TQ SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

l. James E. Rogers, certlify that:

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc;

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
—-~ statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements wera made, not misfeadlng wilh respect lo the period covered by this

rennrt:
3} Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

finanricial condifion, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4)  The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e}} for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure conlrols and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrani, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known (0 us by others within

those entities. particularly during the period in which this report is beina prevared: .
b)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this repoit our conclusions about the

effeclivensss of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contral over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscat quarter {the registrant's fourlh fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to

malterially affect, (he reaistrant's inlernal control over financial reportina: and
5) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of mlema! control over financial reporting, to the

reqistrant's auditors and the audit committee of the regisirant’s board of directors {or persons performing the eguivalent functions);
i
a)  All significant deficiencies and malerial weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporiing which are reasonably
likely to adversely affecl ihe registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invelves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
conlrol over inancial reporling.

Cate: March 30, 2007

fsf  JAMES E, ROGERS
James &, Rogers
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

|, Bavid L. Hauser, cerlify thal:

1)
2)

3}
4}

5)

i have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not conltain any untrue statement of a materiat fact or omit 1o state a material fact necessary o make the

stalements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respeci to the pericd covered by this

report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly presentin all material respects the

financial condition, resulls of operalions and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presenled in this report;

The regislrant's other cerlifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and mainlaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{e}) for ihe reqistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclesure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
1o ensure that material informalion refating to the registrant, inciuding its consolidaled subsidianies, is made known to us by others within
those entities. particutarly during the perfod in which this renort is beina prepared:

b} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure conlrols and procedures, as of the end of the peried covered by this report based on such evalualion; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occuired during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourih fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report} thal has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materlally affect. the reaistrant's inlernal control aver financial reporting; and

The regisirant’s elher certifying officer(s} and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal conlrol over financiai reporting, lo the

registrant’s auditors and the audit commiltee of the regisirant’s board of directors {or persons performing lhe equivalent functions):

a) Al significant deficiencies and malerial weaknesses in the design or operation of internal conlrot over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilily 16 record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whelher or not malerial, that involves management or other employees who have a significard role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2007

fs/  DAVID L. HAUSER
David L. Hauser
Group Executive and
Chief Financial Officer

TATHR R, L e SRS



CATIIDI 34,0

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 908 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection wilh 1he Annual Report of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. {"Duke Energy Ohic”) on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2006 as
' with the Securilies and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”}, |, James E. Rogers, Chief Executive Officer of Duke Energy Ohio,
: v, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 206 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that;
\‘“—""(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in 1he Report fairly presents, in all maletial respects, the finandiat condition and results of operations of Duke
Energy Ohio.

lsf JAMES E. ROGERS
James E. Rogers
Chief Execulive Officer
March 30, 2007



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.8.C, SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Duke Enargy Ohio, Inc, ("Duke Energy Ohio"} on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2006 as
fited with the Secunities and Exchange Commission on the date hereo! (e “Report’), 1, David L. Havser, Group Execuiive and Thief Financial Dificer of
Duke Energy Ohio, certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. section 1350, as adepled pursuant lo seclion 908 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

{1} The Repost fully complies wilh the requirements of section 13(a) or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834; and

{2) Theinformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operalions of Duke

Energy Ohio.

/s!  DAVID L. HAUSER
David L. Hauser
Group Executive and Chief Financial Officer
March 30, 2007

Created by 10K Wizard  www, [0KWizard.comSource: Duke Energy Ohio, In, 10-K, April 02, 2007
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Quarterly report which provides a continuing view of a company's financial position
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20548

. FORM 10-Q
\\.. L
‘(Mark One)

QUARTERLY REPORT FURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the guarterly period ended March 31, 2007 or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition perogd from to

Commission fle number 1-1232

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
{Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Ohio

31-0240030
{State or Other Jurisdiction of Incarporation) ) (IRS Employer Identification No.)
139 East Fourlh Street
Cincinnali, OH 45202
{Address of Principal Executive Offices)

(Zip code}

513-421-9500
(Registrant's telephene number, including area code}

indicale by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reporis required to be filed by Seclion 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period that the registrants were required to file such reperts), and {2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whelher the regisirant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or @ non-accelerated filer {as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Securities Exchange Acl of 1934).

Large accelerated Hlar [J Accelesaled filer 0 Non-accelerated filer

‘~ale by check mark whether the regisirant is a shell company {as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Securifies Exchange Act of 1934).
INo X
R

All of the registrant's common stock is indirectly owned by Duke Energy Corparation {File No. 1-32853) which is a reporting company under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1834, as amended.

The registrant meels the conditions set forlth in General Instrugtions H{'i¥a) and (b} of Form 10-Q and is therefore filing this form with the reduced
disclosure format specified in General Instructions H{2) of Form 10-Q.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This document includes forward-looking stalaments within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Forward-looking statements are based on management's beliefs and assumptions. These forward-looking staternents
are identified by terms and phrases such as "anticipate,” "believe,” "intend,” “estimate,” “expect,” "continue,” “should,” “could,” "may,” “plan,” "project,”
“predict,” “will,” “potential,” "forecast,” and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements involva risks and uncerlainties that may cause actual results
10 be materially different from the results predicted, Factors thal could cause actual resuits to differ materially from those indicated in any forward-looking
stalement include, buk are not limited to:

. State and federal legisiative and regulatory iniliatives, including cosls of compliance with existing and fulure environmental
requirements;

. Stale and federal legisative and reguiatory inifiatives 1hat affect cost and invesimerd recovery, have an impaci on rale structures, and
affect the speed at and degree to which competition enters the eleclric and natural gas industries;

. Cosls and effects of legal and administrative proceedings, settlements, investigations and claims;

. Industrial, commercial and residential growth in Duke Energy Chio, Inc.'s {Duke Energy Ohio) service territories;

. Adilitional competition in electric markets and continued industry consolidation;

. The inflience of weather and cther natural phenomena on Duke Energy Ohio operations, including the ecanemic, operational and cther
effects of tornados and other nalural phenomena;

- The timing and extant of changes in commodity prices and interest rates;
Unscheduted generation outages, unusual maintenance or repairs and electric transmission system constraints;

. The resulls of financing efforts, including Duke Energy Ohio's ability to obtain financing on favorable terms, which can be affected by
varicus factors, including Duke Energy Ohic's credit ratings and general economic conditions; ]

. Declines in the markel prices of equity securities and resultanl cash funding requirements cof Duke Energy Ohio for Cinergy's defined
benefit pension plans;

. The level of credit worlhiness of counterparties to Cuke Energy Ohio's transaclions;

. Emplayee workforce faclors, including the polential inability to attract and retain key personnel;

. Growth in opportunities for Duke Energy Ohio’s business units, including the timing and success of efforls to develop demestic power and

. olher projects;
. The performance of electiic generation facilities;
. The extenl of success in connecting and expanding eleclkric markets; and

The effect of accounting prenouncements issued periodically by accounting standard-setting bodies,

in light of these risks, uncertainties and assumplions, the events described in the forward-locking statements might not occur or might occur to a
different extent or al a different time than Duke Energy Ohio has described. Duke Energy Ohio undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking slalements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

item 1. Financial Statements,

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{Unaudited)

{In miltions)

Successor Predecessor

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
March 31, March 31,

2007 2006

Opgrating RWenues T
Non-regulated electiic and olher
‘Regulated eléciiic - .
Requ!ated natural gas

- Total operathitg revenues

Operatmn Expenses.
‘Natural gas purchased -

_Operation, maintenance and oclher .
“Fuel used in elechic geheration and purchased power: 5.

Costs of fuel resold
. Depreclation and amortization” "
Prggerly_and other taxes

‘Ttal o

{Losses\ Gains on Sales of Olher Assets and Other net N

Operating Income: .
Other Income and Expenses, net
Iniérest Expense. 3 .

income from Continuing Operations B&fore Inca ne Tax
Income. Tax Expense from Continling Operitions &

Income from Continuing Operations |
* g from Discontinued Dperations, net of tax.

ncome
ey

See Notes 1o Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statemenits
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Tahle of Contents
PART ]
DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{Unaudited)
{In mibions)

Successor

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006

ASSETS
Current Assets R ] o L
. - Cash and cash equivalents: S Tt ol e ey L

f aliowance for dcubrful acce Mareh 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008)

Receivables
¢ Inventory. G
Assets held for sale N
: Unrealizéd gains on mark-to‘market and fiedging transattions. |
Other

: . i Tolal current assets - -
Invaslmenls and Other Assets
. Restficted furics heid in frust -
~ Goodwill
_:Inlangrbleassets w DA el
Unrealized gains on mark-to market and hedgmg transacnons o
“Assets held for sale : o
Other
: - Total investments and other assets -~ ;. - o=
Proger:v, Plant and Equipment

Less accumulate depreciahon and amonrzahon

- s Net property; plant snd souipment

Requlatorv Assels and Deferred Deb s L
" Deferred debt sxpense s v AT
Regulatory assets related to |ncorne taxes .

“Dther _ A e T et e e
Total regula OrY, assets and deferred debrls ! . 624 €
-Total Assets ... -~ = T I T & -1 IR SEERICEE K I

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
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DUKE ENERGY QHIO, INC,
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS—{Continued)
{Unaudited)

{in millions, except per-share amounts)

Successor

March 31, December 31,

LIABILITIES AND. COMMON STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY:
Current Liabilities
= Adcounis payable s 2
_ Notes payable and ccmmercra
. Taxps accrued’ L
_Interesl accrued
".Ljabiities associaled with assels heid for sale -
Current maturities of long-term debt
Urrrealized losses on magk-lo-markel alid Figdging transaciion
Other

Logg—term Debt _
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities - - -

Deferred income taxes
~Investment lax credit’ . U o
~ Accrued pension and other pustrelrrement beneﬁ costs
. -Reguiatory liabifities . . : :
_Unrealized losses on mark- 10—market and hedglng transacttons 19 29
- Liabilities associaled with dssets feld Tor sale - 18
. Asset refirement abilqahons o
. Other- - ok

Tolal de[erred cfedlls and olher Ilabllltles N 2,304 2,280
Commitments and Continpencies PR S R S e
Cammon Stockholder's Equity L
Cnmmon stock; $8.50 par Value; 12
‘34, 2007 and December 31, 2606
Addltlonal  paid-in capital
Refained earnings o
ccumu1ated other oornprehenswe Ioss
. ._Total comi tockholde fity 2 e s ; B
Total Liabilities and Common Slockholder‘s Eqmtv 3 11 522 % 11 730

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statemenis

PART |




Tahle of Contents
PART |
DUKE ENERGY OQHIO, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)
{ln millions)

Successor

Three Months Ended

Predecessor

Three Months Ended

_March 31, 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMITIES ~= 2.
|- Adjustménts.to reconclle.not incanie 1o net.cash provided by operating:
_ Deprecialicn and amortization : . -
_tosses (gains) o silis of squity vesiments and giherassels =« w2 s DT Y
Deferred income taxes
_Regulatory asseﬂllabmty amoitization. 7 .
Accrued pension and poslrehremem benef t cos
(increase) décieass im '
Net realized and unrealized mark 10 market and hedgn
" Receivables . . P
lnvenlmy L o
- Othercurfent agsets - = 71077 0T
) Increase {decrease} i in:
I AGRouMS palablet
Taxes accrued
- Other currend liabilities:

transactions

- Requ!alory asseh’lxablllty deferra?é.
Other assets. -

h 31,2006

Other I}abllmes -

: - =3
_CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTNITIES
- Capital experzdmtre : i
Purchases of emissio aIIOwances .
_ Sales of emission alfdwances Lo
Wlthdrawal of reslricied funds held in lrust

- ‘Net-cashiused in investing activities .

CASH FLOWS FROM FENANCING AC?WITIES
Issuance of jong-term debl. | S
Redemption of long-term debt ‘ N
Redemption of preferred stack of subsidiarles - 7 - ok
Notes payable and commermal paper

Dividends pald”
Other ] —
MNet cash (used in) provided by financing activities: =~ - -~ o Tee i s U {220) T - B
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents o e - . , f2)
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of pericd A P ST SIS . - L T =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period % 21 % 8
Supplemental Disclosures - - .77 . -
Slgnlﬁcant non-cash transactions: i o -
- Purchase accounting adjustments. N ; | R =
Allowance for funds vsed during construcimn (AFUDC) — equny component 1 1

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Slatements
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PART
DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS CF COMMON STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
S {(Unaudited)
" {ln millions)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss)
Net Gains Minimum Total
Pension SFAS No. Common
Additional Retained {Losses) on Liability 158
Common Paid-in Cash Flow Stockholder's
Stock Capital Earnings Hedges Adjustment Adjustment Equit
Sutcessor - DEVRSIFONE
Three Months Ended March 31 2007
Balance at Dscember 31,2006 . % & - “762:% -
~ Netincome . —
: Other compréher ncome, netof <.
" iax effect of {FRy A T
Cash flow hedges

- Total comprehensive income... . .
. Push-down accounting adlustments )
Adoptmn of SFASN i el

QSUI’B[!!EH: dB!E Brovision

Balance at March 31. 2007 — 3 762 $____5.605

Predecessor R
Balance<at December 31, 20065 N RN

Nel income . R .
Olhercomprehensive ficome
Minimum pension Rability.
. . Cash g hedges’s TN

Totdl comprehensive income’
ividends on commoen stock

\___.dnce'at March 81,2006 -~~~ " § 7620 603 & TL6/ L § T {A3)

See Notes 10 Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
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PART I

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
{Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentalion

Nature of Operations and Basis of Consolidation. Duke Energy Ohio, inc. {(Duke Energy Chio), an Ohio corperation arganized in 1837, is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Cinergy Corp. (Cinergy). Duke Energy Ohio is a combination electric and gas public utility company that provides service in
the soulhwestern portion of Chio and through Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc. (Duke Energy Kentucky) in nearby areas of Kentucky. Duke Energy Ohio's
principal lines of business include generation, transmission and distribution of electricity, the sale of and/or ransportation of natural gas, and energy
marketing. Duke Energy Ohio’s principal subsidiary is Duke Energy Kentucky, a Kentucky corporation organized in 1901. Duke Energy Kentucky's
principal lines of business include generation, transmisslon and distribution of electricily as well as the sate of and/or transportalion of natural gas.
References herein to Duke Energy Ohio includes Duke Energy Ohio and its subsidiaries. In October 20086, Cinergy and Duke Energy Chio completed
the sale of Duke Energy Ohio's irading contracts 1o Fortis Bank S.AJ/N.V. (Fortis), a Benelux-based financial services group, See Note 9 for additional
information.

On April 3, 20086, Duke Energy Corporation (Old Duke Energy) and Cinergy merged into wholly-owned subsidiaries of Duke Energy Holding Corp.
(Duke Energy HC), resulting in Duke Energy HC becoming the parent enlity. In connaclion with the closing of the merger transaclions, Duke Enargy HC
changed its name to Duke Energy Corporation (New Duke Energy or Duke Energy) and Old Duke Energy converted into a limited liability company
named Duke Power Company LLC {subsequently renamed Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC effective Oclober 1, 2006). As a result of the merger
transactions, gach outstanding share of Cinergy common slock was converted inte 1,56 shares of common stock of New Duke Energy. which resulied in
the issuance of appraximately 313 million shares of Duke Energy commaon stock, See Note 2 for additional information regarding the merger. Both Old
Duke Energy and New Duke Energy are referred to as Duke Energy herein,

As a result of Duke Energy's merger with Cinergy, Duke Energy Ohio entered inte a tax sharing agreement with Duke Energy, where the separate
return method is used to allocale tax expense or benefits to the subsidiaries whose invesiments or results of operations provide ihese lax expense ar
benefits. The accounting for income laxes essentially represents the income taxes that Duke Energy Chio wouid incur if Duke Energy Ohio were a
separate company filing its own 1ax returmn. The current tax sharing agreement Duke Energy Ohio bas with Duke Energy is substantially the same as the
tax sharing agreement between Duke Energy Ohio and Cinergy prior 1o the merger.

These Consolidated Financial Statements include, afler gliminating intercompany fransactions and balances, the accounis of Duke Energy Chio
and all majority-owned subsidiaries where Duke Energy Ohio has control. "

Predecessor and Successor Reporting. In connection with the Duke Energy merger, Duke Energy acquired all of the outstanding common stock
of Cinergy. The merger has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounling with Duke Energy treated as the acquirer for accounling
purposes. As a result, the assets and liabilities of Cinergy were recorded al their respective fair values as of the merger consummation date. Purchase
accounting impacts, including geodwill recognition, have been "pushed down” to Duke Energy Chio, resulting in the assets and liablilitles of Duke Energy
Ohio being recorded at their respective air values as of Aprit 3, 2006 (see Note 2). Except for an adjustment related to penslon and other postretirement
benefit obligalicns, as mandaled by Statement of Financial Accounting Slandards (SFAS) No. 87, * Empioyers’ Accounting for Pensfon s,” and SFAS
Noc. 108, " Employers' Accounling for Postretirament Bensfils Other Than Pensions " the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect
any adjustments relaled to Duke Energy Ohio’s regulated operations that are accounted for pursuant to SFAS No. 71, * Accourting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regufation " (SFAS No. 71}, which are comprised of Duke Energy Ohio's regulated transmission and distribution and Duke Energy
Kentucky. Under the rate setting and recovery provisions currenlly in place for these regulated operations which provide revenues derived from cost, the
fair values of the individual tangible and intangible assets and liabilities are considerad to approximate their carrying values.

Duke Energy Ohio’s Consclidaled Statements of Operations subsequent lo the merger include amortization expense relating 1o purchase
accounting adjustments and depreciation of fixed assels based upon their fair values. Therefore, the Duke Energy Ohio financial data prior to the merger
will not generally be comparable to its financial dala subsequent to the merger. Sez Nole 2 for additional information.

Due 1o the impact of push-down accounting, the financial statemenis and certain note presentations separate Buke Energy Ohio’s presentations
into two distinct pariods, 1he period before the consummation of the merger (labeled "Predecessor”) and the period afler that date (tabeled "Successor”),
to indicate the applicalion of dilferent basis of accounting between the periods presented.
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e These Consolidated Financial Slatements refiect all normal recurring adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary to fairly
present Duke Energy Ohio's financial position and results of operations. Amounts reported in the interim Consolidated Statements of Operations are not
necessarily indicalive of amounls expecied for the respective annual periods due to the effecis of seasonal temperature variations an energy
consumption, the timing of maintenance on elechic generating unils, changes in mark-to-market (MTM) valuations, changing commodity prices, and
other factors. These Gonsalidated Financial Statements and other information included in this quarterly report shauld be read in conjunction with the
Consalidated Financial Slatements and Notes in Duke Energy Ohio’s Form 10-X for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Use of Estimates. To conform to generally accepled accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States, management makes estimates and .
assumptions that affect the amounts reporied in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best available knowtedge at the time, aciual results could differ.

Reclassifications. The financial statements for periods prior to the merger have been reclassified to conform with Duke Energy’s format. Certain
other prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation for the current period. Such reclassifications include the reclassification
of income from continuing operations from Cuke Energy Ohio's commercial marketing and trading business to disconlinued operations.

Regulation. Duke Energy Ohio uses the same accounting policies and practices for financial reporting purposes as non-regulaied companies
under GAAP. However, sometimes actions by its regulators, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and the state ulility commissions,
result in accounting treatment different from that used by nen-regulated companies. When this occurs Duke Energy Ohio applies the provisions of SFAS
No. 71. The economic effects of regulation can result in a regulated company recording assets for costs that have been or are expected to be approved
for recovery from customers or recording liabilities for amounts that are expected to be retumed to customers in the rate-setting process in a period
different from the period in which the amounis would be recorded by an umegulated enterprise. Accordingly, Duke Energy Chic records assels and
liabilities that resuit from the regulated ralemaking process that would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regutated entities. Management continually
assesses whether regulatory assels are probable of future recovery by considering factors such as applicable regulatory changes, recent rate orders
applicable 10 other regulated entities and the status of any pending or potential deregulation legislation. Based on this confinual assessment,
management befieves the existing regulatory assets are probable of recovery. These regulatory assets and liabilities are primarily classified in the
Cansglidaled Balance Sheets as Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits, and Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities, Duke Energy Ohio periodically
evaluates 1he applicability of SFAS No. 71, and considers factors such as regulatory changes and the impact of competition. If cosk-based regulation
ends or compelition increases, Duke Energy Chio may have to reduce its asset balances to reflect a market basis less than cost and write-off their
associated regulatory assels and liabilities.

The state of Ohic passed comprehensive electric deregulation legisiztion in 1989, and in 2000, the Public Utiliies Commission of Ohio (PUCO)
approved a stiputation agreement relating to Duke Energy Ohio’s transition plan creating a Regulatory Transition Charge {RTC) designed to recover
Duke Energy Ohio's generation-related regulatory assels and transition costs over a ien-year period beginning January 1, 2001, Accordingly, application
of SFAS No. 71 was discontinued for the generation portion of Duke Energy Ohio’s business. Duke Energy Ohio has a RTC balance of approximately
$310 million and $331 million as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008, respactively, which is ¢lassified in Other Regulatory Assets and Deferred

. s on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The RTC resulted from comprehensive derequlation legislaticn passed in the state of Ohio in 1999 and has

‘,\H A approved by the PUCO to be recovered over a ten-year period beginning January 1, 2001.

2. Duke Energy/Cinergy Merger

On April 3, 2006, the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy was consumimated {see Note 1 for addilional information on the merger, purchase
accounting and Predecessor and Successor reparting). For accounting purposes, the effective date of the merger was April 1, 2006. The merger
combines the Duke Energy and Cinergy regulated franchises as well as deregulaied genreration in the Midwestern United Slates (Midwest).
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As discussed in Note 1 above, purchase accounting impacts, including goodwill recognition, have been “pushed down” to Duke Energy Ohio,
resulting in the assets and liabilities of Duke Energy Ohio being recorded at their respective fair values as of April 3, 2006. The following unaudited
consolidated pro forma financial results for Duke Energy Ohio are presented as if the merger with Duke Energy had occurred at the beginning of the
period presented:

Unaudited Consolidaled Pro Forma Results (Predecessor)

Three Months
Ended
March 31,
2006

millions)
Operaling révenues - . L g
Income from commumg operahuns
Net income ™ A '

These pro ferma resulls do not include any significant transactions completed by Buke Energy Ohlo cther than the impact of Cinergy's merger with
Duke Energy.

Prior to consummation of the merger, certain requlatory approvals were received from the state utility commissions and the FERC. See Note 12 for
a discussion of the regulatory impacts of the merger.

3. Transfer of Certain Duke Energy Generating Assets to Duke Energy Ohio

in April 2008, Duke Energy contributed 1o Duke Energy Ohio its ownership interest in five plants, representing a mix of combined cycle and peaking
plants, with a combined capacily of 3,600 megawalts (MW). The transaction was effective in April 2006 and was accounted for al Duke Energy's net
book value for these assets. The entities holding these generating plants, which were indirect subsidiaries of Duke Energy, were firsi distributed to Duke
Energy, which then contributed them 1o Cinergy which, in turn, contributed them to Duke Energy Ohlo. In the final step, the entities were then merged
into Duke Energy Ohio,

The following unaudited consolidated pre forma financial results for Duke Energy Ohio are presented as if the contribution of the Duke Energy
generating assets lo Duke Energy Ohio had occurred al the beginning of the period presented:

Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Resuits {Praedecessor)

Three Months
Ended
March 31,
2006

{in millions)
Cperaling revenues .- . §i 974
Income from commumg operaltons
Netincome e s

These pro forma resulls do not include any significant transactions completed by Duke Energy Ohio other than the impact of the transfer of the
ownership interest in the five planis as discussed above. As parl of this lransaction, Duke Energy agreed to reimburse Duke Energy Ohio, on a quarterly
basis, through April 2016 in the event of certain cash shortalls related to 1he performance of he five plants. Based on the assessment of the
performance of the five plants during the first quarter 2007, Duke Energy Ohio did not incur any qualifying shortfalls related to the performance of the five
planis thus no cash reimbursement was required from Duke Energy. Duke Energy Chio accounts for any payments from or relurn of payments to Duke
Energy in Cormmon Stockholder's Equity as an adjustment to Additional pald-in capital.
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4. Preferred Stock
In March 2008, Duke Energy Ohio redeemed all outstanding shares of ils $16.98 million nofional amount 4% Cumulative Preferred Stock and its

$3.5 million notional amount 4.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock at a price of $108 per share and $101 per share, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid
dividends.

5. Inventory
Inventory consists primarily of materials and supplies; natural gas held in sterage for transmission and sales commitments; and coal held for electic

generation. Invenltory is recorded at the lower of cest or market value, using the average cost method.

Sucecessort™
March 31, December 31,
2007 2006

{in millions}

" Gz slored for curentusé . o
Fuel for use in eleclric generation
Materfals and suppfies ~ - -7

© . Total Inveniory

-

(a) See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

6. Deht and Credit Facilities

Duke Energy Ohio receives suppon for ils short-term borrowing needs from its parent entity, Cinergy, whose short-term borrowings consist primarily
of unsecured revolving lines of credit and commercial paper. Cinergy and ils subsidiaries, including Duke Energy Ohio, has a multi-year syndicated $1.5
hilttign revolving credit facility with an expiration dale of June 2011, This credit facility contains an option allowing borrowing up to the full amount of the

‘ty on the day of initial expiration for up to one year and contains a covenant requiring the debt-te-total capitalization rafio to not exceed 5% for
“...2rgy and cerlain of its subsidiaries, including Duke Energy Ohio. The credit facility also contains a $500 million borrowing sub limit for Duke Energy
Ohio and a $100 millicn borrowing sub limit for Duke Energy Kentucky.

The issuance of commercial paper, letiers of credit and other borrowings reduces the amount available under the available credit facility.

Cinergy's credil agreement contains various financial and other covenants; however, Cinergy’s credit agreement does not include any covenants
based on credit ratings. Failure to meel those covenants beyond applicable grace periods could result in accelerated due dates and/or termination of the
agreement, As of March 31, 2007, Cinergy was in compliance wilth these covenants. In addition, some credit agreements may allow for acceleration of
payments or termination of the agreements due to nonpayment, or the acceleration of oiher significant indebtedness of the borrower or some of s
stbsidiaries. None of the debt or credit agreemenis contain material adverse change clauses.

Duke Energy Ohio participates with Duke Energy and other Duke Energy subsidiaries in a money pool arrangement to betler manage cash and
working capital requirements, Under this arrangement, {hose companies with shori-term funds may provide short-term loans to affiliates participating
under this arrangement. Prior to the merger, Duke Energy Chio pariicipated in a similar money pool arrangement with Cinergy and other Cinergy
subsidiaries, As of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, Duke Energy Ohio was in a payable position of $47 million and $274 milion, respectively,
classified within Notes payable and commercial paper in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the three months ended March 31,
2007, the $227 million change in the money pool is reflecled as a cash outflow in Noltes payable and commercial paper within Net cash {used in}
provided by financing activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows. During the three months ended March 31, 2008, the $50 million change
in the money poot is reflected as a cash inflow in Noles payable and commercial paper within Net cash (used in} provided by financing activities on the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows,

As of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, approximately $36 million of pollution contrel bonds, which are short-term obligations by nature, are
classified as Long-term Debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets due to Duke Energy Ohio's intent and ability to
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uliize such borrowings as long-term financing. Cinergy's credit facilities with non-cancelable terms in excess of one year as of the balance sheet date
give Duke Energy Chio the ability 1o refinance these short-term obligations on a long-term basis.

7. Employee Benefit Obligations

Duke Energy Ohio participates in pensicn and other poslretirement benefit plans sponsored by Cinergy. Cinergy's qualified defined benefit pension
plans cover substantially all United States employees meeting certain minimum age and service requirements. Funding for the qualified defined benefit
pension plans is based on actuarially determined coniributions, the maximum of which is generally the amount deductible for tax purposes and the
minimum being that required by the Emplovee Reliremenl Income Security Acl of 1974, as amended. The pension plans' assels consist of investments
in equily and debt securities. In addition, Cinergy sponscrs non-qualified pension plans (plans that do not meet the criteria for certain {ax henefits) that
cover officers, certain other key employees, and non-employee directors. Cinergy also provides certain health care and life insurance benefits 10 retired
United Slates employees and their eligible dependents. These benefits are subject to minimum age and service requirements, The health care benefits
include medical coverage, dental coverage, and prescription drug coverage and are subject to certain limitations, such as deductibles and co-payments.

There were no qualified pension benefit contributions for either the three months ended March 31, 2007 or March 31, 2006. Duke Energy
anticipates that it will make total contributions of approximately $315 million to the legacy Cinergy qualified pension benefit plans in 2007.

Buke Energy Ohio's nel periodic benefit costs as allocated by Cinergy were as follows:

Successort® Predecessor'™
Three Months Three Months
Ended - Ended

March 31, March 31,
2007 2006

Qualified Pension Benefits
Non-Qualified Pension o . . . e
Other Postretirement P [ IR K S

werw
en o

{a) See Note 1 for addilional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Upon consummation of the merger with Duke Energy, all defined benefit plan obligations were remeasured. Cinergy updated the assumptions used
to determine their accrued benefit obligations and prospective net periodic benefit cost to be allocated to Duke Energy Ohto.

See Note 15 for a discussion of the effect of adoption of SFAS No. 188, "Employer's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Fostretirement Plans, an amendment of FASE Staterments No. 87, B8, 106, and 132(R)” (SFAS No. 158) . Also, refer to Note 14 for a discussion of the
amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets relaied to allocated accrued pension and other postrelirement benefit obligations from Cinergy.
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8. Goodwill and Intangibles

Duke Energy Ohio evaluales the impairment of goodwill under the guidance of SFAS No. 142, “*Gooadwill and Other Inlangible Assets™ (SFAS
No. 142). As discussed further in Nole 2, in April 2008, Duke Energy and Cinergy consummated the merger, which resuited in Duke Energy Chio
recarding geodwill of approximately $2.4 billion. The following table shows the changes in goodwill for the three months ended March 31, 2007

Carrying Amount of Goodwill

Successor™®
Balance at Changes Balance at
December 31, March 31,

2006 2007

Businsss Segment:
Commercial Fower
Franchised Electdc & Gas

Total Goodwill

{a} See Note 1 for additional information on Pradecessor and Successor reporting.

The carrying amount and accumulated amortizalion of inlangible assets are as follows:

Successor™

March 31, December 31,

L 2007 2006
in milliong)

o
Emissicn allowances
Gas, coal, and power conlracts
Other S

Tolal gross carrying amount.

Accumutated amortization—gas, coal, and power contracls 5
Accumulated amorntization—other

Total accumulated amortization

Total intangibie assets. nel

(a) See Note 1 for additional information an Predecessor and Successor reporting.

The cariying value of emission alfowances sold or consumed for Ouke Energy Ohio were as follows:

Successor' 1 Predecessor®
Three Months Three Months
Ended Ended

March 31, I March 31,
2007 2006

{in millions)

\[af"See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reponing._
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Amortization expense for intangible assets for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

Successor” | Predecessor®
Three Months Three Months
Ended Ended
March 31, | March 31, !
2007 2006 K
o o {inmp
S 2120 A

{a) See Note 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporiing.

Duke Energy Chio has net intanglble fabilities which are associated with its Market-Based Standard Service Offer (MBSSO) and other power sale
conlracts and will be recegnized in earnings over their contractual lives, The carrying amount of these liabilities as of March 31, 2007 and December 31,
2008 is as follows:

Successor®
March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
L . e - o o e linmidons)
MBSSO: o0 e i T s e T T e e BT e 8
Other power sale conlracls 35
- Totalintangible liabilifles -~ 7T el Lol DL T s e T R e Dt g

{a} See Note 1 for additional informalion on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Approximately 54 million was amorlized to income during the three months ended March 31, 2007. Intangible liabilities are classified as Other
Deferred Credits and Other Liabiliies on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

8. Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for 3ale

The following table summarizes the results classified as Loss from Discontinued Qperations, nel of tax, in the accompanying Consolidated
Statemenls of Operaticns,

Predecessor™

Operating Income
Operating Pre- Income Loss From
tax Tax Discontinued
Revenues Operalions,
Loss Benefit Net of Tax
, _ o ) {in millions) _ L
Three Months Ended March.31, 2006 - - 00 e e e T T S L M S et R
Commercial Power $ g $ (3) $ (1) {2)

{a} See Note 1 for additional infonimation on Predecessor and Successor reporling.
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~ The following lable presents the carrying values of the major classes of assels and assoctated liabilities held for sale in the Consclidated Batance
Sheels as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 20086,

Successor™
March 31, Becember 31,
2007 2006
. {in millicns)
Assets .- -
_ Current assets.
.7 Other assets

* = :Total Assets.

Liabititigs- . -
Gurrent liabilities
Other Habilities

Total Liabilities

(a) See Note 1 for additicnal infermation on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

In June 2006, Cinergy sold ils commercial marketing and trading businesses, including certain of Duke Energy Chio's trading contracts, To Fortis, a
Benelux-based financial services group. In October 2008, the sale was compleled. Cash proceeds altibutable to the Duke Energy Ohio rading
conltracts were approximately $32 million on a pre-tax basis and Duke Energy Chio recorded an approximate $3 million pre-tax loss on the sale. The
~~<ults of operations for these trading contracts have been presented as discontinued operations for the three months ended March 31, 2006 in the

ympanying Consolidated Statements of Operations,

\\(_/ In Octoher 2008, in connection with this transaction, Duke Energy Ohio entered into a series of Total Return Swaps (TRS) with Fortis, which are
accounted for as mark la market derivatives. The TRS offsets the net fair value of the contracts being sold to Forlis. The TRS will be cancelled for each
underlying contracts as each is fransferred to Fonlis. All economic and credit risk associated with the conlracls has been transferred to Fortis as of the
date of the sale through the TRS. As of March 31, 2007, approximately 95% of the contracts have been novated by Fortis. At March 31, 2007, contracts
with a net fair value of approximately $51 million remain in Assets held for sale and represent contracts that have yet 1o be novaled by Fortis.

10. Business Segments

Puke Energy Ohia operates the following business units: Franchised Eleciric and Gas and Commercial Power. Duke Energy Ohio's chief operating
decision maker regutarly reviews financial information about each of these business unils in deciding how to allocate resources and evaluate
performance, Both of the business units are considered reportable segments under SFAS No. 131, * Discfosures abott Segmenis of an Enterprise and
Reisted information .” There is no aggregation within Duke Energy Ohio's defined business segments.

The remainder of Duke Energy Ohio’s operations are presented as "Other.” While it is not considered a business segment, Other primarily inctudes
certain allocated governance costs.

Accounting policies for Duke Energy Ohio's segments are the same as those described in the Notes to the Consclidated Finandial Statements in
Duke Energy Chio's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006. Management evaluales segment performance based on
earnings before interest and taxes from continuing operations {(EBIT).

On z segment basis, EBIT excludes discontinued operalions and represents all profits frem continuing operations {both operating and non-
operating) before deducting interest and taxes. Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments are managed centrally by Cinergy and Duke Energy,
so the inlerest and dividend income on those balances are excluded from the segmenis’ EBIT.

Transactions between reportable segments are accounied for on the same basis as unaffilialad revenues and expenses in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Business Segment Data®™!
Unaffiliated Intersegment
Revenues Revenues

Successortt- R W
Three Months Ended March 31 2007 o
Franchisgd Elestricand Gas- .- .~ 7.
Commercial Power

Segment EBIT/ Depreciation

Consolidated Income and

from Continuing

Operations Before Amortization

Income Taxes

Total reportable ségments .- T T 0 T S
Gther o o o LT
Interest expense I R
Interest income and o\her

Total consolidaled ] R S 1 T S P

L EDT

Predecassor™ _
Three Months Ended March 31, 2006 - % 0 Lo nnl V00 Jrn mis
Franchised Electric and Gas % 542 5 -
Commerclal Power - R PRI A e

Total reportable seqmems
Other - - .
Ellmmahons

Intérast expense -

Interes! income and other

Total consalidated

(a} Segmen results exclude resulls of discontinued cperations.

(b} See Nole 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Segment assels in the foltlowing table exclude all intercompany assets.

Segment Assets

Franchised Electric and Gas .
Commercial Power

“Total reporiable segmentsfconsolidatéd assets:

(a} See Note 1 1or additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.
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I7. Risk Management Instruments
The following lable shows the carrying value of Duke Energy Ohio's derivative portfolio as of March 31, 2007, and December 31, 2006.

Derivative Portfolio Carrying Value (in millions)

Successor™
March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Heiiging: "~
Undesignated
P Total -

{a) See Mote 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporing.

The amounts in the table above represent the combination of assets and (fiabilities) for unrealized gains and losses on mark-to-markel and hedging
transacfions on Duke Energy Ohio's Consolidated Balance Sheels, excluding approximately $51 million of derivative assets and $51 million of derivative
habilities which were transferred to assets and liahbilities held for sale. See Nole 9 for addilional information.

The $26 million decrease in the undesignated derivalive portfolio fair value is due primarily to unrealized mark-to-market losses within Commercial
Power, primarily as a result of higher power prices. This was partially offset by unrealized mark-lo-market gains on coal derivatives within Commercial
Power.

Credit Risk. Included in Other Current Assets in the Consalidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 are collateral
assets of approximately $62 milion and $58 miflion, respectively, which represents cash collateral posted by Duke Energy Ohio with third parties.
Included in Other Curreni Liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 are collateral liabilities of
approximately $8 million and $27 million, respeclively, which represents cash collateral posted by third parlies to Cuke Energy Ohio. This decrease in

h collateral posted by third parties to Duke Energy Ohio is primarily due the sale of the commercizf marketing and trading business to Fortis in 2008.
vz Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Merger Approvals, As discussed in Note 1 and Nole 2, on April 3, 2008, the merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy was
consummated to creale a newly formed company, Duke Energy Holding Corp. {subseguently renamed Duke Energy Corporation}. As a condition to the
merger approval, the Public Utilities Commission of Chio (PUCO), and the Kentucky Public Service Commission (KPSC) required that certain merger
related savings be shared with consumers in Ohio and Kentucky, respectively. The commissions also required Duke Energy Ohio and Duke Energy
Kentucky to meet additional conditions. Key elements of these conditions include:

. The PUCO required that Duke Energy Ohio provide (i) a rate reduction of approximaiely $15 miilion for one year to facilitate economic
development in a time of increasing rates and market prices (i) a reduction of appreximately $21 million lo its gas and electric consumers
in Ohio for one year, with bath credils beginning Janvary 1, 2006. Duke Energy Ohio returmed $6 million and $4 miliion in the first quarter of
2006, respeclively, on each of these rate reductions. Buring the first quarier of 2007 Duke Energy Ohio retumed $2 million and an
immaterial amount, respectively, on each of these rate reducttons. As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy Ohio has completed its merger
relaled rate reduction and filed a reparl with the PUCC 1o terminale the merger credit riders.

. The KPS required that Duke Energy Kentucky provide $8 million in rate reduclions lo its customers over five years, ending when new
rates are established in the next rate case after January 1, 2008. As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy Kentucky had returned approximately
$2 miliion to customers on this rate reduction. Of this amount, approximately $1 million of the rate reduction was passed through to

customers during the three months ended March 31, 2007,
. The FERC approved the merger withou! condilions.
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Rate Related Information. The KPSC approves rates for retail electric and gas sales within the siate of Kentucky. The PUCO approves rales and
market prices or retail electric and gas sales within Ohio. The FERC approves rates far electric sales o wholesale customers served under cost-based
ales,

Duke Energy Ohio Electric Rate Filings. Duke Energy Ohio operates under a Rale Stabilization Plan (RSP), which includes a MBSSO approved by
the PUCO in November 2G04, In March 2005, the Office of the Ohio Consumers’ Counsel {OCC) appealed the FUCO's approval of the MBSSO ta the
Supreme Court of Ohio and the couri issued its decision in November 2006. It upheld the MBSSO in virtually every respect but remanded the MBSSO
back to the PUCO on two issues. The Court ordered the PUCO 1o support a cerlain portion of ifs order with reasoning and record evidence and to
require Duke Energy Ohio lo disclose certain confidential commercdial agreements with other parties previously requested by the OCC. Duke Energy
Ohio has complied with the disclosure order. Such confidential commercial agreements are relatively common in the jurisdiclion and the PUCO has not
allowed production of such agreements in past cases in which the PUCO was preseniad with a setllement agreement on the basis that they are
irrelevant. A hearing on remand has cencluded and Duke Energy Ohio expects a Commission Crder before the end of the year.

On August 2, 2008, Duke Energy Ohio filed an application with the PUCO 1o amend its MBSSO through 2010, The proposal provides for continued
electric system reliability, a simplifisd markst price structure and clear price signals for customers, while helping to maintain a stable revenue siream for
Duke Energy Ohio. The application is pending and Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding.

Duke Energy Ohio's MBSSC includes a fuel clause recovery componeni which is audited annually by the PUCO. In April 2007 Duke Energy Ohio
entered inlo a setllement resolving all open issues identified in the 2008 audit wilh some, but not all of the parties. The PUCO set the setlement for
hearing which has been completed. A PUCO decision is expected before the end of the year. Duke Energy Ghio does not expect the agreement to have
a material impact on its consolidated resuits of operations, cash flows or financlal position,

In addition to the fuel clause recovery component, Duke Energy Chio’s MBSS0 includes 2 reserve capacity component known as the System
Reliability Tracker (SRT), and an Annually Adjusted Component (AAC) to recover changes in environmental, tax and homeland security costs. In April
2007, Duke Energy Ohio entered a stipulation resolving ali issues related 1o the 2006 SRT audit and applicalion to amend the 2007 AAC market price.
The stipulalion included some, but nol all of the parties. A hearing was held regarding the stipulation. Duke Energy Ohio expects a Commisslon decision
before the end of the year. Duke Energy Ohio does not expect a significant change, if any to the MBSSO components but cannot predict the outcome of
the cases.

Duke Energy Kentucky Eleclric Rate Case. In May 2006, Duke Energy Kentucky filed an application for an increase in its base electric rates, The
application, which sought an increase of approximately $67 miliion in revenue, of approximately 28 percent, to be effeclive in January 2007, was filed
pursuant 1o the KPSC's 2003 Order approving the ransfer of 1,100 MW of generating assats from Duke Energy Ohio 1o Duke Energy Kenlucky. in the
fourlh quarter of 2008, Duke Energy Kentucky reached a setilament agreemeant in principle with all parties to this proceeding resolving all issues raised
in the proceeding. Among olher things, the seltlement agreement provided for a $49 million increase in Duke Energy Kenlucky's base electric rates and
reinstitution of the fuel cost recovery mechanism. In December 2008, the KPSC approved the selllement agreement. The settlement agreement also
provided for Duke Energy Kentucky 1o obtain KPSC approval for a back-up power supply plan. In January 2007, Duke Energy Kentucky filed a back-up
power supply pfan with the KPSC, The plan provided for Duke Energy Kentucky to purchase back-up power through bilateral contracts for scheduled
outages. Duke Energy Kentucky will recover these costs through hase rates. The plan provided for Duke Energy Kentucky to purchase back-up power
through the Midwest Independent System Operator, Inc. (Midwest [SO) energy markets for unscheduled oulages. Duke Energy Kentucky will recover
these costs through its fuel adjustment clause. The KPSC issued an order in March 2007 approving Duke Energy Kentucky's back-up power supply
plan.
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" Duke Energy Kenfucky Gas Rate Cases. In 2002, the KPSC approved Duke Energy Kentucky's gas base rate case which included, among other
things, recovery of costs associated with an accelerated gas main replacement program. The approval authorized a tracking mechanism to recover
cerlain costs including depreciation and a rate of return on the program’s capital expenditures. The Kentucky Attorney General appealed to the Franklin
Circuit Court the KPSC's approval of the tracking mechanism as well as the KPSC's subsequent approval of annual rate adjustments under this tracking
mechanism. In 2005, both Duke Energy Kentucky and the KPSC requested that the court dismiss these cases. At the present lime, Duke Energy
Kemucky cannot predict the timing or outcome of this litigation.

In February 2005, Duke Energy Kentucky filed a gas base rate case with the KPSC requesting approval to continue the tracking mechanism and {or
a $14 million annual increase in base rates. A portion of the increase is attribulable to recovery of the current cost of the accelerated main replacement
program in base rates. In December 2005, the KPSC approved an annual rate increase of $8 million and re-approved the tracking mechanism through
2011, In February 2008, the Kentucky Attorney General appealed the KPSC’s order to the Frankiin Circuit Coun, claiming that the order impropeny
allows Duke Energy Kenlucky lo increase its rates for gas main replacement costs in between general rate cases, and also claiming that the order
impropesly allows Duke Energy Kentucky to earn a return on investment for the costs recovered under the tracking mechanism which permils Duke
Energy Kentucky to recover its gas main replacement costs. At this time, Duke Energy Kentucky cannot predict the oulcome of this litigation.

Other. In April 2005, the PUCO issued an order opening a slatewitte invesligalion into siser leaks in gas pipeline systems throughout Ohio. The
investigalion followed four explosions since 2000 caused by gas riser leaks, including an April 2000 explosion in Duke Energy Ohio’s service area. In
November 2006, the PUCO Sialf released an expert report, which concluded that certain types of risers are prone to leaks under various conditions,
including over-tightening during inflial installation. The PUCQO Staff recommended that natural gas companies continue o monitor the situation and study
the cause of any further riser leaks to determing whether further remedia) action s warranted. Duke Energy Chio has approximately 87,000 of these
risers on its distribution system. If the PUCO orders natural gas companies fo replace all of these risers, Duke Energy Ohio estimatés a reptacement
cost of $35 million. At this lime, Duke Energy Chio cannot predict the culcome or the impact of the slatewide Ohio investigation.

In April 2006, the FERC issued an order on the Migwest SO revisions to its Transmission and Energy Markets Tariffs regerding its Revenue
Sufiiciency Guarantee {RSG). The FERC found that the Midwest 1S0 violaled the tariffs when it did not charge RSG costs to virlual supply offers. The
FERC, among piher things, ordered the Midwest 150 10 recalculale the rate and make refunds 1o customers, with interest, 1o reflect the correct allocation
of RSG costs. Duke Energy Shared Services, on behalf of Duke Energy Ohio, filed a Request for Rehearing, and in October 2006, the FERC issued an
order which, among other things, granied rehearing on the issue of refunds. The FERC stated that it would not require recalculation of the rates and, as
such, refunds are no longer required. As a result, Duke Erergy Ohio does not believe that this issue will have a malerial eliect on its consolidated results
of operations, cash flows, or financial position.

FERC To issue Electric Reliabilily Standards. Consistent with reliability provisions of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, on July 20, 2006, FERC issued
ils Final Rule certifying North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) as the Electric Reliability Crganization. NERC has filed over 100
propased reliability standards with FERC. On March 18, 2007, FERG issued a final rule establishing mandatory, enforceable reliability standards for the
nation's bulk power system. In the final rule, FERC approved 83 of the 107 mandatory reliability sltandards submitted by the NERC, FERC will consider

“emaining 24 proposed slandards for approval once the necessary criteria and procedures are submilted. In the interim, compliance with these 24
_dards is expecled o continue on a valuntary basis as good utility practice. Duke Energy Ohio does net believe that the issuance of these standards
wiil have a malerial impact on its consalidated results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.
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13. Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental

Duke Energy Ohio is subject to federal, state and local regulations regarding air and water quality, hazardous and sclid waste disposal and other
environmental matlers. These regulaticns can be changed from time to ime, imposing new obligations on Duke Energy Ohlo.

Remediation activilies. Like others in the energy industry, Duke Energy Chio and its affillates are responsible for environmental remediation at
various cortaminated sites. These include some properties that are part of ongoing Duke Energy Ohio operations, sites formerly owned or used by Duke :
Energy Ohie entities, and sites owned by third parties. Remediation lypically involves management of contaminated soils and may involve groundwater 5
remediation. Managed in conjunction with relevant federal, stale and local agencies, activities vary wilh site conditions and locations, remedial '
requirements, complexity and sharing of responsibility. If remediation aclivities involve staiutory joint and several liabitity provisions, strict liability, or cost
recovery or contribulion aclicns, Duke Energy Chio or iis affiliates could potentially be held responsible for contaminaticn caused by other parties. In
some instances, Duke Energy Ohic may share liability associated with contamination with cther petentially responsible parties, and may also benefit
from insurance palicies or contractual indemnities that cover some or all cleanup costs. All of these sites generally are managed in the normat course of
busingss or affiliate oparalions. Management believes that completion or resolution of lhese matters will have no material adverse effect on Duke Energy
Chio's consolidaled resulls of operalions, cash flows or financial position.

Clean Water Act. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA's) final Clean Water Act Section 316{h) rule hecame effecive July 9, 2004.

The rule established aquatic protection requirements for existing facilities that withdraw 50 million galtons or more of water per day from rivers, streams,
lakes, reservoirs, esluaries, oceans, or other U.5. waters for cooling purposes. Coal-fired generaling facilities in which Duke Energy Ohio is either a
whole or partial cwner are affecied sources under that rule. On January 25, 2007, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit issuad its opinion in
Riverkeeper, Inc. v. EPA |, Nos, 04-6692-ag(L} et. al. (2d Cir. 2007} remanding most aspecis of EPA’s rule back to the agency. The courl effectively
disallowad 1hose portions of the rule most favorable to induslry, and the decision creates a great deal of uncertainty regarding fulure requirements and
their liming. Although Duke Energy Ohio is sfill unable lo eslimate cosis o comply with the EPA’s rle, it is expecled hal costs will increase as a resull
of the courl's decision. The magnilude of any such increase cannot be estimated at this time.

Clean Air Mercury Rule (CAMR) and Clean Alr Inferstate Rule (CAIR). The EPA finalized its CAMR and CAIR in May 2005. The CAMR limils 1otz
annvual mercwry emissions from coal-fired power plants across the United States through a two-phased cap-and-trade program. Phase 1 begins in 2090
and Phase 2 begins in 2018. The CAIR limits total annual and summertime nitrogen oxides (NO; } emissions and annual sulfur dioxide (SO ) emissions
from electric generating facilitics across the Eastern United States through a two-phased cap-and-trade program. Phase 1 begins in 2009 for NO, and
in 2010 for SO ; . Phase 2 begins in 2015 for bolh NO, and SO, .

Duke Energy Ohio currently estimates that it will spend approximately $325 million between 2007 and 2011 to comply with Phase 1 of CAMR and
CAIR at plants thai Duke Energy Ohio owns or partially owns bl does not operate. Duke Energy Ghio currently estimates that it will not incur any
significant costs for complying with Phase 2 of CAIR and is currently unable to estimate the cost of complying with Phase 2 of CAMR. Duke Energy Obhio .
receives partlal regovery of depreciation and financing costs related to environmental compliance projects for 2005-2008 through its rate stahilization
plan (see Note 12),

Extended Environmental Aclivities and Accruals, Included iy Other Current Liabilities and Other Deferred Credils and Other Liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets were tolal accruals related to extended environmental-related activities of approximately $8 million as of March 31, 2007
and December 31, 2006. These accruals represent Duke Energy Ohio’s provisions for costs associated with remediation activities at some of its current
and former sites, as well as other relevant environmental contingent liabilities. Management believes that completion or resclution of these mzaiters will
have no material adverse sffect on Duke Energy Ohio’s consolidaled resulls of operations, cash flows or financial position.
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Litigation

New Source Review (NSR). In 1998-2000, the LS. Justice Department, acting on behalf of the EPA, filed a number of complaints and notices of
violalion against multiple utililies across the country for alleged viclations of the NSR provisions of the Clean Air Act (CAA). Generally, the govemment
alleged that projects performed at various coal-fired unils were major modifications, as defined in the CAA, and that the utilitizs violated the CAA when
they undertook those projects without obtaining permits and installing emission controls for SO, , NO, and particulate matter,

In November 1999, the United States brought a lawsuit in the United States Federal District Court for the Southem District of Indiana against Duke
Energy Ohio alleging various violations of the CAA. Specifically, the lawsuit alleges that Duke Energy Ohio violated the CAA by not oblaining Prevention
of Significant Deterioration, Non-Altainment NSR and OChio's State Implementation Plan (SIP) permits for various projects at Duke Energy Ohio's owned
and co-owned generating stations. Additionally, the suit claims that Duke Energy Ohio viclated an Administrative Consent Order entered ito in 1858
between the EPA and Cinergy relating to alleged violations of Chio's SIP provisions governing particulate matter at Unit 1 al Duke Energy Ohio’'s W.C.
Beckjord Station. The complaints seek (1) injunctive relief to require installation of poliution control technology on various generating units at Duke
Energy Ohio's W.C. Beckjord and Miami Fort Stations and, {2) unspacified civil penailies in amounts of up 1o $27,500 per day for each viclation. Duke
Energy Ohio asserts that there were no CAA violations because the applicable regulations do not require permitting in cases where the projects
undertaken are "routing” or ctherwise do not resull in a net increase in emissions. In addition, three northeast states and two environmental groups have
intervened in the case,

In August 2005, the district court issued a ruling regarding the emissions test that it will apply to Duke Energy Ohio at the trial of the case. Contrary
to Duke Energy Ohio’s argument, the district court ruled that in delemmining whether a project was projected o increase annual emissions, it would not
hold hours of eperation constanl, However, the district court subsequeantly cerlified the matter for interlocutory appeal to the Seventh Circuit Court of
Appeals. In August 2008, the Seventh Circuit upheld the district court's opinion. Cinergy has petitioned the U.S, Supreme Court for a writ of certiorar. In
light of the Supreme Court’s recent ruling in Environimental Defense, et al v. Duke Energy, et al, finding that the Fourth Clrcuit was incorrect in
uphelding an hourly emissions increase test, the Supreme Court denied Cinergy's petition for a writ of certicrari. The case will return 1o the district court
for triat.

In March 2000, the United Slates also filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Ohie an amended complaint in a separale
lawsuit alleging viclations of the CAA regarding various generaling stations, inciuding a generaling station operated by Columbus Soulhern Power
Company (CSP} and joinily-owned by CSP, The Dayton Power and Light Comipany (BP&L}, and Duke Energy Ghio. This suit is being defended by CSP
(the GSP case). In April 2001, the United States District Court for the Southern District of Chio in that case nuled that the Government and the
intervening plaintiff environmental groups cannot seek monetary damages for alleged violations that occurred prior to November 3, 1994; however, they
are entitled to seek injunctive refief for such alleged violalions. Neither party appealed that decision. This matier was heard in tial in July 2005. A
decision is pending.

In addition, Duke Energy Ohio has been informed by DP&L that in June 2000, the EPA issued a Notice of Viclation (NOV) to DP&L for alleged

" "~lions of CAA requirements at a stalion operated by DP&L and jointly-owned by DP&L, CSP, and Duke Energy Ohio. The NOV indicated the EPA
. 1} issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Ohio SIP, or (2) bring a civil action seeking injunctive relief and civil penallies of
\:-H -0 $27,500 per day for each violalion. In September 2004, Marilyn Wall and the Sierra Club brought a lawsuit against Duke Energy Ohio, DP&L and
CSP for alleged violations of the CAA at this same generaling station. This case is currently in discovery in front of the same judge who has the CSP
Gase.

lis not possible to predict with certainty whether Duke Energy Ohio will incur any liability or to estimate the damages, if any, that Duke Energy Chio
might incur in connection with these matters.

Section 126 Petitions. in March 2004, (he state of North Carolina fited a peitition under Section 126 of the CAA in which it afleges that sources in 13
upwind stales, including Ohio, significantly coniribute to North Carofina’s non-attainment with certain ambient air quality standards. In August 2005, the
EPA issued a proposed response to the petition. The EPA proposed to deny the ozone portion of the pelition based upon a lack of contribution to air
quality by the named states. The EPA also proposed to deny the particulate matter portion of the petition based upon the CAIR Federal Implementation
Plan (FIP), that would address the air quality concerns from neighboring states. On April 28, 2008, the EPA denied North Carolina’s petition based upon
the final CAIR FIP described above. North Carolina has filed a legal challenge to the EPA’s denial.
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Carbon Diexide Litigation. In July 2004, the states of Connecticut, New York, Galifornia, lowa, New Jersey, Rhode Island, Vermont, Wisconsin, and
the City of New York brought a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against Cinergy, American Electric Power
Company, Inc., American Eleciric Power Service Corporation, The Southern Company, Tennassee Valley Aulhority, and Xcel Energy Inc. A similar
lawsuil was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against the same companies by Open Space Institute, Inc.,
Open Space Conservancy, Inc., and The Audubon Society of New Hampshire. These lawsuits allege that the defendants’ emissions of carbon dioxide
(CO- ) trom the combustion of fossil fuels at electric ganerating (acilities contibute o global warming and amount to a public misance. The complaints
also allege that the defendants could generale the same amourd of electricity while emitling significantly less CO, . The plaintiffs are seeking an
injunction requiring each defendant to cap its CQ; emissions and then reduce them by a specified percentage each year for at least a decade, In
September 2005, the district court granted the defendants’ motion to dismiss the lawsuil. Tha plainliffs have appealed this ruling 1o the Second Circuit
Court of Appeals. Qral argument was held before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on June 7, 2006,

It is not possible to predict with certainty whether Duke Energy Ohio will incur any liability or to eslimate the damages, if any, that Duke Energy Ohio
might incur in cannection with this matter.

Zimmer Generating Station (Zimmer Station) Lawsuil. In November 2004, a cilizen of the Village of Moscow, Ohio, the tawn adjacent 1o Duke
Energy Ohilo's Zimmer Station, brought a purported class aclion in the United Stales District Court for the Southern District of Chio seeking mongiary
damages and injunclive relief agalnst Duke Energy Ohio for alleged violations of the CAA, the Ohio SIP, and Ohio laws against nuisance and common
law nuisance. The plainliffs have filed a number of additional nolices of intent to sue and two lawsuits raising claims similar to those in the original claim.
One lawsuit was dismissed on procedural grounds, and the remaining two have been consolidated. On December 28, 2006, tha District Court certified
this case as a class aclion. Limiled discovery on dlass definition continues. Af this lime, Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict whether the outcome of this
maiter will have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, cash flows or resulls of operaticns. Duke Energy Ohio intends to defend this
lawsuit vigorousty in courl.

Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) Sites. Duke Energy Ohio has performed site assessments on cerlain of its sites where MGP aclivities are believed
to have occuired at some point in the past and have found no imminent risk 1o the environment. At this time, Duke Energy Ohio cannot predict whether
investigation and/or remediation will be required in the fulkre at any of these sites,

Omlaric, Ganada Lawswif. Duke Energy Ohio understands that a class action lawsuit was filed in Superior Court in Ortario, Canada against Duke
Energy Ohio and approximately 20 other utility and power generation companies alleging various claims relating to envircnmental emissions from coal-
fire¢ power generation faciliffes in the United States and Canada and damages of approximately $80 bilion, wilh continuing damages in the amount of
approximately $4 billion annually. Duke Energy Ohio understands that the lawsuit also claims enrtillement to punitive and exemplary damages in the
amount of $1 billlon. Duke Energy Ohio has net yel been served in this tawsuil; however, if served, Duke Energy Ohio intends lo defend this lawsuit
vigorously in court, At this time, Duke Energy Ohio is not able to predict whether resolution of this matter would have a material effeci on its consolidated
financial position, cash flows or results of cperations,

Huiricane Katrina Lawsuil. in April 2006, Cinergy was named in the third amended complaint of a purported class action lawsuit fited in the United
States Dislrict Cour! for the Soulhern District of Mississippi. Plaintiffs claim that Cinergy, along with numerous other ulilities, oil companies, coal
companies and chemical companies, are liable for damages relaling to losses suffered by victims of Hurricane Katrina. Plaintiffs ¢laim that defendants’
greenhouse gas emissions contribuled 1o the frequency and infensity of storms such as Hurricane Kalrina. In Oclober 2006, Cinergy was served with
this tawsuit and subsequently filed a motion to dismiss. Prior to a ruling on that motion, in December 2006 plaintifis filed a mation for leave 1o file a fourth
amended complaint to set farth additional claims, add additional parties and to substitute proper parties for improperly named defendants. Specifically,
paintiffs seek 1o replace helding companies, such as Cinergy, with their operaling company subsidiarles, such as Duke Energy Chio. Itis not possible to
predict with centainty whether Duke Energy Chio will incur any liability or to estimate the damages, if any, that Duke Energy Qhic might incur in
cormection with this malter.
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LN
" Asbestos-refated Injuries and Damages Claims. Duke Energy Chio has been named as defendant or co-defendant in lawsuits related to asbestos

at its eleclric generating stations. Currenlly, there are fewer than 10 pending lawsuits. in these lawsuits, plaintiffs claim to have been exposad to

asbestos-containing products in the course of their work as oultside contractors. The plaintiffs further claim that as the properly owner of the generating’

slations, Duke Energy Ohio should be held liable for their injuries and illnesses based on an alleged duty to warn and prolact them from any asbestos

exposure. The impact on Duke Energy Qhio's financial position, cash flows, or resufts of operations of these cases to date has not been material, As

Duke Energy Ohio has been named in fewer than 10 cases, it has virtually no settlement history for asbesios cases. Thus, Duke Energy Ohio Is not able

to reasonably estimate the range of potential loss from current or future lawsuits. However, potential judgments or setllements of existing or future ¢laims

could be malerial to Duke Energy Chio.
Other Litigation and Legal Proceedings. Duke Energy Ohio and its subsidiaries are invoived in other legal, tax and regulatory proceedings arising in :

the ordinary course of business, some of which invaolve substantial amounts. Management believes thal the final disposition of these proceedings will not :

have a material adverse effect on Duke Energy Ohio's consolidated resulis of operations, cash flows or financial position.
Duke Energy Ohio has exposure 1o ceriain legal matlers that are described herein. As of March 31, 2007, Duke Energy Ohio has recorded

immaterial reserves for these proceedings and exposures. Duke Energy Ohio expenseés legal costs related to the defense of loss contingencies as

incurred.

Other Commitments and Gontingencies
Other. Duke Energy Ohio enters into various fixed-price, non-cancelable commitments to purchase or sell power (folling arrangements or power
purchase contracts) that may or may not be recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

14. Related Party Transactions

Cuke Energy Ohio engages in refated party transaclions. These transactions are generally performed at cost and in accordance with the applicable
state and federal commission regulations. Balances due to or due from related parties included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31,
2007 and Decernber 31, 2006 are as {oliows:

Successor'®

March 31, Dacember 31,
2007 2006

L (in millions)

nttassais®
Ysaptcurrent assetst
Cuirent ljabilities'™ R R S 68 (196¥
Net deferred laxllablhtles” $ (1.414) kS (1,454)

(a) See Nole 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporiing.

(b) Ofthe balance al March 31, 2007, approximately $36 million is classified as Receivables and $28 million is classified as Other cureent assets on the
Consclidated Balance Sheets. Tha balance al December 31, 2006 is classified as Receivables on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(¢} The balance at December 31, 20086 is classified as Other non-current assets on the Consolidaled Balance Sheels.

(d} The halance at March 31, 2007 is classified as Accounts payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Of the batance at December 31, 2006,
approximately {$95) million is classified as Accounis payable and ($191) million is classified as Taxes accrued on the Consolidated Balance Sheets,

(e) OFfthe balance al March 31, 2007, approximately ($1,437) million is classified as Deferred income taxes and $23 million is classified as Other
current assels on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Of the balance al Recember 31, 2006, approximately {$1,475) million is classified as Deferred
income taxes and $21 million is classified as Other current assets on Ihe Consolidated Balance Sheets.

23



Table of Contents

PART |
DUKE ENERGY QOHIO, INC.
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements—{Continued)
(Unaudited)

Duke Energy Chio is allocated its proportionate share of corporate governance and other costs by a consolidated affiliate of Duke Enargy. Duke
Energy Ohio is alsc allocaled its proporlionale share of other corporate governance costs from a consolidated affiliate of Cinergy. Carporate governance
and other shared services cosis are primarily allocations of carporate cosis, such as human resources, legal and accounting fees, as welt as other third
party cosls.

The expenses associated with certain alfocated corporate governance and other service costs for Duke Energy Ohio, which are recorded in
Operation, Maintenance and Other within Operating Expenses on the Consolidated Stalements of Operations, for the three months ended March 31,
2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Successor'™ Predecessor®
March 31, March 31,
2007 2006

Corporate governance and shared services expeinses.” - oo 20 o B ea Tl il i g0 o
{a) See Noie 1 for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

See Note 7 for detail on expense amounts allocated from Cinergy to Duke Energy Ohio relaied to Duke Energy Chio’s participation in Cinergy's
qualified and non-gualified defined benefit pension plans and health care and insurance benefits. Additionally, Duke Energy Ohio has been allocated
accrued pensicn and other postretirement benefit obligations from Cinergy of approximately $396 million at March 31, 2007 and approximately $393
million at December 31, 2006. The above amounts have been classified on lhe Consclidated Balance Sheets as follows:

Successor'™
March 31, December 31,
2007 2008

) ~{in millicns)
Ciher Current Liabilifies - ’ Lo JERE
Accrued pension and other postretlrement benef t cosls X
Giher Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities . e

LS

{a) See Nola 1 for additional information on Predecessar and Successor reporting.

Additionally, certain trade receivables have been sold by Duke Energy Ohio to Cinergy Receivables Company, LLC (Cinergy Receivables), an
uncensolidaled entity formed by Cinergy. The proceeds obtained from the sales of receivables are largely cash but do Include a subordinated note from
Cinergy Receivables for a portion of the purchase price. This subordinated note is classified by Duke Energy Ohio as Receivables in the Consolidated
Balance Sheels and was approximalely $118 million and $133 millien as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2008, respectively.

See Note 3 for & discussion of amounts paid to Duke Energy Chio as a result of the agreement between Duke Energy and Duke Energy Ohio
related to Duke Energy’'s contribution of its ownership interests in five plants to Duke Energy Ohio.

Duke Energy Ohio participates in a money pool with Duke Energy and other Duke Energy subsidiaries. As of March 31, 2C07 and December 31,
2006, Duke Energy Ohio was in a payable position of $47 million and $274 million, respectively, ¢lassified within Notes payable and commercial paper in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheels. See Nole 6 for further discussion of the money pool arrangement.

15. New Accounting Standards

The following new accounling standards were adopted by Duke Energy Ohio subsequent to March 34, 20086 and the impact of such adoption, if
applicable, has been presentad in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements:

Financlal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Staff Position (FSP) No. FIN 46(R)-6, "Determining the Variability to Be Considered In Applying
FASR Interpretation No. 46{R} (FSP No. FIN 46(R)-6).” In April 2006, the FASB staff issued FSP No. FIN 48(R)-6 to address how to determine the
variability 1o be considered in applying FIN 46(R}, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitizs.” The variability that is considered in applying FIN 46(R)
affects the delermination of whelher the entily is a variable inlerest entity (VIE), which interests are variable
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interests in the entity, and which parly, if any, is the primary beneficiary of the ViE. The variability affects the calculation of expecled losses and expected
residual returns. This guidance was effective for all entities with which Duke Energy Ohio first becomes involved or existing entities for which a
reconsideration event occurs after July 1, 2006. The adoption of FSP No. FiN 46(R)-6 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy Ohio's
consolidated resulls of operations, cash flows or financial position.

SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial instruments—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140" (SFAS No. 155). In
February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, which amends SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Actlivities™ and
SEAS No. 140, "Accounling for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” SFAS No. 155 allows financial
instruments that have embedded derivatives to be accounied for at fair value at acguisition, at issuance, or when a previcusly recognized financial
instrument is subject to a remeasurement {(new basis) event, on an instrument-by-insirument basis, in cases in which a derivative would otherwise have
to be hifurcated. SFAS No. 155 was effeclive for Duke Energy Ohio for afl financial instruments acquired, issued, or subject to remeasurement after
January 1, 2007, and for cerlain hybrid financial instruments that have been bifurcated prior to the effective date, for which the effect is to be reported as
a cumulative-effect adjustment 10 beginning retained earnings. The adoption of SFAS No. 155 did not have a material impact on Duke Energy Ohio’s
consclidated resulls of operations, cash flows or financial position.

SFAS No. 156, "Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assels—an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140" (SFAS No. 156). In March 2008, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 158, which amends SFAS No. 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Exiinguishments of
Liahilities.” SFAS No. 156 requires recognition of a servicing assel or liability when an enlity enters inlo airangemenis to service financial instruments in
certain siluations. Such servicing assets or servicing liabilities are required 1o be intlially measured at fair value, if practicable. SFAS No. 156 also allows
an entity to subsequenily measure its servicing assets or servicing liabilities using either an amortization method or a fair value method. SFAS No. 156 is
effective for Duke Energy Ohio as of January 1, 2007, and must be applied prospectively, except that where an enlity elects to remeasure separately
recognized existing arrangements and reclassify certain available-for-sale securities to trading securilies, any effects must be reported as a cumulative-
effecl adjustment to retained eamnings. The adoplion of SFAS No, 156 did not have a maierial impact on Duke Energy Ohio’s consolidated results of
operalions, cash flows or financial position.

SFAS No. 158, “Employer's Accounting for Defined Benelit Pension and Other Postrelirement Flans, an anmendment of FASB Statements No. 87,
88, 106, and 132(R)" (SFAS No. 158} . In October 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, which changes the recognition and disclosure provisions and
measurgment date requirements for an employer's accounting for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans. The recognition and
disclosure provisions reguire an employer to (1) recognize the funded status of a benefit plan—measured as the difference between plan assets at fair
viue and the benefit obligation—in its statement of financial position, (2) recognize as a component of other comprehensive income (QCI), net of tax,
the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost, and
{3} disclose in the noles to financial slatements cerlain additional information. SFAS No. 158 does not change the amounis recognized in the income
statement as net periodic benefit cost. Duke Energy Ohio recognized the funded status of its defined benefit pension and cther postretirement plans and
provided the required addilionai disclosures as of December 31, 2008. The adoplion of SFAS No. 168 recognilion and disclosure provisions resulted in

‘'crease in total assels of approximately $33 million {consisting of an increase in regulatory assets of $31 million and an increase in deferred tax

L8 of $2 million), an increase in total liabilities of approximately $35 million and a decrease in acoumulated other comprehensive loss, net of 1ax, of
approxwmalely $2 million as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy Ohio's
consolidated results of operations or cash ﬂows

Under the measurement dale requirements of SFAS No. 158, an employer is required o measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of
the date of Ihe employer’s fiscal year-end slatement of financial position (with limited exceptions). Historically, Duke £nergy Ohio has measured its plan
assets and obligations up to three months prior to the fiscal year-end, as alfowed under the authoritative accounting fiterature. Duke Energy Ohio
adopted the change in measurement dale effective January 1, 2007 by remeasuring plan assets and benefit obligations as of that date, pursuant to the
Iransition requirerments of SFAS No. 158, Nel periodic benefit cost of approximately $4 million for the three-month period between September 30, 2006
and December 31, 2006 was recognized, net of tax, as a separate adjustment of retained sarmings as of January 1, 2007. Additionally, the changes in
plan assets and plan abligations between the September 3G, 2606 and December 31, 2006 measurement dates not related to net periodic benefit coslis
required to be recognized, net of tax, as a separale adjustment of the opening balance of accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) and regu -
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latory assets. This adjustment was not material. However, Duke Energy Ohio is in the process of finalizing its actuarial calculation of the changes in plan
assets and plan obligations hetween the Seplember 30, 2406 and December 31, 2006 measurement dales, and expects to record an immaterial
adjusiment to AOCI and regulatory assels in the second quarter of 2007, once the aciuarial caloulations are finalized.

Staff Accounting Bulletin {SAB) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Pricr Year Misslatemenis When Quantifying Misstatemenls in Current Year
Financial Statements” (SAB No. 108) . In September 2006 the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued SAB No. 108, which provides
interpretive guidance on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered in quantifying a current year
misstatement. Traditionaliy, there have been two widely-recognized approaches for quantifying the effects of financial stalemert misstatements. The
income statement approach focuses primarily on the impact of a misstatement on the income statement—including the reversing effect of prior year
misstalements—but its use can lead to the accumulation of misstaternents in the balance sheet. The balance sheet approach, on the other hand,
focuses primarily on the effect of correcting the period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on the income
statement. The SEC staff believes that registrants should quantify errors using both a balance sheet and an income statement approach (a “dual
approach’} and evaluate whether either approach resulls in quaniifying a misstaterent thal, when all refevant quantitative and qualitative factors are
considered, is material,

SAB No. 108 was effective for Duke Energy Chia's year ending December 31, 2006. SAB No. 108 permits existing public companies to initially
apply its provisions either by (i) reslating prior financial statements as if the "dual approach” had always been used or (i}, under certain circumstances,
recording the cumulative effect of inittally applying the “dual approach™ as adjustments to the carrying values of assels and liabilities as of January 1,
2006 with an offsetling adjustment recorded lo the cpening balance of retained earnings. Duke Energy Ohio has historically used a dual approach for
quantifying identified financial statement misstatements. Therefore, the adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy
Ohio's consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

FASB Interpretation No. {FIN) 48, *Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASBE Statement No. 109 (FIN 48). In July
2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which provides guidance on accounling for income lax positions about which Duke Energy Chio has cancluded ihere is a
level of uncerlainty with respect lo the recognition in Duke Energy Ohio's financial statements. FIN 48 prescribes a minimum recognition thresheld a tax
position is required to meel. Tax posilions are defined very hroadly and include not only lax deduclions and credils but also decisions not to file in a
particular jurisdiction, as well as [he taxability of transactions. Duke Energy Ohio implemented FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007, The implementation
resulted in an immaterial cumulative effect adjusiment to beginning Retained Earnings on ihe Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholder's Equity
and Comprehensive Income. Corresponding entries impacted a variely of balance sheet line itemns, including Deferred income taxes, Goodwill, and
Other Liabilities. Upon implementation of FIN 48, Duke Energy Ohio reflecls interest expense related to taxes as Interest Expense in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations. In addition, subsequent accounting for FIN 48 (afler January 1, 2007} involves an evaluation 1o deterine if any changes
have occurred that would impact the exisling unceriain tax posilions as well as determining whether any new tax positions are uncertain, Any impacls
resulting from the evaluation of exisling uncertain 1ax posilions or from the recognition of new uncertain tax positions impacts income tax expense and
interest expense in the Consolidaled Statement of Operations, with offsetling impacts to the balance sheet line ilems described above and Taxes
accrued. See Note 16 for additional information.

FSP No. FIN 48-1, Definition of "Settlement” in FASB Interpretation No. 48 {(FSP No. FIN 48-1). In May 2007, the FASB staff issued FSP No. FIN
48-1 which clarifies the conditions under FIN 48 that should be met for a tax position 1o be effectively settled with the taxing authority. Duke Energy
Ohio’s implementation of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007 was consistent with the guidance in this FSP.

FSP No, AUG AIR-1, *Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities,” [FSP No. AUG AIR-1). In September 2006, the FASB Staif issued
FSP No. AUG AIR-1. This FSP prohibils the use of the acerug-in-advance meihod of accounting for planned major maintenance activities in annual and
interim financiat reporting periods, if no liability is required 1o be recorded for an asset relirement obligalion based on a lagal obligation for which the
event obligaling the entity has ccourred. The FSP also requires disclosures regarding the method of accounting for planmed majer maintenance aclivities
and the effects of implementing the FSP, The guidance in this FSP was effeclive for Duke Energy Ohio as of January 1, 2007. The adoption of FSP Na.
AUG AIR-1 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy Chio’'s consalidated resulls of operations, cash flows or finandal position.
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Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 06-3, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remilted to Governmental Authorilies Should Be
Presented in the Income Statement (That Is, Gross versus Nel Presentation}’ (EITF No. 06-3) . In June 2006, the EITF reached a ¢onsensus on EITF
No. 06-3 to address any tax assessed by a governmental authority that is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction between & seller and a
customer and may include, but are not limited lo, sales, use, value added, and some excise taxes. For taxes within the issue's scope, the consensus
requires thal entities present such taxes on either a gross (i.e., included in revenues and costs) or net (i.e., exclude from revenues) basis according to
1heir accounting policies, which should be disclosed. if such taxes are reporied gross and are significant, entities should disclose the amounts of those
taxes. Disclosures may be made on an aggregate basis. The consensus was effective for Duke Energy Ohio beginning January 1, 2007. The adoption of
EITF No. 06-3 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy Ohio's consolidated resuits of operations, cash flows or financial position.

EITF Issue No. 06-5, “Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance—Determining fhe Amcunt Thaf Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASRE :
Technical Bulfetin No. 85-4" (EITF No. 06-5} . In June 2008, the EITF reached a consensus on the accounting for corporate-owned and bank-owned life
insurance policies. EYTF No. 06-5 requires that a palicyhotder consider the cash surrender value and any addifional amounts to be received under the
confractual terms of the policy in determining the ameunt that could be realized under the insurance conltract. Amounts that are recoverable by the
policyholder at the giscretion of the insurance company must be excluded from the amount that could be realized. Fixed amounts that are recoverable by
the policyhotder in future periods in excess of ane year from the surrender of the policy must be recognized at their present value, EITF No. 06-5 was
effeclive for Duke Energy Ohio as of January 1, 2007 and must be applied as a change in accounting principte through a cumulative-effect adjustment to
retained earmings or other components of equily as of January 1, 2007, The adoplion of EITF Ne. 06-5 did not have any material impact on Duke Energy
Ohio’s consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

EITF Issue No. 06-6, “Deblar's Accounting for a Modificalion {or Exchange} of Convertible Debt Instruments” (EITF No. 06-6). In Navember 2008,
the EITF reached a consensus on EITF No. 06-6. EITF No. 06-6 addresses how a modification of a debt instrument (or an exchange of debt
instruments) that affects the terms of an embedded conversion option should be considered in the issuer's analysis of whether debt extinguishment
accounting should be applied, and further addresses the accounting for a modification of a debt instrument {or an exchange of debt instruments) that
affects the terms of an embedded conversion option when extinguishment accounting is not applied. EITF No. 06-6 applies to modifications {or
exchangas) occurring in interim or annual reporting periods beginning after November 29, 20086, regardless of when the instrument was originally issued.
Early application was permitted for modifications (or exchanges) occurring in periods for which financial statements have not been issued. There were
no modifications to, or exchanges of, any of Duke Energy's Qhio debt instruments within the scope of EITF No. 06-6 in 2006. The impact to Duke Energy
Ohio of applying EITF No. 08-6 in subsequent periods will be dependent upon the nature of any modifications to, or exchanges of, any debt insiruments
within the scope of EITF No, 06-6.

The following new aceounting standards have been issued, but have not yet been adopted by Duke Energy Ohio 25 of March 31, 2007:

SFAS No. 157, 'Fair Value Measuremenis” (SFAS No, 157} In September 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, which defines fair vaiue,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require
any new fair value measuwrements. However, in some cases, the application of SFAS No. 157 may change Duke Enetgy Ohic’s current practice for

suring and disclosing fair values under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. For Duke Energy, SFAS

__-157 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and must be applied prospectively except in cerlain cases. Duke Energy Ohio is currently evaluating the
impact of adopting SFAS No. 157, and cannot currenlly estimate the impact of SFAS No, 157 on its consolidated resuits of operations, cash flows or
financial position.

SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabifities” (SFAS No. 159). In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 159, which permits enlities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. For Duke Energy Ohio, SFAS
No. 158 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and will have no impact on amounts presented for periods prior to the eflective date. Duke Energy Ohio
cannot currenlly estimate the impact of SFAS No. 159 on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows ar financial position and has not yet
determined whether or not it will choose to measure items subject 1o SFAS No. 159 at fair value.
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16. Income Taxes and Other Taxes

Prior to the merger of Cinergy and Duke Energy on April 3, 2008, the axable income of Duke Energy Ohto was reflecled in Cineroy's U.S. federal
and slate income 1ax returns, After the merger, the taxable income of Duke Energy Ohio is reflected in Duke Energy's 1.S. federal and state tax retums.
On January 1, 2007, Duke Energy Ohio adopted FIN 48. As a resuit of the adoplion of FIN 48, Duke Energy Ohio recognized an increase to gocdwill of
approximately $4 million, which reflects all adoption provisions of FIN 48, including those provisions related to unrecognized income tax benefits, interest
expense, and penallies,

Effective with the adoption of FIN 48, Duke Energy Ohio’s liability totaled approximately $63 million related 1o unrecognized federal and slate tax
benefits, gross of any federal lax benefit for unrecognized state income tax benefits. If all unrecognized tax benefits were recognized, there would be no
efiect on the effective tax rate since the batance relales to either temporary differences or goodwill.

During the first quarter, Duke Energy Ohio's unrecognized tax benefits decreased approximately $16 miltion, primarily related to a setflement offer
involving liming diflerences. At March 31, 2007, Duke Energy Ohio's liabilily related to unrecognized 1ax benefils, gross of any federal tax benefit for
unrecognized stale income tax benefits, was approximately $47 million. It is reasonably possible that Duke Energy Ohio will reflect a reduction in
unrecognized tax benefils of approximately $32 millien in the next twelve months due to the expected settlemant of certain years, as well as the
expected setttement of an issue related to the timing of when deduclions can be laken. Duke Energy Ohlo does not expect any impact on the effective
tax rate relaled to these expected setllements in he next twelve monlhs, ;

Also effective with the adoption of FIN 48, Duke Energy Ohio’s liability related to pre-tax interest expense associated with income tax positions
totaled approximately $6 million. At March 31, 2007, approximately $2 million of pre-tax interest is accrued. The decrease in the Bability of approximately
$4 million during the first quarier reflects an increase to pre-tax income of $1 million, wilh the remaining decrease in the liability recorded primarily as a
reduction 1o goodwill.

Duke Energy Chio has open with the federal jurisdiction tax years 1897 and after. The slate tax jurisdictions are closed through 2001, with the
exception of any federal adjusimenits related to open federal years.

With the implementaiion of FIN 48, Duke Energy Ohio records, as if relates o taxes, interest expense as Interest Expense, interest Income as
Interest Income, and penatties in Other Income and Expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The $45 million decrease in income Tax Expense from Conlinuing Operations for the comparative ithree month period ended March 31, 2007 and
2006 was primarily due to the $126 million decrease in pre-tax income for the comparative period. The effective tax rafd on income from conlinuing
operations was ralatively flat for the comparalive periods, 38% for the three montns ended March 31, 2007 versus 37% for the same period in 2006.

Excise Taxes. Certain excise taxes levied by state or local governmenis are collected by Duke Energy Ohio from its customers. These taxes,
which are required to be paid regardless of Duke Energy Ohio's ability to collect from the customer, are accounted for on a gross basis. When Duke
Energy Chio acts as an agent, and the tax is nol required to ba remilted if it is not callected from the customer, the taxes are accounted for on a net
basis. Duke Energy Ohio’s excise taxes accounted for on a gross basis and recorded as Operaling Revenues in the accompanying Censolidated
Stalements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Successor™ Predecessor'™

Three Months Three Months

Ended Ended

March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

‘ , . _ o , __ (inmilions} . .

Excise Taxes . . - . T R APPSR AP RR LY |- SRR PRI RN  SRR R 138

(a} See Note 1 for addilional information on Predecessor ang Successor reporiing.
17. Subsequent Evants
For information on subsequent svents related to regulatory matters, and commilments and contingencies, see Notes 12 and 13, respectively.
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EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Management's Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunclion with the Consolidated Financial Statements.

On April 3, 2008, Duke Energy Corporation (Cld Duke Energy) and Cinergy Corp. (Cinergy) merged into wholly-owned subsidiaries of Duke Energy
Holding Corp. (Duke Eneirgy HC), resulling in Duke Energy HC becoming the parent entity. In connection with the closing of the merger tfransactions,
Duke Energy HC changed its name to Duke Energy Corporation {Duke Energy).

Due to the impact of push-down accounting, the financial statements and certain note presentations separate Duke Energy Chio's presentations
into two distingt periods, the pericd before the consummation of the merger (labeled ‘Predecassor”) and the period after that date {fabeled “"Successor™),
to indicate the application of different bases of accounting between the periods presented.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The resulls of operations and variance discussion for Duke Energy Chio is presented in a reduced disclosure format in accordance with General
Instructions (H)2) of Form 10-Q.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Results of Operations and Variances

Summary of Results (in millions)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

Successor'” | Predecessor™ Increase
- 2007 2006

(Decrease)

Opérating revenpes - .-, - e L
Operating EXDENSES
{Lossesy gains on saled of other assets and other, nef

Jperatng income -
“erief income and expenses, net
interest expense- . '
Income tax expense from conhnumg operatxons
Loss from discontinued-operatlons, net of tax~ -

Net income < TaY

(a) See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, “Basis of Presentation” for additional information on Predecessor and Successor reporting.

Net income
The 68 percent decrease in Duke Enargy Ohio's Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2007 compared o the same period in 2006 was
primarily due 1o the following faclcrs:

Operaling Revenues
The §47 million degrease in Operating revenues was driven primarily by:

. $88 million as a result of mark-lo-market losses on power sales and purchases confracts in 2007 of $45 million versus gains of $43 million
in 2006; and
. $28 million as a result of decreased volumes of coal sales due to expiration of contracts.
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Approximately $40 million increase in generation revenues due to Duke Energy’s contribution of its five Midwest generaling plants in the
second quarter of 2006;

. $24 million increase resulting from favorable weather in 2007 compared {0 2006;

. $7 million increase due 1o new eleciric rates implemented in the first quarter of 2007 for Duke Energy Kentucky, Inc.; and

- $4 million resulling from temporary rate reductions in 2006 associated with the regulatory approval of the Cinergy merger with Duke
Energy.

Operating Expenses

The $50 million increase in Operating expenses was driven primarily by:

. $55 million increase in operating expenses due to Duke Energy's contribulion of its five Midwest generating plants in the second quarter of
2006:;

. $30 miflion highar fuel and emission allowance consumplion expense due to recognizing coal and emission allowances a fair value as of
April 1, 2008 in conjunction with the Cinergy merger with Duke Energy;

. $7 million increase in line maintenance expense as a result of ice storms in February 2007; and

. $7 million of incremental amariization expense resuliing from recognizing the unregufated generation facilities at fair value as of April 1,

2008 in conjunction with the Cinergy merger wilh Duke Energy.
Partially offsetling these incraases were:

. $35 million refated to $19 million of mark-ta-market gains on fuel purchase contracts in 2007 versus losses of $16 million in 2006;
and
v %12 million related to 2006 costs for incenlive and retention payments incurred as a result of the Duke Energy merger.

(Losses) Gains on Sales of Other Assets and Other, net

The decrease in (Losses) gains on sales of other assets and other, net is due 10 10sses on emission allowance sales in 2007 of $11 milion versus
gains of $26 million in 2008, The lossas in 2007 were a result of recording emission allowances at fair value as of April 1, 2006 as part of purchase
accounting for the Cinergy merger with Duke Energy and decreases in market prices at the time of sale. .

Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations
The $45 million decrease in Income tax expense from continuing operalions was due primarily to a $126 million decrease in pre-tax income. The
effeclive tax rate was relatively flat for the comparative periods, 38% for the three months ended March 31, 2007 versus 37% the same period in 2006,
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\..._.-losure Confrols and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by
Duke Energy Ohio in the reports it files or submits under the Secuwrities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Acl) is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported, within the time pericds specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) rufes ang forms. )

Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by Duke Energy Ohio in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Actis accumulated and comimunicated to
management, including the Chief Executive Qfficer and Chief Financial Cfficer, as apprapriale to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, Duke Energy
Chio has evaluated the effectiveness of its disclesure controls and procedures {as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act) as of March 31, 2007, and, based upon this evaluation, the Chief Execuiive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that these
controls and procedures are effective in providing reasongble assurance that information requiring disclosure is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the imeframe specified by the SEC's rufes and forms.

Changes in Internat Control over Financial Reporting

UInder the supervision and with the parlicipation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, Duke Energy
Ohio has evaluated changes in internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Agt) that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2007 and found no change that bas materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materizally
affect, internal contral over financial reporting.
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Iltem 1. Legal Proceedings

For informalion regarding legal proceedings that became reportable events or in which there were material developments in the first quanter of
2007, see Nole 12 to the Consolidated Financial Stalements, “Regulatory Matters” and Nole 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
"Commitments and Contingencies”.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, careful consideration should be given to the factors discussed in Part |, “ltem 1A, Risk
Factors” in Duke Energy Ohlo's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 20086, which could materlally affect Duke Energy Chio's
financial condition or future resulls, Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to Duke Energy Ohio or that Duke Energy Ohlo currently
deems 1o be immaterial also may adversely affect Duke Ensrgy Ohio's financial condition and/or resulis of operations.
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Item 6. Exhibits

s Xhibits
"~ Exhibits fited or furnished herewith are designated by an asterisk (*).

Exhibit
Number
311 Cerlification of the Chief Execulive Officer Pursuant to Seclion 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
*31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
*32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 908 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
*32.2 Cerlification Pursuant 1o 18 U.5.G. Seclion 1350, as Adopled Pursuant to Section 906 of ihe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The total amount of securities of the registrant or its subsidiaries authorized under any instrument with respect to long-term debt not filed as an

exhibit does not exceed 10% of {he total assets of the registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The registrant agrees, upon request of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, to furnish copies of any or all of such instruments fo it.
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Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, ING.

Date: May 15, 2007 1S/ DAVID L. HAUSER

David L. Hauser
Group Executive and

Chiet Financial Officer
Date: May 15, 2007 1S STEVEN K. YOUNG

Steven K. Young
Senior Vice President and
Controller
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXEGUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, James E. Rogers, cerlify that:

M

3)
4

5)

| have reviewed this quanterly report on Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohie, Inc.;
Based on my knowtedge, this report does not contain any untrue stalement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements rade, in light of the circumstances under which such statemenis were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledae, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condilicn, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)} for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and progedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures lo be designed under our supervision,

to ensure that material information relating 1o the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known 1o us by others within

those entities. parlicularly during the oeriod in which this report is being prepared:
b)  Evaluated the effecliveness of the regisirant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
¢}  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in ihe case of an annual report) that has materially affected, oris reasonably likely to

materiallv atfect. the reqisirant’s inlernal control over financial reporting: and ) ) )
The registrant’s other cerlifying officer(s} and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of interal control over finandial reporting, to the

reqistrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the regisirant’s heard of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) Al significan deficiencigs and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b}  Anyfraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal

control aver financial reporling.

Date: May 15, 2007

1S/ JAMES E. ROGERS
James E. Rogers
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, David L. Hauser, certify that:

1)
2)

3)
4)

5)

Date: May 15, 2007

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue siatement of a material 1act or emit to state a material fact necessary to make the

slatemenls made, in light of the ciroumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the pericd covered by this

reporl;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, resulls of operations and cash flows of the regisirant as of, and for, the pericds presented in this report;

The registrant's other cerlifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining cllsclosure conlrals and procedures {as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a}  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures 1o be designed under our supervision,
to ensure thal material information relating to the registranl, including #s consolidated subsidiaries, is made known o us by olhers within

those enities, particularlv durina ihe period in which this report is baina prepared:
by  Evaluated the effecliveness of the registrant's disclosure contrels and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions aboul the

eflectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢} Disclosed in this report any change in the regisirant’s internat control over financial reporling that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matedally affected, or is reasonably likely to
malerially affect. lhe reaistrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloged, based on our most recent evaluation of internat conlrol over financial reporting, to the

registrant's auditors and the audit commiltee of the reqistrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a}  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in lhe design or opgration of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably

likely 1o adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial informatien; and
b)  Any fraud, whether or nol mateniai, that involves managemenl or other employees who have a significant rote in the registrant's interinal
control aver financkal reporting.

/5! DAVID L. HAUSER
David L. Hauser
Group Executive and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1 1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.5.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO -
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

in connection with the Quarterty Report of Duke Energy Obio, Inc. (“Duke Energy Ohio”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2007 as
1 with the Securilies and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report”). |, James E. Rogers, Chief Executive Officer of Duke Energy Ohio,
L fy, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. seclion 1350, as adopied pursuant to seclion 206 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
~" (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
{2} Theinformation conlained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and resulls of operations of Duke
Energy Ohio.

S/ JAMES E. ROGERS
James E. Rogers
Chief Executive Officer
May 15, 2007




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.8.CC.. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 206 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. ("Duke Energy Ohio”} on Fom 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2007 as
filed wilh the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report™), |, David L. Hauser, Group Executive and Chief Financial Officer of
Duke Energy Ohio, certify, pursuant to 18 U.8.C, section 1350, as adopted pursuant to seclion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

{1)  The Report iully complies with the reguirements of section 13(2) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information conlained in the Report fairly presenis, in all material respects, lhe financial condition and results of aperations of Duke

Energy Ohig,

/S! DAVID L. HAUSER
David L. Hauser
Group Executive and Chief Financial Officer
May 15, 2007

Created by 10KWizard  www. 10K Wizard.comSouvrce: Duke Energy Chio, In, 10-Q, May 15, 2007
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ltem 8.01. Other Events

SIGNATURE




S

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

‘Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): June 25, 2007

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 1-32853 20-2777218
(State or Other Jurisdiction {Commission (TRS Employer
of Incorporation) File Number) Identification No.)

526 South Church Street, Charlotte, North Carclina 28202
(Address of Principal Executive Offices, inchuding Zip code)

(704) 594-6200
{Registrant’s telephons number, including area code)

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 001~1232 31-024003¢
(State or Other Jurisdiction {Commission (IRS Employer
of Incorporation) File Number} Identification No,}

139 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
(Address of Principal Executive Offices, including Zip code)

(704} 594-6200
{Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, INC.

{Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Indiana 1-3543 : 35-0594457 ;
(State or Other Jurisdiction {Commission (IRS Employer n
of Incorporation) File Number) Identification No.) :

1000 East Main Street, Plainfield, Indiana 46168
{Address of Principal Executive Offices, including Zip code)

(704) 594—6200

Source: Duke Energy Ohio, In, 8~K, June 25, 2007



N

(Registrant’s telephone number, inchiding area code)

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8~K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the
registrant under any of the following provisions:

a Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

a Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a—12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

O Pre—commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))
O Pre—-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e—4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240, 13e—4(c)

L—————————————___________________—__ﬂ_.__._______._—————-———'

Sovrce: Duke Energy Ohio, In, 8-K, June 25, 2007



Ttem 8.01. Other Events.

As previously reported in the registrants’ prior disclosures, in 1999-2000, the U.S, Justice Department, acting on behalf of the
EPA, filed a number of complaints and notices of violation against multiple utilities across the covntry for alleged viclations of the
New Source Review (NSR) provisions of the Clean Air Act (CAA). Generally, the government alleged that projects performed at
various coal—fired units were major modifications, as defined in the CAA, and that the utilitics violated the CAA when they undertook
those projects without obtaining permits and installing emission contrels for SO2, NO= and particulate matier. The complaints seek
(1) injunctive relief to require installation of pollution control technology on various allegedly violating generating units, and
(2} unspecified civil penalties in amounts of up to $27,500 per day for ¢ach vielation. A number of Duke Energy’s ewned and
operated plants have been subject to these allegations and lawsuits. The registrants assert that there were no CAA violations because
the applicable regulations do not require penmitting in cases where the projects undertaken are “routing” or otherwise do not result in a
net increase in emissions.

In particular, in November 1999, the United States brought a Jawsuit in the United States Federal District Court for the
Southern District of Indiana against Cinergy Corp., Duke Energy Ohio, Inc., and Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. alleging various violations
of the CAA for various projects at six of Cinergy’s owned and co—owned generating stations in the Midwest. Additionally, the suit
claims that Cinergy violated an Administrative Consent Order entered into in 1998 between the EPA and Cinergy relating to alleged
violations of Ohio’s Siate Implementation Plan (STP) provisions governing particulate matter at Unit 1 at Duke Energy Ohio’s W.C.
Beckjord Station. In addition, three northeast states and two environmental groups have intervened in the case.

In August 2005, the district court ruled that in determining whether a project was projected 1o increase annual emissions, it
would not hold hours of operation constant. In June 2007, the district court granted the government’s motions for partial summary
judgment, concluding that certain of the specified projects included in the government’s claim were not “routine”. The district court
also rejected Cinergy’s affirmative defense that it was not given fair notice of the lepal standards that apply in determining whether a
project wasg projected to result in emissions increases and whether a project qualified for the “routine” exception to NSR, The
repistrants anticipate a jury frial being set for 2008 to detenmine whether the projects were expected to result in a net increase in
ciissions. Liability and remedy phases of the case are bifurcated, and no date for a remedy trial has been set at this point, 1t is not
possible to predict with certainty whether the registrants will incur any liability or to estimate the damages, if any, that the registrants
might incur in conneetion with this matter.

Source: Duke Energy Chio, In, 8«K, June 25, 2007



SIGNATURE

' Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
.- on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION

Date: June 25, 2007 By: /s/Steven K. Young
Name:  Steven K. Young
Title: Senior Vice President and Controller

DUKE ENERGY OHIO, INC,

Date: June 23, 2007 By: /s/Steven K. Young
Name: Steven K. Young
Title: Senior Vice President and Controller

DUKE ENERGY INDIANA, INC,

Date: June 25, 2007 By: /s/Steven K. Young
L Name: Steven K. Young
Title: Senior Vice President and Contreller

Created by 10K Wizard v frarc

Source: Duke Energy Ohio, In, B-K, June 25, 2007
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